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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d)
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012

Commission file number: 001-16123

NEWTEK BUSINESS SERVICES, INC.

New York 11-350463¢

(State or other jurisdiction of (I.R.S. Employer

incorporation or organization) Identification No.)
212 West 3tth Street, 2nd Floor New York, New York 10001
(Address of principal executive offices (Zip Code)

Registrant’s telephone number, including area codeg(212) 356-9500
Securities Registered Pursuant to Section 12(b) die Act: None
Securities Registered Pursuant to Section 12(g) tife Act:

Common Shares, par value $0.02 per share
(Title of class)

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a welbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 40%edBéturities Act.  Yed No
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuieed to file reports pursuant to Section 13 orti®ecl5(d) of the Act. Yes[d No

Indicate by check mark whether the registranthés filed all reports required to be filed by Sexeti3 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 during the past 12 months (or for suchtegreriod that the registrant was required todileh reports) and (2) has been subject to
such filing requirements for the past 90 days.es YXI No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant lbsmstted electronically and posted on its corpovegbsite, if any, every Interactive Data |
required to be submitted and posted pursuant te BRab of Regulation $-(Section 232.405 of this chapter) during the pdiéitg 12 months (i
for such shorter period that the registrant wasired to submit and post such files). Yé&d No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquletrs pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K ($®mt229.405 of this chapter) is not
contained herein, and will not be contained, toltbst of registrant’s knowledge, in definitive pyax information statements incorporated by
reference in Part Il of this Form 10-K or any amerent to this Form 10-K.[XI]

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlarge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, m-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting
company (all as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the ExgjeaAct).

Large accelerated file [ Accelerated file| O

Non-accelerated file O Smaller reporting compar
Indicate by check mark whether the registrantsiell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the BExge Act). YesO No

The aggregate market value of the voting and ndmg@ommon equity held by non-affiliates of thgistrant was approximately $32,531,000
as of the last business day of the regis's second fiscal quarter of 20



As of March 29, 2013 there were 35,311,888 shamsed and outstanding of the registrant’'s CommameShpar value $0.02 per share.
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EXPLANATORY NOTE

The Company has restated its audited consolidataddial statements and other financial informafmmthe year ended December 31, 2011,
and its unaudited condensed consolidated finastagéments for the three months ended March 32,28dee and six months ended June 30,
2012 and for the three and nine months ended Septedd, 2012. This restatement was caused by losksgsd to understated merchant
chargeback reserves in each of the affected pefidasCompany identified the matter through anrirdkreview of its chargeback reserves
during the 2012 year-end closing process. The @mtithvolved violations of Company policies andgadures by a member of senior
management in Universal Processing Services of 8o, LLC, (“UPS”), d/b/a Newtek Merchant Solutsaof WI, in the Electronic payment
processing segment which resulted in the understateof chargeback loss reserves for a group o€magrts introduced to the Company by a
single independent sales agent. The Company addiiis Committee retained a consulting firm witht@xsive expertise in the credit card
payments industry to conduct a detailed and infdaptestigation in the areas in which the formeptayee was involved. Also included was
an analysis of the steps appropriate to ensuresfgiimpliance with the Company’s accounting podi@ed practices relating to merchant
chargeback reserves and to determine if the fonggmiatter required modification of its conclusioagarding the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control over financial reportipth the internal and independent investigatimase completed prior to issuance of these
financial statements. Based on those investigaitamas concluded that the incident was an isolateght specifically related to the one
independent sales agent and its group of merchElmse were no other irregularities noted by eitherinternal or independent reviews that
could have affected the Company’s consolidatechfire results. In addition, the Audit Committee aggd special counsel to review the work
of both the internal investigation team and theefmehdent consultant, and advise the Company omaltter and the adequacy of the
Company’s response in particular. Special coursseldd a report fully coincident with the foregoamnclusions. The Company has begun the
collection process to ascertain if any of the loes be recouped by the Company.

On February 1, 2013, the Company announced thesiwavfor a chargdrack loss in its Electronic payment processing sagraf $1.5 million
for the year ended December 31, 2012. Subsequdéimstannouncement, management concluded thatthection of the understatements
required the Company restate its financial statésnfeon the periods ended December 31, 2011, Mat¢i2@12, June 30, 2012 and September
30, 2012, and that this provision for chargebasls loe spread over the affected periods beginnitigtive fourth quarter of 2011 and
throughout 2012. See the further discussion ofrtfaster in Note 26 to the accompanying consolidéitexhcial statements in this Annual
Report on Form 10-K. See, also, Iltem 9A. Controld Brocedures.

The impact over the periods is as follows:

For the

Quarter and

Year Ended For the Quarter Ended
(Amounts In Thousands) 12/31/11 3/31/12 6/30/1: 9/30/12
Electronic Payment Processing Expense $ 244 $ 472 $ (16) $ 27¢
Income (loss) before income tay $ (249 $(472) $ 1€ $(275)
Net income (loss) available to common stockhols $  (14¢€) $ (289 $ 1C $ (165)
Income (loss) per she=—Basic $ (0.0 $(0.01) $— $ —
Income (loss) per she—Diluted $ (0.0)) $(0.07) $— $(0.07)
Deferred tax assi $ 98 — — —
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other tliekitities $ 244 $ 52¢ $51¢ $ 682

The Companys management has determined that the Company hadiahaeaknesses in its internal control overfiicial reporting at the er
of each such period as described in more detdiém 9A. Controls and Procedures of this Annualdepn Form 10-K.
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PART |
ITEM 1. BUSINESS.
Overview

Newtek Business Services, I. (“we,” the “Company” or “Newtek”), “The Small Business Authority?, provides financial and business
services to the small- and mediwsized business market. Our website, www.thesba.aathpur heightened branding strategy enable afec
small businesses the ability to grow and prospeshigining from us:

» Electronic Payment ProcessingCredit card, debit card, check conversion and A@bt@ssing solution

 Ecommerce ServicesCombinations of payment processing, online shoppargtools, web site design, web hosting and veddted
services which enable businesses to establishsampre and commercial capability on the Internet guick and simple fashic

» Business LendingBusiness loans for working capital, to acquirexgand a business or for the purchase of machimetyeguipmen

e Managed Technology SolutionsFull service web hosting, including domain registna and online shopping cart tools; cloud comp
plans and customized web design and developmeritss

e The Newtek Advantage™:A mobile, real-time operating platform for businéstzlligence putting all critical business transaas in
real-time and enabling a business to access daasorartphone, tablet, laptop or PC for eCommereglit/ debit transactions, website
statistics, payroll, insurance and business Ic

» Data Backup, Storage and RetrievalFast, secure, ¢site data backup, storage and retrie

» Accounts Receivable FinancingReceivable financing and management services, tihesedit collateralized by receivable accot
» Insurance ServicesNationwide commercial, health and benefits, andqmal lines of insuranc

e Payroll: Payroll management processing and employee tag f

During 2012 we derived revenue through the sakelmisiness service or product to over 100,000 basiaccounts. We use state of the art,
web-based proprietary technology to provide lowt posducts and services to our small- and mediwmesbusiness clients. We acquire our
customers through internal and independent sadessand referrals through alliances with Fortun@®s@ompanies, community banks, credit
unions and others, all of whom have elected toraffee or more of our business services and finapoiucts rather than try to provide them
directly for their customers or members. Our altapartners have historically interfaced with Néwtterough their use of our patented,
proprietary NewTracket referral and tracking systenich enables complete transparency in the rdfprogess. In 2012, we continued our
major emphasis on placing resources behind thelg@went of our coordinated marketing and media Ewgfocused on our branding
strategy, featurin@he Small Business Authorityebsite, all intended to present the Company tsthall, independent business audience as tl
authoritative presence in the small- and mediuraestzusiness space across many areas of operations.

History

Newtek is a corporation formed under the laws ovN@rk that serves as a holding company for sewshallly- and majority-owned
subsidiaries. We were founded in 1998 to provida ded equity financing to small- and medium-sibedinesses. We have since developed
our branded line of business and financial prodantsservices for the small- and medium-sized lessimarket. At December 31, 2012, we
had 6 principal subsidiaries, and 30 other minatimdled entities, most of which are direct proviglef financial and business services.

Initially, Newtek was the sponsor of a total of détified capital companies, which we call Capeusy reduced to 12. We have not created
new Capcos since 2005, although we continue to nmestments in and loans to small businesses ghrour existing Capcos and meet the
goals of the Capco programs. We are now concemdratir efforts on becoming “The Small Business Autly” by creating a distribution
channel for business and financial services pravitmeour subsidiaries, affiliates or marketing pars for the small- and medium-sized
business market supported by a coordinated dimatipnal advertising campaign implemented in Septm2012. At present, we are placing
190 sixty second commercials on television eachtmon
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Business Strategy

Key elements of our strategy to grow our business

Continue to focus our business model to serve thwah- and medium-sized business markéfe are focused on developing and
marketing business and financial products and sesvéimed at the small- and medium-sized businaskeatn Our target market
represents a very significant marketplace in th#ddrStates based on non-farm private gross doenesiduct (“GDP”). According to
statistics published by the U.S. Small Business istration (the “SBA”), approximately 51% of theD® in the United States comes
from small businesses and approximately 99% ofrmssies in the United States which have one or empdoyees fit into this market
segment. Our business model is to get that maokéetv us as “The Small Business Authority” and eotm depend on us as their source
for business and financial services as well adbtl#gness information they need. We intend to comtito leverage the Newték and The
Small Business Authorit® brands as a o-stog-shop provider for the sm- and medium sized business marl

Continue to implement a strategy of acquiring custers and processing their business at low cWe seek to acquire customers at a
low cost through a national strategy centered arafliance partners, internet marketing, coordidatearketing, social media and our
NewTracker technology. Our alliance partners usepooprietary NewTracker referral system to refestomers to us for sales a
customer tracking and processing. NewTracker Bisteis the referral to our appropriate business sagor segments for fulfillment
while keeping our alliance partners up to datehendustomer’s progress in real time with detailedwinentation. We use the same
proprietary system as our gateway for direct sélesugh our websites and our BizExec program. biitaeh, during 2012 we placed
significant resources into direct media advertisinger the banner of our The Small Business Autyhanark. This ties together
significant national media exposure through televieand radio advertising, design and productionwf“Small Business Index”™ and
“SB Market Sentiment Surveys” ™ reflecting our gl and assessment of business conditions for sarall medium-sized businesses,
the active use of social media marketing, and wel§giww.thesba.com). Notwithstanding our emphasisur alliance partners as a
source of customers, in January 2013 we opened sffiaés in California and Kentucky consistingintlustry professionals in small
business lending and merchant processing custargeisition. We believe that this additional chanwél enable these businesses to
grow without adding material cos

Continue to develop our ste-of-the-art technology to process business applications &indncial transactions We continue to update
our proprietary systems to take advantage of tdolgiwal advances that provide state of the art sodiments in client service and proc
controls which lead to lower costs. During 2012csenpleted the development of the Newtek Advantagedt nternet (or cloud) based
operating platform, which has a patent pendingntiegrate customer reports for all of our busiressices in a simple, straightforward
mobile application accessible by the businessahtime and at any timi

Continue our focus on the Internet and The Small Bmess Authority markOur major goal continues to be to fodhe Small Business
Authoritybranding strategy and to establish thesba.comeagrifine destination spot for small business. ODpgii12 we revised and
updated this website to add additional featureatufes of thesba.com that have impact on smalhkasiowners includ

» Free monthly newsletters designed and writtenrfdependent, small business owr

e The Small Business Authority Index

e The Small Business Authority Market Sentiment Swi

» Regular news reports and updates about the ecofwrtiye small business own

» Informative and engaging SB authority informatiownialeos

» Pertinent information on acquiring products andises for independent business owners to prc

Continue to fulfill our obligations under the currat Capco programsOur emphasis is on continuing our exemplary regwat
compliance program in order to complete succegsthé investment cycles for all Capcos. At Decenier2012, we reached the final
minimum investment requirements in all Capco progrén which we participated. We believe this ensuirat 100% of the tax credits
related to the programs are beyond risk of recaptaraddition, as of that date, all of the casynpents required to be made to the
investors have been made. As the Capcos reachet68m investment we will seek to decertify thenCagpcos, liquidate their remaining
assets and thereby reduce our operational costgytarly the legal and accounting costs assodiatith compliance. Four of our origir
Capcos have reached this ste
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Principal Business Segments
Overview

The Companys principal business segments, which we operadecimordinated manner in order to provide businadgiaancial services to tl
small- and medium-sized business market, are:

Electronic Payment ProcessingMarketing third party credit card processing andathapproval services to the small- and mediumdsize
business market under the name of Newtek MerchalotiSns.

Managed Technology SolutionsOffers shared and dedicated web hosting, datage@ad backup services, cloud computing plans alatkex
services to the small- and medium-sized busineskaha

Small Business FinanceThis segment is comprised of Newtek Small Busiii@sance, Inc. (‘“NSBF”"), a nationally licensed, SBsder that
originates, sells and services loans to qualifgmgll businesses, which are partially guaranteeth®BBA, and CDS Business Services, Inc.
d/b/a Newtek Business Credit (“NBC"), which provsdeceivable financing, revolving lines of credilananagement services. An additional
subsidiary, Small Business Lending, Inc., engagésan servicing for non-SBA loans.

All Other: Businesses formed from investments made througlecCaqgrams and others which cannot be aggregatbdther operating
segments, including insurance and payroll procgssin

Corporate Activities: Corporate implements business strategy, direct&etiag, provides technology oversight and guidacoeydinates and
integrates activities of the segments, contracts alliance partners, acquires customer opporesdind owns our proprietary NewTracker
referral system. This segment includes revenue=apdnses not allocated to other segments, includiegest income, Capco management fee
income and corporate operations expenses.

Capcos:Twelve certified capital companies which invessimall- and medium-sized businesses. They geneoateash income from tax
credits and non-cash interest and insurance expémseldition to cash management fees and expenses.

Financial information for each segment can be fourldanagement’s Discussion and Analysis of ResafliSperations and Financial
Condition, Segment Results and Note 24-Segmentegdo the Consolidated Financial Statementswel

Electronic Payment Processin

Newtek Merchant SolutionNMS”) markets credit and debit card processiny®es, check approval services and ancillary prsicgs
equipment and software to merchants who accepit@adis, debit cards, checks and other non-cashsfof payment. New merchants are
acquired through several sales channels. Our pyifoaus is on developing new merchant sales leadsrasult of internal sales efforts and ou
direct marketing under The Small Business Authorityprand. NMS has targeted the marketing of itsyaofservices under agreements with
alliance partners, which are principally finandratitutions, including banks, credit unions anbestrelated businesses that are able to refer
potential customers to NMS through Newtek’'s NewKeaaeferral system. In addition, we enter intoeggnents with independent sales agent
throughout the country. These referring organizegtiand associations are typically paid a percerdétiee processing revenue derived from
respective merchants that they successfully refest In 2012, we processed merchant transactidhsavsales volume exceeding $4.2 billion,
up over $400 million from the previous year, indhgimerchant portfolios operated by our other siibsies which are serviced by NMS. Our
customer base and the related sales volume pratbgses has grown significantly during each yeaopdrations since 2002 through a
combination of organic growth in customers as wslbelective merchant portfolio acquisitions. Oerchant base has grown from
approximately 1,200 merchants at the end of 20G@Gpproximately 14,100 merchants at the end of 2Dl2anuary 2013, we made significant
changes in the management of this segment, addiod &rille, with over 20 years of experience inga scale payment processing acquisition
businesses, including as the President of FirsbNalt Bank of Omaha, Merchant Services, COO andité&ales at Vital Processing and
COO of Retriever Merchant Services. Mr. Turille lad¢so served on several VISA and MasterCard coraasttWe intend to build the growth
and increased profitability of this segment with. Murille’s expertise and knowledge.

We maintain two main customer service and salepa@tipffices in Milwaukee, Wisconsin and BrownsejllTexas with additional specialists
located in Phoenix, Arizona and New York. Our persa at these locations assist merchants withalnitstallation of equipment and on-going
service, as well as any other special processiegdsthat they may have.
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Because we are not a bank, we are unable to b&domgd directly access the Vi8a and Master@ard dsdkassociations and we must be
sponsored by a bank in order to process bankcanddctions. We are currently registered with Wisad easterCar® through the sponsorst
of two banks that are members of the card asson@tWells Fargo Bank, N.A. and, since January ddwood Merchant Services, a
division of Westamerica.

Our electronic payment processing businesses reuo ability to obtain data processing servicdger€ are two aspects to the processing: the
initial authorization of a payment (referred totlas “front-end processing”) and the merchant cradd cardholder charge transaction (the
“back end processing”). In 2009, we signed agregsasith Wells Fargo Bank to diversify our procegsoperations and with First Data
Corporation to reduce our costs. We contract wetfesal large-scale data processing companies taderthe front-end and back-end
processing (Chase Paymentech Solutions, LLC, Bath Merchant Services Corporation (multiple platfs), Total Systems Services, Inc.
(TSYS), and National Processing Company (NPC)sehraultiple platforms allow us to compete more @ffely, reduce our risk of reliance
on any one source, and give us the option of intdidifferent processors to match the needs ofqudar merchants or situations. As our
merchant base has grown, we believe that we haare ddele to achieve greater economies of scalerimstef negotiating the cost structure for
providing such settlement services.

During 2012 we continued to work with an affiliagecure Gateway Services, LLC, which has the softwad experience to provide a
processing gateway facility for our payment protesbusiness. This has resulted in 2012 in intéggatustomer payment processing data "
our Newtek Advantage software platform providingiabile application allowing the customer to monitbarge processing activity in real
time.

As a result of our exposure to liability for merabh&aud, charge-backs and other losses inherghtimerchant payment processing business
we have developed practices and policies whichmgittéo assess and reduce these risks. Activitiaghioh we engage in order to mitigate suct
risks are:

» underwriting the initial application of a merchaotidentify unusual risks, structuring the relaship in a manner consistent with
acceptable risks and, where possible, obtainingrsomal or parent corporation guarantee from theinaat;

* monitoring the daily and monthly activity of eackemhant to identify any departures from normatikarging behavior of each merchant
and monitoring the largest of our merchants andetwith high levels of refunds or charge-backsasto ensure an opportunity to
address any credit or cha-back liability problems at the earliest possibiedj anc

» requiring high-risk merchants to agree to the disfatment of cash reserves to protect us againsthmaet failures to pay for charge-backs
and other fees, and making adjustments in thegevesas merchant experience indice

Our development and growth are focused on sellingservices to internally generated referrals, imant referrals identified for us by our
alliance partners, and, with increasing emphasiainuary 2013, by our independent sales represasaat which time we added a team of
professionals experienced in the development anthgement of large scale independent sales forcesré/still different than most electro
payment processing companies who acquire theintsligrimarily through independent agents. We beligat our business model provides us
with a competitive advantage by enabling us to aeqew electronic payment processing merchardd@wer cost level for third-party
commissions than the industry average. Our busimesiel allows us to own the customer as well astteam of residual payments, as
opposed to models which rely more heavily on indeljeat sales agents.

Managed Technology Solutior

Through our subsidiary, CrystalTech Web Hosting, thb/a/ Newtek Technology Services (“NTS”), weyide website hosting, dedicated
server hosting, cloud hosting, web design and dgweént, internet marketing, ecommerce, data staagdéackup, and other related services
to more than 132,000 customer accounts in 120 degnt

NTS provides a full suite of outsourced IT infrastiure services, including shared server hostiadiahted server hosting, and cloud se
(virtual) instances under the Newtek TechnologwiBes® , Newtek Web Servic€s , Newtek Web Hosting, @rystalTecl® brands, for
which it receives recurring monthly fees, as welb#her fees such as set-up fees, consultingdeesain name registration, among others.
Ninety percent of all fees are paid in advanceregit card.

NTS has recognized the continuing decline in Miofbbeing utilized in the design of web sites alnél tharket shift to Linux, Nginx and
proliferation of Word Press sites being built om#idicrosoft based platforms. This decline has cdwsearked downward trend in the
historical site count of NTS relating to Microsabftsted sites. NTS has responded by launching LApache and Linux Nginx platforms witt
its environment and created associated controllpaservice/support and billing to participate mhrdy in 100% of the market as compared tc
the present 33% of the new web design growth repted by Microsoft. All platforms are available kit NTS’s Cloud and non-cloud
environment and are fully managed offerings as @megbto our competitors. In addition, Newtek haated a proprietary platform and filec
associated patent for Newtek Advantage which legesaNTSS underlying technologies to deliver real time mifation and actionable busin
intelligence to its existing and new customer base.
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NTS has launched a complete line of cloud basethéss and eCommerce packages, Cloud Spaces,amétre the decision process-
business owners and accommodate designers anddersethat wish to build sites in both Microsoftdnnux environments.

NTS's Cloud offerings provide for a consumption-bakedting model that allows customers to pay onhtlierresources they need, which not
only saves them money compared to traditional sdresting, but also enables them to scale largsnmailer on demand.

NTS delivers services not just to customers seefkagging, but also to wholesalers, resellers, ael gdevelopers by offering a range of tc

for them to build, resell, and deliver their weltamt. NTS primarily uses the Microsoft Windos 82 platform to power its technology.
Microsoft has described NTS as one of the largestiig services in the world providing Microsoft Mdbws hosting. NTS currently operates ¢
5,000 square foot fortress-strength data centatéalcin Scottsdale, Arizona, utilizing redundartiveeking, electrical and back-up systems,
affording customers what management believes t diate-of-the-art level of performance and seguNTS is PCI certified, Service
Organization Control 1 (*SOC 1") audited, and isreatly completing a SASE 16 audit, all of whichanghat it meets the highest industry
standards for data security.

Throughout its operations as a Newtek company, s&eenty percent of new NTS customers have comaesult of referrals without material
expenditures by the Company for marketing or adsiag. Many of NTS’s competitors are very price &itime, offering minimal services at
cut-rate pricing. While being cost competitive wittost Linux- and Windows-based web hosting seryi’ds$ has emphasized higher quality
uptime, service and support as well as multiplerbpanel environments for the designer and dgsicommunity.

NTS has diversified its product offerings to si- and medium-sized businesses under different lsraaibbunder Newtek Technology Services,
including Newtek Hosting, Newtek Web Services, NewbData Storagé and Newtek Web Design and DevelopteNTS focuses
specifically on select markets such as restaurfings)cial institutions, medical practices, lawnfs, accountants, retail and technology service
providers for channel business and reselling.

NTS has also launched a turnkey hosting servicedet financial institution needs for dedicated sesyhosting and/or data storage, enak
these entities to comply with strict regulatoryuigments that demand very high security protoaals practices be in place.

Small Business Financt

We originate SBA loans and offer accounts rece&dibancing and other lending products essentiadtimall- and mediunsized businesses.
addition, we provide small business loan servi@ngd consulting to the Federal Deposit Insurance@@ation (“FDIC”).

Newtek Small Business Finance, I"NSBF") specializes in originating, servicing arallgg small business loans guaranteed by the SBA f
the purpose of acquiring commercial real estatehimary, equipment and inventory and to refinanelet énd fund franchises, working capital
and business acquisitions. NSBF is one of 14 SBé&nked Small Business Lending Corporations thatigegdoans nationwide under the
Federal Section 7(a) loan program (“SBA 7(a) loanN'SBF has received preferred lender program (RBtd&us, a designation whereby the
SBA authorizes the most experienced SBA lendeptaice SBA guarantees on loans without seeking @A review and approval. Being a
national lender, PLP status allows NSBF to semvelients in an expedited manner since it is ngtired to present applications to the SBA for
concurrent review and approval. In December 201dhdard & Poor’s (“S&P”) Ratings Services added W38 their Select Servicer List
which has been helpful to the Company in obtairsdditional outside servicing contracts.

We originate loans ranging from $50,000 to $5,000,® both startup and existing businesses, whsehtlve funds for a wide range of busines
needs including:
e opening, expanding or acquiring a business or frsec $50,000 to $5,000,0C
» financing working capital
¢ SBA term loans: at least $50,0
» Purchase equipment: $25,000 to $5,000
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» purchasing ownroccupied commercial real estate and leasehold wepnents: up to $5,000,000; a
» refinancing existing nc-rea-estate business debt: $25,000 to $5,000,

Late in 2009, we were selected by the FDIC asatdractor to manage and service portfolios of SB#) Toans acquired by the FDIC from
failed financial institutions. In addition, we aststhe FDIC in the packaging of these loans foe.s2uring November 2012, the FDIC was
successful in selling a significant group of loanth our assistance. Our existing servicing faeiitand personnel perform these activities
supplemented by contract workers as needed. Theéithe portfolio we will service for the FDIC vas and depends on the level of bank
failures and the needs of the FDIC in managingfplios acquired from those banks. As of December2B812, we were servicing
approximately $110,400,000 in loans under this reat in addition to the other approximately $408,800 loans we service.

In December 2010 and December 2011, NSBF structussturitization transaction which enabled itetlh @pproximately $43,500,000 of the
unguaranteed portions of loans it has originatgat@vious years. The securities sold were ratedp/S&P. A second securitization transac
was completed in March 2013 wherein NSBF sold apprately $23,569,000 of the unguaranteed portidredditional loans with an
additional pool of $5,880,000 of funding for futdoans. These securities were sold with an A-rabn&&P. NSBF typically retains the
unguaranteed portions of the loans it originatasiaaurs related warehouse financing costs. Wighsdiles, NSBF was able to create signifi
liquidity which was used to pay down the warehdiszand to fund new loans. We expect to contitie firocess as market and other
conditions permit.

We also offer accounts receivable financing andagament services through CDS Business Servicesd/inia Newtek Business Credit
(“NBC"). Through this service, small- and mediurzesd businesses can obtain $10,000 to $2,000,000@eth through the sale of their trade
receivables or through a revolving line of credilateralized by receivable accounts. In additidBC offers back office receivables services
for small businesses, such as billing and caslectidins.

In addition, we offer merchant cash advance sesvic®ur small business customers, under which ma@ats obtain cash by selling future cr
card receivables at a discount. Under this progthenmerchant receives the purchase amount updrahagrees to have a set percentage of tl
credit card sales deducted from its daily dep@sits remitted back until the purchase amount isideiamost cases we process the payment
streams. We offer these services as an agentifdrgarty providers and are not taking on credik in connection with these services.

All Other: Insurance and Payroll Processing Servie

We offer small business insurance products andcearthrough Newtek Insurance Agency, LLC (“NIAWRhich is licensed in 50 states.

We serve as a retail and wholesale agency spedoiliz the sale of personal, commercial and hdadthefits lines insurance products to
customers of all our affiliated companies as welbar alliance partners. We offer insurance pragfrom multiple insurance carriers providi
a wide range of choice for our customers. We hawaéd a strategic alliance with American InterraaioGroup, E-Insure, Credit Union
National Association, Pershing and others to pmwdent services to small business clients. Weanrgnuing our efforts to impleme
programs with alliance partners to market commeesid personal insurance. In December 2012, NlAmgrwith another of our companies
acquired a portfolio of insurance business fromagomhealth care insurance agency based in the el City area. This has added
approximately 340 group health insurance polidies tve are servicing and will form the basis onalihive plan to grow this aspect of the
insurance business. We expect also that recerthhesak legislation will increase the demand fasthservices among small and medained
businesses.

During 2011 we placed significant emphasis on dmial the business conducted by our majority-owaéfdiated company operating under
the trade name of “Newtek Payroll Services.” Thigestment was originally made in 2010, and enahle€ompany to offer an array of
industry standard and very competitively pricedrpiynanagement, payment and tax reporting sentwasnall- and mediursized businesst
Based in New York, Newtek Payroll Services hastluplits business during 2012 to approximately 8&&omers in 35 states with total pay
under management of approximately 1,660 employs#eghich approximately 20% were Newtek employe@singrease in customer count of
393% and employee count of 137%. These payrolices\are being marketed through all of our avadlablannels including the alliance
partnerships and our direct marketing campaigns.
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Corporate Activities

Corporate implements business strategy, directketiag, provides technology oversight and guidacsoerdinates and integrates activities of
the segments, contracts with alliance partnersjisesjcustomer opportunities and owns our propyetewTracker referral system and all
other intellectual property rights. This segmeiwtudes revenue and expenses not allocated to stlgenents, including interest income, Capcc
management fee income and corporate operationfhsgpe

Certified Capital Companies

We have deemphasized our Capco business in fagyowfing our operating businesses and do not aatieicreating any new Capcos. While
observing all requirements of the Capco progrands ianparticular, financing qualified businessestimg applicable state requirements as to
limitations on the proportion of ownership of gtielil businesses, we have been able to use thisnfyisdurce as a means to facilitate the
growth of our businesses, which are strategicalty$ed on providing goods and services to smalhbases such as those in which our Ca
invest. We continue to invest in and lend to srhaflinesses through our existing Capcos and megbte of the Capco programs.

Marketing
Overview

We position ourselves as a provider of businesdiaadcial services to the small to medium busireezgor in the United States. Through
integrated marketing and sales of each serviceNimeontrol our customer’s experience in orderrtwvigle high quality service to both our
marketing partners and potential customers. Wehrpatential customers through our multi-channelrapgph featuring direct, indirect and
direct outbound solicitation efforts.

Although we continue to utilize and grow our corarketing channel of strategic alliance partnershese initiated a direct marketing strategy
to the small- and medium-sized business custorhessigh our new “go to market” brand, “The Small Biess Authority.” Through this brand
we are establishing ourselves as the authoritpah ®f the service lines we provide through a coatédd radio and television advertising
campaign built around our new web presence, wwsitheom We continue to market through our bilingual 2dél center which we believe
is a valuable feature for most small business osvtieat need help during non-business hours andeakends. We use web-based application
as an in-house tool to help our employees and egeedo be efficient, smart and productive. Indtefusing expensive, six-figured salaried
employees that a typical bank or an insurance ggenald use to market financial products and bussreervices to small- and medium-sized
business customers, we use technology and dedilgtaichon-executive-salary-plus-bonus employeé® dddition of the direct to market
strategy through promotion of our new web site sufgpour goal to maintain costs and retain greatgin on each transaction as well as
providing our competent in house business seryeeialists the ability to create a second and thicatluct and service opportunities.

We believe that our business service specialisaigroduct lines understand the needs of theldmainess owner. Each business service
specialists in the enterprise has recently comglete “Newtek University” which provides in depifaining and techniques in identifying
qualified opportunities across all of Newtslgervice offerings. We conduct telephone intergiawd targeted surveys with our customers a
all product lines to deepen our understanding eif theeds. We have tailored our procedures soroali-sand medium-sized business
customers do not have to fill out multiple handteritforms or type multiple data entry screens, tvhive believe is the most aggravating factol
facing our customers. We have modeled our back@tind business operations after customer cendpezdtional models. We stress our
responsive customer service and we endeavor td iexaddressing and resolving issues and problé@itsaur customers may face. We are
providing our 24/7 customer service functions im8ph as well as English to service the growingkiic-owned andoperated small busine
customer base in the United States.

We also market our services through referrals fommalliance partners such as AlG, Credit Unionidietl Association, Iberia Bank, Pershing,
New York Community Bank, and Morgan Stanley Smitriey, using our proprietary NewTracker referraltegn as well as direct referri

from our new web presence, www.thesba.com. Addifioeferrals are obtained from individual professils in geographic markets that have
signed up to provide referrals and earn commisdiormaigh our BizExec and TechExec Programs. Thetigiduals are traditionally
information technology professionals, CPAs, indejgm insurance agents and sales and/or marketiriggsionals. In addition, electronic
payment processing services are marketed throutgpandent sales representatives and web technafmbgcommerce services are marketec
through internet-based marketing and third-parsglters. A common thread across all business figlases to acquiring customers at low cost.
We seek to bundle our marketing efforts throughland, our portal, our proprietary NewTracker tealbgy, our new web presenceTase
Small Business Authorignd one easy entry point of contact.
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We have implemented a multi-channel marketing etnathat consists of:

Direct: In September 2012, the Company launched a redesitne corporate website, www.thesba.cofihe goal of the new site is to focus
on helping business owners succeed by providing thigh quality business services, testimonialse cisdies and a daily blog. In addition,
site delivers promotions to aid in acquiring cleanhd creating higher levels of customer referite website is consistent with Newtek’s
national television campaign and on-line messagingitioning it as a national provider of busingssrices and financial products to the more
than 27 million small and independently owned apdrated businesses across the United States.

In September 2012 Newtek also selected Ocean Mediaas their media planner and buyer. Ocean Mspéializes in media planning and
buying for the delivery of effective television aadvertising strategies. It has created innovatiedia campaigns for several companies such
as_Priceline.comAngieslist.comand_Overstock.comNewtek commercials are aired on CNN, Fox Businesg News, Headline News,
MSNBC and the Outdoor channel.

To supplement our direct marketing efforts, we hdeeeloped two proprietary vehicles to enhancevigibility and credibility ofThe Small
Business Authoritand the related websiteesba.comThe Small Business Index was developed internaltyteademarked during 2011. Itis a
monthly assessment of various factors indicativeusiness conditions in the small business ma8iate its introduction, it has received a
great deal of publicity and is now quoted in nunusroational publications. In addition, we alsoadiuiced in 2011 our internally developes
Market Sentiment Survi, which captures responses from our website visibortopics of significant importance to our snailsiness
customers. This survey has also gained much natdtestion. We believe that both of these effads significantly to our marketing efforts
and further support our efforts to become the dop-shop for all small businesses.

A final addition to our direct marketing effortsasir effort to giveThe Small Business Authordysocial media presence. We have dedicated
staff familiar with the latest developments in sbenedia and we have been active in placing bltigles, videos and special promaotions on
numerous social media sites. We distribute thig tyfocontent multiple times daily and attempt tgage with customers and others on a sir
basis. Our staff follows numerous blog sites reldteour businesses and attempts to post relevatgrials and information that both addresse
small and medium sized business needs and intenedtsientifies the ways in which The Small Busin@sthority can address many of those
needs.

Indirect: Our alliance partners market one or more of ourises to their customer base or members, andaifligw Tracker to submit
referrals to Newtek from either their website aedtly by their staff. Through our BizExec and TEgkc Programs, we are recruiting
individual professionals such as insurance agégiers and accountants, or website designersftwa® developers, who utilize NewTrac
through a link to NewTracker from their own sitetlbe establishment of a new website.

Direct Outbound: We combined all data assets into a seamless, estefpide, accessible master database in ordexcilitate cross
marketing, selling and servicing, real-time dataimg and business intelligence. We have establiahgeticated team to use our master
database for cross marketing, selling and servicing

The Newtek Referral System

Our proprietary NewTrackér referral system, on \Wtdagpatent has been issued, allows us to procesbumness utilizing a web-based,
centralized processing point. bound referrals from alliance partners, our welssite other sources are transmitted to our busing¢egeovide
the service or services our customers need. Ounettaepresentatives use these web-based apptisatfoa tool to acquire and process data
through telephonic interviews, eliminating the néadface-to-face contact and the requirementahaistomer complete multiple paper forms
or data entry for multiple product lines. This apgeh is customer friendly, allows us to procesdiegions very efficiently and allows us to
store client information for further processing amdss-selling efforts while offering what we beketo be the highest level of customer
service. It also assures our alliance partnerdraisaction transparency. This system permitabiance partners to have a window to our
office processing 24 hours a day, 7 days a weedgedcevery communication and interaction betweersales and processing representatives
and their referred customers while still presentimg privacy of customer or alliance partner saresilata on the application. NewTracker
enables the processing and tracking of servicasmanner similar to the bar code system used bgnigre delivery services. We believe that
NewTracker is a key differentiating component of business. It enables us to scale our businegEssrapidly to meet the demands of
customers. NewTracker enables our alliance partoesffer our services immediately, without haviognvest in marketing materials, sales
and marketing personnel, training, licensing orcefpace. Because their customers or membersiaea thy our technology to our processing
centers, which can handle increased volume ofaicims without having to add specialized stafinérastructure, there is no need for
additional investment by our alliance partners. Neeker additionally provides direct interface tesimess owners/operators accessing oul
web site as they provide basic information regaydireir need so that our Business Service Spesials immediately respond to inquiry for
any of our service offerings. The Company is aksgibning to explore the possibility of marketingremaspect of the patented technology as |
represents a unique capability for sales orgamizatas it not only manages intake of businessrmnltles real time management of client
service functions.
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Alliances

Each of the operating businesses benefit fromebeipt of significant numbers of customer referfedsn our alliance partners, pursuant to
agreements negotiated and structured by our hotmingpany management and staff. We are focuseding siategic business affiliations to
identify likely small- to medium-sized business toumsers and others to be serviced by our operatisgibsses. We seek to ally Newtek with
companies and organizations that wish to offeramn@ore of our principal business lines to theistomers or members. We provide one-stop
shopping for alliance partners that want to lauackxpand their business services. For exampley m@dit unions are serving small business
owners with consumer lending applications, butesa our alliance with Credit Union National Assdicia and scores of small to large credit
unions and community banks to expand their offeahgervices. We are also able to private label@myur business services for any alliance
partner.

These alliance partners are able to provide greateice to their customers and members and darsteady flow of referral payments from
On the other hand, our operating companies arévirgesignificant numbers of referrals for our seas in the areas of small business loans,
insurance and electronic payment processing anthaseacquiring customers at a low cost. NewTraaker proprietary, internally developed
referral system technology, facilitates this transff information and also permits our customeviserrepresentatives, their supervisors anc
referring alliance partners to observe the reaktprocessing of each referral, from intake to catiqh. For example, an alliance partner
financial advisor who refers a brokerage custoroeefectronic payment processing, can track oucgssing of their client and know when
decisions are made, what they are, when the réfegs are earned, as well as observe and ovérsemerational performance of our custome
service representatives. The process is analogdhe thar code system used by overnight delivemjicss to track the movement of a pack
where critical processing points are input andciiitomer is able to access the company’s passwotdegted web site and monitor the
movement of the package from pick-up to delivery.

We have entered into agreements to provide oneooe lyusiness services with numerous national agidmal businesses or organizations
including, but not limited to:

* Morgan Stanley Smith Barne

* New York Community Banl

*  Credit Union National Association (CUN/

*  Microsoft

*  Pershing

* Members FtFederal Credit Unio

+ Ent Federal Credit Unio

+ IBERIABANK

» Bellco Credit Unior

e Wright Patt Credit Uniol

» SpaceCoast Credit Unic

» General Motors Minority Dealers Associati

* E Insure Services, In

Intellectual Property
Newtek has developed software which is the coitsdfiewTracker referral system and in Septembe63€d a patent application with ti
United States Patent and Trademark Office covedieg Tracker.

NTS uses specialized software to conduct its bssinader a perpetual, royfree license from its developer, the former owofer
CrystalTech, acquired at the time of our acquisitb the business.

We have several trademarks and service marksf athich are of material importance to us. The fafllog trademarks and service marks are
the subject of trademark registrations issued bylthited States Patent Trademark Office:

1. AT NEWTEK, WE DO IT BETTER

BIZEXEC

CRYSTALTECH

CRYSTALTECH WEB HOSTING

CT & Design

a M DN
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6. NEWTEK

7. NEWTEK BIZEXEC

8. NEWTEK BUSINESS SERVICE!

9. NEWTEK BUSINESS SOLUTION

10. NEWTEK + NEWT LOGO

11. NEWTEK REFERRAL SYSTEN

12. NEWTEK TECHNOLOGY SERVICES

13. NEWTEK WEB SERVICES

14. NEWTRACKER

15. WEBCONTROLCENTER

16. NEWTEK BUSINESS CREDIT

17. NEWTEK DATA STORAGE

18. NEWTEK WEB DESIGN AND DEVELOPMENT

19. NEWTEK WEB HOSTING

20. WE DO IT BETTER

21. A NEW WAY TO THINK ABOUT SMALL-BUSINESS IT

22. THE CLOUD AUTHORITY

23. THESBA.COM THE SMALL AUTHORITY POWERED BY NEWTEF

24, THE SMALL BUSINESS AUTHORITY

25. THE SMALL BUSINESS AUTHORITY HOUR

26. NEWTPAY PRO

27. NEWTPAY

28. NEWTEK BUSINESS SERVICES, INC. + NEWT LOG

29. THE CLOUD AUTHORITY + DESIGN

30. THE SMALL BUSINESS AUTHORITY HOUR + DESIG!

31. THESBA

32. THE SBAUTHORITY INDEX

33. THE SMALL BUSINESS AUTHORITY INDEX

34. THESBA INDEX

35. NEWTEK SITECENTER

36. NEWTEK PAYROLL

37. CONTINUOUS CYBER SECURITY SCANNINC

38. THE BUSINESS AUTHORITY

39. CLOUD AUTHORITY

(T)?f following trademarks and service marks aresthgect of pending trademark applications filedwtfte United States Patent and Trader
ice:

1. THESBA.COM THE SMALL BUSINESS AUTHORITY + DESIGI

NEWTEK INSURED CLOUD COMPUTINC

NEWTEK INSURED HOSTING

INSURED CLOUD COMPUTING

NEWTEK INSURED MERCHANT PROCESSIN:!

NEWTEK INSURED PAYROLL

THE PAYROLL AUTHORITY

THE ECOMMERCE AUTHORITY

© N o o A~ wDN



10.
11.
12.
13.
14.
15.
16.
17.
18.
19.
20.
21.

THE MOBILE APPLICATION AUTHORITY
THE HEALTH INSURANCE AUTHORITY
THE TECH AUTHORITY

THE IT AUTHORITY

THE SMALL BUSINESS TECHNOLOGY AUTHORITY
THE TECHNOLOGY AUTHORITY

NEWTEK INSURED ECOMMERCE
NEWTEK INSURED MERCHANT SERVICE!
ECOMMERCE IN THE CLOULC

CLOUD ECOMMERCE

NEWTEK ADVANTAGE

NEWTEK EDGE

NEWTEK HOSTING
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Government Regulation
Overview

Newtel's electronic payment processing, lending, insueaaad Capco operations are subject to regulatidederal, state and professional
governing bodies. In addition, our financial instibn customers, which include commercial banks @edit unions, operate in markets that ar
subject to rigorous regulatory oversight and suis&m. The compliance of our products and serweils these requirements depends on a
variety of factors including the particular functadity, the interactive design and the charteiigarise of the financial institution. Our financial
services customers must independently assess terthitee what is required of them under these rdiguia and are responsible for ensuring
that our systems and the design of their websdagoem to their regulatory obligations. New lawsregulations are frequently adopted in tt
areas that require constant compliance and coaléase our costs.

Certified Capital Companies

In return for the Capcos making investments intéingeted companies, the states provide tax cregiterally equal to funds invested in the
Capco by the insurance companies that provideuhesfto the Capcos. In order to maintain its statua Capco and to avoid recapture or
forfeiture of the tax credits, each Capco must nmemimber of specific investment requirements uidiclg a minimum investment schedule all
of which have been met prior to required dateslbyfaour Capcos. As a result, we believe themredsasis for a loss of tax credits.

Each of the state Capco programs has a requirethesrd Capco, in order to maintain its certifiestisé, must meet certain investment
requirements, both qualitative and quantitativeofivhich the Company’s Capcos have met. Thesedeclimitations on the initial size of the
recipients of the Capco funds, including the nundfgheir employees, the location within the resjpvecstate of the recipients and the
recipients’ commitment to remain therein for a sfyed period of time, the types of business condddty the recipients, and the terms of the
investments in the recipients.

The states of Louisiana, Colorado and Texas andtttte of New York have added to their Capco progrimitations on the equity investme
Capcos can make in qualified businesses. Thesegmmsgor program changes seek to preclude a Capeodwning all or a majority of the
voting equity of the invested business. While Néwtas made profitable majority-owned investmenth@past, we have also made minority
or passive investments in qualified businesses.tdlég/Capcos are in full compliance with all investmignitations, and management fores
no significant difficulty in continuing to remain compliance.

When each of Newtek’s Capcos has invested in dgealifusinesses an amount equal to 100% of itsimiértified capital, it is able to decertify
(terminate its status as a Capco) and no longsubject to any state Capco regulation. Upon volyrdacertification, the programs in about
half of the states require that a Capco share mtytditions to its equity holders with the stapessoring the Capco. For those states that
require a share of distributions, the sharing pgtegges vary, but are generally from 10 to 30%, lisoa distributions above a specified
internal rate of return for the equity owners af tbapco. States not requiring distributions areaeand New York (Programs 1, 2 and 3). At
this time, Newtek does not believe that the shamgiirements will have a material impact on thepany’s financial condition or operations.
Three of Newtek’s Capcos have reached the 100%timent level and a fourth, our Wisconsin based Gapet its statutory requirements anc
voluntarily decertified and was subsequently digsd! While the Company continues to attempt toeahfull (100%) investment in all of its
Capcos, circumstances of individual programs makenthis unachievable. If and when such an evesesyithe Capco and the Company will
evaluate alternatives and may seek to dissolv€#peo as permitted under the particular prograroh @mn event would represent a failure of
the Capco but would not carry with it any finana@ahsequences to the Company.

Employees

As of December 31, 2012, we and the companies iohalie hold a controlling interest had a total @03mployees, of which 303 were full-
time employees. We believe our labor relationsgmad; none of our employees are covered by a tisebargaining agreement.

Confidentiality Agreements

All our employees have signed confidentiality agneats, and it is our standard practice to requenely hired employees and, when
appropriate, independent consultants, to executidemtiality agreements. These agreements prdtiaiethe employee or consultant may not
use or disclose confidential information excepthia performance of his or her duties for the Comgpanin other limited circumstances. The
steps taken by us may not, however, be adequatevent the misappropriation of our proprietanhtggor technology.
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Revenues and Assets by Geographic Area

During the years ended December 31, 2012, 2012@hd, virtually all of our revenue was derived fromstomers in the United States,
although we provide pre-paid web site hosting sewio customers in approximately 120 countries.

Available Information

We are subject to the informational requirementthefSecurities Exchange Commission and in accordasith those requirements file repo
proxy statements and other information with theusities and Exchange Commission. You may read apg the reports, proxy statements
and other information that we file with the Comnissunder the informational requirements of theuBiéies Exchange Act at the
Commission’s Public Reference Room at 450 Fiftle@&tN.W., Washington, DC 20549. Please call 1-8BG-8339 for information about the
Commission’s Public Reference Room. The Commisalsa maintains a web site that contains reportsypand information statements and
other information regarding registrants that fikeotronically with the Commission. The addresshaf Commission’s web site is
http://www.sec.govOur principal offices are located at 212 West'35re&t 2d Floor, New York, NY, 10001 and our telephomber is
(212) 356-9500. Our websites are http://www.thestra.and_http://www.newtekbusinessservices.cofe make available through our
websites, free of charge, our Annual Reports omFt-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Currentétepon Form & and amendments®
those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Sectid(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act@84, as amended, as soon as reasonably
practicable after we electronically file such matewith, or furnish it to, the Commission. Thesmcdments may be directly accessed at
http://investor.newtekbusinessservices.doformation contained on our website is not a péthis report.

C ompetition

We compete in a large number of markets for the sabervices to small- and medium-sized busine&sesh of our principal operating
companies competes not only against suppliers ipdtticular state or region of the country buba@gainst suppliers operating on a national o
even a multi-national scale. None of the marketstiich our companies compete are dominated by # somaber of companies that could
materially alter the terms of the competition.

Our Electronic payment processing segment compéthsntities including Heartland Payment SysteRisst National Bank of Omaha and
Paymentech, L.P. Our Web hosting segment competesl&l, Hosting.com, Discount ASP, Maxum ASP, Gdog® , Yahoo® , BlueHost

®, iPowerWel® and Microsoft Live among others. OurBBusiness Finance segment competes with regaméihational banks and non-
bank lenders. Intuit is bundling electronic paymemicessing, web hosting and payroll services aintd ours in offerings that compete in the
same small- to midsize-business market.

In many cases, we believe the competitors of onrpgamies are not as able as we are to take advasitaganges in business practices due to
technological developments and, for those withrgdasize, are unable to offer the personalizedieethat many small business owners and
operators seem to want.

While we compete with many different providers iir @arious businesses, we have been unable tdfidany direct and comprehensive
competitors that deliver the same broad suite nices focused on the needs of the small- and medized business market with the same
marketing strategy as we do. Some of our competavantages include:

»  Our compatible products such as our e-commerceindfethat we are able to bundle to increase saeddsice costs and reduce risks for
our customers and enable us to sell two, thremuwrproducts at the same tirr

» Our proprietary NewTracker referral system, whilthvas us to process new business utilizing a wesetacentralized processing point
and provides back end scalabili

» Our focus on developing and marketing businessaEnand financial products and services aimedeastnall- and medium-sized
business marke

»  Our scalability, which allows us to size our busieervices capabilities very quickly to meet cmstoand market neec
» Our ability to offer personalized service and cotiipe rates;

» A strategy of multiple channel distribution, whiglves us maximum exposure in the marketpl:

* High quality customer service 24x7x365 across @adlitess lines, with a focus primarily on absoluistomer service

» Our telephonic interview process, as opposed toirag handwritten or data-typing processes, whillbws us to offer high levels of
customer service and satisfaction, particularlysiorll business owners who do not get this sefwize our competitors; an

e Our NewTracker Portal, which allows our alliancetpers to offer a centralized access point forrthgiall- to medium-sized business
clients as part of their larger strategic appraactmarketing and allows such partners to demorsthatt they are focused on providing a
suite of services to the small business marketlditi@n to their core servici
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ITEM1A. RISKFACTORS.

The following is a summary of the risk factors thet believe are most relevant to our business.& hasfactors that, individually or in the
aggregate, we think could cause our actual reguliiffer significantly from anticipated or histosl resultsif any of the following risks occur,
our business, financial condition and results oéigions could be materially and adversely affectadhat case, the value of our common
shares could decline and stockholders may loserglart of their investmen¥ou should understand that it is not possible exdjmt or identify
all such factors. Consequently, you should not iclemghe following to be a complete discussionlbpatential risks or uncertainties. We
undertake no obligation to publicly update forw#rdking statements, whether as a result of newimétion, future events, or otherwise,
unless required by law.

RISKS RELATING TO OUR BUSINESS GENERALLY
Our success depends on our ability to compete eftaely in the highly competitive and highly regulaed industries in which we operate.

We face intense competition in providing web hagservices, processing electronic payments anéhatigg SBA loans, as well as in the
other industries in which we or our affiliated camnjes operate. Low barriers to entry often resuét steady stream of new competitors
entering certain of these businesses. Current athiial competitors are or may be better estabtisbubstantially larger and have more
capital and other resources than we do. If we exjir@o additional geographical markets, we willdammpetition from others in those marl
as well. In addition, some of the industries in e¥hive operate are highly regulated and we canmsotrayou that we will continue to be in full
compliance with applicable laws, rules and regafei Failure to maintain full compliance or if n&aws limit or eliminate some of the bene
of our business lines, our financial conditionutesof operations and cash flows could be matgradversely affected.

Our success depends upon our ability to enforce andaintain our intellectual property rights.

Our success depends, in significant part, on tbprtary nature of our technology, including bptitentable and non-patentable intellectual
property related to our NewTracker referral systéfe. have filed one patent application with the BdiStates Patent office but there can be r
assurance that such patent will be granted. Texkent that a competitor is able to reproduce bemtise capitalize on our technology, it may
be difficult, expensive or impossible for us toahtnecessary legal protection. In addition to pipeotection of intellectual property rights,
consider elements of our product designs and psesds be proprietary and confidential. We relyrupmployee, consultant and vendor non-
disclosure agreements and contractual provisiodsaystem of internal safeguards to protect oopnetary information. However, any of ¢
registered or unregistered intellectual propegits may be challenged or exploited by otherseénitidustry, which might harm our operating
results. We have several trademarks and servicksmdrich are of material importance to us. Litigatiwhich could result in substantial cost
to and diversion of our efforts, may be necessamnforce our trademarks or to determine the eafdiitity, scope and validity of the
proprietary rights of others. Adverse determinationany litigation or interference proceeding cbsiibject us to costs related to changing
brand names and a loss of established brand rdamyni

Our businesses depend on our ability to attract andetain key personnel and any loss of ability to &tact these personnel could
adversely affect us.

Our success depends upon the ability of our afitlacompanies and other companies in which we frieesttract and retain qualified persor
and our ability to supplement those capabilitieghwiur senior management personnel. Competitioqudatified employees is intense. If our
affiliated companies lose the services of key pans) or are unable to attract additional qualifietisonnel, the business, financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows of us or anmaare of our affiliated companies could be matbriadversely affected. It can take a
significant period of time to identify and hire pennel with the combination of skills and attrilaitequired in carrying out our strategy.

Our business relies heavily on the expertise ofsemior management. The loss of the services sétmalividuals could have a material
adverse effect on our financial condition, resafteperations and cash flows, and it is likely thatill be difficult to find adequate
replacements.

Our businesses depend upon the ability to utilizene Internet for the conduct of a significant portian of their business; disruption to that
system could make it impossible for them to contineito conduct their current businesses.

Possible disruption to the normal functioning af thternet through, for example, power failureesrdrist sabotage, could make it impossible
for aspects of the lending, electronic payment @ssing, web hosting and in fact our referral systefunction. In the event of a major
disruption, and assuming that such disruptions dbel long-lived, we would be required to make esitemchanges in the way these
companies do business. There is no assurance ¢hatlbhave the time and resources to make theangds.
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Our success depends on our ability to use effectlyeour electronic referral and information processing systems.

We have developed an electronic referral and pedngsystem for the applications necessary fos#ies of each of our business lines other
than web site hosting. This system is critical tio @bility to process such business with a low ealstantage and to obtain referrals from our
alliance partners. In particular, the ability tewass the referral system and to track the progieaseferred customer is a major feature of the
perceived attractiveness of our system. If thismral system should develop problems which we caaddress, it would have a material
negative impact on our business strategy. In amgitur ability to provide business services insiegly depends on our capacity to store,
retrieve, process and manage significant amourdataf. Interruption or loss of our information pessing capabilities through loss of stored
data, breakdown or malfunctioning of computer emept and software systems, telecommunicationsréadu damage caused by acts of n¢
or other disruption, could have a material adveffect on our business, financial condition, resoftoperations and cash flows.

RISKS RELATING TO OUR ELECTRONIC PAYMENT PROCESSING BUSINESS

NMS relies on a bank sponsor, which has substantidiscretion with respect to certain elements of oubusiness practices, in order to
process bankcard transactions. If the sponsorshigiterminated, and we are not able to secure or trasfer the respective merchant
portfolio to a new bank sponsor or sponsors, the kainess, financial condition, results of operationand cash flows of electronic payment
processing business could be materially adverselyfected. If the sponsorship is terminated, and wera not able to secure or transfer th
merchant portfolios to new bank sponsors, we will ot be able to conduct our electronic payment procesg business. We also rely on
service providers who are critical to our business.

Because we are not a bank, we are unable to bedosngd directly access the Vi8a and Master@ard damdkassociations. The Visa and
MasterCarc® operating regulations require us topomsored by a bank in order to process bankcandaciions. We are currently sponsored
by two banks. If the sponsorship is terminatedwadire unable to secure a bank sponsor for thehmetrportfolios, we will not be able to
process bankcard transactions for the affectedghor. Consequently, the loss of both of our sposisips would have a material adverse e
on our business. Furthermore, our agreement witlsjponsoring banks gives the sponsoring banks autetdiscretion in approving certain
elements of our business practices, including olicitation, application and qualification procedarfor merchants, the terms of our
agreements with merchants, the processing feesvthaharge, our customer service levels and oupiiselependent sales organizations and
independent sales agents. We cannot guaranteeuthsponsoring banks’ actions under these agresmélhinot be detrimental to us.

Other service providers, some of whom are our caitopg, are necessary for the conduct of our bissin€he termination by our service
providers of these arrangements with us or thdirato perform these services efficiently andeefively may adversely affect our
relationships with the merchants whose accountsemee and may cause those merchants to termirgitgtbcessing agreements with us.

If NMS or its processors or bank sponsors fail to dhere to the standards of the Vis& and MasterCar& #&nkcard associations, our
registrations with these associations could be terimated and we could be required to stop providing pyment processing services for
Visa® and MasterCard® .

Substantially all of the transactions NMS processesive Visa® or MasterCarél . If we, our bank spamssor our processors fail to comply
with the applicable requirements of the Visa andstdeCard® bankcard associations, Visa or Master€aodild suspend or terminate our
registration. The termination of our registratioreoy changes in the Vi$a or MasterCard ruleswoatid impair our registration could
require us to stop providing payment processingises, which would have a material adverse effecbar business.

On occasion, NMS experiences increases in interchgeand sponsorship fees. If we cannot pass along#e increases to our merchants,
our profit margins will be reduced.

Our electronic payment processing subsidiary paigsdhange fees or assessments to bankcard agstefar each transaction we process
using their credit, debit and gift cards. From tirnéime, the bankcard associations increase tiecimange fees that they charge processor
the sponsoring banks, which generally pass on serhases to us. From time to time, our sponsdrariks increase their fees as well. If we
not able to pass these fee increases along to ar@ecthrough corresponding increases in our prowe$ses, our profit margins in this line of
business will be reduced.
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Unauthorized disclosure of merchant or cardholder dta, whether through breach of our computer systemer otherwise, could expose
us to liability and business losses.

Through our electronic payment processing subsidiae collect and store sensitive data about mestsrend cardholders, and we maintain a
database of cardholder data relating to specHiesactions, including payment, card numbers arghotdter addresses, in order to process the
transactions and for fraud prevention and otherivell processes. If anyone penetrates our netveadkity or otherwise misappropriates
sensitive merchant or cardholder data, we coulsuiigect to liability or business interruption. Whike subject these systems to periodic
independent testing and review, we cannot guarahtgeur systems will not be penetrated in tharkitlf a breach of our system occurs, we
may be subject to liability, including claims fonauthorized purchases with misappropriated caatimdtion, impersonation or other similar
fraud claims. Similar risks exist with regard te ttorage and transmission of such data by ouepsocs. In the event of any such a breach, v
may also be subject to a class action lawsuit. Bmoginesses are less prepared for the complexitisafeguarding cardholder data than their
larger counterparts. In the event of noncomplianca customer of card industry rules, we could faves from payment card networks. There
can be no assurance that we would be able to reanyesuch fines from such customer.

NMS is liable if our processing merchants refuse otannot reimburse charge-backs resolved in favor dheir customers.

If a billing dispute between a merchant and a oald#T is not ultimately resolved in favor of thencteant, the disputed transaction is “chargec
back” to the merchant’s bank and credited to tlwoat of the cardholder. If we or our processingksaare unable to collect the charge-back
from the merchant’s account, or if the merchantges or is financially unable due to bankruptcegtber reasons to reimburse the merchant’s
bank for the charge-back, we bear the loss foatheunt of the refund paid to the cardholder’'s bamést of our merchants deliver products or
services when purchased, so a contingent lialiditgharge-backs is unlikely to arise, and creditsissued on returned items. However, some
of our merchants do not provide services until someafter a purchase, which increases the potdoti@ontingent liability and future charge
backs. We and the sponsoring bank can requirartbathants maintain cash reserves under our cdntomver charge back liabilities but such
reserves may not be sufficient to cover the ligbidr may not even be available to us in the eeémat bankruptcy or other legal action.

NMS has potential liability for customer or merchart fraud.

Credit card fraud occurs when a merchant’s custarses a stolen card (or a stolen card number amdxrot-present transaction) to purchase
merchandise or services. In a traditional card-gegansaction, if the merchant swipes the cackives authorization for the transaction fron
the card issuing bank and verifies the signaturtherback of the card against the paper receipesidpy the customer, the card issuing bank
remains liable for any loss. In a fraudulent caotHoresent transaction, even if the merchant reseauthorization for the transaction, the
merchant is liable for any loss arising from trenaction. Many of our business customers are smdltransact a substantial percentage of
their sales over the Internet or by telephone df onders. Because their sales are card-not-présmmgactions, these merchants are more
vulnerable to customer fraud than larger merchamd,we could experience charge-backs arising framdholder fraud more frequently with
these merchants.

Merchant fraud occurs when a merchant, rather ghaustomer, knowingly uses a stolen or countectait or card number to record a false
sales transaction or intentionally fails to delittee merchandise or services sold in an otherwafid transaction. Anytime a merchant is une
to satisfy a charge-back, we are responsible far¢dharge-back unless we have required that areashve be established. We cannot assure
that the systems and procedures we have establislisdect and reduce the impact of merchant femadr will be effective. Failure to
effectively manage risk and prevent fraud couldease our charge-back liability and adversely affeic results of operations.

Our payment processing systems may fail due to famts beyond our control, which could interrupt our business or cause us to lose
business and likely increase our costs.

We depend on the uninterrupted operations of oonpeier network systems, software and our processata centers. Defects in these
systems or damage to them due to factors beyondamirol could cause severe disruption to our lessirand other material adverse effects o
our payment processing businesses.
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RISKS RELATING TO OUR BUSINESS OF WEBSITE HOSTING
NTS operates in a highly competitive industry in wiich technological change can be rapid.

The information technology business and its relééetinology involve a broad range of rapidly chaggechnologies. Our equipment and the
technologies on which it is based may not remampmetitive over time, and others may develop supéeichnologies that render our products
non-competitive without significant additional cegbiexpenditures. Some of our competitors are Bagritly larger and have substantially
greater market presence as well as greater finataidnical, operational, marketing and other veses and experience than we do. In the
event that such a competitor expends significalessand marketing resources in one or several rrgnke may not be able to compete
successfully in such markets. We believe that cditiqe will continue to increase, placing downwamessure on prices. Such pressure could
adversely affect our gross margins if we are nt &doreduce our costs commensurate with such peibeactions. There can be no assurances
that we will remain competitive.

Our website hosting business depends on the effioteand uninterrupted operation of its computer andcommunications hardware
systems and infrastructure.

Despite precautions taken by NTS against possdilieré of its systems, interruptions could restohi natural disasters, power loss, the
inability to acquire fuel for our backup generatdesecommunications failure, terrorist attacks aimilar events. NTS also leases
telecommunications lines from local, regional aational carriers whose service may be interrupfad. business, financial condition and
results of operations could be harmed by any daroagglure that interrupts or delays our operaiohhere can be no assurance that our
insurance will cover all of the losses or compen$stS for the possible loss of clients occurringmyiany period that NTS is unable to
provide service.

Our inability to maintain the integrity of our infr astructure and the privacy of confidential information would materially affect our
business.

The NTS infrastructure is potentially vulnerableptoysical or electronic break-ins, viruses or samgiroblems. If our security measures are
circumvented, it could jeopardize the security afifidential information stored on NTS’s systemssapipropriate proprietary information or
cause interruptions in NTS’s operations. We mayelogired to make significant additional investmeamsd efforts to protect against or remedy
security breaches. Security breaches that resaltdass to confidential information could damagereputation and expose us to a risk of loss
or liability. The security services that NTS offémsconnection with customers’ networks cannot essomplete protection from computer
viruses, break-ins and other disruptive problent& @ccurrence of these problems may result in slaigainst NTS or us or liability on our
part. These claims, regardless of their ultimateame, could result in costly litigation and coblarm our business and reputation and impair
NTS's ability to attract and retain customers.

Our business depends on Microsoft Corporation andtbers for the licenses to use software as well agher intellectual property in the
website hosting business.

NTS's managed technology business is built on tectgicéd platforms relying on the Microsoft Windows ogucts and other intellectual
property that NTS currently licenses. As a restiltie are unable to continue to have the benefthoge licensing arrangements or if the
products upon which NTS's platform is built becoatesolete, our business could be materially andradiyeaffected.

RISKS RELATING TO OUR SMALL BUSINESS FINANCE BUSINE SSES
We depend on outside financing.

Our SBA lending and receivables financing busingskepend on outside financing to support their lnaking and acquisition of receivables.
Termination of the credit lines for any reason vaiblidve a material adverse effect on our busineskiding but not limited to, the liquidation
of the guaranteed loan and receivables portfotigeaty down the lines. If funds from such sale wesefficient to completely pay down the i
of credit, the holding company and certain of itbsidiaries would be responsible for any short falDecember 2010 and again in December
2011, the Company securitized a portion of its amgnteed, retained loan portions of its SBA 7(ap# the Company anticipates using
securitizations to ultimately fund future loan diea, assuming the market for such securitizatimgtinues to exist and future securitizations
can be executed on an economic basis beneficiaet@ompany. Although a securitization potentigligvides a long term funding source for
the Company’s SBA lender, it does not provide litiyi in the short term for funding SBA loans. Besalits resources will be insufficient to
maintain current SBA loan originations, failurecafr SBA lender to arrange a line to fund and wanekdhe origination of unguaranteed,
retained loan portions would materially impact business. In addition, our receivables financinggany depends on a line of credit which
matures in February 2014. Loss of this line andioalility to replace it would materially impactetibusiness.
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We have specific risks associated with Small Busiag Administration (SBA) loans.

We have generally sold the guaranteed portion & BBns in the secondary market. Such sales hawdtee in our earning premiums and
creating a stream of servicing income. There candiassurance that we will be able to continueimating these loans, or that a secondary
market will exist for, or that we will continue tealize premiums upon the sale of the guarantegibps of the SBA 7(a) loans.

Since we sell the guaranteed portion of substéytiair entire SBA 7(a) loan portfolio, we incur dierisk on the non-guaranteed portion of the
SBA loans. We share pro rata with the SBA in arppveries. In the event of default on an SBA loam, mursuit of remedies against a borro

is subject to SBA approval, and where the SBA distads that its loss is attributable to deficiesdiethe manner in which the loan application
has been prepared and submitted, the SBA may dddlihonor its guarantee with respect to our SBédoor it may seek the recovery of
damages from us. If we should experience signifipaoblems with our underwriting of SBA loans, sdaHlure to honor a guarantee or the «

to correct the problems could have a material e#veffect on us. Although the SBA has never dedlinéhonor its guarantees with respect to
SBA loans made by us since our acquisition of #melér in 2003, no assurance can be given thatBAaex®uld not attempt to do so in the
future.

Curtailment of the government-guaranteed loan progams could cut off an important segment of our busiess.

Although the program has been in existence siné8,lthere can be no assurance that the federatryoeat will maintain the SBA program,
or that it will continue to guarantee loans at eatrlevels. If we cannot continue making and sgliovernment-guaranteed loans, we will
generate fewer origination fees and our abilitgeénerate gains on sale of loans will decrease. fragto-time, the government agencies that
guarantee these loans reach their internal buddjetéd and cease to guarantee loans for a statedlgeriod. In addition, these agencies may
change their rules for loans. Also, Congress maptalkggislation that would have the effect of distiouing or changing the programs. Non-
governmental programs could replace governmentrpnag for some borrowers, but the terms might nadelly acceptable. If these change:
occur, the volume of loans to small business addstrial borrowers of the types that now qualify jovernment-guaranteed loans could
decline, as could the profitability of these loans.

An increase in non-performing assets would reduceun income and increase our expenses.

If our level of non-performing assets in our SBAding and receivable financing businesses risharfuture, it could adversely affect our
revenue and earnings. Non-performing assets amapty loans on which borrowers are not makingrthequired payments or receivables for
which the customer has not made timely payment.-penforming assets also include loans that hava bestructured to permit the borrower
to have smaller payments and real estate thatdersdcquired through foreclosure of unpaid loangh€ extent that our financial assets are
non-performing, we will have less cash availableléading and other activities.

Our reserve for credit losses may not be sufficiertb cover unexpected losses.

Our business depends on the behavior of our cussorimeaddition to our credit practices and proceduwe maintain a reserve for credit lo:
on our SBA loans and accounts receivable portfa@ltich management has judged to be adequate diedondns we originate and receivables
we purchase. We periodically review our reserveaftgquacy considering current economic conditimasteends, collateral values, charge-off
experience, levels of past due loans and non-peifigr assets, and we adjust our reserve accordikighrever, because of the poor current
economic conditions caused by the recession, serves may prove inadequate, which could have arrabadverse effect on our financial
condition and results of operations.

We could be adversely affected by weakness in thesidential housing and commercial real estate marke

Continued weakness in residential home and comalesal estate values could impair our ability dfiect on defaulted SBA loans as real
estate is pledged in many of our SBA loans asqdfdtte collateral package.

RISKS RELATING TO OUR INSURANCE AGENCY BUSINESS

We depend on third parties, particularly property and casualty insurance companies, to supply the pradts marketed by our agents.
Our contracts with property and casualty insurazmapanies typically provide that the contracts loaterminated by the supplier without
cause. Our inability to enter into satisfactoryaagements with these suppliers or the loss of ttedatonships for any reason would adversely

affect the results of our new insurance businets,Aur inability to obtain these products at cetitpve prices could make it difficult for us to
compete with larger and better capitalized prowdsrsuch insurance services.
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If we fail to comply with government regulations, ar insurance agency business could be adversely efted.

Our insurance agency business is subject to corapsére regulation in the various states in whichplee to conduct business. Our success
will depend in part upon our ability to satisfy sieeregulations and to obtain and maintain all megliicenses and permits. Our failure to
comply with any statutes and regulations could reaweaterial adverse effect on us. Furthermoreadioption of additional statutes and
regulations, changes in the interpretation andreafoent of current statutes and regulations oexpansion of our business into jurisdictions
that have adopted more stringent regulatory remerds than those in which we currently conductrmss could have a material adverse e
on us.

We do not have any control over the commissions oumsurance agency expects to earn on the sale ofimance products which are
based on premiums and commission rates set by in®rs and the conditions prevalent in the insurance arket.

Our insurance agency earns commissions on thebalsurance products. Commission rates and presizan change based on the prevailin
economic and competitive factors that affect insaeaunderwriters. In addition, the insurance inguisas been characterized by periods of
intense price competition due to excessive undéngrcapacity and periods of favorable premium Iewiie to shortages of capacity. We
cannot predict the timing or extent of future chesi@h commission rates or premiums or the effegtadthese changes will have on the
operations of our insurance agency.

RISKS RELATING TO OUR PAYROLL PROCESSING BUSINESS

Unauthorized disclosure of employee data, whethehtough breach of our computer systems or otherwisesould expose us to liability
and business losses.

Through our payroll processing subsidiary, we ablind store sensitive data about individuals ridepto process the transactions and for «
internal processes. If anyone penetrates our nktsesrurity or otherwise misappropriates sensitidividual data, we could be subject to
liability or business interruption. While we suljé¢itese systems to periodic independent testingewidw, we cannot guarantee that our
systems will not be penetrated in the future. bf@ach of our system occurs, we may be subjedhdity, including claims for impersonation
or other similar fraud claims. In the event of agh a breach, we may also be subject to a cléss d&wsuit. Any significant violations of
data privacy could result in the loss of businétgation and regulatory investigations and peealthat could damage our reputation, and the
growth of our business could be adversely affected.

Our systems may be subject to disruptions that codladversely affect our business and reputation.

Our payroll business relies heavily on our payffiliancial, accounting and other data processistesys. If any of these systems fails to
operate properly or becomes disabled even fored period of time, we could suffer financial loasglisruption of our business, liability to
clients, regulatory intervention or damage to @aputation. We have disaster recovery plans in glapeotect our businesses against natural
disasters, security breaches, military or terratdtons, power or communication failures or simgdgents. Despite our preparations, our
disaster recovery plans may not be successfulengnmting the loss of client data, service interinns, and disruptions to our operations or
damage to our important facilities.

If we fail to adapt our technology to meet client eeds and preferences, the demand for our servicesayndiminish.

Our businesses operate in industries that are dubjeapid technological advances and changirgntheeds and preferences. In order to
remain competitive and responsive to client demawdscontinually upgrade, enhance and expand astirg solutions and services. If we f
to respond successfully to technology challendesdemand for our services may diminish.
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Our payroll business could incur unreimbursed cost®r damages due to delays in processing inherent the banking system.

Our payroll processing business generally detersiine availability of customer (employer) fundsoptio making payments to employees or
taxing authorities, and such employer funds aregly transferred in to our accounts prior to malkpayments out. Due to the structure of

banking system however, there are times when wemeke payroll or tax payments and not immediateteive the funds to do so from the
employer. There can be no assurance that the preedie have in place to prevent these occurresramdtigate the damages will be suffici

to prevent loss to our business.

RISKS RELATED TO OUR CAPCO BUSINESS

The Capco programs and the tax credits they providare created by state legislation and implementedtough regulation, and such
laws and rules are subject to possible action to peal or retroactively revise the programs for politcal, economic or other reasons. Such
an attempted repeal or revision would create substdial difficulty for the Capco programs and could, if ultimately successful, cause us
material financial harm.

The tax credits associated with the Capco programdsprovided to our Capcos’ investors are to Hizeti by the investors over a period of
time, which is typically ten years. Much can chadgeng such a period and it is possible that anmare states may revise or eliminate the
credits. Any such revision or repeal could haveademal adverse economic impact on our Capcosgredinectly or as a result of the Capco’s
insurer’s actions. Any such final state action fjeapardizes the tax credits could result in trevigler of our Capco insurance assuming partia
of full control of the particular Capco in orderrtonimize its liability under the Capco insuranadigies issued to our investors.

During 2002, a single legislator in Louisiana imlneed such a proposed bill, on which no action taken, and in Colorado in 2003 and 2004
bills to modify (not repeal) its Capco program wareoduced; the 2003 Colorado legislation was diefe in a legislative committee. The 2004
Colorado legislation was adopted but implementagutations made clear the application of the ndesranly to investments made after
passage. There can be no assurance that we wilermibject to further legislative or regulatoryi@t which might adversely impact our Ca
business, or that we will be able to successfuigllenge any such action.

Because our Capcos are subject to requirements undstate law, a failure of any of them to meet theseequirements could subject the
Capco and our stockholders to the loss of one or moCapcos.

Despite the fact that we have met all applicableimiim requirements of the Capco programs in whietstill participate, each Capco remains
subject to state regulation until it has investé@ fpercent of its funds and otherwise remainedllinggal compliance. There can be no
assurance that we will continue to be able to d&\smajor regulatory violation, while not fatal émr Capco business, would materially
increase the cost of operating the Capcos.

RISKS RELATING TO OUR COMMON SHARES
Our shares may be delisted.

If we do not continue to meet the requirementtmtinued listing on the NASDAQ Capital Market @mammon shares could be delisted. One
such requirement is maintaining a minimum bid pfareshares of $1.00. As compliance with the minimwading price for common shares is
beyond our control, there can be no assurancettaatrice will remain above $1.00 indefinitely atttbrefore, no assurance that the threat of
delisting can be avoided. In the event that thernomshares are delisted, there can be no assutatan active public market for our shares
can be sustained or that current trading levelsbeasustained or not diminished.

The application of the “penny stock” rules to our @mmon shares if we are no longer listed on the NASAD) Capital Market could limit
the trading and liquidity of the common shares, adersely affect the market price of our Common Shareand increase your transaction
costs to sell those shares.

If we are no longer listed on the NASDAQ Capitalriktzt, as long as the trading price of our commaresthis below $5.00 per share, open-
market trading will be subject to the “penny stocdlles, which impose additional sales practice ireguents on broker-dealers who sell
securities to persons other than established cestand accredited investors and otherwise haveftbet of limiting the trading activity of tl
common shares, reducing the liquidity of an investtin the common shares and increasing the triosamsts for their sales and purchases.
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Two of our stockholders, one a current and one a fmer executive officer, beneficially own approximagly 24% of our common shares,
and are able to exercise significant influence ovehe outcome of most stockholder actions.

Although there is no agreement or understandingdxet them, because of their ownership of our shtessrs. Sloane and Rubin will be a
to have significant influence over actions requgragtockholder approval, including the election iédtors, the adoption of amendments to the
certificate of incorporation, approval of stockémtive plans and approval of major transactions sisca merger or sale of assets. This could
delay or prevent a change in control of our compdeprive our stockholders of an opportunity toeree a premium for their common shares
as part of a change in control and have a negetfeet on the market price of our common shares.

Future issuances of our common shares or other saties, including preferred shares, may dilute theper share book value of our
common shares or have other adverse consequence®tw common stockholders.

Our board of directors has the authority, withdwg &ction or vote of our stockholders, to issu®aflart of the approximately 19,000,000
authorized but unissued shares of our common s@gakbusiness strategy relies upon investmentadnagquisitions of businesses using the
resources available to us, including our commomeshaVe have made acquisitions during each of ¢laesyfrom 2002 to 2005 involving the
issuance of our common shares and we expect to atkgonal acquisitions in the future using oumenon shares. Additionally, we
anticipate granting additional options or resticstock awards to our employees and directorsdriuture. We may also issue additional
securities, through public or private offeringspiler to raise capital to support our growth, widihg in connection with possible acquisitions
or in connection with purchases of minority intésaa affiliated companies or Capcos. Future issaarf our common shares will dilute the
percentage of ownership interest of current stoltldre and could decrease the per share book value @ommon shares. In addition, option
holders may exercise their options at a time whemwuld otherwise be able to obtain additional gocapital on more favorable terms.

Pursuant to our certificate of incorporation, ooafd of directors is authorized to issue, withariam or vote of our stockholders, up to
1,000,000 shares of “blank check” preferred shanegning that our board of directors may, in itcdhtion, cause the issuance of one or mor
series of preferred shares and fix the designatjme$erences, powers and relative participatipgooal and other rights, qualifications,
limitations and restrictions thereof, including tfigidend rate, conversion rights, voting rightsjemption rights and liquidation preference,
and to fix the number of shares to be includechinsuch series. The preferred shares so issuedankysuperior to the common shares with
respect to the payment of dividends or amounts ligaidation, dissolution or winding-up, or botim &ddition, the shares of preferred stock
may have class or series voting rights.

The authorization and issuance of “blank check” préerred shares could have an anti-takeover effect démental to the interests of our
stockholders.

Our certificate of incorporation allows our boarfddirectors to issue preferred shares with righis preferences set by the board without
further stockholder approval. The issuance of tlibak check” preferred shares could have an @kieover effect detrimental to the interests
of our stockholders. For example, in the event bbstile takeover attempt, it may be possible fanagement and the board to impede the
attempt by issuing the preferred shares, therdhyimty or impairing the voting power of the othertstanding common shares and increasing
the potential costs to acquire control of us. Caard has the right to issue any new shares, intdugieferred shares, without first offering
them to the holders of common shares, as they haygeemptive rights.

We know of no other publicly-held company that sposors and operates Capcos as a material part of itaisiness. As such, there are, to
our knowledge, no other companies against which imstors may compare our Capco business segment, atgloperations, results of
operations and financial and accounting structures.

In the absence of any meaningful peer group corsgiasifor our Capco business, investors may havi@ieutl time understanding and judgir
the strength of our business. This, in turn, mayeredepressing effect on the value of our shares.

Provisions of our certificate of incorporation andNew York law place restrictions on our stockholdersability to recover from our
directors for breaches of their duties.

As permitted by New York law, our amended and testaertificate of incorporation limits the lialyliof our directors for monetary damages
for breach of a director’s fiduciary duty except fiability in certain instances. As a result oé#ie provisions and New York law, stockholders
have restrictions and limitations upon their rigiatsecover from directors for breaches of thetieki In addition, our certificate of
incorporation provides that we must indemnify oimectors and officers to the fullest extent peredtby law.

Failure to maintain effective internal controls ove financial reporting may lead investors and othergo lose confidence in our financial
data.

In evaluating the effectiveness of its internaltcols over financial reporting in connection witietpreparation of the Company’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended Ddoen31, 2012, management concluded that there westerial weakness in internal
control over financial reporting related to accangtfor one bank account holding funds belongingustomers of our merchant processing
subsidiary. These material weaknesses made itlpeder a former senior manager to utilize fundshiis account to conceal knowledge of
growing merchant processing chargeback losses amgngup of merchants solicited by one of the Camgsaagents. Following discovery,
this resulted in the need for the restatement@fbmpanys financial statements for the year ended DeceBibe2011, together with financi
statements for the quarters ended March 31, 2@t2 30, 2012 and September 30, 2012, the pericatswahvich these losses occurr



The Company is in the process of remediating thesterial weaknesses and has, among other thingacesl the manager responsible,
strengthened its internal control team by hiringeey seasoned Chief Risk Officer augmented itsnibeateam and is implementing and
modifying certain accounting and internal contradgedures. If the Company fails to otherwise maingdfective controls over financial
reporting in the future, it could again result imaterial misstatement of its financial statemémas might not be prevented or detected on a
timely basis and which could then cause investodsadhers to lose confidence in the Company’s firrstatements, which in turn could have
a negative effect on the value of the Company’stegecurities.
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ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS.
Not applicable

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES.

We conduct our principal business activities irlftes leased from unrelated parties at marketga©ur headquarters are located in New
New York. Our operating subsidiaries have propsnvbich are material to the conduct of their bussnas noted below. In addition, our Caj
maintain offices in each of the states in whictytbperate.

Below is a list of our leased offices and spacefd3ecember 31, 2012 which are material to the oohdf our business:

Location Lease expiration Purpose Approx. sq. ft
8521 E. Princess Drive Jun 2014 Managed technology solutions 6,000
Phoenix, AZ 85255 data cente
212 West 35 Street Oct 2014 Lease of principal executive 5,700
New York, NY 10001 offices (Corporate activities and
SBA lending)
1904 West Parkside Lane Jan 2015 Managed technology solutions 10,900
Suite 201 offices
Phoenix, AZ 8502’
1440 Broadway Oct 2015 Sublet - former principal 23,000
New York, New York 1001t executive office:
301 Mexico Street Jun 2017 Newtek Insurance Agency, 17,500
Suite H3-A customer service and sales sup
Brownsville, TX 78520 offices
(All Other segment
6737 W. Washington St. Nov 2017 Electronic payment processing 10,910
Suite 2275 offices
West Allis, W1 53214
60 Hempstead Avenue Apr 2019 Newtek Small Business Finance; 11,0000
West Hempstead, NY 11552 Newtek Business Credit Offices
(Lending segment) and NY Cag
offices

(1) InFebruary 2013, the Company increased the arderuease in its West Hempstead facility to apprately 22,000 square fe

We believe that our leased facilities are adeqtmaieeet our current needs and that additionalifesilare available to meet our development
and expansion needs in existing and projectedttangekets.

ITEM3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.

In the ordinary course of business, the Company fincay time to time be party to lawsuits and claiffise Company evaluates such matters o
a case by case basis and its policy is to conigstously any claims it believes are without confipglmerit. The Company is currently
involved in various litigation matters. Managembas reviewed all legal claims against the Compaitly @ounsel and has taken into
consideration the views of such counsel, as t@tlieome of the claims. In management’s opiniorglfaisposition of all such claims will not
have a material adverse effect on the results efatjpns, cash flows or financial position of then@pany.

ITEM 4.  MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES.
Not applicable
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PART Il

ITEM5. MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT 'S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED SHAREHOLDER MATTERS AND
ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES.

(@ Market Information: Our common stock is tradedthe NASDAQ Capital Market under the symbol “NEWHigh and low prices for
the common stock over the previous two years drfosé below, based on the highest and lowestydadsing price during that perio

Period High Low

First Quarter: January 1, 2011 Through March 31,120 $1.9C $1.6C
Second Quarter: April 1, 2011 Through June 30, - $1.6¢ $1.2C
Third Quarter: July 1, 2011 Through September 8Q,L $1.5¢ $1.2¢
Fourth Quarter: October 1, 2011 Through DecembeG11 $1.32 $1.0¢€
First Quarter: January 1, 2012 Through March 312 $1.6C $1.1¢
Second Quarter:; April 1, 2012 Through June 30, - $1.62 $1.14
Third Quarter: July 1, 2012 Through September 802 $2.0¢ $1.24
Fourth Quarter: October 1, 2012 Through Decembep@12 $2.0¢F $1.7¢

Holders: As of March 14, 2013 there were approxatyat81 holders of record of our common stock.
Dividends: No dividends were declared or paid in@®011 or 2012.
Securities authorized for issuance under equitypsaraation plans:

(a)

Number of securities (@]

to Number of securities
; " (b) remaining available for
be issued upon exerci Weighted-average future issuance under
exercise price of equity compensation plan
of outstanding options outstanding options
(excluding securities
Plan Category warrants and rights warrants and rights reflected in column (a))
Equity compensation plans approved by
security holder: 1,943,050 share $1.44/shar 3,405,768 share
Equity compensation plans not approved
by security holder None None None

(b) Not applicable
(c) Share Repurchases: The following share repurchesesmade during the months shown during the foguitrter of 2012

@ (b) (© (d)

Maximum Number (or

Total Number of Share Approximate Dollar

Value) of Shares (or

(or Units) Purchased a: Units) that May Yet Be

Total Number of Share Average Price Paid pe Part of Publicly

Announced Plans or Purchased Under the
Period (or Units) Purchased Share (or Unit) Programs Plans or Programs
October 2012 — — — —
November 201. — — — —
December 201 22,00( $ 1.84 22,00( —

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA.
Not applicable.
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ITEM7. MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF OPERATIONS.
Introduction and Certain Cautionary Statements

The following discussion and analysis of our finahcondition and results of operations is intendedssist in the understanding and
assessment of significant changes and trends rbtatéhe results of operations and financial pasitdf the Company together with its
subsidiaries. This discussion and analysis shoelddad in conjunction with the consolidated finahstatements and the accompanying nc

The statements in this Annual Report may contaimeia-looking statements relating to such mattessaticipated future financial
performance, business prospects, legislative dpwedmts and similar matters. The Private Securltidgation Reform Act of 1995 provides
safe harbor for forward-looking statements. In artiecomply with the terms of the safe harbor, weerthat a variety of factors could cause
our actual results to differ materially from thetanipated results expressed in the forward lookétefements such as intensified competition
and/or operating problems in its operating businpsgjects and their impact on revenues and profitgins or additional factors as described
under “Risk Factors” above.

We also need to point out that our Capcos operatieta different set of rules in each of the siisglictions and that these place varying
requirements on the structure of our investmentsoime cases, particularly in Louisiana, we doawsttrol the equity or management of a
qualified business.

Executive Overview

For the year ended December 31, 2012, the Compaayded net income of $5,557,000 on revenues df,$88,000. Net income improved
$2,334,000, from net income of $3,223,000 in 20&$tated); pretax income was $9,439,000, a $7,800rOprovement over the $2,029,000
pretax income in 2011 (restated). Total revenuereased by $5,791,000, or 4.6%, from $125,339,00€hE year ended December 31, 2011
principally due to increased revenues in the Stmainess finance and Electronic payment processgments. The total net change in fair
value recorded was a loss of $1,121,000, the ntgjofiwhich was attributable to the Small businfisance segment. The $4,503,000
improvement over the prior year was primarily rethto the reversal of a fair value gain recordecbinnection with the guaranteed portions of
SBA 7(a) loans transferred in secondary markesaations occurring in 2010, but sales status wkyeeé until 2011. Total expenses incres
$2,884,000 to $120,570,000 for the year ended 2@h2 $117,686,000 for 2011 (restated): increaseddotronic payment processing costs,
salaries and benefits, interest and provisiondanllosses, were offset by decreases in depratiatid amortization, lease restructuring
charges, and other general and administrative.costs

Contributing to the pretax income of $9,439,00Q@012 were improvements in the Electronic paymeot@ssing, Small business finance,
Capco and Corporate segments, which were offsatdscrease in pretax income for Managed technaagyan increased pretax loss in the
All Other segment. The Electronic payment procegsggment gross margin decreased on a percentsige fpanarily due to a $1,300,000
provision for charge-back losses recognized in 2@ld#ted to a group of merchants affiliated witke arf its independent sales agents. This
decline was offset in part by an increase in madgie to a combination of growth in processing vaspincreases in certain fees and addit
services provided to our merchants. The improvermetite Corporate segment pretax income resultad fieductions in salaries and benefits
and the amortization of accrued lease restructwiragges recorded in the year ago period.

One of the primary contributors for Newtek’s comtedl profitability was the Small business finanognsent which generated pretax income of
$8,094,000 as compared to $4,135,000 in 2011,@nase of $3,959,000. The primary driver was sewgifee income which increased by
$3,763,000, or 121% over the year ago period riegutom increases related to third party serviasgvell as an increase in our own servi
portfolio. The segment originated $107,425,000 BA3oans during 2012 with an average sales prickldf.16%, up from 111.35% in 2011.
The Small business lender also continued to befnefit a contract with the Federal Deposit Insura@iogporation to provide servicing in
connection with failures of banks holding SBA gudesd loans.

The Electronic payment processing segment recaadet increase in pretax net income, which gre$7t641,000 from $6,157,000 over the
year ago period (restated). Revenue increased J098®00 or 4% to $85,489,000 during 2012 comptr@d11. The increase was relatet
growth in processing volumes, fee increases aniawal services provided to our merchants. Prdogsgvenue less processing costs
decreased slightly from 15.9% to 15.6% in 2012 tkduction in margin was due largely to a $1,300 8rovision for charge-back losses.
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As discussed in Note 26, the Company has restetedidited consolidated financial and other finahiciformation for the quarter and year
ended December 31, 2011, and for each of the gaamteled in 2012 in connection with the understatetthant chargeback reserves in each
of the affected periods. This restatement was chbgdosses related to understated merchant chacgebserves in each of the affected
periods. The Company identified the matter throaghnternal review of its chargeback reserves dpitie 2012 year-end closing process. The
incident involved violations of Company policiesdgorocedures by a member of senior managemengikléctronic payment processing
segment which resulted in the understatement afyelack loss reserves for a group of merchantsdatred to the Company by a single
independent sales agent. Management concludeththabrrection of the understatements requiredtti@€Company restate its financial
statements for the periods ended December 31, 20drch 31, 2012, June 30, 2012 and September 3@, 20d that this provision for
chargeback loss be spread over the affected pdsegianing with the fourth quarter of 2011 and tlgieout 2012.

Pretax net income for Managed technology solutitetseased from $4,837,000 to $4,254,000 for thegmaed December 31, 2012. While
segment revenue decreased by 5% due primarilyedwction in web hosting, the number of customsisgiour cloud computing services anc
the average revenue per plan increased from theagmaperiod. It continues to be management’s triteincrease revenue and margin per pla
through higher service offerings to customers winetude cloud-based applications.

In April 2012, the Company closed a $15,000,00@icfacility with Summit comprised of a $10,000,0@&0m loan, which was drawn at
closing, and a $5,000,000 delayed draw term lodretmade upon the satisfaction of certain condstidmme $5,000,000 second tranche of this
loan will not be drawn by the Company. The fundsaoted were used primarily for general corporatgpses including the origination of
SBA 7(a) loans. The terms of this financing agreenaee discussed more fully in Note 12 to the Cdated Financial Statements — Notes
Payable.

As part of our new marketing campaign launcheddihZ the Company presented its re-designed weldiieh better emphasized the
Company’s branding strategy and offers easier aisthé customer. In addition, the Company premiésedew a magazindhe Small
Business Authority Observea semiannual publication focused on helping business osvimerease their sales, reduce their costs anuizie
their risks. Our new marketing campaign includetsonal exposure focusing on generating awarenessioproducts and services to qualified
small business owners. Our direct media advertisargpaign under our banner NEWTERhe Small Business Authoritgicludes national
television commercials, online display and searellimparameters. We continue productiofiteé Small Business Authority IndeandThe
SBA Market Sentiment Sunvey reflecting our poliing assessment of business conditions for smahdmges.

In March 2013, the Company closed its third sematiion issuing an additional $20,909,000 in natéh an A-rating under S&P; see Note 27
to the Consolidated Financial Statement — Subsedtisants.

Business Segment Results:
The results of the Company’s reportable businegseats are discussed below.
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Electronic Payment Processing

2011 % Change

(In thousands): 2012 (Restated 2010 2012 2011
Revenue

Electronic payment processi $85,48: $82,47F  $80,92( 4% 2%

Interest incom 6 11 16 (46%) (31%)

Total revenue 85,48¢ 82,48t 80,93¢ 4% 2%

Expenses

Electronic payment processing ca 72,18 69,38¢ 68,17: 4% 2%

Salaries and benefi 3,991 3,99¢ 4101 — % (3%)

Professional fee 32¢ 27C 34¢€ 20%  (22%)

Depreciation and amortizatic 743 1,41¢ 1,632 (48%) (13%)

Insurance expens related party 61 51 34 20% 50%

Other general and administrative cc 1,145 1,20¢ 962 B)% 25%
Total expense 78,44¢ 76,32¢ 75,25: 3% 1%
Income before income tax $ 7,041 $ 6,157 $ 5,68/ 14% 8%
2012

EPP revenue increased $3,008,000 or 4% betwees.JRavenue increased due to a combination of growphocessing volumes, selective
increases, both card association and third-padggssor cost increases passed through to merdlo#mes than debit card transactions) and
additions to services provided to our merchantsc&€ssing volumes were favorably impacted by aresme of 3% in the average number of
processing merchants under contract between petiodsldition, growth in revenue between perioadséased due to an increase of
approximately 7% in the average monthly processoigme per merchant, due in part to the additioseseral larger volume processing
merchants as well as year-over-year growth in [msiog volumes from existing merchants. The ovénaliease in revenue between years was
adversely impacted by approximately 6% due to ffexeof lower pass-through pricing on debit car@hsactions due to government mandate
limits on underlying interchange costs for suclmsections, as well as the overall pricing mix ofchant sales volumes realized between
periods.

Electronic payment processing costs (“EPP costebeiased $2,795,000 or 4% between years. The seied&PP costs includes a provision
for charge-back losses of $1,271,000 and $244/0Q012 and 2011, respectively, related to a grdupeschants affiliated with one of its
independent sales agents. Subsequent to Deceml2d 13, significant cardholder transaction chargekis in excess of related cash reserves
held at one of the Company’s sponsor banks wedrtothave occurred for the particular agent’s groumerchants. As a result of the
exhaustion of such related cash reserves andkiglébod of additional charge-backs continuing @12 relating to such merchants,
management concluded that based on an analysa&sbppocessing activity of such merchants (whaarnger processing with the
Company) that an additional provision for chargekblasses was required as of December 31, 2018isksissed more fully in Note 26, this
loss was the result of violations of credit poliya senior member of management in the EPP divigibe activities and decisions of this
manager lead to the $1,271,000 and $244,000 churgeprovision in 2012 and 2011, respectively cluargebacks incurred by a group of
merchants unilaterally approved by the senior manakhe overall increase in EPP costs between yeassalso affected by lower interchange
costs on debit card transactions. Beginning irfeleth quarter of 2011, the EPP segment began mxyéng lower EPP costs as interchange
costs on debit card transactions were reducechferchange plus priced merchants, as well as otRersessing revenues less electronic
payment processing costs (“margin”) decreased 6% in 2011 to 15.6% in 2012. The decrease igmaiue to the $1,271,000 provision
for charge-backs was 1.5%. The negative impachemtargin percentage of the additional charge-baskprovision was partially offset by
the impact on revenues and EPP costs of the dafoitpricing and interchange cost changes also ratiede, net of higher residual payment
sales agents which increased $2,889,000 or 38%¢cketyears, as well as changes in the mix of metdades volumes processed. Overall, the
decrease in margin dollars was $213,000 betweens.yea
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Excluding electronic payment processing costs,ratbsts decreased $676,000 or 10% between yegpse@ation and amortization decreased
$676,000 between periods as the result of prewaasjuired portfolio intangible assets becomingyfamortized between periods. During
2012, office relocation costs of approximately $80, were incurred. Payroll related costs decre4¢2D0 as a decline in average headcount
of 2% between years was substantially offset byeimgsed costs related to payroll taxes and emplogeefits. Professional fees increased
$53,000 due to several new consulting arrangengesed into during 2012 which were partially offsg lower audit fees between years.

Income before income taxes increased $884,000,81%000 in 2012 from $6,157,000 in 2011. The iasesin income before income taxes
was principally due to the decrease in depreciaimhamortization cost of $676,000 between yeatsnars partially offset by the decrease in
the margin (operating revenues less electronic paymrocessing costs) of $213,000 due to the reasoied above.

2011 Restated

Electronic payment processing revenue increasetb$100 or 2% between years due to organic gro@¥%®o Revenue from acquired
portfolios decreased overall revenue growth by feaa 1% due to merchant attrition and other factBevenue from organic growth increasec
due to a combination of growth in processing volanselective fee increases and additions to serygicevided to our merchants. Processing
volumes were favorably impacted by an increasaéralverage number of processing merchants undaacbhbetween periods of 6%. In
addition, organic growth in revenue between perindseased due to an increase of approximatelyr2fia average monthly processing
volume per merchant. The increase in the averagehiyoprocessing volume per merchant is due in fgettie addition of several larger
volume processing merchants as well as year-ovargmwth in processing volumes from existing marth. Total revenue from n@equirec
business in 2011 was adversely impacted by appairi|n6% due to the overall pricing mix of merchsales volumes realized between
periods as well as price decreases under certaichiang processing contracts.

Electronic payment processing costs increased $020, including $244,000 for merchant charge-Haskes, or 2% between years.
Electronic payment processing costs resulting famauired portfolios had the overall effect of dasiag such costs by less than 1% between
years. Electronic payment processing costs assdoiath nol-acquired business had the effect of increasingtrelisic payment processing
costs by less than 2% between years. Beginninggifidurth quarter of 2011, the EPP segment begp@rexcing lower EPP costs as
interchange costs on debit card transactions veehgced for interchange plus priced merchants dsas@thers. Processing revenues less
electronic payment processing costs (“margin”) éased from 15.7% in 2010 to 15.9% in 2011. Thecetféa lower margin from acquired
portfolios decreased the gross margin percenta@ed®. The introduction of new, higher margin produand services in both 2010 and 2011
and the impact on revenues and EPP costs as aakthe debit card pricing and interchange cosingfes noted above, more than offset the
impact in 2011 of lower margins realized due tdvange in the mix of merchants and their relatenlsiation processing activity between ye
The increase in margin dollars was $344,000 betwears.

Excluding electronic payment processing costs,ratbsts decreased $134,000 or 2% between yearse@aiion and amortization decreased
$213,000 between periods as the result of prewaasjuired portfolio intangible assets becomingyfamortized between periods. Remaining
costs increased $79,000 as an increase in markefatgd costs of $169,000 was partially offsetbgt reductions in salaries and wages and
professional fees between years. Marketing expercseased in conjunction with the launch of NEWTERhe Small Business Authority,

new marketing campaign initiated by the Companyirsggg in January 2011.

Income before income taxes increased $473,000,45$M00 in 2011 from $5,684,000 in 2010. The iasesin income before income taxes
was due to the increase in the dollar margin ofafeg revenues less electronic payment processiap of $344,000 due to the reasons note
above and the decrease in other expenses betwaen ye
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Electronic Payment Processing Segment Restated Querly Periods of Fiscal Year 2012
Three Months Ended September 30, 2012 (Restated)&a011

Three months
ended September 30

(In thousands): Rezgtﬁed 2011 $ Change % Change
Revenue
Electronic payment processi $21,68¢ $20,70! $ 98¢ 5%
Interest incom 1 4 3 (79)%
Total revenue 21,68: 20,70; 98C 5%
Expenses
Electronic payment processing ca 18,35¢ 17,76( 59¢ 3%
Salaries and benefi 1,09¢ 97t 124 13%
Professional fee 79 58 24 44%
Depreciation and amortizatic 171 37¢ (20¢) (55)%
Insurance expens related part) 48 — 48 10C%
Other general and administrative cc 192 29¢ (10¢€) (36)%
Total expense 19,94! 19,46° 47¢ 2%
Income before income tax $ 1,74 $ 1,24( $ 502 40%

Electronic payment processing (“EPP”) revenue iaseel $983,000 or 5% between years. Revenue indrdaseo a combination of growth in
processing volumes, selective fee increases, tathassociation and third-party processor costas®s passed through to merchants (other
than debit card transactions) and additions toisesvprovided to our merchants. Processing volumeze favorably impacted by an increase o
3% in the average number of processing merchamtsrwgontract between periods. In addition, growtheivenue between periods increased
due to an increase of approximately 8% in the aye&raonthly processing volume per merchant, duaihtp the addition of several larger
volume processing merchants as well as year-pear-growth in processing volumes from existing chants. Although total revenue incree
between years, 2012 revenue was negatively impagtegproximately 6% due to the effect of lowersgdgough pricing on debit card
transactions due to government mandated limitsnatexlying interchange costs for such transactiassyell as the overall pricing mix of
merchant sales volumes realized between periods.

Electronic payment processing costs increased $806r 3% between years. Processing revenueslésdsaic payment processing costs
(“margin”) increased from 14.2% in 2011 to 15.4% in 2012. Beigig in the fourth quarter of 2011, the EPP sedrbegan experiencing low
EPP costs as interchange costs on debit card ttaosawere reduced for interchange plus pricecchamts, as well as others; however, the
segment had an increase in EPP costs related folkbwing:

(1) Provision for charge-back losses of $275,0@@gaized during the three months ended Septemh&03@ related to a group of
merchants under one independent sales a

(2) Higher residual payments to sales agents wihifeased $1,036,000 or 63% between years perdbsements as a result of the
pricing and cost changes noted above as well asdres in the mix of merchant sales volumes predeastated to such sales
agents

The above increases in EPP costs were offset bipllogving:
(1) anincrease in margin attributable to the introiduncof new, higher margin products and servicesndu2011;

(2) the impact on revenues and EPP costs as a reghi dibit card pricing and interchange cost chamgéed above
Overall, the increase in margin dollars was $387 [0&ween years.

Excluding electronic payment processing costs,ratbsts decreased $118,000 or 7% between yearse@aiion and amortization decreased
$208,000 between periods as the result of prewaajuired portfolio intangible assets becomingyfamortized between periods. Remaining
costs, which increased $90,000 between years,dadlan increase of $117,000 in other payroll rdlatests, a decrease in allocated marketin
costs of $56,000 and other cost increases of $Q9thcipally in professional fees related to sgng previously acquired portfolios.
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Income before income taxes increased $502,000,#4$1000 in 2012 from $1,240,000 in 2011. The iasecin income before income taxes

was principally due to the increase in the margpetating revenues less electronic payment praugssists) of $387,000 due to the reasons
noted above and the decrease in depreciation aodiaation cost of $208,000 between years.
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Nine months Ended September 30, 2012 (Restated) ah@11

Nine months
ended September 30:
2012
(In thousands): (Restated 2011 $ Change % Change
Revenue
Electronic payment processi $63,67¢ $61,50¢ $2,17( 4%
Interest incom 4 8 (4 (50)%
Total revenue 63,67¢ 61,51: 2,16¢ 4%
Expenses
Electronic payment processing ca 53,54: 52,48: 1,05¢ 2%
Salaries and benefi 3,18¢ 3,027 15¢ 5%
Professional fee 19¢ 174 24 14%
Depreciation and amortizatic 581 1,14( (559 (49)%
Insurance expens related part) 48 — 48 10C%
Other general and administrative cc 867 90C (33 (4%
Total expense 58,42: 57,72« 69¢ 1%
Income before income tax $ 5,25¢ $ 3,78¢ $1,46¢ 3%%

EPP revenue increased $2,170,000 or 4% betwees.JRavenue increased due to a combination of growphocessing volumes, selective
increases, both card association and third-padggssor cost increases passed through to merdlo#mes than debit card transactions) and
additions to services provided to our merchantsc&€ssing volumes were favorably impacted by aresme of 3% in the average number of
processing merchants under contract between petiodsldition, growth in revenue between perioadséased due to an increase of
approximately 8% in the average monthly processoigme per merchant, due in part to the additioseseral larger volume processing
merchants as well as year-over-year growth in [msiog volumes from existing merchants. Total reeenu2012 was down by approximately
7% due to the effect of lower pattsough pricing on debit card transactions dueawegnment mandated limits on underlying intercharw:
for such transactions, as well as the overall pgenix of merchant sales volumes realized betwegiogs.

Electronic payment processing costs increased $J008 or 2% between years. Processing revenueslixtsonic payment processing costs
(“margin”) increased from 14.7% in 2011 to 15.9% in 2012. Beigig in the fourth quarter of 2011, the EPP sedrbegan experiencing low

EPP costs as interchange costs on debit card ttaomsawere reduced for interchange plus pricecchamts, as well as others; however, the

segment had an increase in EPP costs related folkbwing:

(1) Provision for charge-back losses of $732,0@@gaized during the nine months ended Septembe2@(, related to a group of
merchants under one independent sales a

(2) Higher residual payments to sales agents wihifeased $2,848,000 or 56% between years perdbsements as a result of the
pricing and cost changes noted above as well asdres in the mix of merchant sales volumes predeastated to such sales
agents

The above increases in EPP costs were offset bipllogving:
(1) anincrease in margin attributable to the introiuncof new, higher margin products and servicesndu2011;

(2) the impact on revenues and EPP costs as a reghi dibit card pricing and interchange cost chamgéed above
Overall, the increase in margin dollars was $1,000 between years.

Excluding electronic payment processing costs,ratbsts decreased $361,000 or 7% between yearse@aiion and amortization decreased
$559,000 between periods as the result of prewaajuired portfolio intangible assets becomingyfamortized between periods. Remaining
costs increased $198,000 or 5% between years. ®@RA€ih2, office relocation costs of approximatelp $HO0 were incurred. Other payroll
related costs increased $159,000. Marketing andréiding costs decreased $56,000 while all othstscocreased $45,000 including $24,000
in professional fees principally related to semvigpreviously acquired portfolios.

32



Table of Contents

Income before income taxes increased $1,468,086,256,000 in 2012 from $3,788,000 in 2011. Thedase in income before income taxes

was principally due to the increase in the margpetating revenues less electronic payment praugssists) of $1,111,000 due to the reason
noted above and the decrease in depreciation aodiaation cost of $559,000 between years.
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Three Months Ended June 30, 2012 (Restated) and 201

Three months
ended June 30:
2012

(In thousands): (Restated 2011 $ Change % Change
Revenue
Electronic payment processi $21,37: $20,71¢ $ 657 3%
Interest incom 2 3 D (33%
Total revenue 21,37 20,717 65€ 3%
Expenses
Electronic payment processing ca 17,83: 17,62¢ 20t 1%
Salaries and benefi 1,02z 98¢ 34 3%
Professional fee 56 61 (5) (8)%
Depreciation and amortizatic 16¢ 38C (217) (56)%
Other general and administrative cc 373 31¢€ 57 18%
Total expense 19,45 19,37: 80 — %
Income before income tax $ 1,92( $ 1,344 $ 57€ 43%

Electronic payment processing (“EPP”) revenue iaseel $657,000 or 3% between years due to orgamigiyrRevenue increased due to a
combination of growth in processing volumes, séledee increases and additions to services pravid@ur merchants. Processing volumes
were favorably impacted by an increase in the ayeraumber of processing merchants under contraeele periods of 3%. In addition,
growth in revenue between periods increased dae focrease of approximately 9% in the average hipiprocessing volume per merchant.
The increase in the average monthly processingwelper merchant is due in part to the additioreetsal larger volume processing merch
as well as year-over-year growth in processing malsi from existing merchants. Total revenue in 2042 adversely impacted by
approximately 9% due to the effect of lower passulgh pricing on debit card transactions due toegoment mandated limits on underlying
interchange costs for such transactions as wélleeverall pricing mix of merchant sales volumeslized between periods.

Electronic payment processing costs increased $205r 1% between years. Beginning in the fourthrear of 2011, the EPP segment began
experiencing lower EPP costs as interchange costiebit card transactions were reduced for interghalus priced merchants as well as
others. Processing revenues less electronic paypnecgssing costs (“margin”) increased from 14.992011 to 16.6% in 2012. The increase
in margin is due to the impact on revenues and &RE resulting from the debit card pricing an@iiahange cost changes noted above net of
higher residual payments to sales agents whicleasead $882,000 or 51% between years as well agehanthe mix of merchant sales
volumes processed. Overall, the increase in malgliars was $452,000 between years.

Excluding electronic payment processing costs,ratbsts decreased $125,000 or 7% between yearse@aiion and amortization decreased
$211,000 between periods as the result of a preli@acquired portfolio of intangible assets becayrfully amortized between periods.
Remaining costs, which increased $86,000 betwearsymcluded approximately $50,000 in office raliben costs during 2012.

Income before income taxes increased $576,000,826000 in 2012 from $1,344,000 in 2011. The iaseein income before income taxes
was due to the increase in the dollar margin ofafreg revenues less electronic payment processiap of $452,000 due to the reasons note
above and the decrease in depreciation and antartizzost between years.
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Six Months Ended June 30, 2012 (Restated) and 2011

Six months
ended June 30:
2012
(In thousands): (Restated 2011 $ Change % Change
Revenue
Electronic payment processi $41,98¢ $40,80: $1,18% 3%
Interest incom 3 4 D (25)%
Total revenue 41,99: 40,80¢ 1,18¢ 3%
Expenses
Electronic payment processing ca 35,18t¢ 34,72: 464 1%
Salaries and benefi 2,08 2,052 35 2%
Professional fee 12C 11¢ 1 1%
Depreciation and amortizatic 41C 762 (352 (46)%
Other general and administrative cc 674 603 71 12%
Total expense 38,47, 38,25¢ 21¢ 1%
Income before income tax $ 3,51/ $ 2,54 $ 967 38%

Electronic payment processing (“EPP”) revenue iaseel $1,187,000 or 3% between years due to orgamith. Revenue increased due to a
combination of growth in processing volumes, séledee increases and additions to services pravid@ur merchants. Processing volumes
were favorably impacted by an increase in the ayeraumber of processing merchants under contraeele periods of 3%. In addition,
growth in revenue between periods increased dae focrease of approximately 8% in the average hipprocessing volume per merchant.
The increase in the average monthly processingwelper merchant is due in part to the additioreetsal larger volume processing merch
as well as year-over-year growth in processing malsi from existing merchants. Total revenue in 2042 adversely impacted by
approximately 8% due to the effect of lower pasgsulgh pricing on debit card transactions due toegoment mandated limits on underlying
interchange costs for such transactions as wélleeverall pricing mix of merchant sales volumeslized between periods.

Electronic payment processing costs increased 6¢,$80 between years. Processing revenues lesseieqayment processing costs
(“margin”) increased from 14.9% in 2011 to 16.2% in 2012. Beigig in the fourth quarter of 2011, the EPP sedrhegan experiencing low
EPP costs as interchange costs on debit card ttaomsawere reduced for interchange plus pricecchamts, as well as others; however, the
segment had an increase in EPP costs related folkbwing:

(1) Provision for charge-back losses of $456,0@0gaized during the six months ended June 30, 28l4fed to a group of merchants
under one independent sales ag

(2) Higher residual payments to sales agents wihifeased $1,812,000 or 52% between years perdbsements as a result of the
pricing and cost changes noted above as well asdres in the mix of merchant sales volumes predeastated to such sales
agents

The above increases in EPP costs were offset bipllogving:
(1) anincrease in margin attributable to the introucof new, higher margin products and servicesngu2011;

(2) the impact on revenues and EPP costs as a reghi dibit card pricing and interchange cost chamgéed above
Overall, the increase in margin dollars was $723 [0€kween years.

Excluding electronic payment processing costs,ratbsts decreased $245,000 or 7% between yearse@aiion and amortization decreased
$352,000 between periods as the result of prewaajuired portfolio intangible assets becomingyfamortized between periods. Remaining
costs increased $107,000 or 4% between years. @PRA€ih2, office relocation costs of approximatel) 890 were incurred.
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Income before income taxes increased $967,000,618300 in 2012 from $2,547,000 in 2011. The iaseein income before income taxes
was due to the increase in the dollar margin ofafreg revenues less electronic payment processiap of $723,000 due to the reasons note
above and the decrease in depreciation and antaytizzost between years.

Three Months Ended March 31, 2012 (Restated) and 20

Three months
ended March 31:

2012
(In thousands): (Restated 2011 $ Change % Change
Revenue
Electronic payment processil $20,61" $20,08" $ 53C 3%
Interest incom 1 2 (D) (50)%
Total revenue 20,61¢ 20,08¢ 52¢ 3%
Expenses
Electronic payment processing ca 17,35: 17,09: 25¢ 2%
Salaries and benefi 1,06¢ 1,06t — — %
Professional fee 64 5¢ 5 8%
Depreciation and amortizatic 241 381 (240 (3N%
Other general and administrative cc 301 28¢€ 15 5%
Total expense 19,02/ 18,88! 13¢ 1%
Income before income tax $ 1,594 $ 1,20/ $ 39C 32%

Electronic payment processing (“EPP”) revenue iaseel $530,000 or 3% between years due to orgamiglyrRevenue increased due to a
combination of growth in processing volumes, séledee increases and additions to services pravideur merchants. Processing volumes
were favorably impacted by an increase in the @eeraimber of processing merchants under contraweke periods of 3%. In addition,
organic growth in revenue between periods incredsedo an increase of approximately 8% in theagemonthly processing volume per
merchant. The increase in the average monthly psieg volume per merchant is due in part to thetiaddof several larger volume process
merchants as well as year-over-year growth in msiog volumes from existing merchants. Total reeenu2012 was adversely impacted by
approximately 8% due to the overall pricing mixeérchant sales volumes realized between periodekhss the effect of lower pass-through
pricing on debit card transactions due to goverrtmeandated limits on underlying interchange costssfich transactions.

Electronic payment processing costs increased 828%r 2% between years. Processing revenuesléetmaic payment processing costs
(“margin”) increased from 14.9% in 2011 to 15.8% in 2012. Beigig in the fourth quarter of 2011, the EPP sedrhegan experiencing low
EPP costs as interchange costs on debit card otiorsawere reduced for interchange plus pricecchserts, as well as others; however, the
segment had an increase in EPP costs related folkining:

(1) Provision for charge-back losses of $472,0@0gaized during the three months ended March 312 26lated to a group of
merchants under one independent sales a

(2) Higher residual payments to sales agents wihimteased $930,000 or 54% between years per theiements as a result of the
pricing and cost changes noted above as well asdses in the mix of merchant sales volumes predesdated to such sales

agents
The above increases in EPP costs were offset bipllogving:
(1) anincrease in margin attributable to the introucof new, higher margin products and servicesngu2011;
(2) the impact on revenues and EPP costs as a resbi debit card pricing and interchange cost cheungged above

Overall, the increase in margin dollars was $270 [0€kween years.

Excluding electronic payment processing costs,rathsts decreased $120,000 or 7% between yearseafion and amortization decreased
$140,000 between periods as the result of prewaarsjuired portfolio intangible assets becomingyfamortized between periods. Remaining
costs increased only $20,000 or 1% between years.
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Income before income taxes increased $390,000,698000 in 2012 from $1,204,000 in 2011. The iaseein income before income taxes
was due to the increase in the dollar margin ofafreg revenues less electronic payment processiap of $271,000 due to the reasons note
above and the decrease in other depreciation andiaations cost between years.
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Managed Technology Solutions

% Change
(In thousands): 2012 2011 2010 2012 2011
Revenue
Web hosting and desic $18,21: $19,18! $19,16¢ (5%) 0%
Interest incom — 1 4  (10%) (75%)
Total revenue 18,21 19,18« 19,16¢ (5%) 0%
Expenses
Salaries and benefi 5,21¢ 4,75k 4,91( 1C% (3%)
Interest 80 104 107 (23%) (3%)
Professional fee 46~ 692 551 (33%) 26%
Depreciation and amortizatic 1,21¢ 1,387 1,82¢ (13%) (24%)
Insurance expens related party 17 4 27 325% (85)%
Other general and administrative cc 6,96¢ 7,40k 7,042 (6%) 5%
Total expense 13,957 14,347 14,46¢ (3%) (1%)
Income before income tax $425. $ 4,837 $ 4,70¢ (12%) 3%
2012

Revenue is derived primarily from recurring feemirhosting websites, including monthly contractssioared hosting, dedicated servers and
cloud instances (the “plans”). In addition, lesart2% of revenues are derived from contracted ses\o design web sites. Revenue between
years decreased $973,000, or 5%, to $18,211,0R01R2. The decrease in revenues included a dedreasd hosting revenue of $750,000 i
web design revenues of $223,000 between yearsddtrease in web hosting revenue is the resuldetteease in the average monthly numbe
of total plans by 5,631 or 10% between years tdBDplans in 2012 from 56,351 plans in 2011. Partadfsetting the decrease in web hosting
revenue resulting from the decline in plans wamarease in the average monthly revenue per pl&dwofo $29.92 in 2012 from $28.37 in
2011. The increase in the average revenue perglicts a growth in cloud instances and custompershasing higher cost plans including
additional options and services. The average numibabud instances increased by 267 to an avara§84 from 367 in 2011 reflecting the
Company’s introduction of a customer scalable clofidring in 2011. The decrease in the average ptaas occurred in the shared and
dedicated segments. The average monthly numberdiated server plans in 2012, which generatelaehignonthly fee versus shared hosting
plans, decreased by 355 between years, or 19%,duexage of 1,485 from an average of 1,840 in 20h#& average monthly number of shi
hosting plans in 2012 decreased by 5,542, or 10%n taverage of 48,601 from 54,143 in 2011. Cortipetirom other web hosting providers
as well as alternative website services continadgte a negative effect on web hosting plan candtrevenue growth.

It continues to be management’s intent to increagenues and margin per plan through higher sepffegings to customers, although this
may result in a lower number of plans in place allein addition, management has begun to lessetteipendency on the Microsoft web
platform by broadening its platform capabilitiesriolude more open source web applications whicke Heecome increasingly more attractive
to web developers and resellers.

Total expenses of $13,957,000 in 2012 declined @3t $14,347,000 in 2011. Salaries and benefiteaszd $461,000 or 10% between years
to $5,216,000. The growth in salaries and benifigsincipally due to adding additional staffingdnstomer service areas and executive
management as well as wage rate increases betweeds Depreciation and amortization cost decit&34& 3,000 between years to
$1,214,000 due to reduced capital expendituresdant years as a result of lower replacement émstew equipment overall, more efficient
use of existing equipment within the data centesfmred and dedicated plans and the utilizatiarioafd architecture to more efficiently
provide services to customers. The decrease of,$2Q7n professional fees was primarily due to eré@se in web design development cos

a result of a decrease in web design revenues batyesars. In addition, professional fees also @dse@ due to the timing of the incurrence of
security assurance services between years. Otheragjend administrative costs decreased $440,06@%detween years. Included in other
expenses in 2011 was an expense of $190,000 restritim the resolution of a licensing dispute. Exiéhg the one-time settlement in 2011,
other expense decreased $250,000 between yeaesases in domain costs of $50,000 and hardwaretemaince and support of $121,000,
principally due to the restructuring of previousitacts in those areas, were more than offsetreglaction in bad debt expense of $184,000
due to lower revenues in 2012 and improved cobhectifforts between years. In addition, lease expans utility costs decreased by $237,00(
between years due a new lease resulting from mdoiagnew management office location in 2012 ameeladata center utility costs.
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Income before income taxes decreased 12% or $588084,254,000 in 2012 from $4,837,000 in 2011e @acrease in profitability is
principally due to a decline in web hosting revebeéveen years as increases in revenue per sigertedoffset an overall decline in revenue
due to site attrition and, additionally, such deelin revenue has only been partially offset byt ceductions (including the impact of a
$190,000 licensing settlement cost in 2011).

2011

Revenue is derived primarily from recurring feemnfrhosting websites, including monthly contractssioared hosting, dedicated servers, and
cloud instances (the “plans”). In addition, revemaee derived from contracted services to designsites. Revenue between years increased
$19,000, or less than 1%, to $19,183,000 in 20h&.ifcrease in revenues included an increase imeegign revenues of $177,000 to
$532,000 in 2011and offset by a decrease in wetirigoevenue of $158,000. The decrease in webrmpstivenue is the result of a decrease i
the average monthly number of total plans by 4&78% between years to 56,351 plans in 2011 frofaZ®plans in 2010. Partially offsetting
the decrease in web hosting revenue resulting fhendecline in such plans was an increase in teeage revenue per plan of 7% to $330.98
from $308.73. The increase in the average reveauplpn reflects a growth in cloud instances arglaers purchasing higher-cost plans
including additional options and services. The agernumber of cloud instances increased by 1790%, to an average of 367 from 193 for
2010 reflecting the Company’s introduction of atouser scalable cloud offering in 2011. The decréaslke average total plans is mainly
reflected in the shared and dedicated segmentsaddrage monthly number of dedicated server plangd11, which generate a higher
monthly fee versus shared hosting plans, decrdas806 between periods, or 14%, to an average8diOlfrom an average of 2,146 for 2010.
The average monthly number of shared hosting gtan2011 decreased by 4,444, or 8%, to an averbfé, 43 from 58,587 for 2011.
Competition from other web hosting providers aslaslalternative website services continues to laanvegative effect on web hosting plan
count and revenue growth.

Customer service and competitive pricing by NTSdowd the rate of attrition between years, but satelsmarketing efforts have yet to prov
sufficient new accounts to keep the overall plamntdrom declining. It is management’s intent torgase revenues and margin per plan
through higher service offerings to customers,aitih this may result in a lower number of planplacte overall.

Total expenses decreased by 1% or $118,000 in @@hpared to 2010. The decrease in total expenskslegs a decrease in salaries and
benefits between years of $155,000 and a $441,80@dse in depreciation and amortization due tocexdl capital expenditures in recent ye
as a result of lower replacement costs for newpgent overall, more efficient use of existing eeqougnt within the data center for shared and
dedicated plans and the utilization of cloud amsttiire to more efficiently provide services to oustrs. The $155,000 decrease in salaries ar
benefits was principally due to an increase intediped wages for internally used software of $68,and an additional amount charged to
other Newtek segments ($114,000) between yearswidieflected as a reduction of salaries and wlgesegment reporting purposes. The
increase of $141,000 in professional fees was piliyndue to an increase in audit fees for a SO@dagement and an increase in web design
costs in direct connection with the additional se\offering to customers for custom website deggalent. The $363,000 increase in other
general and administrative costs is primarily dua tne-time expense of $190,000 as a result akgwution of a licensing dispute and an
increase of $136,000 in marketing expense. Margetikpense increased in conjunction with the lawfddEWTEK ® The Small Business
Authority,a new marketing campaign initiated by the Companjainuary 2011.

Income before income taxes increased 3% or $134®$8,837,000 for 2011 from $4,703,000 for 2010e Tmprovement in profitability
resulted primarily from the decrease in salaria$lz@nefits and depreciation and amortization.

39



Table of Contents

Small Business Finance

% Change
(In thousands): 2012 2011 2010 2012 2011
Revenue
Premium on loan sale $12,367 $12,46¢ $ 2,42¢ (L)%  414%
Servicing fee 6,861 3,09¢ 2,56¢ 121% 21%
Interest incomt 3,37( 2,54¢ 1,745 32% 46%
Management fee-related party 293 58t 58t B0% — %
Other income 2,517 2,32¢ 2,04 8% 14%
Total revenus 25,40¢ 21,02¢ 9,371 21% 124%

Net change in fair value ¢

SBA loans transferred, subject to premium reco (3,36¢€) 3,36¢ (1000% (200%

SBA loans held for sal (163) 26t 41z (162)% (36)%
SBA loans held for investme (857) (2,397) (28¢) (64)%  73%
Warrants (117 — — (100% — %
Total net change in fair valt (1,12%) (5,497%) 3,49/ 80%  (257)%
Expenses
Salaries and benefi 6,12¢ 4,68¢ 3,62( 31% 30%
Interest 3,83¢ 2,03( 1,91¢ 8% 6%
Management fee- related part — — 46( 0% (100%
Professional fee 70C 474 45( 48% 5%
Depreciation and amortizatic 91¢ 89:< 79C 3% 13%
Provision for loan los 80¢ 751 1,84¢ 7% (59)%
Insurance expen-related party 2C — — (100% — %
Other general and administrative cc 3,78¢ 2,56( 1,73t 48% 48%
Total expense 16,18¢ 11,39° 10,82( 42% 5%
Income before income tax $ 809 $4,13% $ 2,04¢ 96% 102%

Business Overview

The Small business finance segment is compris®tS&F which is a non-bank SBA lender that originasedls and services loans for its own
portfolio as well as portfolios of other institutis, and NBC which provides accounts receivablenfiirg and billing services to business.
Revenue is derived primarily from premium incomeeated by the sale of the guaranteed portion8#fI8ans, interest income on SBA
loans held for investment and held for sale, sergifee income on the guaranteed portions of SB¥$osold, servicing income for loans
originated by other lenders for which NSBF is thevger, and financing and billing services, clésdias other income above, provided by
NBC. Most SBA loans originated by NSBF charge dariest rate equal to the Prime rate plus an addditipercentage amount; the interest
resets to the current Prime rate on a monthly artgdy basis, which will result in changes to #mount of interest accrued for that month anc

going forward and a re-amortization of a loan’smpapt amount until maturity.

Accounting Policy

On October 1, 2010, the Company elected to utilieefair value option for SBA 7(a) loans fundedasrafter that date. For these fair value
loans, premium on loan sales equals the cash pneming servicing asset paid by the purchaser ise¢bhendary market, the discount create

the unguaranteed portion from the sale which folymeduced premium income is
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now included in the fair value line item, and, ot napitalizing various transaction expenses, #heries and benefits and loan processing
expense lines portray a value closer to the cashto@perate the lending business. The fair valeasurement, currently recorded as a 7.5%
upfront discount of the unguaranteed principal hedaof SBA loans held for investment, is based upternal quantitative data on our
portfolio with respect to historical default ratasd future expected losses as well as the invpsite paid for the senior interest in our
unguaranteed loans with respect to the 2013 semditransaction, and adjusted for the estimatedcieg and interest income to be retained
by the trust over an estimated repayment termrektlyears. This was further adjusted to reflecedtenated default rate on the senior notes
based on the default rate on our loan portfolisuasng a worst case scenario of no recoveries. 8hloe performance of the underlying loans
to the senior notes change, this could impact $seraptions used in the estimated repayment temrelhas the estimated default rate and thu
result in a higher or lower discount rate takethim future; management reviews these assumptigosardy. If a loan measured at fair value is
subsequently impaired, then the fair value of tanlis measured based on the present value oftexpfeture cash flows discounted at the
loan’s effective interest rate, or the fair valdate collateral if the loan is collateral dependdrne significant unobservable inputs used in the
fair value measurement of the impaired loans ineshanagement’s judgment in the use of market datahard party estimates regarding
collateral values. Such estimates are further distm by 20%—80% to reflect the cost of liquidatthg various assets under collateral. Any
subsequent increases or decreases in any of thesiwpuld result in a corresponding decrease oease in the reserve for loan loss or fair
value of SBA loans, depending on whether the loas @riginated prior or subsequent to October 102B&cause the loans bear interest at a
variable rate, NSBF does not have to factor inr@gerate risk.

Consideration in arriving at the provision for Idass includes past and current loss experiencegmmportfolio composition, future estimated
cash flows, and the evaluation of real estate dineraollateral as well as current economic coadgi For all loans originated on or prior to
September 30, 2010, management performed a lodoalnyreview for the estimated uncollectible portadmon-performing loans; subsequent
to September 30, 2010, management began recorflingraoriginations on a fair value basis whiclqu&es a valuation reduction of the
unguaranteed portion of loans held for investmerat kevel that takes into consideration futuredgsd his valuation reduction is reflected in
line item above: Net Change in Fair Value of SBAahse Held for Investment.

Small Business Finance Summary

For the Year ended
December 31,

2012 2011 2010

#
(In thousands): Loans $ Amount # Loans $ Amount # Loans $ Amount
Loans sold/transferred during the period 10= 84,74 10z 73,87 101 57,51%
Loans originated during the peri 104 107,42! 10z 97,12¢ 10¢€ 65,65¢
Loans that achieved sale status, originated irr peoiod — — 47 30,78: — —
Premium income recognized ( — $ 12,367 $12,46¢ — $ 2,42¢
Average sale price as a percent of principal ba&d8g 114.16% 111.3% 110.3%

(1) Of the total premium recognized for the yeademhDecember 31, 2011, $3,196,000 was from prelyjiauiginated loans that achieved
sale status as a result of the warranty periodriexp!
(2) Premiums greater than 110.00% must be split 50/80thve SBA.

For the year ended December 31, 2012, the Compaognized $12,367,000 of premium income from 1@Hsosold aggregating $84,743,(
During 2011, the Company recognized $9,272,000@fum income from 102 loans sold totaling $73,800,not subject to the premium
warranty, and 47 loans aggregating $30,783,000qusly subject to the premium warranty that achiesale status during 2011. The decreas
in premium income for the year ended December 8122s compared with the prior period was duedgtio the reversal of the fair value
adjustment of $3,196,000 associated with SBA ldaearssferred, subject to premium recourse, whicheiaged premium income for the same
amount for the year ended December 31, 2011. S@kespon guaranteed loan sales averaged 114.16&tftwelve months ended

December 31, 2012 compared with 111.35% for thévem@months ended December 31, 2011.
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Servicing Portfolios and related Servicing fee iname

Year ended

December 31, % Change
(In thousands): 2012 2011 2010 2012 2011
Total NSBF originated servicing portfolio (1) $351,73¢ $286,11: $218,22: 23% 31%
Third party servicing portfolit 176,98t 136,97: 73,88¢ 29%  85%
Aggregate servicing portfoli $528,72: $423,08: $292,10¢ 25%  45%
Total servicing income earned NSBF portfc $ 229 $ 163 $ 1,78 41% (8)%
Total servicing income earned external portf $ 456¢ $ 1466 $ 784 211% 8%
Total servicing income earnt $ 686 $ 3,101 $ 2,56¢ 121% 21%

(1) Of this amount, the total average NSBF origidaportfolio earning servicing income was $238,600, $192,126,000 and $159,873,000
for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 an@, 284pectively

The $3,761,000 improvement in total servicing ineomas attributable primarily to third party loamseing, which increased by $3,098,000
for the year ended December 31, 2012 comparecetper ended December 31, 2011. The twelve momtage third party servicing portfol
increased from $96,398,000 to $200,737,000 foRBEL and 2012 annual periods, respectively. Intexhdiservicing fees received from the
SBA on repurchased loans increased by $154,008hendmaining increase of $512,000 was attributadbtbe expansion of the NSBF
portfolio, in which we earn servicing income, whicicreased from an average of $192,126,000 fotvlebse month period ended
December 31, 2011 to an average of $238,590,00béosame twelve month period in 2012. This inazeaas the direct result of increased
loan originations throughout 2011 and 2012.

Interest income increased by $825,000 for the gaded December 31, 2012 as compared to 2011. Adrsaise was attributable to an
additional $1,169,000 of interest income as a tadithe average outstanding performing portfoliGGBA loans held for investment increasing
to $48,512,000 from $29,649,000 for the years emsrember 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Refuld011 included $344,000 in interest
earned from SBA loans transferred, subject to rexmuall transferred loans achieved sales stato§ Becember 31, 2011.

Other income increased by $188,000 primarily dua $277,000 increase in revenues at NBC. Feesc&cameeceivable advances increased b
$118,000 which was attributable to an increasbénaverage of financed receivables from $4,937i0@011, to $6,025,000 in 2012. Annual
fees, due diligence fees and under minimum feesased by an aggregate of $237,000 year over wbide commissions, late fees and billing
service revenue, along with other miscellaneous feereased by an aggregate of $78,000 year oaerlgereases in other income attribute

to NBC was offset by an $86,000 reduction in otheome at NSBF attributable to recognizing fewguense recoveries and packaging fees.

The increase in the net change in fair value aasettiwith SBA loans transferred, subject to premiaoourse, is the direct result of all
previously transferred loans having achieved dalis during 2011 as well as the SBA removing theranty provision allowing the Compa

to recognize premium income on the date of saleinguhe year ended December 31, 2011, as a refsthle expiration of the premium
warranty, all previously transferred loans wereoggized as sales, thereby reducing the correspgridinvalue adjustment by $3,366,000.
change in fair value associated with SBA loans lf@dale is related to the total amount of loamsverted from partially funded to fully
funded status during a given period. The decreatigei change in fair value on SBA loans held feestment is a result of reducing the upfr
discount recognized on unguaranteed loans, from tb194%6% during the first quarter of 2012 and fartreduced to 7.5% at December 31,
2012. This reduction was determined based upomialtguantitative data on our portfolio with respchistorical default rates and future
expected losses as well as the investor pricefpaithe senior interest in our unguaranteed loaitis @spect to our two securitized
transactions, adjusted for the estimated serviandjinterest income retained by the trust overstimated repayment term of three years and
further adjusted to reflect the estimated defatk on the senior notes based on the default nrabeioloan portfolio, assuming a worst case
scenario of no recoveries. During the year endezkBéer 31, 2012, loans originated and held forgtment aggregated $24,076,000 resulting
in a corresponding fair value loss of $851,000respnting an improvement of $1,542,000 over 204 tohnection with the Summit financing
transaction which closed in April 2012, the Compaggorded a fair value loss of $111,000 for thelfeenonths ended December 31, 2012 to
reflect the fair value of warrants issued as pathe transaction. The warrants have since bedageg to remove the anti-dilutive provision
which reflected management’s and Summit’s originent regarding the nature of the warrants, ansliab will no longer be marked to
market.
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Salaries and benefits increased by $1,435,000 phintie to increases in salaries, bonus accrsalvell as the addition of staff in the
originating, servicing and liquidation departmefaisboth internal and external loan portfolios. Goned headcount increased by 22% from at
average of 51 employees for the year ended Dece®ih@011, to an average of 62 for the year endszkmMber 31, 2012.

Interest expense increased by $1,806,000 for thegrded December 31, 2012 compared with the sentedgn 2011, due primarily to
$1,422,000 of interest expense associated witlstimemit financing transaction which closed in ARGI12. While the Summit financing was
transacted with the parent company, these funds prawvided to and utilized by NSBF; as a result,¢brresponding expense has been
recorded in the lending segment. The $1,422,000des interest, payment-in-kind interest, discaamthe valuation of the warrant and
amortization of deferred financing costs. AddititmaNSBF experienced an increase in interest egperi $624,000 in connection with the
closing of the second securitization transactiob@eember 2011 and an additional $56,000 incresated to the Capital One line of credit
which increased from an average outstanding balah$&,654,000 for the year ended December 31, 20%$10,674,000 for the same period
in 2012. NBC experienced an increase in interegéese of $55,000 under the Sterling credit facditye to increased borrowings under the
Sterling credit facility as a result of an incremgportfolio. Other interest expense paid to tipiadty increase by $20,000. These increases wel
offset by a reduction of $344,000 attributablette liability for SBA loans transferred, subjecti@mium recourse, which was reduced to zerc
in 2011 and a decrease of interest expense at NBR21,000 due to the write off of the remainingededd financing cost under the Wells
Fargo line in 2011.

Professional fees for the year ended December®®, iicreased by $226,000 when compared with thegreded December 31, 2011
primarily due to an increase in consulting fee®eisded with third party servicing, due diligenee$, search fees and fees associated with thi
trustee for the loan portfolio securitization.

Loan Loss Reserves and Fair Value Discount

Year ended

December 31: % Change
(In thousands): 2012 2011 2010 2012 2011
Total reserves and discount, beginning of year $ 5566 $ 3,84¢ $ 3,98t 45% (4%
Provision for loan los 80¢ 751 1,84¢ 7% (59)%
Discount, loans held for investment at fair vallig 851 2,39 28t (64)% 74(%
Charge offs (net of recoverie (1,130 (1,422 (2,279  (2D% (3N%
Total reserves and discount, end of y $6,09. $ 5566 $ 3,844 9% 45%
Gross portfolio balance, end of ye $64,60¢ $47,03(  $31,76( 37% 48%
Total impaired nonaccrual loans, end of y $6,751 $6,766 $799( — % (15)%

(1) The upfront discount taken on unguaranteeddaeas reduced from 11% to 9.5% during the firstrigwaf 2012 and further reduced to
7.5% at December 31, 2012 based upon internal taidve: data on our portfolio with respect to higtal default rates and future
expected losses. The Company also utilized thestoverice paid for the senior interest in our wengunteed loans with respect to the
2013 securitized transaction, adjusted for theregBd servicing and interest income to be retalnetthe trust over an estimated
repayment term of three years. This was furtheustd to reflect the estimated default rate orséreor notes based on the default rai
our loan portfolio, assuming a worst case scer@rim recoveries

The combined provision for loan loss and net chandair value decreased from $3,144,000 for thaerynded December 31, 2011 to
$1,656,000 for year ended December 31, 2012, daweease of $1,488,000 period over period. Thevaliee for loan loss together with the
cumulative adjustment related to SBA loans heldrigestment increased from $5,566,000 or 11.8%efgross portfolio balance of
$47,030,000 at December 31, 2011 to $6,092,000486 ®f the gross portfolio balance of $64,609,00December 31, 2012. This decrease in
reserve percentage is a result of the decreade ingfront discount from 11% to 7.5% as well aspgbsitive performance of the portfolio. Ta
impaired non-accrual loans decreased from $6,7660004.4% of the total portfolio at December 3012 to $6,757,000 or 10.5% at
December 31, 2012 with $2,417,000 or 35.7% and8820DO0 or 32.4% of the allowance for loan lossésdallocated against such impaired
non-accrual loans, respectively. The year over ygduction in non-performing loan percentage reduttm an improvement in the overall
economic climate, as well as a shift in the unditimg and origination of loans from staup type businesses to existing businesses anddss
acquisitions. The year over year reduction in fhectic reserve reflects both the relatively highdl of overall collateralization on the non-
performing portfolio as well as the increase in plogtion of that portfolio making periodic paymepending return to performing status,
reducing the need for a specific reserve at thigti
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Other general and administrative costs increaseilt®25,000 due primarily to the increase in loggioating, processing and servicing costs
in the amount of $397,000 as a result of the irs@éa loans originated and portfolios serviced amdnhcrease of $490,000 in loan recovery
costs, which includes expenses and losses assbuidtethe sale of foreclosed properties and cetldtpreservation costs, as compared with
the same period in 2011. Additionally, marketingtsancreased by $204,000 primarily in conjunctigth the launch of NEWTER The Sma
Business Authorit, a new marketing campaign initiated by the Comgariviay 2012.

The increase of loan originations and the sizdefgortfolio, combined with improvements in saleing as well as servicing and interest,
generated by the addition to and enhanced perfarenahthe portfolio, and an increase in third pasyvicing, were sufficient to offset
additional salaries, servicing and origination exg®s. The resulting pretax income of $8,094,00@heryear ended December 31, 2012 was a
96% improvement over pretax income of $4,135,00@He year ended December 31, 2011.

2011

Revenue is derived primarily from premium incomeeyated by the sale of the guaranteed and ungeadpbrtions of SBA loans.
Additionally, the Company derives revenue from liegt income on SBA loans held for investment arld for sale, servicing fee income on
the guaranteed portions of SBA loans previouslg,segrvicing income for loans originated by otlerders for which NSBF is the servicer,
financing and billing services, classified as otimeome above, provided by NBC. Most SBA loansiodted by NSBF charge an interest rate
equal to the Prime rate plus an additional percgnganount; the interest rate resets to the cuRemte rate on a monthly or quarterly basis,
which will result in changes to the amount of ietraccrued for that month and going forward aret@mortization of a loan’s payment
amount until maturity.

The implementation of ASC Topic 860 “Transfers &wdvicing,” which became effective January 1, 2@ayed the recognition of premium
income for sales of the guaranteed portions of &#s. In 2010 and prior, SBA Form 1086 requiredpart of the transferar'representatior
and warranties, that the transferor repay any premieceived from the transferee if either the SB&) Toan borrower prepays the loan within
90 days of the transfer settlement date or failméie one of its first three loan payments afterdbttiement date in a timely fashion and then
proceeds to default within 275 days of the settlendate. Under ASC Topic 860, such recourse preslsdle treatment of the transferred
guaranteed portions during this warranty periotheaNSBF was required to account for this as anfiing arrangement with the

transferee. Until the warranty period expired swiehsferred loans were classified as “SBA loanssfierred, subject to premium recourssth

a matching liability “Liability on SBA loans trarsfred, subject to premium recourse.” In Januaryi2€ie SBA issued a notice stating that
Form 1086 would be revised to remove all referancewarranty period for loans sold in the secopdaarket. This change became effective
February 7, 2011 and allowed the Company to rezegmiemium income concurrent with the date of fiemsis was done prior to January 1,
2010.

In 2010, the Company elected the fair value optisrvaluing “Liability on SBA loans transferred,lgect to premium recourse,” and also
elected to utilize the fair value option for SBAaY(oans funded on or after that date. As a rethdtCompany recorded changes in the fair
value for the guaranteed portions that were nosfeared at period end (“SBA loans held for sabaiyl for loans transferred in the secondary
market that did not achieve sale status under A§EcTB60 (“SBA loans transferred, subject to resellr. At the expiration of the warranty
period, the sale of the guaranteed portions ofth@asns as well as the corresponding gain was néoed into premium income, and the asset
and liability eliminated.

On October 1, 2010, the Company elected to utilieefair value option for SBA 7(a) loans fundedaorafter that date. For loans funded on or
after October 1, 2010, the income statement segmthé revenue and expense components mixed mrtaiyon on loan sales: premium on loan
sales equals the cash premium and servicing aagkbp purchaser in the secondary market, the digatreated on the unguaranteed portic
included in the fair value line item, and by nopitalizing various transaction expenses the salad/benefit and loan processing costs expen:
lines portray a value closer to the cash cost tvatp the lending business.

For the year ended December 31, 2011, the Compégipated 102 loans totaling $97,129,000 and rezsgh$9,272,000 of premium income
from 102 loans sold aggregating $73,871,000 whiehewnot subject to the premium warranty and $3#bin premium income associated
with 47 loans aggregating $30,783,000 which welgest to the premium warranty and previously trengfd, and achieved sale status during
2011. Because of the premium warranty in existence

44



Table of Contents

during 2010 that delayed sale recognition, the Camgpecorded premium income for the year ended idbee 31, 2010 for 54 of the 101, or
$25,965,000 of the $57,517,000 guaranteed loansfaaed, representing the $2,428,000 in premiwanre and a corresponding fair value
gain as discussed below. Premiums on guaranteadsédes for the twelve months averaged 111.35% I8iilservicing in 2011 compared with
110.33% with 1% servicing in 2010.

Servicing fee income increased by $534,000 dueariiyto revenue generated by the FDIC servicingtiaxt, which totaled $1,389,000 for
the year ended December 31, 2011 compared with,$084or the year ended December 31, 2010; the FBHracts, for both servicing and
consulting, run through December 2014. The revdouthe latter is included in other income. In audh, the average NSBF originated
serviced portfolio increased from $142,719,000ther year ended December 31, 2010 to $192,126,0G8dmsame period in 2011. This
improvement was the direct result of an increadean originations which began at the end of 2008s increase was partially offset by a
$174,000 reduction in servicing fee income reldteguaranteed loan repurchases by the SBA.

Interest income increased by $798,000 due prim#oilpterest on SBA loans, which increased by $892 as a result of the growth and
positive performance of the portfolio; the averagéstanding performing portfolio of SBA loans hédd investment increased from
$21,504,000 to $29,649,000 for the year ended Dbeefil, 2010 and 2011, respectively. In additinterest earned from SBA loans
transferred, subject to premium recourse, decrelag&96,000 for the year ended December 31, 20lLdf toe transferred loans which had
been subject to premium warranty achieved saléssstand interest earned from SBA loans transfereaded during the fourth quarter of 2(

Other income increased by $282,000 primarily duarténcrease in revenue earned by Newtek BusinestitCFees earned on receivables
purchased and billing services increased by $184@0the year ended December 31, 2011 as compétedhe year ended December 31,
2010, which was primarily attributable to an in@ean the number of clients serviced as well ameamrease in the amount of receivables
purchased from existing clients. Additionally, $1@80 of packaging fee income, which had previobglgn capitalized at NSBF, is now
recognized upfront as a result of the adoptioradfalue accounting for loans funded on or afteto®er 1, 2010. NSBF also realized an
increase of $58,000 in other loan related revench as late fees and recoveries year over yeas€eTihereases were partially offset by a
$132,000 reduction in income earned under the Fii@Sulting contract in the current year.

For the year ended December 31, 2010, the Companayded a net fair value gain of $3,366,000 rel&aelD1 guaranteed loans transferred
aggregating $56,735,000, of which 54 achieved saleis during the year. During the same period 284 & result of the elimination of the
premium warranty, all remaining loans transferradry 2010 achieved sale status in 2011, therebgrsing the corresponding fair value
adjustment by a net amount of $3,366,000. In aaldithe Company recorded a fair value gain of $#8%for “SBA loans held for sale.” For
the year ended December 31, 2011, loans origiratdceld for investment aggregated $22,308,000tiegun a corresponding fair value loss
of $2,392,000.

Salaries and benefits increased by $1,069,000 phintaue to the addition of staff in the originaginservicing and liquidation departments, as
well as an increase in staff to service outsiderecits. Combined headcount increased by 18.6% &overage of 43 for the year ended
December 31, 2010 to an average of 51 for the gieded December 31, 2011. Additionally, prior todbetrr 1, 2010, certain direct salary and
benefit costs to originate loans were deferredandrtized over the contractual life of the SBA laming a method that approximated the
effective interest method. For the year ended Déesr81, 2010, this equated to $201,000 of expeewsw lweferred. Subsequent to
September 30, 2010, the Company began recordingrigieation of loans based on the fair value mdtivich requires the upfront expensing
of such direct costs.

Interest expense increased by $114,000 for thegreded December 31, 2011 compared with the sanedpar2010, due primarily to an
increase of $318,000 of interest expense assoaidthdNSBF financing agreements with Capital OnelBand the securitization of
$27,779,000 comprising a $16,000,000 transactiddeicember 2010, and a second in December 201ingptil 1,779,000, which increased
the average debt outstanding from $12,156,000 109%65,000 for the years ended December 31, 201Q@ht, respectively. Interest expense
on NSBF debt increased from $748,000 to $1,065p@0dd over period, while the average interest datereased from 6.40% to 4.74%. The
average debt outstanding at NBC increased fronB$3000 to $4,560,000 for the years ended Decenthe2®.0 and 2011 resulting in an
increase to interest expense of $32,000, whilatleeage interest rate decreased from 7.33% to 6d26%g the same period. Additionally, the
amortization of deferred financing costs by NSBErdased by $167,000 for the year ended Decemb@031, when compared with the prior
year. The decrease in amortized of deferred fimancosts for 2011 was due to the acceleration afrmation in connection with tr
repayment of the term loan with Capital One inftheth quarter of 2010. The amortization of defdrfi@ancing costs associated with the line
of credit held by NBC increased by $33,000 forybar ended December 31, 2011 as compared withritveperiod. This increase was due to
the acceleration of amortization in connection wita refinancing of the term loan with Wells Fargog the securing of a new term loan with
Sterling National Bank in the first quarter 2011 alddition, interest expense on SBA loans transfeisubject to premium recourse, decreasec
by $96,000 for the year ended December 31, 2011.
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Consideration in arriving at the provision for ldass includes past and current loss experiencegrportfolio composition, future estimated
cash flows, and the evaluation of real estate aineraollateral as well as current economic coodgi For all loans originated on or prior to
September 30, 2010, management performed a lodoalyreview for the estimated uncollectible portadmon-performing loans. Subsequent
to September 30, 2010, management began recortlingraoriginations on a fair value basis whiclquées a valuation reduction of the
unguaranteed portion of loans held for investmera kevel that takes into consideration futuredgsd his valuation reduction is reflected in
line item above: Net Change in Fair Value of SBAahe Held for Investment.

The decrease in the loan loss provision of $1,@@Bftom $1,849,000 in 2010 to $751,000 in 2011 wféset by a $2,107,000 increase in the
net change in fair value of SBA loans held for istneent for loans originated subsequent to SepteBle2010. The combined provision for
loan loss and net change in fair value of SBA Idaeld for investment increased from $2,135,00GHeryear ended December 31, 2010 to
$3,144,000 for the corresponding period in 2011s Tilet increase of $1,009,000 period over periamissistent with the expansion of the
unguaranteed portfolio during 2011. The allowarmddan loss including the net change in fair vah@eased from $3,845,000 or 12.1% of
the gross portfolio balance of $31,759,000 at Ddmm31, 2010 to $5,567,000 or 11.8% of the grosgiim balance of $47,030,000 at
December 31, 2011. This decrease as a percentaige gfoss portfolio balance reflects the positieeformance of the portfolio, resulting in a
return to more historical levels of reserves. Tatglaired non-accrual loans decreased from $7,98000 26.3% of the total portfolio at
December 31, 2010 to $6,766,000 or 15% at DeceBhe2011 with $2,516,000 or 31.5% and $2,417,00860r% of the allowance for loan
losses being allocated against such impaired nontakloans, respectively. The year over year rédnén non-performing loans results from
an improvement in the overall economic climate sd delinquent loans in the portfolio. The yeagroxear reduction in the specific reserve
reflects both the overall collateralization on tln-performing portfolio as well as the increaséhim portion of that portfolio making periodic
payments pending return to performing status redutie need for a specific reserve at this time.

Other general and administrative costs increasetBB%,000 due primarily to the Company recordiranleelated expenses based on the fair
value method which requires the upfront expensirguoh direct costs as well as an increase in bahprocessing and servicing costs as a
result of the increase in loans originated durhlmgdurrent year. Additionally, marketing costs @ased by $194,000 primarily in conjunction
with the launch of NEWTER The Small Business Authorita new marketing campaign initiated by the Companjanuary 2011.

The increase in premium income combined with imprognts in servicing, interest, and other incomesgrd by the addition to and
enhanced performance of the portfolio, were sudfitito offset an increase in compensation and ekgenses, and resulted in an improver
to income before income taxes of $2,090,000 foy#er ended December 31, 2011, when compared &athe period of 2010.
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All Other
% Change
(In thousands): 2012 2011 2010 2012 2011
Revenue
Insurance commissiot $1,20¢ $1,071 $ 88¢ 12% 21%
Insurance commissiol- related party 15z 127 18C 20% (29%
Other income 41¢ 627 40C (33)% 57%
Other income- related party 82 — — 10C% 0%
Interest incomt 2 1C 61 (80)% (84)%
Total revenus 1,86( 1,83¢ 1,527 1% 20%
Expenses
Salaries and benefi 2,04( 1,881 1,56: 8% 20%
Other than temporary decline in value of Investra — — 51C 0%  (100%
Professional fee 25% 181 174 40% 1%
Depreciation and amortizatic 36 8C 13t (55)% (4D)%
Insurance expens related party 9 — — 10C% 0%
Other general and administrative cc 56( 427 567 31% (25)%
Total expense 2,89¢ 2,56¢ 2,94¢ 13% (13)%
Loss before income taxi $(1,039) $ (7349 $(1,429) (41)% 48%

The All other segment includes revenues and exgegmsmarily from Newtek Insurance Agency, LLC, NewtPayroll Services and qualified
businesses that received investments made thriegBdmpany’s Capcos which cannot be aggregatedottitdr operating segments.

2012

Total revenue increased by 1%, or $25,000 forwedvie months ended December 31, 2012 comparec tpetdr ago period. Total insurance
commissions increased by $159,000 during 2012 cozdpaith 2011, due primarily to an increase in éoptaced insurance commissions, as
well as an increase in related party commissioemae. The $126,000 decrease in combined other m@do@012 was due to a $337,000 gain
on an investment held by an equity method investaeh was sold in 2011. Partially offsetting thiscdease was a $225,000 improvement in
revenue by Newtek Payroll Services, which increaBechumber of clients from 93 in 2011 to 262 i1 20All related party revenue, which
represents insurance commissions earned on poticlddy NIA and fees charged by Newtek Payrolviges, LLC to Newtek and
subsidiaries, are eliminated upon consolidation.

Salaries and benefits increased by $159,000, dret general and administrative costs increasedlB8,800 during 2012 both of which were
due primarily to activities related to Newtek Pdly8ervices (“PAY”). Average headcount increased3b96 between years, and the increase i
other expense related to servicing the new cliadtied at PAY. The $72,000 increase in professiemal was attributable to broker
commissions for insurance policies sold by NIA dgrR012.

2011

Insurance commission revenue increased by $18500(1,%, for the year ended December 31, 2011 coedga the prior year primarily due
to an increase in agency bill policies and the agjman of the force placed insurance portfolio. Relgparty commission revenue decreased in
2011 as compared with 2010 due to a reductioninmnaissions earned on the company’s group healtleipsliThe increase in other income
was primarily due to a $337,000 gain on an investrheld by an equity method investee sold in 20dterest income decreased in 2011 as a
result of a reduction in invested cash.

Salaries and benefits increased by $318,000 ort2(B4,881,000 for 2011, as compared to $1,563,00Q010 primarily due to the addition of
five employees in our new payroll services enfitgwtek Payroll Services. The $510,000 decreaséhier dhan temporary decline was related
primarily to a cost investment which was writteri-ofthe prior year. Depreciation and amortizatitetreased $55,000, or 41%, as a result of
fixed assets that had become fully depreciatedeiQgbneral administrative costs decreased by $0a®025%, to $427,000 for 2011 as
compared to $567,000 for 2010 due to decreasesimance, travel and other general office expenses.
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Corporate activities

% Change
(In thousands): 2012 2011 2010 2012 2011
Revenue
Management fee- related party $ 77¢ $ 1,067 $2,21i 27% (52)%
Interest incom 4 21 24 BD)% (13)%
Other income 5 4 16 25% (75)%
Total revenue 78% 1,092 2,251 28% (52%
Expenses
Salaries and benefi 4,94: 5,69¢ 5,17¢ (13)% 10%
Professional fee 96¢ 1,19: 1,16 (19% 2%
Depreciation and amortizatic 11¢ 162 31z 28)% (48)%
Lease restructuring charges (amortizati — 99C — (100% 10(%
Insurance expens related party 57 72 11¢ 2D% (39%
Other general and administrative cc 2,20¢ 3,14¢ 2,41¢ (30)% 30%
Total expense 8,29¢ 11,26 9,197 (26)% 23%
Loss before income tax $(7,517) $(10,169) $(6,93%) 26%  (46)%

The Corporate activities segment implements busieategy, directs marketing, provides technolmggrsight and guidance, coordinates anc
integrates activities of the other segments, cotgraith alliance partners, acquires customer dppdies, and owns our proprietary
NewTracker™ referral system and all other inteliatproperty rights. This segment includes reveamgkexpenses not allocated to ol
segments, including interest income, Capco managefee income, and corporate operating expensesseTbperating expenses consist
primarily of internal and external public accougtiexpenses, internal and external corporate legmreses, corporate officer salaries, sales ar
marketing expense and rent for the principal exeeutffices.

2012

Revenue is derived primarily from management fegaed from the Capcos. Related party managemené¥eaue declined 27% or $291,000
to $776,000 for 2012 from $1,067,000 for 2011. Relgarty management fees, which are eliminated gpasolidation, will continue to
decline in the future as the Capcos mature andetieir cash. If a Capco does not have currept@ected cash sufficient to pay manager
fees, then such fees are not accrued.

Salaries and benefits decreased by 13% or $75200@0e year ended December 31, 2012 as compatbheé forior year due to staff reductions
in accounting, finance and executive personnel. $2#4,000 decline in professional fees during 26d@pared with 2011 was primarily
related to a onéime payment in the prior year for costs relateddouring a subtenant at the 1440 Broadway localtioaddition, legal fees ai
accounting and audit fees also decreased in thierdurear. Depreciation and amortization decrehgeb5,000 year over year due to fixed
assets becoming fully depreciated over the twelsatmperiod. The decrease in other general andrastmaitive costs of $648,000 is primarily
attributable to various one-time expenses incuime2D11 including a $236,000 bad debt charge retlttean uncollectible loan, a $250,000
accrual related to a contract dispute, and an attwucommercial rent taxes. In addition, the Camypcontinued to benefit through cost
savings in connection with the corporate office@cakion which occurred during the fourth quartee@11 including a credit to rent expense of
approximately $291,000 from the reduction in theraed lease loss for the year ended December 32, Zither decreases in IT costs, travel
and office expenses were offset by an increas@®f00 in advertising and marketing expense, réleterew national marketing campaigns
designed to increase awareness of the Company ASTHE © The Small Business Authorityn sum, total expenses decreased $2,965,000, ¢
26%, for the year ended December 31, 2012 as cauparhe prior year.

2011

Management fee revenue declined 52% or $1,15008@,067,000 for 2011, from $2,217,000 for 2010nkzement fees, which are
eliminated upon consolidation, will continue to Lilee in the future as the Capcos mature and utitieé cash. If a Capco does not have cui
or projected cash sufficient to pay management tees such fees are not accrued.
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Total expenses increased $2,069,000, or 23%, fbt 28 compared to 2010. Salaries and benefitsaseceby $517,000 or 10% to $5,695,000
for 2011 as compared to $5,178,000 for 2010 dulecteased salary costs primarily related to exgeuand employee stock compensation of
approximately $269,000 in 2011 versus $57,000 itD2@nd $276,000 of severance pay related to thartlee of an executive officer
recognized in 2011. As described in Note 20, thsdaestructuring charges of $990,000 in 2011 septs the accrued loss recognized on the
present value of the amount by which the rent ahdradirect costs paid by the Company to the laidéxceeds any rent paid to the Company
by its tenant under the new sublease over the refaabf the lease term, which expires in Octobdi52@s a result of the relocation and
sublease, the Company anticipates reduced renhsepe the future. Other general and administratosts increased $730,000 or 30% to
$3,148,000 for 2011 from 2010 due to several factbhe Company had an increase of $496,000 in riiagkeelating to the launch of
NEWTEK ® The Small Business Authorand the WABC radio advertising campaign, experidre&236,000 bad debt charge related to an
uncollectible loan, as well as a $250,000 accrelalted to a contract dispute and $86,000 in stoohpensation to the Board of Directors. Tt
increased in expenses were partially offset by ¥8BDof decreases in telephone, computer, trawkbérer expenses.
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Capco

As described in Note 3 to the consolidated findrst@tements, effective January 1, 2008, the Compdopted fair value accounting for its
financial assets and financial liabilities concuatreith its election of the fair value option farlsstantially all credits in lieu of cash, notes
payable in credits in lieu of cash and prepaidriasce. These are the financial assets and ligsiléssociated with the Company’s Capco note
that are reported within the Company’s Capco segniére tables below reflect the effects of the aidopof fair value measurement on the
income and expense items (income from tax creditstest expense and insurance expense) relathd tevalued financial assets and liability
for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 andl 20Aaddition, the net change to the revaluedniiig assets and liability for the years
ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 is reported ilingéNet change in fair market value of Creditdieu of cash and Notes payable in
credits in lieu of cash” on the consolidated staets of income.

The Company does not anticipate creating any nepe@in the foreseeable future and the Capco sedgsikkoontinue to incur losses going
forward. The Capcos will continue to earn cash stwent income on their cash balances and incurroastagement fees and operating
expenses. The amount of cash available for invadtared to pay management fees will be primarilyeshglent upon future returns generated
from investments in qualified businesses. Incoroeftax credits will consist solely of accretiontié discounted value of the declining dollar
amount of tax credits the Capcos will receive ia filture; the Capcos will continue to incur nonkcagerest expense.

% Change
(In thousands): 2012 2011 2010 2012 2011
Revenue
Income from tax credit $ 52z $1,39C $2,38C (62)% (42)%
Interest incom 40 42 51 (5)% (18)%
Other income 121 65 11 86% 491%
Total revenue 683 1,497 2,44 (54)% (39)%
Net change in fair value ¢
Credits in lieu of cash and Notes payable in csdditieu of cast 3 (137) 38 (102)% (445)%
Expenses
Interest expens 567 1,282 2,45 (56)% (48)%
Management fee- related part 1,06¢ 1,65: 2,342 (35)% (29)%
Professional fee 29: 43¢ 49¢ (33)% (12)%
Other general and administrative cc 15¢ 19C 38¢€ 17% (5%
Total expense 2,08 3,56: 5,67¢ (4% (31%
Loss before income tax $(1,400)  $(2,197)  $(3,199 (36)% (31)%
2012

Revenue is derived primarily from na@ash income from tax credits. The decrease in tetanue for the year ended December 31, 2012s
2011 reflects the effect of the declining dollaraamt of tax credits remaining in 2012 partiallysaft by a $100,000 gain on the sale of an
investment with a zero carrying basis recognize20ih2. The amount of future income from tax crediteenue will fluctuate with future
interest rates. However, over future periods thno2@16, the amount of tax credits and, thereftrejicome the Company will recognize, will
decrease to zero.

Expenses consist primarily of management fees anecash interest expense. Related party managdeentiecreased 35%, or $584,000, to
$1,069,000 for the twelve months ended Decembe2@12 from $1,653,000 for the same period ended 2Ri&lated party management fees,
which are eliminated upon consolidation, are exgettd continue to decline in the future as the @apuoature and utilize their cash. Interest
expense decreased 56%, or $715,000, from $1,28%0F®67,000 for the year ended December 31, 26 Frasult of the declining dollar
amount of tax credits payable in 2012.
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Professional fees decreased by $145,000 from $a88¢0$293,000, between periods primarily due tedaction in consulting fees related to
one of our Capcos which is now decertified, an@erelse in audit fees which were lowered as atrektlie reduced activity in this segment.
Other expense declined as a result of a reducfibark charges related to escrow accounts that teem@nated over the course of 2012, as
well as reductions in rent, filing fees and othaésaallaneous expenses occurring as a result ahttaration of a number of Capcos.

2011

Revenue is derived primarily from na@ash income from tax credits. The decrease in tetanue for 2011 versus 2010 reflects the effetita
declining dollar amount of tax credits remainin@2BiL1 slightly offset by the recovery of an investrhpreviously written off. The amount of
future income from tax credits revenue will fludiavith future interest rates. However, over futpegiods through 2016, the amount of tax
credits, and therefore the income the Companyredlbgnize, will decrease to zero.

Expenses consist primarily of management fees anecash interest expense. Management fees decr2a&gdr $689,000, to $1,653,000 for
2011 from $2,342,000 in 2010. Management fees, lwaie eliminated upon consolidation, are expeaetktline in the future as the Capcos
mature and utilize their cash. Interest expenseedsed 48%, or $1,170,000, to $1,282,000 for 26drh $2,452,000 in 2010 as a result of the
declining amount of tax credits payable in 2011susr2010. Professional fees decreased $60,008easltof a reduction in legal and
consulting fees. The $196,000 decrease in othesrgeand administrative costs was primarily dua tiecrease in rent expenses of $80,000
resulting from income received from a subleasendzmbas an offset to the account, to a one-timestient for a loan that was previously
written off and a receivable recorded for the gotead portion of $51,000 and also due to a reciognitf a loss in 2010 of approximately
$70,000 on the sublease of an existing leasehoidhwtid not recur in 2011, offset by a $5,000 ims®in Salaries and benefits expenses.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources
Overview

Cash requirements and liquidity needs over the twvgalive months are anticipated to be funded pritpdnrough operating results, available
cash and cash equivalents, existing credit linesgsed new credit lines, and additional secutiting of the Company’s SBA lender’s
unguaranteed loan portions. As more fully describeldw, the Company’s SBA lender will require aduital funding sources to maintain
current SBA loan originations in the latter par26fL3 under anticipated conditions; although tliler@to find these sources may require the
reduction in the Company’s SBA lending and relaipdrations, it will not impair the Company’s ovéiability to operate.

In order to operate, the Company’s SBA lender ddpem the continuation of the SBA 7(a) guarantead program of the United States
Government. The Company’s SBA lender depends oavh#ability of purchasers for SBA loans held $aile transferred to the secondary
markets and the premium earned therein to supisdending operations. At this time the secondaaykat for the SBA loans held for sale is
robust.

The Companys SBA lender has historically financed the operetiof its lending business through loans or creditities from various lende
and will need to continue to do so in the futunectSlenders invariably require a security inteneshe SBA loans as collateral which, under
applicable law, requires the prior approval of ®#A. If the Company should ever be unable to obttaénapproval for its financing
arrangements from the SBA, it would likely be uratal continue to make loans.

As an alternative to holding indefinitely the ports of SBA loans remaining after sale of the gutaethportions in the SBA supervised
secondary market, the Company has undertaken twisee these unguaranteed portions. In Decemb&0 2be first such securitization trust
established by the Company issued notes to onstmvia the amount of $16,000,000 which receive&&® rating of AA. A second
securitization, an amendment to the original tratisa, was completed in December 2011, and resuitad additional $14,900,000 of notes
issued to the same investor. The SBA lender usedakh generated from the first transaction toerés outstanding term loan from Capital
One, N.A. and to fund a $3,000,000 account whiatindithe first quarter of 2011 purchased unguartht®rtions originated subsequent to
securitization transaction. Similarly, the procefrdsn the second securitization in 2011 were usgubty down its outstanding term loan with
Capital One, N.A., and to fund a $5,000,000 accosed to purchase unguaranteed portions of loat ifirst quarter of 2012. While this
securitization process can provide a long-term ifugpdource for the SBA lender, there is no ceryaihat it can be conducted on an economic
basis. In addition, the securitization mechanisalitdoes not provide liquidity in the short teron funding SBA loans.

In December 2010, the SBA lender entered into ameaelving loan agreement with Capital One, N.A. dip to $12,000,000 to be used to fi
the guaranteed portions of SBA loans and to beidepith the proceeds of the sale in the secondasket of those portions. Also, in June
2011, the SBA lender entered into a new revolvoanlagreement with Capital One, N.A. for up to 808,000 to be used to fund the
unguaranteed portions of SBA loans and to be rep#idthe proceeds of loan repayments from thedwers as well as excess cash flow of
NSBF. As a result of these two facilities, the SBBAder was able to increase the amount of loacenifund at any one tim

In April 2010, the Company refinanced the existing of credit between Capital One and NTS intiva fear term loan for $2,083,000.

Through February 28, 2011, the receivables finapaimt, NBC, utilized a $10,000,000 line of creglibvided by Wells Fargo Bank to purch
and warehouse receivables. On February 28, 201C, &Bered into a three year line of credit of u$16,000,000 with Sterling National Ba
which replaced the Wells Fargo line. In DecemberZ2@n amendment was signed providing that upoat¢h@&vement of certain profitability
levels, the maximum amount of the line of credilenthe Agreement can be increased from $10,00Q00805,000,000 at a later date upon
NBC's request. The Amendment also extended the mataie from February 28, 2014 to February 28, 20bére is no cross
collateralization between the Sterling lending ligcand the Capital One term loan and credit facihowever, a default under the Capital One
term loan or line of credit will create a possilyilof default under the Sterling line of credit.eTavailability of the Sterling line of credit arttk
performance of the Capital One term loans are stbjecompliance with certain covenants and caigdteequirements as set forth in their
respective agreements, as well as limited regtriston distributions or loans to the Company byréspective debtor, none of which are
material to the liquidity of the Company. At Decemnl31, 2012, the Company and its subsidiaries weftdl compliance with applicable loan
covenants. The Company guarantees these loartsefgubsidiaries up to the amount borrowed; in addithe Company deposited $750,000
with Sterling to collateralize the guarantee. APetember 31, 2012, the Company’s unused sourdegafity consisted of $217,000
available through the Sterling National Bank lidecedit.
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In April 2012, the Company closed a $15,000,00@itrfacility with Summit comprised of a $10,000,0@0m loan, which was drawn at
closing, and a $5,000,000 delayed draw term lodretmade upon the satisfaction of certain conditidime $5,000,000 second tranche of this
loan will not be drawn by the Company. The fundsengsed primarily for general corporate purposehiding the origination of SBA 7(a)
loans.

Restricted cash of $8,456,000 as of December 32 BOprimarily held in NSBF and the Capcos. Theomiig, or $4,306,000 of restricted
cash, is related to NSBF, and $1,933,000 has leteasile as a reserve in the event payments arffidgient to cover interest and/or principal
with respect to the securitization, and $75,00Gs#te for servicer and prepaid interest fees.réhmining $2,298,000 represents payments
collected due to participants and amounts oweldd®BA. For the Capcos, restricted cash can beinsadnaging and operating the Capcos,
making qualified investments, to repay debt oblaat, and for the payment of taxes on Capco taxabtame. The Company also has
$2,710,000 in cash held by the Capcos restrictedde in managing and operating the Capco, makiagdjfeed investments and for the
payment of income taxes. The remaining balance gf4R,000 includes $750,000 in connection withSterling line of credit, and other
amounts provided by sponsoring banks in conneetitimcredit card processing and by customers fsaiiance premiums.

In summary, Newtek generated and used cash asviollo

For the Years Ended
December 31

2012 2011 2010
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activi $ (4,359 $ 11,40¢ $(2,20¢)
Net cash (used in) investing activiti (22,499 (17,810 (6,336
Net cash provided by financing activiti 29,88( 7,224 6,34¢
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis 3,02¢ 81¢ (2,199
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of 11,20! 10,38: 12,58:
Cash and cash equivalents, end of $ 14,22¢ $11,20: $10,38:

Net cash flows from operating activities decreabsl 759,000 to $(4,354,000) for the year ended Déee 31, 2012 compared to $11,405,
provided during the year ended December 31, 20kis. dhange primarily reflects the increase in brokeeivable and increases in prepaid
expenses, accrued interest receivable and othetsasgorded during 2012. Broker receivables drisa loans traded but not settled before
period end and represent the amount of cash doetfre purchasing broker; the amount varies depgnatinoan origination volume and
timing of sales at year end. For the year endecd®éer 31, 2012, the Company originated $83,349%90@BA loans held for sale and
received proceeds from the originations of SBA tohald for sale of $84,743,000 compared with $78L@20 in originations of SBA loans
held for sale and $274,000 of SBA loans transfestdgect to premium recourse, for a total use @#320,000) during 2011. For the same
year ago period, the Company returned $30,783 @00 fransfers of SBA loans held for sale accoufeds financings“Liability for SBA
loans transferred, subject to premium recourseiy, received proceeds of $73,871,000 from the d&BBd\ loans, $27,855,000 from the sale
of SBA loans achieving sale status. In additioSBA loan activities, the Company provided receiealfinancing which used $2,490,000 of
cash as compared to provided cash of $1,469,0201it.

Net cash (used in) investing activities primaritgludes the originations and repayments of the aragueed portions of SBA loans, purchas
fixed assets and customer accounts, changes iicredtcash and investments in qualified busineddescash (used in) investing activities
decreased by $4,688,000 to cash used of $(22,49800the year ended December 31, 2012 comparedsio use of $(17,810,000) for the
year ended December 31, 2011. The decrease wamicthaily to a greater amount of SBA loans origethfor investment for the year enc
$(24,190,000) in 2012, versus $(22,269,000) in 281d a $1,651,000 increase in investments in gedlfusinesses over the year ago period
In addition, purchases of fixed assets and custoneechant and insurance accounts increased by B0ER

Net cash flows provided by financing activitiege$ated to an increase in the net borrowings otk liaas of credit, which increased frc
$1,033,000 in 2011 to $18,387,000 in 2012, andGRIMO00 in proceeds from a term loan payable. Beh lows provided by financing
activities increased by $22,656,000 to cash pravafe$29,880,000 for the year ended December 312 2@m cash provided of $7,224,000
for the year ended December 31, 2011. The primeagan for the increase was restricted cash refatih@ securitization decreased by
$5,100,000, of which $5,000,000 had been desigrestedpre-funding account which was used to puechaguaranteed potions of SBA 7(a)
loans during 2012. The current year
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provision of $18,387,000 reflects $15,489,000 afgeeds from the Company’s line with Capital Onetffier origination of SBA loans, as well
as $2,898,000 of proceeds from the CDS creditdiitle Sterling used to purchase additional receigabin addition, the Company made
principal payments on the Capital One term noteaiad\NTS of $417,000 for the period.

The net $3,028,000 increase in cash and cash dguigan 2012 reflects the proceeds from borrowimg®ank lines of credit and a term note
payable, offset by an increase in broker receivébia the prior period, an increase in SBA loarigioated for investment and debt issued
under the securitization transaction issued inytre ago period.

Financing Activities

Newtek historically obtained lo-term financing to fund its investments and operaiprimarily through the issuance of notes torasce
companies through the Capco programs. Through Deee81, 2012, Newtek has received in aggregate,$28®00 in proceeds from the
issuance of long-term debt, Capco warrants, andtdleeommon shares through the Capco programs. Ksx@apcos last issued notes in
2005 and the Company does not anticipate partiogat future Capco programs. In 2004, Newtek @i$20,762,000 (net of related offering
costs) in a secondary public offering. Newtek'spipal funding requirements have been costs relatéiie Capco programs ($152,125,000),
the acquisitions of NTS and Vistar (the combinatiémvhich totaled $9,836,000), investments in Cagaalified businesses, SBA 7(a) loans,
receivable purchases, and working capital needstirsg from operating and business developmentiiets of its consolidated operating
entities. In 2010, NTS entered into a new term ih Capital One, N.A., the proceeds of which wased to refinance the pre-existing term
loan between NTS and Capital One, N.A. Also in 2048BF entered into a new revolving loan agreemséttit Capital One, N.A. for up to
$12,000,000 to be used to fund the guaranteedopsrtif SBA loans and to be repaid with the proceédlse sale in the secondary market of
those portions. In June 2011, the SBA lender edtete a new revolving loan agreement with Capgdak, N.A. for up to $15,000,000 to be
used to fund the unguaranteed portions of SBA leenasto be repaid with the proceeds of loan repaysnfieom the borrowers as well as exc
cash flow of NSBF. As a result of these two faight the SBA lender was able to increase the amafuoains it can fund at any one time. In
February 2011, NBC entered into a three year Ifrredit of up to $10,000,000 with Sterling NatibBank which replaced the Wells Fargo
line.

Credit Lines and Term Loans

In April 2010, the Company closed two five-yeamntdoans aggregating $14,583,000 with Capital Oné, Nf which $12,500,000 refinanced
NSBF's pre-existing facility with GE (the “NSBF Portitynand $2,083,000 refinanced the meisting term loan between Capital One and I
In December 2010, the outstanding balance of thBR\j®rtion and all accrued interest thereon waaicejm full from the proceeds of a
securitization transaction, discussed below. Ther@st rate on the NTS term loan and on the fold8BF term loan is variable based on the
monthly London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) egplus 4.25% or Prime plus 2.25%, but no lower th&%%, with interest paid in arrears
along with each monthly principal payment due. Ni& term loan is collateralized by all of NTS’s etssand Newtek guarantees the
repayment obligations. The NSBF term loan was teriidized by all of NSBF's assets and Newtek guaehthe repayment obligations. The
agreement includes such financial covenants gbdinrent company level with its consolidated subsiegaof a minimum fixed charge coverage
ratio, minimum EBITDA requirements and minimum castuirements held at Capital One. As of DecemhefB12, the Company was in
compliance with the financial covenants set in lims.

Also in December 2010, NSBF closed a credit facikiith Capital One for up to a maximum amount of08®,000 initially, expandable to
$12,000,000. The credit facility, often referreca®a “wet funding” credit line, is used to fundsk portions of SBA 7(a) loans made by NSBF
that are guaranteed by the SBA, with funds recearethe sale of those guaranteed portions of th&® BB) loans by NSBF reducing the
facility. The outstanding balance of the creditlfgcbears a variable per annum rate of intergstad to the rate of interest publicly announced
from time to time by Capital One as its prime naltes 1%. In June 2011, NSBF obtained from Capitad N.A. an increase in its total
revolving credit facility from $12,000,000 to $20M000. In October 2011, the term of the revolvaswxtended by nine months through
September 2013, at which time the outstanding loalarill be converted into a three year term lodnisTncrease in the line will enable the
Company to finance both the government-guarantaddchan-guaranteed portions of SBA 7(a) loans. ABafember 31, 2011, NSBF had
$8,364,000 outstanding under the lines of credie ihterest rate on the $12,000,000 portion ofakéity, collateralized by the government
guaranteed portion of SBA 7(a) loans, is set aherplus 1.00%, and there is a quarterly faciligy égual to 25 basis points on the unused
portion of the revolving credit calculated as af #nd of each calendar quarter. The interest ratkep$15,000,000 portion of the facility,
collateralized by the non-guaranteed portion of SB4) loans, is set at prime plus 1.875%, and tiseaequarterly facility fee equal to 25 basis
points on the unused portion of the revolving drediculated as of the end of each calendar qudrter agreement includes financial coven
at the parent company level with its consolidatgastdiaries including a minimum fixed charge cogeraatio, minimum EBITDA
requirements and minimum cash requirements helthpital One. As of December 31, 2012, the Compaag iw compliance with the financ
covenants set in this line.

54



Table of Contents

In February 2011, NBC entered into a three year dihcredit with Sterling National Bank (“Sterlingh an amount up to $10,000,000. In
December 2012, an amendment was signed providaigifon the occurrence of certain events, the maximmount of the line of credit
under the Agreement can be increased from $10,00@¢0$15,000,000 at a later date upon NBC'’s regiiée Amendment also extended the
maturity date from February 28, 2014 to February228.6. This facility is and will be used to purskaeceivables and for other working
capital purposes. The interest rate is set at 5.00Psime plus 2.00%, whichever is higher, witteneist on the line to be paid monthly in
arrears. The line is and will be collateralizedthy receivables purchased, as well as all othetsae$ NBC. The line is guaranteed by the
Company; in addition, the Company deposited $75Dwith Sterling to collateralize the guarantee. @geeement includes such financial
covenants as minimum tangible net worth and maxirewarage ratio. The Company is subject to meetingaximum leverage ratio test and &
future net loss test. As of December 31, 2012(benpany was in compliance with the financial coveaaet in this line.

Securitization Transactions

In December 2010, NSBF created a financing chaione¢he sale of the unguaranteed portions of SB#) Ifans held on its books and finan
by a term loan in the maximum amount of $12,500,0806 Capital One, N.A. NSBF transferred the unguésed portions of SBA loans of
$19,615,000, and an additional $3,000,000 in léssiged subsequent to the transaction, to a spmaipbse entity created for this purpose,
Newtek Small Business Loan Trust 2-1 (the “Trust”), which in turn issued notes (theeturitization notes”) for the par amount of
$16,000,000 against the assets in a private plateilee Trust is only permitted to purchase theuamgnteed portion of SBA 7(a) loans, issue
asset-backed securities, and make payments ordhéties. The Trust issued a single series ofré&ation notes to pay for the unguaranteed
portions it acquired from NSBF and will be dissalwehen those securities have been paid in full. gimaary source for repayment of the
securitization notes is the cash flows generatemh the unguaranteed portion of SBA 7(a) loans nawven by the Trust; principal on the
securitization notes will be paid by cash flow ktess of that needed to pay various fees relatdtetoperation of the Trust and interest on the
debt. The securitization notes have an expectedrityabf about five years based on the expectetbpmance of the underlying collateral and
structure of the debt and a legal maturity of 3@rgdrom the date of issuance. The assets of tig @re legally isolated and are not availab
pay NSBF's creditors. NSBF continues to retaintsgb cash reserves and all residual interestseiftust and will receive servicing income.
Proceeds from this transaction were used to repagapital One, N.A. loan and for general corpoaaid lending purposes. Because the
Company determined that as the primary benefiméihe Trust it needed to consolidate the Trugt itet financial statements, it continues to
recognize the securitization notes in Notes paydaliie investors and the Trust have no recourseytf@bNSBF’s other assets for failure of
debtors to pay when due; however, NSBF’s parenitble has provided a limited guaranty to the ingestn the Trust in an amount not to
exceed 10% of the original issuance amount (orGRLI®O), to be used after all of the assets offthist have been exhausted. The notes were
issued with an “AA” rating from S&P based on thalarlying collateral.

In December 2011, NSBF entered into a Supplemémdahture by which the original $16,000,000 of sémation notes were amended to
reflect a new initial principal amount of $12,88000as a result of principal payments made, andiaddi notes were issued in an initial
principal amount of $14,899,000, so that the ihdiggregate principal amount of all notes as ofddalger 31, 2011 totaled $27,779,000. The
notes are backed by approximately $40,500,000efittguaranteed portions of loans originated, aclddie an additional $5,000,000 to be
originated and issued to the Trust by NSBF undeiSBA loan program. The notes retained their A&gatinder S&P, and the final maturity
date of the amended notes is March 22, 2037. Téeepds of the transaction have been and will bé iseepay debt and originate new loans.

In March 2013, NSBF transferred the unguaranteetigns of SBA loans of $23,569,000, and an add&éi&5,900,000 in loans issued
subsequent to the transaction, to a special puguy Newtek Small Business Loan Trust 2013-& (ffirust”). The Trust in turn issued
securitization notes for the par amount of $20,000,against the assets in a private placementndtes received an “A” rating by S&P, and
the final maturity date of the amended notes i® 2B 2038. The proceeds of the transaction hase &ed will be used to repay debt and
originate new loans.
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Tabular Disclosure of Contractual Obligations

The following chart represents Newtek’s obligatiamsl commitments as of December 31, 2012, other@agco debt repayment discussed
above, for future cash payments under debt, leademployment agreements (in thousands):

Payments due by perioc

Less than : More than 5

Contractual Obligations Total year 1-3 years 3-5 years years
Bank Notes Payable (a) $39,82: $ 13,40%b)(c) $18,13((b)(c) $ $ 8,28¢d)
Securitization Notes Payable 22,03¢ — — — 22,03¢
Capital Lease 632 19¢ 432 — —
Operating Lease 8,852 3,392 3,961 1,10¢ 391
Employment Agreemen 31€ 31€ — — —

Totals $71,66: $ 17,31 $22,52¢ $1,10¢ $ 30,71¢

(8) Interest rates range from 4.25% to 5.7!

(b) Includes:
$2,100,000 Capital One note payable over a five geeod commencing 2010. As of December 31, 2@H2amount outstanding
was approximately $1,007,000.

(c) Includes:
$12,000,000 Capital One guaranteed line due Semieii 3, and $15,000,000 Capital One unguaranteedwhich in September
2013, converts to 3 year term. Also includes $10,000 Sterling line, which matures in February 204$ of December 31, 2012,
the combined amount outstanding on the Capital lDes was approximately $23,854,000, and the balautstanding on the
Sterling line was $6,674,000.

(d) Includes:
$10,000,000, or $8,288,000 net of discount, Setder Credit Facility issued by Summit Partners Grédivisors, L.P

(e) Includes:
$23,218,000, or $22,039,000 net of discount, ofigeézation notes with a legal maturity of 30 yeaesaring interest at the rate of
3.95%); actual principal payments will be paid bglcflow in excess of that needed to pay various fekated to the operation of 1
Trust and interest on the debt.

Financing Activities: Capcos

We have deemphasized our Capco business in fagyowefing our operating businesses and do not gatieicreating any new Capcos in the
foreseeable future.

Overview

A Capco is either a corporation or a limited lighicompany established in and chartered by orteefine jurisdictions that currently have
authorizing legislation: Alabama, District of Colbia, Florida, Louisiana, Colorado, New York, Texasl Wisconsin (Missouri has an older
program which pre-dates the start of our businadsmwhich we do not participate). Aside from seagital provided by an organizer such as
Newtek, a Capco will issue debt and equity instmimexclusively to insurance companies and the @apre then authorized under
respective state statutes to make targeted equitgla investments in companies. In some statedath permits Capco investments in
majority-owned or primarily controlled companies.dthers, such as Louisiana, Colorado, Texas anchtist recent programs in New York,
there are some limitations on the percentage ofoship a Capco may acquire in a qualified businessonjunction with the Capcos’
investment in these companies, the Capcos mayatside loans to the companies. In most casedatheredits provided by the states are
equal to the par amount of investment by the insgaompanies in the securities of the Capcos,wtan be utilized by them generally ove
period of four to ten years. These credits arefentdd by the returns or lack of returns on investta made by the Capcos.

Our Capcos had arranged for the repayment of &opasf the Capco notes by The National Union Fireurance Company of Pittsburgh and
The American International Specialty Lines Insue@ommpany, both affiliates of Chartis, Inc. As afd@mber 31, 2012, all of the required
cash payments have been made by these insuret ébthe Capcos. The balance of the repaymernigatibns for all of our Capcos will result
from the availability to the investors of the sttd® credits.

56



Table of Contents

Income from Capco Tax Cred

In general, the Capcos issue debt and equity im&nts to insurance company investors. For a desxeripf the debt and equity instruments
and warrants issued by Newtek's Capcos, see Nimt¢h2 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statesdihe Capcos then make targeted
investments, as defined under the respective gtaseliction statutes, with the funds raised. E&elpco has a contractual arrangement with th
particular state/jurisdiction that entitles the €ayo receive (earn) tax credits from the statesfliction upon satisfying quantified, defined
investment percentage thresholds and time requitesmim order for the Capcos to maintain theirestatjurisdiction-issued certifications, the
Capcos must make targeted investments in accordeitit¢hese requirements, which requirements ansistent with Newtek’s overall
business strategy. Each Capco statute provideffispetes and regulations under which the Capcostoperate. For example, the State of
Louisiana program precludes the Capco from makamgrolling and majority-owned investments. Accoglin investments made by the
Louisiana Capco are considered portfolio compaaiesare majority-owned operated and controllechiyr toards of directors and
management. These portfolio companies operate ammtly of Newtek although Newtek participategtmnboard of directors of these
companies (but in all cases we do not control aoritgjof the board of director positions unlessréhis a default under the terms of the
investment) and makes available to them technoleeggyices and products to sell.

Each Capco also has separate, contractual arrangewmith the insurance company investors obligatiregCapco to pay interest on the
aforementioned debt instruments. The Capco magfgdliis interest obligation by delivering the redits or paying cash. The insurance
company investors have the legal right to receie @se the tax credits and would, in turn, useethas credits to reduce their respective state
tax liabilities in an amount usually equal to 100240% in some cases in Louisiana) of their investsign the Capcos. The tax credits
generally can be utilized over a four to ten-yesniqal and in some instances are transferable anbeaarried forward. Newtekrevenue frot
tax credits may be used solely for the purposeati$fying the Capcos’ obligations to the insuranompany investors.

A description is set forth above of the manner richr Newtek and its Capcos account for the taxitiedome. See “Critical Accounting
Policies—Revenue Recognition.”

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith accounting principles generally acceptethia United States of America requires
management to make estimates and assumptiondfenztttae reported amounts of assets, liabilitied disclosures of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statememtsl reported amounts of revenues and expensegdha reporting period. The most signific
estimates include:

. allowance for loan losse

. sales and servicing of SBA loar

. chargeback reserve

. fair value measurement used to value certain fiahassets and financial liabilitie

. valuation of intangible assets and goodwill inchglthe values assigned to acquired intangible s

. stoclk-based compensation; a

. income tax valuation allowanc

Management continually evaluates its accountingcjgsl and the estimates it uses to prepare theoidated financial statements. In general,
the estimates are based on historical experiemciformation from thirdparty professionals and on various other sourcésaasumptions th

are believed to be reasonable under the factsianudristances at the time such estimates are mégeCdmpany’s critical accounting policies
are reviewed periodically with the audit commitedehe board of directors. Management considergcaounting estimate to be critical if:

. it requires assumptions to be made that were wuaineat the time the estimate was made;

. changes in the estimate, or the use of differeithaing methods, could have a material impact@en@ompany’s consolidated results of
operations or financial conditio

Actual results could differ from those estimateign8icant accounting policies are described in é&btto the consolidated financial statements
which are included in Item 15 in this Form 10-Krfd. In many cases, the accounting treatment @fraiqular transaction is specifically
indicated by Accounting Principles Generally Acezpin the United States of America.
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Certain of our accounting policies are deemeditaif’ as they require management’s highest degf@@dgment, estimates and assumptions.
The following critical accounting policies are niotended to be a comprehensive list of all of aaoainting policies or estimates.

Fair Value Measurements

As discussed in Item 8. “Financial Statements amgpfmentary Data, Note 3, Fair Value Measurememtsadopted fair value accounting
effective January 1, 2008. Fair value is definethagrice that would be received to sell an agsphid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the umeasent date (an exit price) and establishes addire hierarchy that prioritizes the input:
valuation techniques used to measure fair valuethree levels for disclosure purposes. The Companyes its credits in lieu of cash, prepaid
insurance and notes payable in credits in lieuaghat fair value. The Company also carries imgdoans, servicing asset and other real esta
owned at fair value. The fair value hierarchy gitles highest priority (Level 1) to quoted pricesative markets for identical assets or
liabilities and gives the lowest priority to unobsgble inputs (Level 3). An asset or liability’saskification within the fair value hierarchy is
based on the lowest level of significant inputtéovaluation. The levels of the fair value hiergrene as follows:

Level 1 Quoted prices in active markets for identical assetiabilities. Level 1 assets and liabilitieslide debt and equity securities anc
derivative contracts that are traded in an actkahange market, as well as certain U.S. TreastingradJ).S. Government and
agency mortgac-backed debt securities that are highly liquid aredeactively traded in ov-the-counter markets

Level 2 Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, ssauated prices for similar assets or liabilitiggoted prices in markets that are
not active; or other inputs that are observableaorbe corroborated by observable market dataufistantially the full term of the
assets or liabilities. Level 2 assets and liab#itinclude debt securities with quoted prices dinatraded less frequently than
exchange-traded instruments and derivative comstrabse value is determined using a pricing modi#l iwputs that are
observable in the market or can be derived pritlgifieom or corroborated by observable market datds category generally
includes certain U.S. Government and agency moetdpagked debt securities, corporate debt secyritezssative contracts and
residential mortgage loans h-for-sale.

Level 3 Unobservable inputs that are supported by littla@market activity and that are significant to thie value of the assets or
liabilities. Level 3 assets and liabilities inclufileancial instruments whose value is determinadgupricing models, discounted
cash flow methodologies, or similar techniquesyal as instruments for which the determinatiorfadf value requires significal
management judgment or estimation. This categomgigdly includes certain private equity investmerg$ained residual interes
in securitizations, residential mortgage serviaigts, and highly structured or lc-term derivative contract

Revenue Recognition

Electronic payment processing reventElectronic payment processing and fee income iwel@from the electronic processing of credit and
debit card transactions that are authorized antloaghthrough third-party networks. Typically, meaats are charged for these processing
services on a percentage of the dollar amountalf #ansaction plus a flat fee per transactionta®@merchant customers are charged
miscellaneous fees, including fees for handlinggidacks or returns, monthly minimum fees, statdrfees and fees for other miscellaneous
services. Revenues derived from the electronicgasiog of MasterCar®l and Vi8a sourced credit abd dard transactions are reported
gross of amounts paid to sponsor banks.

Web hosting revenue Managed technology solutions revenue is primamdsivébd from monthly recurring service fees for thse of its web
hosting, web design and software support servicestomer setp fees are billed upon service initiation andremgnized as revenue over
estimated customer relationship period of 2.5 yeRagment for web hosting and related serviceduditg cloud plans, is generally received
one month to one year in advance. Deferred revempessent customer payments for web hosting dateteservices in advance of the
reporting period date. Revenue for cloud relatedises is based on actual consumption used byurlaastomer.

Income from tax creditsFollowing an application process, a state will fyodi company that it has been certified as a Caple.state or
jurisdiction then allocates an aggregate dollar amof tax credits to the Capco. However, such arh@uneither recognized as income
otherwise recorded in the financial statementsesihbas yet to be earned by the Capco. The Capentitled to earn tax credits upon satisfy
defined investment percentage thresholds withiifipd time requirements. Newtek has Capcos insevates and the District of Columbia.
Each statute requires that the Capco invest altblépercentage of “certified capital” (the fundeyided by the insurance company investors;
in businesses defined as
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qualified within the time frames specified. As thapco meets these requirements, it avoids groumdisrihe statute for its disqualification for
continued participation in the Capco program. Saiclsqualification, or “decertification” as a Cap@sults in a permanent recapture of all or
portion of the allocated tax credits. The proportaf the possible recapture is reduced over tinth@€apco remains in general compliance
with the program rules and meets the progressimehlgasing investment benchmarks. As the Capcorgssgs in its investments in Qualified
Businesses and, accordingly, places an increasomppion of the tax credits beyond recaptureaine an amount equal to the non-
recapturable tax credits and records such amountame, with a corresponding asset called “craditeeu of cash” in the balance sheet.

The amount earned and recorded as income is degdrbly multiplying the total amount of tax creditlcated to the Capco by the percent

of tax credits immune from recapture (the earnednme percentage) at that point. To the extenttiginvestment requirements are met ahea
of schedule, and the percentage of non-recaptutableredits is accelerated, the present valubeofax credit earned is recognized currently
and the asset, credits in lieu of cash, is accnepeitd the amount of tax credits deliverable todesified investors. The obligation to deliver tax
credits to the certified investors is recorded @®s payable in credits in lieu of cash. On the da¢ tax credits are utilizable by the certified
investors, the Capco decreases credits in lieas avith a corresponding decrease to notes payabtedits in lieu of cash.

Interest and SBA Loan Fee: Interest income on loans is recognized as earngghd.are placed on non-accrual status if they eie@alays
past due with respect to principal or interest amdhe opinion of management, interest or principaindividual loans is not collectible, or at
such earlier time as management determines thabthextability of such principal or interest islikely. Such loans are designated as impaire
non-accrual loans. All other loans are definedexfogpming loans. When a loan is designated as onisal, the accrual of interest is
discontinued, and any accrued but uncollectedasténcome is reversed and charged against cupenations. While a loan is classified as
non-accrual and the future collectability of thearled loan balance is doubtful, collections oéiiast and principal are generally applied as a
reduction to principal outstanding.

The Company passes certain expenditures it inoutgetborrower, such as forced placed insuranseffinient funds fees, or fees it assesses,
such as late fees, with respect to managing the taese expenditures are recorded when incurred t®the uncertainty with respect to
collection of these passed through expendituressessed fees, any funds received to reimburgeotimpany are recorded on a cash basis as
other income.

Insurance commissionsRevenues are comprised of commissions earned amyres paid for insurance policies and are recoghi&ehe tim
the commission is earned. At that date, the easnimgcess has been completed and the Companytaaateshe impact of policy
cancellations for refunds and establish reservies.réserve for policy cancellations is based otohical cancellation experience adjusted by
known circumstances.

Other income:Other income represents revenues derived from tpgranits that cannot be aggregated with otheinass segments. In
addition, other income represents one time recegan gains on investments. Revenue is recorded thleee is strong evidence of an
agreement, the related fees are fixed, the seavideor product has been delivered, and the caleof the related receivable is assured.

Capco Debt IssuanceThe Capco notes require, as a condition precedehetfunding of the notes, that insurance be @set to cover the
risks associated with the operation of its Captbss insurance has been purchased from Chartis@pelmsurance Company and National
Union Fire Insurance Company of Pittsburgh, bothsgtiaries of Chartis, Inc. (“Chartis”), an intetioaal insurer. In order to comply with this
condition precedent to the funding, the notes olp$s structured as follows: (1) the certified istars wire their funds directly into an escrow
account; (2) the escrow agent, pursuant to theirements under the note and escrow agreement, atitaity and simultaneously funds the
purchase of the insurance contract from the pracestkived. Newtek’s Capco is not entitled to the and benefit of the net proceeds receive
until the escrow agent has completed the purchiage dnsurance. The Chartis insurance subsidiadésd above are “A+” credit rated by
S&P.

Under the terms of this insurance, which is forltkaefit of the certified investors, the Capco mesuncurs the primary obligation to repay the
certified investors a substantial portion of thetd@ncluding all cash payments) as well as to mak®pensatory payments in the event of a
of the availability of the related tax credits. TBapco remains secondarily liable for such paymantsmust periodically assess the likelihood
that it will become primarily liable and, if necasg, record a liability at that time. The parentmgany, Chartis, has not guaranteed the
obligations of its subsidiary insurers, althoughas committed to move the payment obligationsitaféiliated company in the event the Ca|
insurer is materially downgraded in its creditmgti

59



Table of Contents

Investment Accounting and Valuation: The various interests that the Capcos and Newtgligcas a result of their investments are accal
for under three methods: consolidation, equity méthnd cost method. The applicable accounting ndeithgenerally determined based on ou
voting interest in a company and whether the comjma variable interest entity where we are thmary beneficiary, and quarterly valuatic
are performed so as to keep our records currenefliecting the operations of all of its investments

Companies in which we directly or indirectly ownsma than 50% of the outstanding voting securitiesse Newtek has effective control over,
or are deemed as a variable interest entity theds& be consolidated , are generally accountedider the consolidation method of
accounting. Under this method, an investnen'sults of operations are reflected within thesotidated statement of operations. All signific
inter-company accounts and transactions are elteihdhe results of operations and cash flowsairesolidated entity are included through
the latest interim period in which Newtek ownedreager than 50% direct or indirect voting interesgrcised control over the entity for the
entire interim period or was otherwise designatetha primary beneficiary. Upon dilution of votingerest at or below 50%, or upon
occurrence of a triggering event requiring recoaisition as to the primary beneficiary of a variahterest entity, the accounting method is
adjusted to the equity or cost method of accountisgappropriate, for subsequent periods.

Companies that are not consolidated, but over wivielexercise significant influence, are accountedihder the equity method of accounting.
Whether or not Newtek exercises significant inflcemith respect to a company depends on an evafuatiseveral factors including, among
others, representation on the board of directodscmmership level, which is generally a 20% to S@%rest in the voting securities, including
voting rights associated with Newtek’s holdinggammon, preferred and other convertible instrumeaditsler the equity method of
accounting, a company’s accounts are not reflagtédn our consolidated statements of income; haveMewtek’s share of the investee’s
earnings or losses are reflected in other incontbdrCompany’s consolidated statements of income.

Companies not accounted for under the consolidatidghe equity method of accounting are accountedifider the cost method of accounting
for which quarterly valuations are performed. Unités method, our share of the earnings or loséeaah companies is not included in the
consolidated statements of income, but the investisecarried at historical cost. In addition, costthod impairment charges are recognize
necessary, in the consolidated statements of inébareumstances suggest that this is an “othanttemporary decline” in the value of the
investment, particularly due to losses. Subseqgunentases in value, if any, of the underlying conies are not reflected in our financial
statements until realized in cash. We record asnmecamounts previously written off only when and/é receive cash in excess of its
remaining investment balance.

On a quarterly basis, the investment committeeaoheCapco meets to evaluate each of our investmidatstek considers several factors in
determining whether an impairment exists on thegtwent, such as the companies’ net book valub,fag, revenue growth and net income.
In addition, the investment committee looks at dairgariables, such as the economy and the panticalapany’s industry, to determine if an
other than temporary decline in value exists irhdaapco’s and Newtek'’s investment.

Impairment of Goodwill: Management of the Company considers the followinget some examples of important indicators that trigger
an impairment review outside its annual goodwilpairment review: (i) significant under-performarmrdoss of key contracts acquired in an
acquisition relative to expected historical or prtgd future operating results; (ii) significanaojes in the manner or use of the acquired a
or in the Company’s overall strategy with respedhie manner or use of the acquired assets or esanghe Company’s overall business
strategy; (iii) significant negative industry oroemmic trends; (iv) increased competitive pressurgsa significant decline in our stock price
for a sustained period of time; and (vi) regulatomanges. In assessing the recoverability of oodgill and intangibles, we must make
assumptions regarding estimated future cash flowdsogher factors to determine the fair value ofrésgpective assets. The fair value of an ¢
could vary, depending upon the estimating methopleyed, as well as assumptions made. This maytriesalpossible impairment of the
intangible assets and/or goodwill, or alternativetyacceleration in amortization expense. For #asg/ended December 31, 2012 and 201!
goodwill was determined to not be impaired.

SBA Loan Held for Investment: For loans that completed funding before Octob&010, SBA loans held for investment are reportettieit
outstanding unpaid principal balances adjustediarge-offs, net deferred loan origination costs thie allowance for loan losses. For loans
that completed funding on or after October 1, 20i8@nagement elected to fair value SBA loans helihfeestment within the fair value
hierarchy that prioritizes observable and unobd#evmputs utilizing Level 3 unobservable inputsiethreflect the Company’s own
expectations about the assumptions that marketipants would use in pricing the asset (includisgumptions about risk). The Company
considers the pricing reflected in its securitiaatactivities to be the best indicator of the failue discount used to measure loans held for
investment. If a loan measured at fair value isseghiently impaired, then the fair value of the lsameasured based on the present value of
expected future cash flows discounted at the loeffétive interest rate, or the fair value of tdudlateral if the loan is collateral dependent.
Because the loans bear interest at a variableN&BF does not have to factor in interest rate risk
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Allowance for SBA Loan LossesFor loans funded before October 1, 2010, the altm@dor loan losses for performing loans is esshieldl by
management through provisions for loan losses eubagainst income. The amount of the allowancéfor losses is inherently subjective, as
it requires making material estimates which mayesm actual results. Management’s ongoing estisaf the allowance for loan losses are
particularly affected by the changing compositiéthe loan portfolio over the last few years ashaslother portfolio characteristics, such as
industry concentrations and loan collateral. Thegagcy of the allowance for loan losses is revielethanagement on a monthly basis at a
minimum, and as adjustments become necessarefteeted in operations during the periods in whiady become known. Considerations in
this evaluation include past and anticipated log®gence, risks inherent in the current portfaia evaluation of real estate collateral as well
as current economic conditions. In the opinion ahiagement, the allowance, when taken as a whaldgeiguate to absorb estimated loan
losses inherent in the Company’s entire loan plotfdhe allowance consists of specific and genesahponents. The specific component
relates to loans that are classified as either imsbtful, substandard or special mention. Fohdoans that are also classified as impaired, an
allowance is established when the discounted deaels for collateral value or observable marketgyiof the impaired loan is lower than the
carrying value of that loan. The general comporertrs non-classified loans and is based on hisididss experience adjusted for qualitative
factors.

For loans funded on or after October 1, 2010, dh@ lis reported at its fair value. Changes in #iaevof the loan, whether performing or
impaired, are reported as a net change in thedéie of SBA loans held for investment.

A loan is considered impaired when, based on cuinéormation and events, it is probable that tleen@any will be unable to collect the
scheduled payments of principal or interest whematicording to the contractual terms of the loaeement. Other factors considered by
management in determining impairment include payratius and collateral value. Loans that expeeénsignificant payment delays and
payment shortfalls generally are not classifiedgsaired. Management determines the significangegfment delays and payment shortfalls
on a case-by-case basis, taking into consideratlaf the circumstances surrounding the loan &edoorrower, including the length of the
delay, the reasons for the delay, the borroweits prayment record, and the amount of the shoritfiaiélation to the principal and interest
owed.

Impairment of a loan is measured based on the preatie of expected future cash flows discountdti@loan’s effective interest rate, or the
fair value of the collateral if the loan is colletbdependent. Impaired loans for which the cagyamount is based on fair value of the
underlying collateral are included in assets apadred at estimated fair value on a rresurring basis, both at initial recognition of iaignent
and on an on-going basis until recovery or chafjefdhe loan amount. The determination of impamhinvolves management’s judgment in
the use of market data and third party estimatgarding collateral values. For loans funded bef@ctober 1, 2010, the impairment of a loan
resulted in management establishing an allowancle#m losses through provisions for loan lossesgdd against income; for subsequent
loans at fair value, impairment results in a netnge in the fair value of SBA loans held for invesht. Amounts deemed to be uncollectible
are charged against the allowance for loan losse=sdoces the fair value and subsequent recovériasy, are credited to the allowance or
increases the fair value.

The Company’s charge-off policy is based on a logitean review for which the estimated uncolleaipbrtion of nonperforming loans is
charged off against the corresponding loan recévahd the allowance for possible loan losses aimagthe reduction in fair value.

SBA Loans Held for Sale:For guaranteed portions funded, but not yet tradethch measurement date, management elected valiaé SBA
loans held for sale within the fair value hierarthgt prioritizes observable and unobservable mpsed to measure fair value utilizing Level 2
assets. These inputs include debt securities withegl prices that are traded less frequently tkahamge-traded instruments or have values
determined using a pricing model with inputs that @bservable in the market. The secondary madkeéh& guaranteed portions is extremely
robust with broker dealers acting as primary dealdSBF sells regularly into the market and carmkjyiprice its loans for sale. The Company
values the guaranteed portion based on marketspeigeal to the guaranteed loan amount plus a prerfiat includes both an upfront cash
payment (utilizing quoted prices) and the valua stream of payments representing servicing incaoeived in excess of NSBF's servicing
cost (valued using a pricing model with inputs thit observable in the market).
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Securitization Activities: NSBF engaged in securitizations of the unguaranpeetibns of its SBA 7(a) loans. Because the transf these
assets did not meet the criteria of a sale, thassactions were treated as a secured borrowinBFNSntinues to recognize the assets of the
secured borrowing in loans held for investment @mbgnize the associated financing in Bank notgalge.

Sales and Servicing of SBA LoandNSBF originates loans to customers under the SBfynam that generally provides for SBA guarantees ¢
50% to 90% of each loan, subject to a maximum guaesamount. This guaranteed portion is generallyt® a third party via an SBA
regulated secondary market transaction utilizind\$®rm 1086 for a price equal to the guaranteed Iaount plus a premium that includes
both an upfront cash payment and the fair valueitoire net servicing income. Prior to October 11@0NSBF recognized the revenue item
“Premium on loan sales” net of capitalized loanenges and the discount on the retained unguaraptetdn; subsequent to the adoption of
fair value of SBA 7(a) loans on October 1, 2010BNRSecognizes premium on loan sales as equal toasie premium plus the fair value of
servicing income. Revenue is recognized on theetdade of the guaranteed portion, except as deschblow.

Upon recognition of each loan sale, the Comparainstservicing responsibilities and receives sargifees of a minimum of 1% of the
guaranteed loan portion sold. The Company is requiv estimate its adequate servicing compensatithe calculation of its servicing asset.
The purchasers of the loans sold have no recoartse tCompany for failure of customers to pay ant®gontractually due.

Subsequent measurements of each class of sergisgggs and liabilities may use either the amoitizahethod or the fair value measurement
method. NSBF has chosen to apply the amortizatiethad to its servicing asset, amortizing the assptoportion to, and over the period of,
the estimated future net servicing income on thaetging sold guaranteed portion of the loans askssing the servicing asset for impairn
based on fair value at each reporting date. Iretlemt future prepayments are significant or impairta are incurred and future expected cash
flows are inadequate to cover the unamortized sienyiassets, additional amortization or impairnah@rges would be recognized. In
evaluating and measuring impairment of servicirepts NSBF stratifies its servicing assets basgganof loan and loan term which are the
key risk characteristics of the underlying loan lso@he Company uses an independent valuationajstdd estimate the fair value of the
servicing asset by calculating the present valuestimated future net servicing cash flows, ussguanptions of prepayments, defaults,
servicing costs and discount rates that NSBF bediewarket participants would use for similar as$EtdSBF determines that the impairment
for a stratum is temporary, a valuation allowarsceecognized through a charge to current earnimg$hé amount the amortized balance
exceeds the current fair value. If the fair valfighe stratum were to later increase, the valuaitowance may be reduced as a recovery.
However, if NSBF determines that impairment fotratsim is other than temporary, the value of theisig asset and any related valuation
allowance is written-down.

Management’s impairment analysis indicated no waoaadjustment for 2012 and 2011.

Share-Based CompensationThe Company records all share-based payments ttogess based on their fair values using an optiiciny
model at the date of grant.

Income Taxes.Deferred tax assets and liabilities are computegdapon the differences between the financiadistant and income tax basis
of assets and liabilities using the enacted teesrat effect for the year in which those tempouifierences are expected to be realized or
settled. If available evidence suggests thatntase likely than not that some portion or all of theferred tax assets will not be realized, a
valuation allowance is required to reduce the detktax assets to the amount that is more likedy thot to be realized.

New Accounting Standards

In July 2012, the Financial Accounting Standardaifiq“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards UpdateStWX) No. 2012-02, “Intangibles—
Goodwill and Other (ASC Topic 350): Testing Indé@fALived Intangible Assets for Impairment,” whiplermits an entity to first assess
qualitative factors to determine whether it is midkely than not that an indefinite-lived intanggbdisset is impaired as a basis for determining
whether it is necessary to perform the quantitatiyeairment test in accordance with Subtopic 35F/A88U 2011-08). This new standard is
effective for fiscal years that begin after Septemtb, 2012; the Company is still evaluating thpaet of adopting of this standard, but it is
anticipated to have a material impact on the Comgazonsolidated financial condition or resultsoperations.

Subsequent Events
The Company has evaluated subsequent events thiieaigime of filing these consolidated financiatsments with the SEC.
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Off Balance Sheet Arrangements
None.

Impact of Inflation
The impact of inflation and changing prices on m@sults of operations is not material.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARK  ET RISK.

We consider the principal types of risk in our Imesis activities to be fluctuations in interestsated loan portfolio valuations and the
availability of the secondary market for our SBAms held for sale. Risk management systems anéguoes are designed to identify and
analyze our risks, to set appropriate policieslanis and to continually monitor these risks amdils by means of reliable administrative and
information systems and other policies and programs

Our SBA lender primarily lends at an interest @t@erime, which resets on a quarterly basis, plfisead margin. Our receivable financing
business purchases receivables priced to equatsitoilar prime plus a fixed margin structure. Tepital One term loan and revolver loan,
securitization notes and the Sterling line of dradé on a prime plus a fixed factor basis. Assaltehe Company believes it has matched its
cost of funds to its interest income in its finarcactivities. However, because of the differertiistiveen the amount lent and the smaller
amount financed a significant change in marketr@gerates will have a material effect on our ofilegancome. In periods of sharply rising
interest rates, our cost of funds will increasa alower rate than the interest income earned®fotins we have made; this should improve oL
net operating income, holding all other factorsstant. However, a reduction in interest rates,a@sdtcurred since 2008, has and will result ir
the Company experiencing a reduction in operatiecgine; that is interest income will decline morékly than interest expense resulting in a
net reduction of benefit to operating income.

Our lender depends on the availability of secondaayket purchasers for the guaranteed portion®8éf IBans and the premium received on

such sales to support its lending operations. itttme the secondary market for the guaranteetignarof SBA loans is robust but during the
2008 and 2009 financial crisis the Company hadatiffy selling it loans for a premium; although mopected at this time, if such conditions
did recur our SBA lender would most likely cease&kimg new loans and could experience a substamihlation in profitability.

We do not have significant exposure to changingrest rates on invested cash which was approxiyn$ga,685,000 at December 31,
2012. We do not purchase or hold derivative finahicistruments for trading purposes. All of oumsactions are conducted in U.S. dollars an
we do not have any foreign currency or foreign exae risk. We do not trade commodities or havecamymodity price risk.

We believe that we have placed our demand depaesis, investments and their equivalents with highlic-quality financial

institutions. Invested cash is held almost excleigiwat financial institutions with ratings from S&® A- or better. The Company invests cash
not held in interest free checking accounts or bmokey market accounts mainly in U.S. Treasury ombney market instruments or funds i
other investment-grade securities. As of DecemitePB12, cash deposits in excess of FDIC and StB@ance totaled approximately
$3,781,000 and funds held in U.S. Treasury only egyanarket funds or equivalents in excess of SIRQrance totaled approximately
$1,849,000.

ITEM 8.  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA.
Our consolidated financial statements and relatteanbegin on Page F-1, which are included inAhisual Report on Form 10-K.

ITEM9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTAN TS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE.

None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES.
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedure

Our management, with the participation of our Clgécutive Officer (Principal Executive Officer)@hief Accounting Officer (Principal
Financial Officer), evaluated the effectivenesswf disclosure controls and procedures as of tdeoéthe period covered by this report. Base
on that evaluation, the Chief Executive Officeriiipal Executive Officer) and Chief Accounting @#r (Principal Financial Officer)
concluded that our disclosure controls and proeiuere not effective as of the end of the permared by this report and did not provide
reasonable assurance that the information reqtoree disclosed by us in reports filed under thelBxge Act is recorded, processed,
summarized and reported within the time periodsi§ipe in the SEC’s rules and forms. Disclosuretoois and procedures include, without
limitation, controls and procedures designed tasnthat information required to be disclosed bysaner in the reports that it files or submits
under the Exchange Act is accumulated and commigida the issuer’'s management including its ppialcexecutive and principal financial
officers, or persons performing similar functioas,appropriate to allow timely decisions regardemuired disclosure.
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As of December 31, 2012, under the direction of@héef Executive Officer (Principal Executive O#ig and Chief Accounting Officer
(Principal Financial Officer), the Company evaluhtke effectiveness of the design and operatidts afisclosure controls and procedures, as
defined in Rule 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under #rufities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Baseldeoevaluation and the material
weaknesses in internal control identified belove, @Gompany’s Chief Executive Officer (Principal Extiee Officer) and Chief Accounting
Officer (Principal Financial Officer) concluded tithe Company'’s disclosure controls and procedwesg not effective and also concluded
that the Company’s disclosure controls and procesias of December 31, 2011, March 31, 2012, Jun203@ and September 30, 2012, as
previously reported and determined to be effectivere not effective.

MANAGEMENT'S REPORT TO THE STOCKHOLDERS OF NEWTEK B USINESS SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

As management, we are responsible for establisdgmaintaining adequate internal control overrfaial reporting for Newtek Business
Services, Inc. and its subsidiaries. In order @l@ate the effectiveness of internal control owearicial reporting, as required by Section 404 o
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, we have conduatemsaessment, including testing, using the critariaternal Control-Integral Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizaticdhe Treadway Commission (COSO). The Companyssesy of internal control over
financial reporting is designed to provide reasdmalsurance regarding the reliability of financedorting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordanceagitbunting principles generally accepted in théddnStates of America. Because of its
inherent limitation, internal control over finanktiaporting may not prevent or detect misstatements

As a result of this assessment, management idsthtifiaterial weaknesses in internal control overfaial reporting as of December 31, 2012,
based on criteria imternal Control-Integrated Framewoiksued by the COSO. As a smaller reporting comptueyeffectiveness of The
Company’s internal control over financial reportisghot required to be audited by our independegistered public accounting firm.

A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combamatif deficiencies, in internal control over fing&adaeporting such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the @any’s annual or interim financial statements wilt be prevented or detected on a timely
basis.

The material weaknesses are related to the ideatiifin of a chargback loss at UPS, which was identified and resulteéstating the financi
statements for the periods ended December 31, 20drth 31, 2012, June 30, 2012 and September 3@, Ahe primary factors contributing
to the material weaknesses were:

1.  Systemic violation of established UPS policied procedures by key personnel at UPS includingahertaining to underwriting
and approving new accounts, reporting of policylations, reserve funds, and payment of sales agénésconduct at issue
primarily consisted ol

a. Certain accounts brought to UPS by an indepdrsddes agent that did not meet UPS’ written “Apgtion Criteria &
Underwriting” policy were approved by a senior mgeraat UPS although he had no authority to do ke.Manager also
approved payment of commissions to the sales dgantiolated UP’ policies.

b. The same UPS senior manager directed the redéasserve funds for certain accounts that wepeggncing high
chargebacks and for which reserve should have ineezased. This violation of reserve policy ledateeduction in reserves
which might otherwise been available to reducerfaia loss to the Compan

C. Other personnel at UPS who became aware ofithegions did not inform the Credit Committee ordd of UPS or report
them to the Company, notwithstanding the Com/s Whistle Blower Hotline

No financial control was in place to review the of@mt reserve account which would have identifredachargeback losse
The Company lacked a detective control for ovetsijlthe merchant cash reserve account by the atiogudepartmen
A lack of financial oversight and controls arounthdis disbursement related to the merchant reseoouat.

a M DN

A failure of the UPS accounting department to radtrormal changes in residual stream and residsalepiancies
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As a result of the material weaknesses in intezoatrol over financial reporting described aboe, Company’s management has concluded
that, as of December 31, 2012, the Company’s iaterontrol over financial reporting was not effgetbased on the criteria in Internal Control
- Integrated Framework issued by COSO.

With the oversight of our Audit Committee, the Canp conducted an internal review and commencedhadation plan to address the cat
of the material weaknesses primarily through theetiment and implementation of formal policiespioved processes and documented
procedures, implementation of reports as well asiting of qualified personnel. Actions completediate include the following:

1.

9.

10.

The senior manager responsible for violationthefCompany’s policy was immediately terminated esmoved as a manager and
officer of UPS.

The Company replaced the former senior managkPaesident of UPS. The new senior manager arsidere of UPS has
extensive industry experience and is directly rasfiile for the day to day operations of our elagtrgpayment processing business
in UPS and has been charged with designing anceimgafiting a plan to address each of the deficiendesgified herein

The Audit Committee retained a consulting firithwextensive expertise in the credit card paymerdsstry to conduct a full
investigation of the activities related to the samlations of policy and recommend enhancementdR8’ control systems. The
review was completed and findings and recommengsiticere communicated to the Audit Committee andXR& Board of
Managers and shared with legal counsel, Ne's Board of Directors and Newf's Executive Managemet

The Audit Committee also retained special colutosgeview all work done in the internal investiiga, the investigation by the
consulting firm and the underlying violations. Aot has been presented to the Audit Committeedeige a basis for the
Committee decisions regarding the internal contaold matters related to this incide

The Company will provide additional annual traghon the Code of Conduct and related policiesddition to receiving employee
certifications. In particular, training will be ceemed on avenues for employee reporting of questilenactivities. Certifications for
all policies will be supplemented with periodicditraining.

The Company terminated its Internal Auditor &ireéd a Chief Credit and Risk Officer who will repdirectly to the Board of
Directors on compliance and supervision for the @any’s primary operating subsidiaries and evalggtiieir credit policies, risk,
controls, policies and procedur:

The Credit Committee of UPS was reorganizegpmant new members and to establish a new Creditr@ittee meeting schedule.
In addition, representatives of Senior Company rgamgent will attend those meetings as obser

The Board of Managers of UPS established neegdgibns of authority for approving new merchabtsrding new accounts and
wiring funds from the merchant reserve acco

The Controller at UPS is now reviewing the merchaash reserve account as part of the monthly goseess
Monthly credit meetings will be held at all subsidi levels with attendance by the Chief Credit Rigk Officer.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION.

None
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PART IlI
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNA NCE

The following is a brief summary of the backgrowidach of our directors, which includes specifitormation about each director’s
experience, qualifications, attributes or skillattied the board to the conclusion that the indiglds qualified to serve on our board, in light of
our business and structure.

David C. Beck Age: 70 Director since: 2002

Mr. Beck has been Managing Director of Copia CapithC (“Copia”), a private equity investment firrsince September 1998. Prior to
founding Copia, Mr. Beck was CEO of Universal SggiBank, Milwaukee, WI and First Interstate Corpioraof Wisconsin, a publicly trade
company. Mr. Beck also served as Chairman of Usale8avings Bank’s holding company, Universal SgBanc Holdings, Inc., from
November 2002 until September 2009. He is a cedtifiublic accountant. Mr. Be's more than 30 years experience in the finanenlises
industry qualifies him to serve on our board o&diors. His experience and insight gained as a giegairector of a private equity firm also
provide a significant addition to the board of dires.

Sam Kirschner Age 64 Director since: 2010

Mr. Kirschner has, since he co-founded MayerCag ih 2003, been a Managing Member of the comparayeviCap, LLC manages
investments in hedge funds, as a fundewfds, and is headquartered in New York City. M&ga, LLC places particular emphasis on inves

in newer and smaller hedge funds. Mr. Kirschnerdiss been since 1986 president of Nexus Familyrggs Consulting where he has
specialized in advising owners, boards and sexiecive of major family-owned businesses and lalgmestic and foreign banks on matters
of succession planning, estate planning and sicategrgers and acquisitions. He has also consahédtie identification and recruitment of
senior executives. Mr. Kirschner holds a Ph.D limical psychology and has taught at both New Ydrkversity School of Continuing &
Professional Studies and the Wharton School ofriaissi at the University of Pennsylvania. Mr. Kirsghinas many years of experience in
working with small to medium sized firms and addiag the many issues which they face in growingy thesinesses. He is also very well
versed in the latest developments in the socialiangea and has been very helpful in advising thi@ny on its product development and
social media initiatives and this experience presid significant addition to the board of directors

Salvatore F. Mulia Age: 65 Director since: 2005

Mr. Mulia has been a financial advisor at RTM Ficiah Services, Westport, CT, with an emphasis asifeg and lending advisory services
since February 2003. From February 2001 to Febr2@®3 Mr. Mulia was Executive Vice President ohRit Bowes Capital Corp, Shelton,
CT which was engaged in providing financial sersitebusiness customers. Prior to that, Mr. Mudlllsenior management positions within
General Electric’s Financial Services Division, GRpital Corporation (“GECC”), and from 1980 throut¥93 he was responsible for
developing new products and business initiativeffencial services. During his tenure at GECC Mulia was a principal in GEVEST,
GECC's investment banking unit, where he headedisgtion and led acquisition teams which acquiesing companies with combined
assets of $3 billion including: TransAmerica Legsi@hase Manhattan’s leasing subsidiary and Leaseiéen Mr. Mulia has many years of
experience with major financial companies workingwvemaller to mid-sized companies needing capital debt. His understanding of the
dynamics of these businesses has been particilelpyul in addressing similar issues of the Compang this experience provides a signific
addition to the board of directors.

Barry Sloane Age: 53 Director since: 1999

Mr. Sloane is the Chairman of the Board of Direst@hief Executive Officer and President of the @any and has been an executive officer
of each of the Company-sponsored certified capdaipanies for more than five years. From Septerh®@8 through July 1995, Mr. Sloane
was a Managing Director of Smith Barney, Inc. Whiiere, he directed the Commercial and ResideRgal Estate Securitization Unit, and he
was national sales manager for institutional mayggand asset backed securities sales. From A®il il ough September 1993, Mr. Sloane
was founder and President of Aegis Capital Marketynsumer loan origination and securitizatioriress which was eventually taken public
with the name of “Aegis Consumer Funding.” Fromdber 1988 through March 1991, Mr. Sloane was Seviime President of Donaldson,
Lufkin and Jenrette, where he was responsibleifecting sales of mortgage-backed securities. FAagust 1982 to September 1988

Mr. Sloane was a senior mortgage security saleemdrrader for Bear Stearns, L.F. Rothschild, Bitton and Paine Webber. Mr. Sloane’s
broad business and financial experience and hiwlatlge of the Company’s businesses has been dfgakee to the other members of the
board.
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The Board and Board Meetings

Newtel's Board of Directors and management are commitiedsponsible corporate governance to ensuratte@ompany is managed for
the longterm benefit of its shareholders. To that endBbard of Directors and management periodicallyeevand update, as appropriate,
Company’s corporate governance policies and pegtin doing so, the Board and management revidlsped guidelines and
recommendations of institutional shareholder orgations and current best practices of similarlyagi#d public companies. The Board of
Directors and management also regularly evalualewahen appropriate, revise the Company’s corpayaternance policies and practices in
accordance with the requirements of the Sarbandsy@ct of 2002 and the rules and listing standasdaed by the SEC and The NASDARQ
Stock Market, Inc. (“NASDAQ") where the Company’si@mon Shares are listed and traded.

During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012Bteerd of Directors held a total of 6 meetings. lEdirector attended at least 75% of the
total number of meetings of the Board of Directansl at least 75% of the meetings of all committeew/hich he served.

Corporate Governance Guidelines

The Company has adopted corporate governance guadéitled “Governance Guidelineghich are available at the Investor Relations pf(
www.thesba.com The Governance Guidelines are also availableiirt  any shareholder who requests them. Theseiples were adopted
by the Board of Directors to best ensure that tbar8 is independent from management, that the Badeduately performs its function as the
overseer of management and to help ensure thaitdrests of the Board and management align wihriterests of the shareholders.

On an annual basis, each director and executiveeof obligated to complete a Directors’ and €dfs’ Questionnaire which requires
disclosure of any transactions with the Companyhich the Director or executive officer, or any mimmof his or her immediate family, have
a direct or indirect material interest.

Committees of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors currently has two standingimittees: the Audit Committee and the Compensa@amporate Governance and
Nominating Committee. Each member of these comastie independent as defined by applicable NASDA@SEC rules. Each of tl
committees has a written charter approved by trerdof Directors, which is available the Invest@l&ions page of on our website at
www.thesba.com

The Board of Directors’ Audit Committee consistdvdssrs. Beck as Chair, Mulia and Kirschner andatps pursuant to its written charter.
The Audit Committee held 8 meetings during the yeraded December 31, 2012. The Audit Committee tiscaized to examine and approve
the audit report prepared by the independent atgditbthe Company, to review and select the inddpenhauditors to be engaged by the
Company, to review the internal audit function amernal accounting controls and to review and apgrconflict of interest or related party
transactions and audit policies.

Director Beck, Chair of the Audit Committee, hagbeletermined by the Board of Directors to be mdfficial expert” and “independent” under
applicable rules of the SEC and NASDAQ. In additibre Board of Directors has determined that alintpers of the audit committee are
“financially literate” as that term is defined bgmicable NASDAQ and SEC rules.

The Company’s Compensation, Corporate Governang@&aminating Committee consists of Messrs. Mul@aChair, Beck and Kirschner, all
of whom are “non-employee directors” within the mieg of the SEC rules. The Compensation, Corpdgateernance and Nominating
Committee evaluates the compensation and benétite alirectors, officers and employees, recommehadsges, and monitors and evaluates
employee performance. The Compensation, Corporatei@ance and Nominating Committee met 6 timesdutie year ended December
2012. The Compensation, Corporate Governance andridting Committee is generally responsible fontifging corporate governance
issues, creating corporate governance policiestifging and recommending potential candidateselection to the Board and reviewing
executive and director compensation and performance

Director Independence

The Board of Directors is required by the GovermaBaidelines to have a majority of members who rttee=applicable independence
requirements of the NASDAQ and any applicable asleaw. Each of the following non-employee direste independent and has no
relationship to the Company, except as a diregtdrshareholder.

David C. Beck
Salvatore F. Mulia
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Sam Kirschner

The Board of Directors has determined that eadts afirectors, with the exception of Mr. Sloanealifies as “independent” as defined by
applicable NASDAQ and SEC rules. In making thisegetination, the Board has concluded that noneaedfdmembers has a relationship
which, in the opinion of the Board, would interfaviéh the exercise of independent judgment in dagyut the responsibilities of a director. It
is the policy of the Board of Directors to hold entive sessions of the independent directors mgetithout management at regular intervals
and as requested by a director. David C. Beck geesbver these meetings of the independent dieadtirmembers of the Board of Directors
are encouraged to attend the Annual Meeting ofetadders. In 2012, Mr. Sloane attended the Annusdtiig of shareholders and,

Mr. Kirschner, Mr. Beck and Mr. Mulia attended lejephone.

Leadership Structure

Mr. Sloane has served as Chairman and Chief Exec@tificer since 1999 and as President since 20@8continue to believe that our
leadership structure is appropriate since Mr. Sddaas over 25 years of experience in our industrglated businesses, and under his
leadership our management team has executed egsttagt has significantly improved our earningsagh, cash flow stability and
competitiveness.

Board Risk Oversight

While management is responsible for identifyingessing and managing risk, our Board is responfiblésk oversight with a focus on the
most significant risks facing the company. The Biarisk oversight includes, but is not limited tbhe following risks:

e strategic;

e operational

e compliance; an

* reputational
At the end of each year, management and the Boartlyjdevelop a list of major risks that the comparioritizes in the following year. In
2012 the Board focused on the following areass¥: ri

* management compensatic

» determining Newte's lon¢-term growth;

» strategic and operational planning, including asiigins and the evaluation of the Company’s cagitaicture and long term debt
financing; anc

» legal and regulatory complianc

The Board has delegated responsibility for the sight of specific risks to Board committees. ThedAgommittee overseas risks associated
with

« the Compan’'s financial statements and financial reporti
e mergers and acquisition

» internal controls over financial reportir

» credit and liquidity;

» information technology; an

» security and litigation issue

The Compensation, Governance and Nominating comentdnsiders the risks associated with:

e compensation policies and practic

* management resources, structure, succession pipanchmanagement developme

« overall governance practices and the structurdeatdkrship of the Board; ai

» related person transactions and the code of corfiduatl employees, officers and directc
The Board is kept informed of each committee’s askrsight and any other activities deemed to etigjerisk via periodic reports from
management and the committee chairs. Our Boardynémes the importance of risk oversight, and ite i® consistent with the Board’s

leadership structure, the CEO and the senior manageof the Company. Our senior management is ns#iple for assessing and managing
risk exposure and the Board and committees of teedBprovide the oversight consistent with thodertf.
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Director Nominations

In considering whether to recommend any particcdendidate for inclusion in the Board of Directoskite of recommended director nominees
the Compensation, Corporate Governance and Nomm&ommittee applies the criteria set forth in@w/ernance Guidelines. These criteria
include the candidate’s integrity, business acurkeawledge of our business and industry, experigtgiigence, absence of conflicts of
interest and the ability to act in the interesalbhareholders. The committee does not assigrifgpeeights to particular criteria, and no
particular criterion is a prerequisite for eachgmective nominee. We believe that the backgroundgjaalifications of our directors,
considered as a group, should provide a composk®hexperience, knowledge and abilities that waist allow the Board to fulfill its
responsibilities.

Shareholders may recommend individuals to the Cowsgt®n, Corporate Governance and Nominating Coteenfor consideration as
potential director candidates by submitting the@mes, together with appropriate biographical infation and background materials. The
recommendation should be sent to the Compens&amorate Governance and Nominating CommitteeMatthew G. Ash, Secretary,
Newtek Business Services, Inc., 212 West 35th &tPee floor, New York, New York 10001. Assumingthappropriate biographical a
background material has been provided on a timatyshthe committee will evaluate shareholder-renended candidates by following
substantially the same process, and applying suiists the same criteria, as it follows for canatiels recommended by our Board or others. |
the Board of Directors determines to nominate aedt@der-recommended candidate and recommends her @lection, then his or her name
will be included in the proposal for election foetnext annual meeting.

Shareholders also have the right under our Bylawmtinate director candidates, without any actiorecommendation on the part of the
Compensation, Corporate Governance and Nominatomgrdittee or the Board, by following the procedwsesforth under “Shareholder
Proposals” in our proxy statement. Candidates natathby shareholders in accordance with the praesdiet forth in our Bylaws may be
included in our proxy statement and solicitationtfee next annual meeting.

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Partipation

All members of the Compensation, Corporate Govereamd Nominating Committee are independent dirgcémd none of them are present
or past employees or paid officers of ours or a@nyuo subsidiaries. No member of the Compensattmmporate Governance and Nominating
Committee has had any relationship with us reqgidisclosure under Item 404 of Regulatiolk SNone of our executive officers has servel
the board or compensation committee (or other cdtaengerving an equivalent function) of any othaite, one of whose executive officers
has served on our Board or Compensation, Corp@aternance and Nominating Committee.

Our Code of Ethics

We have adopted a code of ethics, referred to e€ode of Conduct, which applies to all directans mployees, including the principal
executive, financial and accounting officers. A gap the Code of Conduct will be made availablerupaquest directed to the executive
offices of the Company and may be viewed on thedtor Relations page of on our web site www.thesima. In addition, we post on our
website all disclosures that are required by lamMASDAQ listing standards concerning any amendmentser waivers from, any provision of
the Code. We also post on our website any amendnb@ndr waivers from, our Code of Conduct and &thinat apply to our principal
executive officer and principal financial and accting officer.

The Audit Committee or the Board of Directors rewseall potential related party transactions on mgoing basis, and all such transactions
must be approved by the Audit Committee or the BadiDirectors. We have not adopted written proceddor review of, or standards for
approval of, these transactions, but instead thditALlommittee or the Board of Directors intendseeiew such transactions on a case by case
basis. In addition, the Compensation, Corporates@mnce and Nominating Committee or the Board oédors reviews and approves all
compensation-related policies involving our direstand executive officers.

A major shareholder and former president of the gamy, Jeffrey G. Rubin, directly and indirectlydbgh entities and organizations in which
he has a material interest, earns gross residyalgrats on merchant processing revenue he genéoatibe Company, a portion of which is
then paid to his support staff for their effortairing the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 @@, 2he Company paid him and his relatec
entities gross residuals of approximately $3,15%, 1,649,000 and $1,180,000, respectively. Wesigiatie that Mr. Rubin and his related
entities will continue to earn gross residual geofin the merchant process revenue he generatégef@ompany in 2013.
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Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compdince

Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act requires ourctiims and executive officers and persons who owrertian 10% of a registered class of oul
equity securities, to file with the SEC and the ND¥&) initial reports of ownership and reports of ngas in ownership of Common Shares of
the Company. Officers, directors and greater tHa® $hareholders are required by SEC regulatiofigrmish us with copies of all Section 16
(a) forms they file.

To the Company’s knowledge, based solely on Foriasd34, and amendments to such forms, providduet€bmpany by its directors and
executive officers and greater than 10% sharehsldiering 2012, all such required reports were ynfiedd.

Director Compensation

The Board has adopted a plan for compensation mfenaployee directors which gives effect to the tand effort required of each of them in
the performance of their duties. During 2012 conspéon was paid in cash and is set forth in thietablow. Since November 10, 2010,
Directors are paid the following annual fees:

» for participation on the Board: $50,0(
e as chair of a Committee: $20,0(
* as committee member: $5,0(

Director Summary Compensation Table®

Fees Non-Equity
Earned Incentive Plan Nonqualified
or Paid Stock Option Deferred All Other
in Awards Awards Compensatior Compensatior Compensatior
Cash Total
(6] (6] $ $ Earnings ($) (6] (6]
David C. Beck 75,00( — — — — — 75,00(
Salvatore F. Muli¢ 75,00( — — — — — 75,00(
Sam Kirschne 60,00( — — — — — 60,00(

(1) Barry Sloane, the Company’s Chairman, Chiefdaige Officer and President, is not included iis ttable as he was an employee of the
Company in 2012 and thus received no compensationis services as a Director. The compensatiogived by Mr. Sloane as an
employee of the Company is shown in the Summary ggmsation Table beloy
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ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
The executive officers of Newtek, and their agespfaDecember 31, 2012, are as follows:

Name Age Position

Barry Sloane 53 Chairman, Chief Executive Officer, and Secre!
Craig J. Brune 64 Executive Vice President, Chief Information Offic
Jennifer Eddelso 40 Executive Vice President, Chief Accounting Offii

Barry Sloaneis the Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Gfficand Secretary of the Company and has beeneaitive officer of each «
the Company-sponsored certified capital compamembre than five years. Previously, from Septenil®83 through July 1995, Mr. Sloane
was a Managing Director of Smith Barney, Inc. Whiiere, he directed the Commercial and ResideRgal Estate Securitization Unit and,
prior to that time, he was national sales managreintitutional mortgage and asset backed seesr#fales. From April 1991 through Septer
1993, he was founder and President of Aegis Calgiteikets, a consumer loan origination and secatitin business which was eventually
taken public with the name of “Aegis Consumer Fagdi From October 1988 through March 1991, Mr. 8mavas Senior Vice President of
Donaldson, Lufkin and Jenrette, where he was resplenfor directing sales of mortgage-backed séestiFrom August 1982 to September
1988 Mr. Sloane was a senior mortgage securitysea and trader for Bear Stearns, L.F. Rothschild, Hutton and Paine Webber.

Craig J. Brunet has served as Executive Vice President and Chiefrivation Officer since January 1, 2012. Mr. Brupedviously served as
Executive Vice President Strategic Planning andkeiang since July, 2006 and as Chairman and Chietttive Officer of the Company’s
Harvest Strategies subsidiary since June, 200In Bi@84 — 1989, Mr. Brunet served as Director ohtsgic Planning for AT&T, where he
managed all special development and modificatiorstdndard AT&T products to include non-standaidipg, terms and conditions, hardware
and software strategic initiatives, FCC Tariffsyaadl as joint venture and/or integration requiresefor the top 50 AT&T accounts. In 1989,
Mr. Brunet joined Entergy Corporation as Execuiiee President responsible for managing and dingdtie overall Entergy System retail .
wholesale marketing effort including strategy depehent, policy preparation and administration, readevelopment and market analysis anc
research. During his tenure with Entergy, he seage@hairman of the Strategic Planning Committeth®fElectric Power Research Institute
(EPRI) and served on the Board of Directors of Ejyténterprises guiding decisions on unregulatéiities including strategic acquisition
and investments in generation, distribution and temknology assets domestically and internation&llgm 1993 — 1996, Mr. Brunet served ac
Chairman, CEO and President of First Pacific Nekapa leader in the initial development and deplegtrof broadband technologies in the
United States and Europe. During this period, he &also Chairman of the Board of Credit Depot Caapion, a publicly traded multi-state
mortgage company and served as Chairman of bothutiie committee and compensation committee.

Jennifer Eddelsonis a certified public accountant and has servdaxagutive Vice President and Chief Accounting Qffisince July 1, 2011.
She has been employed by the Company since 200drasrate Controller, Vice President of FinanciapBrting since 2006, and in these anc
her current capacities has had a principal respiitgifor the development and implementation of iompany’s accounting policies and
practices. Previously, Ms. Eddelson practiced atfieel public accountant with Janover, LLC andyaded accounting and tax-related service:
to the Company.

The individuals who served as the Company’s Chiefdative Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Chi&€counting Officer during 2012, as
well as the other individuals included in the Sumyrf@aompensation Table below, are referred to belewhe “named executive officers.”

Compensation Philosophy and Objectives

All of our compensation programs are designedtracttand retain key employees and to motivate tteeathieve, and reward them for
achieving, superior performance. Different prograregeared to shorter- and longemn performance, with the goal of increasing shalaer
value over the long-term. Executive compensatiagmams impact all employees by setting generaldedecompensation and helping to
create an environment of goals, rewards and exji@tsa Because we believe the performance of emenyloyee is important to our success,
we are mindful of the effect of executive compeiwgaand incentive programs on all of our employees.
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We believe that the compensation of our execuhesild reflect their success as a management tedimer than just as individuals, in
attaining key operating objectives, such as graftbales, growth of operating earnings and earniegshare and growth or maintenance of
market share and long-term competitive advantagg utimately, in attaining an increased market@ifor our stock. We believe that the
performance of our executives in managing our Camppeonsidered in light of general economic anctgfwecompany, industry and
competitive conditions, should be the basis foedaining their overall compensation. We also baithat their compensation should not be
based on the short-term performance of our stoblkther favorable or unfavorable, but rather thatgtice of our stock will, in the long-term,
reflect our operating performance and, ultimatéig, management of the Company by our executivessé¥k to have the long-term
performance of our stock reflected in executive pensation through our equity incentive programalpiting stock options and restricted
stock awards.

Role of Executive Officers in Compensation Decisian

The Compensation, Corporate Governance and Nom@m&wmmittee supervises the design and implementafi compensation policies for
all executive officers (which include the namedar&ve officers) and overall incentive equity awatd all employees of the Company.
Decisions regarding the non-equity compensatioexetutive officers, other than named executivecefi, are made by the Chief Executive
Officer within the compensation philosophy set bg Committee. Decisions regarding the non-equitypensation of named executive
officers are made by the Chief Executive Officed #ime Committee for consistency with the Compargimpensation policies.

The Chief Executive Officer semi-annually reviews performance of each member of the senior exectgam, including named executive
officers (other than himself whose performancesisawed by the Committee). The conclusions reaeameidrecommendations based on these
reviews, including with respect to salary adjusttaeand annual award amounts, are then presenthd @ommittee by the Chief Executive
Officer. The Committee will review and approve teeommendations for consistency with the Compaogiapensation policies.

Setting Executive Compensation

During the course of each fiscal year, it has liberpractice of the Chief Executive Officer to mwithe history of all the elements of each
executive officer’s total compensation and the €Riecutive Officer may also compare the compensatif the executive officers with that of
the executive officers in an appropriate market jgarison group of companies with a capitalizationilsir to that of the Company. We seek to
set compensation levels that are perceived adrigérnally and externally, and competitive witheoall compensation levels at other compa

in our industry, including larger companies fromigthwe may want to recruit employees. However,Goenpany does not establish individual
objectives in the range of comparative data foheadividual or for each element of compensatioypigally, the Chief Executive Officer sets
compensation with respect to the executive offiegre report to him and presents it to the Committeeonformity with the Company’s
overall compensation policies. The named execuiifieers are not present at the time of these deditions. The Committee then performs a
similar review of the Chief Executive Officsrtotal compensation and makes compensation desisiith respect to such officer, who does
participate in that determination.

We choose to pay each element of compensatiorder ¢o attract and retain the necessary executleat; reward annual performance and
provide incentive for balanced focus on long-tetrategic goals as well as short-term performanbe. dmount of each element of
compensation is determined by or under the direatioour Committee, which uses the following fastty determine the amount of salary and
other benefits to pay each named executive officer:

» performance against corporate and individual ohjestfor the year

» difficulty of achieving desired results in the comiyear;

» value of their unique skills and capabilities t@gart lon¢-term performance
» performance of their general management respoitigbjland

« contribution as a member of the executive manageteam.

We do not establish individual goals but focustomdverall profitable growth of our business.

Based on the foregoing objectives, we have stradtthe Company’s annual and long-term incentiveth@sash and non-cash executive
compensation to motivate executives to achievétfsiness goals set by the Company and reward gwitxes for achieving such goals.

There is no pre-established policy or target feralocation between either cash or non-cash cosgtiem. Historically we have granted a
majority of total compensation to executive offie@r the form of cash compensation.
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For the year ended December 31, 2012, the princgraponents of compensation for named executivecsff were:
* base salary
» performanc-based incentive compensation based on the Cor’s and the executi’s performance; an
e retirement and other benefits made available terafployees

Base Salary

The Company provides named executive officers dndr@mployees with base salary to compensate ftveservices rendered during the
fiscal year. Executive base salaries continuefteaieour operating philosophy, our performancereini corporate culture and business direc
with each salary determined by the skills, expereand performance level of the individual exeajtand the needs and resources of the
Company. Base salaries are targeted to markeslé&asied on reviews of published salary surveystendlosest related peer company
compensation since we do not believe that Newtslahng peer companies. Base salary ranges for nareedtive officers are determined for
each executive based on his or her position ammbnesibility by using market data from publishedasglsurveys such as Equilar, and the
Company generally attempts to fix each named ekexofficer's salary within the range. We beliehat the Company’s most direct
competitors for executive talent are not necessegitricted to those companies that are includetlé peer company index used to compare
shareholder returns, but encompass a broader gifaxgmpanies engaged in the recruitment and retewti executive talent in competition
with the Company.

During the review of base salaries for senior leyalcutives, including the named executive officeses primarily consider:
e aninternal review of each execuf's compensation both individually and relative toestexecutive officers
« individual performance of the executive; ¢

» areview of the Company’s revenue growth, net ine@md cash flow metrics relative to the Compangisual plan as established
by the Board

Salary levels are typically considered annuallpag of the Company’s performance review processedlsas upon a promotion or other
change in job responsibility. Merit based increasesalaries are based on the Chief Executive &fcassessment of the individual's
performance. Merit based increases to the salafieamed executive officers other than the Chieddtive Officer are recommended by the
Chief Executive Officer and confirmed by the Contadtand those for the Chief Executive officer aatedmined by the Committee.

Annual Bonus

Annual bonuses may be awarded to executive offiseder the Company’s cash bonus plan. The Comp@ayes a bonus pool based on
annually determined percentage of the salariel efreployees which it accrues as an expense. Pagmeder the plan are based on the
Company'’s overall performance as determined byCthief Executive Officer and the Committee. The Cdtter determines any bonus for the
Chief Executive Officer based on, among other thjregreview of the Company’s revenue growth, natrme and cash flow relative to the
Company’s annual plans as established by the Baae Chief Executive Officer in consultation wittretCommittee with respect to the namec
executive officers, or in consultation with the reahexecutive officers and other senior level ofosith respect to lower level employees,
determines annual bonuses for other employees lmssdch employee’s performance. Factors consideohte the achievement of business
plans, defined goals and performance relativelierotompanies of a similar size and business giraiéhe mix and weighting of the factors
vary, depending on the business segment and tloaitaxes responsibilities. The level of achievement aneral contribution by the executi
determines the level of bonus

Equity-Based Compensation

From time to time, at the discretion of the Comedgttthe Company grants equity-based awards, sustb@soptions or restricted stock to the
named executive officers and other employees ttera clear and strong alignment between compensatid shareholder return and to en
the named executive officers and other employeedgvelop and maintain a stock ownership positiothéncompany that will vest over time
and act as an incentive for the employee to remviinthe Company. Restricted stock and options bwygranted pursuant to the Company’s
2003 Stock Incentive Plan or its 2010 Stock InaenRlan. The Company’s 2000 Incentive Stock anegtBPefl Compensation Plan remains in
existence but no additional option awards may béenader it since 2010 in accordance with its teiuwging the Company'’s early years of
operation, through approximately 2005, we reliederfoequently than at present on equity-based asv@we to the limited resources available
to the Company to attract and retain qualified exy@és and executives. During that period the Compaid very little in the form of cash
bonuses using instead equitgsed awards. Currently, the cash flow of the Capppermits a more balanced approach, allowingnabdoatior
of cash and equity awards to implement the Compacympensation policies.
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Under applicable accounting rules, we are requinedeasure the value of equity awards based ofaihealue of the award on the grant date.
The cost is recognized in our statement of oparataver the period during which an employee isireguo provide service in exchange for
the award, which is usually the vesting period.

Options are awarded at the average of the higheskoavest sale price of the Company’s Common Shamebe NASDAQ market on the date
of the grant (the “Market Value”). In certain lirad circumstances, the Committee may grant optimas texecutive at an exercise price in
excess of the Market Value of the Company’s Com®@bares on the grant date. The Committee has neaeteg options with an exercise
price that is less than the Market Value of the @any’s common shares on the grant date, nor lgarited options which are priced on a dat
other than the grant date.

Options granted by the Committee typically vestrdhe first two to five years of the ten-year optierm, although in certain cases we have
granted options that have vested immediately. Ygsights cease upon termination of employmentwastied options granted prior to 2008
may be exercised within one year of terminatioh€othan termination for cause) and those gram@®08 and subsequent which have veste
have 90 days after termination in which to exerd&®r to the exercise of an option, the holdex harights as a shareholder with respect to
the shares subject to such option, including votights and the right to receive dividends or dénd equivalents.

Upon a change of control, or if earlier, the exenubf an agreement to effect a change of corgitbhptions and restricted stock awards undet
the Company’s 2000 Incentive Stock and Deferred @arsation Plan, its 2003 Stock Incentive Plan &8@010 Stock Incentive Plan become
fully vested and immediately exercisable, notwiinsting any other provision of the plan or any agresat.

Benefits and Perquisites

Our executives are generally not entitled to beséifiat are not available to all of our employéeshis regard, it should be noted that we dc
provide pension arrangements, post-retirementthealterage or similar benefits for our executivesraployees. The Committee periodically
reviews the levels of benefits provided to exeautifficers. The named executive officers parti@gatthe Company’s 401(k) savings plan anc
other benefit plans on the same basis as othelasiynsituated employees. The Company has adoptedteh for the Company’s 401 (k)
savings plan which consists of a discretionary mafc50% of the first 2% of employee contributiansto a maximum of 1% of the
employee’s compensation. At the Company’ discretienmatch may be in the form of cash or Company@on Shares. In 2012, a match of
$105,992 in Common Shares was approved and paidioh 2013.

The perquisites we provided in fiscal 2012 arecdlsW/s. We paid the premiums on life insurance giel for and certain travel costs for
Mr. Sloane the Chief Executive Officer in the amboh$4,432. In addition, we paid Mr. Brunet, theeEutive Vice President and Chief
Information Officer, relocation expenses in the amioof $4,700.

Compensation of the Chief Executive Officer

The Committee determined the compensation for Balwgne, Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and iéezst for 2012. While recognizing
the Chief Executive Officer’s leadership in builgia highly talented management team and in drithegCompany forward, Mr. Sloane’s
salary was maintained at $350,000 for 2012 to whiak added a bonus of $300,000 which was paid12.2dr. Sloane received a $100,000
bonus in 2011 and a $250,000 bonus in 2010. Irtiaddr. Sloane received an award of 75,000 and@@Drestricted Common Shares in
2013 and 2011, respectively with a value as ofitite of award $138,750 and $680,000, respectiTély.Committee has determined that this
salary and bonus package is competitive with therlanarket median for someone with his skills aaldrits and is reflective of the Company’s
current cash and financial position and the statuke Company’s Common Shares. Mr. Sloane’s basgpensation has remained unchanged
from 2005 through 2012.

Compensation of the Other Named Executive Officers

The Committee approved the 2012 compensation faigQr. Brunet, Executive Vice President and Chiédrimation Officer, and Jennifer
Eddelson, Executive Vice President and Chief ActiogrOfficer as recommended to it by the Chief BExae Officer.

As with the Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Brunstbase salary was maintained at, $276,000 in @it and 2012. In 2012, Mr. Brunet recei
an award of 10,000 restricted Common Shares valtu8d8,500 and a cash bonus of $41,400. In 2011BMinet was awarded 50,000
restricted Common Shares valued at $85,000 andadiceceive a cash bonus. In 2012 Mr. Brunet rexckay cash bonus of $41,400 which was
paid in 2012. Ms. Eddelson’s base salary was ise#o $240,000 on March 1, 2012. Ms. Eddelsoné salary for 2012 was $230,833 and
in addition received a cash bonus of $50,000 paRkDil2, and 10,000 restricted Common Shares vau$ii8,500. Ms. Eddelson received a
cash bonus in 2011 of $35,000 which was paid ir22amhd 35,000 restricted Common Shares valued6G086. The Chief Executive Officer
and the Committee have determined that these caapen packages are competitive with the labor etariedian for managers with their
skills and talents and are reflective of the Conyfmourrent cash and financial position and theustaf the Company’s Common Shares.
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Conclusion

Attracting and retaining talented and motivated aggament and employees is essential to creatingtemngshareholder value. Offering a
competitive, performance-based compensation protpeps to achieve this objective by aligning thetiasts of the executive officers and
other key employees with those of shareholdersb@lieve that the Company’s 2012 compensation progret those objectives.

ADVISORY VOTE ON EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

At our 2011 annual meeting 98.94% of the votes caghe advisory vote on executive compensatiopgsal were in favor of holding an
advisory vote of shareholders on executive compemsand 82.69% of the votes cast were in favdraléling that advisory vote every three
(3) years. The Compensation, Corporate governamté&aminating Committee reviewed these resultsdetdrmined that our shareholders
should vote on a say-on-pay proposal every thraesyéccordingly, the next say-on-pay vote willdieur 2014 annual meeting.

COMPENSATION RISK ASSESSMENT

Our Compensation, Corporate Governance and Nomm&ommittee aims to establish compavigle compensation policies and practices
reward contributions to long-term shareholder valnd do not promote unnecessary or excessiveaisig. In furtherance of this objective,
the Committee conducted an assessment of our caat@m arrangements, including those for our naexedutive officers. The assessment
process included, among other things, a reviewuo{d) compensation philosophy, (2) compensatioxnand (3) cash and equity-based
incentive plans.

In its review, among other factors, the Committersidered the following:

» Our revenue model and our cash incentive plan eagewur employees to focus on creating a stal#ejgiable stream of revenue
over multiple years, rather than focusing on curyerar revenue at the expense of succeeding y

* The distribution of compensation among our core pansation elements has effectively balanced skar-performance and long-
term performance

» Our cash and equ-based incentive awards in conjunction with manageragorts focus on both ne-term and lon-term goals

» Our cash and equitigased incentive awards contain a range of perfocembavels and payouts, to discourage executives faking
risky actions to meet a single target with an alathing result of compensation or no compensa

» Our executives are encouraged to hold a meaningiuber of our Common Shares pursuant to our staclesship policy

Based upon this assessment, our Compensation, @tegdovernance and Nominating Committee belidvasdur company-wide
compensation policies and practices do not crésite that are reasonably likely to have a matewalerse effect on us.

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE REPORT

The Compensation, Corporate Governance and Nom@m&bmmittee of the Company has reviewed and disclithe foregoing
Compensation Discussion and Analysis for fiscal2f¥quired by Item 402(b) of Regulation S-K withmagement and, based on such review
and discussions, the Compensation, Corporate Ganeenand Nominating Committee recommended to tleedaf Directors that the
Compensation Discussion and Analysis be includddigProxy Statement.

THE COMPENSATION, CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND NOMINAWNG COMMITTEE

Salvatore F. Mulia, Chairman
David C. Beck
Sam Kirschner
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SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE

The following tables set forth the aggregate corsptan earned by the Company’s Chief Executived®ffi Chief Financial Officer, Chief
Accounting Officer, and next most highly compendaggecutive officers during 2012 and the two prasigears which we refer to as named
executive officers.

Change in
Pension Valug
Non-Equity and
Incentive Plan Nonqualified All other
Stock Option Deferred compensatior
Awards Awards Compensatior Compensatior
(in excess of

Name and Principal Position Year  Salary ($ Bonus ($ $)® $® ($) Earnings ($) $10,000) ($) Total ($)
Barry Sloane, CEO 2012 350,00( 300,00(4) 138,78((") 788,75

2011 350,00( 100,00€3)  680,00( — — — — 1,130,001

201( 350,00( 250,00() — — — — — 600,00
Craig J. Brunet, EVP and 201z 276,00( 41,40(4) 18,50((7) — — — — 317,40(

Chief Information Officer 2011 276,00( — 85,00( — — — — 361,00(

201( 276,001 41,40¢2) 13,25( — — — — 330,65!(

Jennifer Eddelson, EVP and 2012 230,83 50,00(4) 74,50(®) 355,33
Chief Accounting Officer (7) 2011 92,50((®8) 35,00((3) 25,50( 243,83

(1) Cash bonus awarded for 2010 performance, $125,08Bioh was paid in 2010 and $125,000 was paidéfirst quarter of 201:
(2) Cash bonus awarded for 2009 performance and p&alf.
(3) Cash bonus awarded for 2010 performance and p&@lith.
(4) Cash bonus awarded for 2011 performance and p&ala.
(5) The value reported for Stock and Option Awasdhe aggregate grant date fair value of optianestricted stock awards granted to the

(6)
(7)
(8)

named executive officers in the years shown, detexthin accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718, disrdgesy adjustments for forfeitu
assumptions. The assumptions for making the vainatéterminations are set forth in the footnotedit Stock-Based Compensation” to
our financial statements in the Comp’s Annual Report on Form -K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2(

Effective July 1, 2011

Stock grants awarded for 2012 performance, gra2@éa.

$18,500 was for stock grants awarded for 2012 pediace, granted in 2013; $56,000 was for stocktgrawarded for 2011 performan
granted in 201z

Equity Compensation Plans

The following table provides information as of Ded®er 31, 2012 with respect to our Common Shardshg be issued under our equity
compensation plans.

Weighted Average Number of

Securities
Remaining Available

Number of

- . Exercise Price of
Securities to be issued upc

Outstanding

Options, Warrants

Exercise of Outstanding for Future Issuance

Options, Warrants Under Equity

Plan Category and Rights and Rights @ Compensation Plan:
Equity Compensation Plans Approved by Stockhol& 1,943,050 $ 1.44 3,405,76!
Equity Compensation Plans Not Approved by

Stockholder: — — —
Total 1,943,050 $ 1.4¢ 3,405,76!
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(1) Consists of 4,250,000 common shares under ¢imep@ny’s 2000 Stock Incentive and Deferred Compens&lan, 1,000,000 common
shares under the Comp¢'s 2003 Stock Incentive Plan, and 1,650,000 comrhares under the Compé's 2010 Stock Incentive Pla
(2) Excludes 1,148,400 restricted stock rights whichehe zero exercise pric

GRANTS OF PLAN BASED AWARDS

The following reflects all grants to our named axe® officers awarded in the fiscal year endedddeiger 31, 2012, all of which vest on
July 1, 2014.

All Other All Other

Stock Option

Estimated Future Payouts Estimated Future Payouts Awards: Awards: Exercise ol Grant Date
Under Non-Equity Incentive Under Equity Incentive Number of Number of Base Price Fair Value of

Plan Awards Plan Awards Shares of  Securities  of Option Stock and

Grant Threshold Target Maximum  Threshold  Target  Maximum Stock or  Underlying Awards Option
Name date (%) ($) (%) (#) (#) (#) Units (#)  Options (#) ($/Sh) Awards ($)
Barry Sloane, CEO — — — — — — — — — — —
Craig J. Brunet, EVP, CIO — — — — — — — — — — —
Jennifer C. Eddelson, EVP.

CAO 04/12/1: — — — — — — 35,00( — — 56,00(

OUTSTANDING EQUITY AWARDS AT 2012 YEAR END
The following table reflects all outstanding equatiyards held by our named executive officers d3emfember 31, 2012;

Option Awards (1) Stock Awards
Equity Incentive
Number of Number of Plan Awards: Market Equity Incentive Equity Incentive
Securities Securities Number of Number of  Value of Plan Awards: Plan Awards:
Underlying Underlying Securities Shares or Number of Market or Payout
Unexerciset Unexercised Underlying Option Shares or Units of Unearned Shares Value of Unearnec
Options Unexercised Exercise Option Units of Stock that
Options Unexercisable  Unearned Options Expiration  Stock that Units or Other Shares, Units or
Exercisable Price have not have not Rights that have Other Rights that
Name (#) (#) (#) ($) Date Vested (#) Vested ($ not Vested (#) have not Vested (4
Barry Sloane, CEO — — — — — — — 400,00((2) 680,00(
Craig J. Brunet, EVP,
clo 100,00(1) 1.57 12/21/1¢ 50,00((2) 85,00(
100,00( — — 1.5C 05/18/1¢ — — 10,60((2) 18,32:
Jennifer C. Eddelson,
EVP, CAO 10,00(1) 1.57 12/21/1"
20,00( — — 1.5C 05/18/1¢ — — 50,00((2) 80,45(

(1) These options are fully veste
(2) These shares of restricted stock shall vesherarliest of the following to occur: (a) July2D14; (b) a Change in Control (as defined in
the plan) of the Company; or (c) His/her deathotaltdisability.

OPTIONS EXERCISED AND STOCK VESTED
There were no stock options exercised nor resttiGiemmon Shares vested during 2012 for the namecligixe officers.

Employment Agreements

The Company has entered into separate employmezd¢agnts with the following three executive offger
. Barry Sloane, as Chairman, Chief Executive Offeed Secretary; ar

. Craig J. Brunet, as Executive Vice President anéfChformation Officer; anc

. Jennifer Eddelson, as Executive Vice PresidentGlridf Accounting Office

Barry Sloane, as Chairman and Chief Executive @ffits responsible for implementing the policies@édd by the Company’s Board of
Directors.

77



Table of Contents

Mr. Sloane’s employment agreement provides for:

. A twelve month term through March 31, 2013 at anuah base salary of $350,0(
. at least one annual salary review by the Boardigddiors;

. participation in any discretionary bonus plan elsaled for senior executive

. retirement and medical plans, customary fringe beneacation and sick leave; a
. $2 million of split-dollar life insurance coverag

Mr. Brunet's employment agreement provides for:

. A twelve month term through March 31, 2013 at anuah base salary of $276,0(
. at least one annual salary review by the Boardigddiors;

. participation in any discretionary bonus plan elsshled for senior executives; a
. retirement and medical plans, customary fringe beneacation and sick leav

Ms. Eddelson’s employment agreement provides for:

. A twelve month term through May 31, 2013 at an ahfase salary of $240,0C
. at least one annual salary review by the Boardigddiors;

. participation in any discretionary bonus plan elsshled for senior executives; a
. retirement and medical plans, customary fringe bene&acation and sick leav

Payments upon Change of Control

Mr. Sloane’s employment agreement provides foryarant in the event of non-renewal of his employnier#n amount equal to one and one

half (1.5) times, or in the case of a change otrcbior termination other than for cause of theeggnent an amount equal to two (2) times, the
sum of (i) the executive’s base salary in effedhattime of termination, plus (ii) the amount afyancentive compensation paid with respect tc
the immediately preceding fiscal year.

Mr. Brunet's and Ms. Eddelson’s employment agreegmprovide for a payment in the case of terminatithrer than for cause or in connection
with a change in control of the agreement equahi® (1) times the sum of (i) the executive’s badarg in effect at the time of termination,
plus (ii) the amount of any incentive compensapaid with respect to the immediately precedingdig@ar. Mr. Brunet's employment
agreement also provides for a payment in the clisererenewal equal to one (1) times the sum ah@)executive’s base salary in effect at th
time of termination, plus (ii) the amount of angémtive compensation paid with respect to the imately preceding fiscal year.

Each employment agreement contains a non-compefitiovision that requires the employee to devobstntially his full business time and
efforts to the performance of the employee’s dutieder the agreement. The employee is not prokiibitewever, from:

. serving on the boards of directors of, and holdiffiges or positions in, companies or organizatiahéch, in the opinion of the Board of
Directors, will not present conflicts of interesitvthe Company; ¢

. investing in any business dissimilar from the Cony's or, solely as a passive or minority investomriy business

Under each of the employment agreements, the Compag terminate an employee’s employment for “paise” as defined in the
agreement, and upon the termination, no severasmefits are available. If the employee voluntai#isminates his employment for “good
reason” as defined in the agreement, or the emplsy@mmployment terminates during the term of theagent due to death, disability, or
retirement after age 62, the employee will be katito a continuation of his salary and benefiterfithe date of termination through the
remaining term of the agreement. The employeel&stalterminate voluntarily his agreement by prawid60 days written notice to the Board
of Directors, in which case the employee is ertitle receive only his compensation, vested rightstzenefits up to the date of termination.
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Post Termination Payments

The table below reflects the amount of compensdtiahwould be payable to the executive officerdarrexisting arrangements if the
hypothetical termination of employment events désct above had occurred on December 31, 2012, ghedncompensation and service
levels as of such date. All payments are payabliaéyCompany in a lump sum unless otherwise noted.

These benefits are in addition to benefits avadlabyardless of the occurrence of such an evectt,asicurrently exercisable stock options, an
benefits generally available to salaried employsesh as distributions under the Company’s 401lg) disability benefits, and accrued
vacation pay. In addition, in connection with aagntination of Mr. Sloane’s employment, the Comparay determine to enter into an
agreement or to establish an arrangement provatiaifional benefits or amounts, or altering thenteof benefits described below, as the
Compensation, Corporate Governance and Nominatimgr@ittee deems appropriate.

Post Termination Payments

Termination

Change without

Name in Control Non-Renewa Cause
Barry Sloane, CEO $800,00( $ 625,00( $ 800,00(
Craig Brunet, EVP, CI( $276,00( $ 276,00( $ 276,00(
Jennifer Eddelson, EVP, CA $240,00( — $ 240,00(

The actual amounts that would be paid upon Mr.r8and Mr. Brunet's termination of employment ¢endetermined only at the time of
their separation from the Company.

Nonqualified Deferred Compensation
The Company did not have any nonqualified defec@dpensation in the year ended December 31, 2012

Pension Benefits
The Company had no obligation under pension bepkdits to the named executive officers as of Deezrh, 2012.

Tax and Accounting Implications
Deductibility of Executive Compensati

As part of its role, the Committee reviews and dd&rs the deductibility of executive compensatioder Section 162(m) of the Internal
Revenue Code, which provides that the Company mageduct compensation of more than $1,000,0004hzid to certain individuals. The
Company believes that compensation paid by the @oms generally fully deductible for federal incertax purposes. However, in certain
situations, the Committee may, in the future, approompensation that will not meet these requirgsienorder to ensure competitive level:
total compensation for its executive officers.

Accounting for Sto-Based Compensation

Beginning on January 1, 2006, the Company begaouatiog for stocksased payments under its three incentive stoclspiaaccordance wit
the requirements of FASB Statement 123(R).
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ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The table below shows the number of our commoneshaeneficially owned as of March 27, 2013 by:
» each person or group known by us to beneficiallyp omore than 5% of our outstanding common shi
» each director and nominee for direct
» each executive officer named in the Summary Congiens Table under the headi“Executive Compensatic’ and
« all of our current directors and executive officef¢he company as a grot

The number of shares beneficially owned by eacthbider, director or executive officer is determirmdthe rules of the SEC, and the
information does not necessarily indicate bendfmienership for any other purpose. Under such ruleseficial ownership includes any she
over which the person or entity has sole or shaotithg power or investment power and also any shtrat the person or entity can acquire
within 60 days of March 27, 2013 through the exaraf any stock option or other right. For purpasfesomputing the percentage of
outstanding shares of common shares held by eashrper entity, any shares that the person onenis the right to acquire within 60 days
after March 27, 2013 are deemed to be outstanditigrespect to such person or entity but are netél to be outstanding for the purpose of
computing the percentage of ownership of any gbleeson or entity. Unless otherwise indicated, grrison or entity has sole investment and
voting power (or shares such power with his ordpEruse) over the shares set forth in the follovdde. The inclusion in the table below of
any shares deemed beneficially owned does notitaiesin admission of beneficial ownership of thslsares. As of March 27, 2013 there
were 35,311,888 common shares issued and outstandin

Name and Address o Total Beneficig
Beneficial Owner (1) Shares Owne Right to Acquire(2) Ownershig®) Percent of Clas
David C. Beck 188,15 39,68t 227,83¢ @
Craig J. Brune 83,38¢ 200,00( 283,38 *
Jennifer C. Eddelsc 13,37( 30,00( 43,37( @
Sam Kirschne 69,30: — 69,30: *
Salvatore F. Muli 60,69¢ 27,78( 88,47" *
Jeffrey G. Rubir® 4,291,50! — 4,291,50! 13.3(%
Barry Sloane 4,700,261 — 4,700,26! 14.51%
All current directors and executive Officers as a

group (7 persons 9,704,14. 30.08%

* Less than 1% of total common shares outstandimg &karch 27, 2013

(1) Unless otherwise stated, the address of easlopdisted is c/o Newtek Business Services, Rit2 W. 35" Street, ® floor, New York,
New York 10001

(2) Number of shares underlying stock options whichexercisable as of March 27, 2013, or which becerazcisable 60 days thereaft

(3) As of March 27, 2013 except with respect to Mr. Rus of March 14, 200°

(4) Resigned as President March 7, 2(
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ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS A ND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE
The Company may from time to time provide busiregsices to executives of the Company or their flamembers. These transactions are
conducted at arm’s length and do not representtarrabportion of the Company’s revenues.

The Company’s Code of Conduct provides that whenpatential conflict exists, it must be properlgdosed and an appropriate
determination made by the Company. The ChairmarCi(d is ultimately responsible for the determinatibhe Company’s policies and
procedures were followed in connection with altteé above.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

CohnReznick LLP served as the Company’s indepen@egigtered public accounting firm for the yeardeshDecember 31, 2011 and
December 31, 2012.

Fees for professional services rendered to the @agnpy CohnReznick LLP during the fiscal year enBedember 31, 2012 were as follows
(in thousands):

Audit Fees $72=

Audit Related Fee 60

All Other Fees —
Total Fees $78¢

Fees for professional services rendered to the @agnpy CohnReznick LLP during the fiscal year enBedember 31, 2011 were as follows
(in thousands):

Audit Fees $77E
Audit Related Fee 10t
All Other Fees =

Total Fees $88C

Audit Fees The audit fees for the fiscal years ended Dece®beP012 and 2011 were for professional servicedered in connection with tl
audits of the Company’s annual financial statemeagsistance with review of documents filed with 8EC, consents and other services
required to be performed by our independent regidtpublic accounting firm.

Audit-Related FeesAll other fees billed to the Company by CohnReznitle during the fiscal years ended December 312201d 2011 for
non-audit services and assurance and related serfac attestations not required by law.

Tax FeesNo fees were billed to the Company by CohnReznicR Huring the fiscal years ended December 31, 2022011 for profession
services rendered in connection with tax compliatebeadvice, and tax planning.

All Other FeesNone.

In accordance with the Audit Committee Charterpéthe foregoing audit and non-audit fees paidrid the related services provided by
CohnReznick LLP were pre-approved by the Audit Cattem.
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES.
(8)(1) Financial Statement

(@)(2) Exhibits.

The following exhibits are filed herewith or arearporated by reference to exhibits previouslydfikeith the Securities and
Exchange Commission.

Number Description

3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of IncorporatioNewtek Business Services, Inc., as amended (pocated by reference
herein to Exhibit 3.1 to Newt’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2010, filed Aug@s2010)

3.2 Bylaws of Newtek Business Services, Inc. (Incorpeatdby reference to Exhibit 3.2 to Newtek’s Registm Statement on Form S-
4, No. 33-115615, filed August 11, 200(

10.1 Employment Agreement with Barry Sloane, dated A9riP012, (Incorporated by reference to Exhibitl1Dto Newtekd Quarter!
Report on Form 1-Q for the period ended March 31, 2012, filed May 2@12).

10.2 Employment Agreement with Craig J. Brunet, datedil& 2012 (Incorporated by reference to Exhilfit2.2 to Newtek’s
Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the period ended March 31, 2012, filed May 2@12).

10.3 Employment Agreement with Jennifer Eddelson, ddtetk 1, 2012 (Incorporated by reference to ExAibil0 to Newtek'’s
Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the period ended June 30, 2012, filed Augu&012).

10.4 Lease and Master Services Agreement dated MarcBODg, between CrystalTech Web Hosting, Inc. an@®dta Centers

(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Ndvg&uarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarteded March 31, 2007, filed
May 15, 2007)

10.5.1 Loan and Security Agreement, dated as of AprilZ1,0, between CrystalTech Web Hosting, Inc., Nev@@siall Business
Finance, Inc. and Capital One, N.A. (Incorporatgddierence herein to Exhibit 10.16.1 to Newtekigi@nt Report on Form 8-K,
filed May 4, 2010)

10.5.2 Guaranty of Payment and Performance, dated as if 3y 2010, between Newtek Business Services,dnd Capital One Bank,
N.A. (Incorporated by reference herein to Exhilfit16.2 to Newte's Current Report on Forn-K, filed May 4, 2010)

10.6.1 Newtek Business Services, Inc. 2010 Stock Incertle@ (Incorporated by reference herein to ExHiBitl7 to Newte's Current
Report on Form-K, filed June 14, 2010

10.6.2 Form of ISO Stock Option Agreement for NewteR010 Stock Incentive Plan (Incorporated by refeeeherein to Exhibit 10.17
to Newtel's Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2010, filed Aug@2s2010)

10.6.3 Form of Non-ISO Stock Option Agreement for NewteRGLO Stock Incentive Plan (Incorporated by refeeemerein to Exhibit
10.17.3 to Newte's Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2010, filed Aug2s2010)

10.6.4 Form of Stock Appreciation Rights Agreement for Nieits 2010 Stock Incentive Plan (Incorporated by refeeeherein to Exhik
10.17.4 to Newte's Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2010, filed Aug@s2010

10.6.5 Form of Restricted Share Award Agreement for Nevgt@K10 Stock Incentive Plan (Incorporated by refiee herein to Exhibit
10.17.5 to Newte's Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2010, filed Aug@s®2010.’

10.7.1 Loan and Security Agreement, dated as of Decenthe?10, between Newtek Small Business Finance aimt Capital One
Bank, N.A. (Incorporated by reference herein toiBitt10.18.1 to Newtek’s Current Report on Form gfiked December 20,
2010, as amended on March 2, 20:

10.7.2 Guaranty Agreement, dated as of December 15, 2i#t@een Newtek Business Services, Inc. and CaDialBank, N.A.
(Incorporated by reference herein to Exhibit 1®18.Newtek’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed Betber 20, 2010, as
amended on March 2, 201
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10.7.3

10.7.4

10.7.5

10.8.1

10.8.2

10.8.3

10.9.1

10.9.2

10.9.3

10.10.1

10.10.2

211
23.1
311

31.2

32.1

32.2

101.SCH’
101.CAL*
101.LAB*
101.PRE’

Amended and Restated Loan and Security Agreematgdds of June 16, 2011, by and between Newtel Bosiness
Finance, Inc. and Capital One, N.A. (Incorporatgddierence herein to Exhibit 10.8.3 to Newtek'si€nt Report on Form 8-
K, filed June 21, 2011

Amended and Restated Guaranty of Payment and Rexfme, dated as of June 16, 2011, by and betwestekl8usiness
Services, Inc., and Capital One, N.A. (Incorpordigdeference herein to Exhibit 10.8.4 to NewtdRigrent Report on Form 8-
K, filed June 21, 2011

Amendment to Loan Documents, dated October 6, 2001 And among Newtek Small Business Finance, Gapjtal One
Bank, N.A. and each of the guarantors listed orstheature pages thereto (Incorporated by referbacein to Exhibit 10.8.5°
Newtel's Current Report on Forn-K, filed October 11, 2011

Newtek Small Business Loan Trust Class A Notesdi@tecember 22, 2010 (Incorporated by referenceimés Exhibit
10.19.1 to Newte's Current Report on Forn-K, filed December 23, 2010

Amended Newtek Small Business Loan Trust Class fedlalated December 29, 2011 (Incorporated byeeder herein to
Exhibit 10.19.2 to Newte's Current Report on Forn-K, filed January 5, 2012

Additional Newtek Small Business Loan Trust ClasBl@es, dated December 29, 2011 (Incorporated feyeece herein to
Exhibit 10.19.3 to Newte's Current Report on Forn-K, filed January 5, 2012

Loan and Security Agreement, dated as of Februgy2@11, by and between CDS Business ServicesamtSterling
National Bank (Incorporated by reference hereiBxhibit 10.10.1 to Newte's Current Report on Form 8-K, filed March 3,
2011).

Guaranty, dated as of February 28, 2011, by anddset Newtek Business Services, Inc. and SterlirtgpNal Bank
(Incorporated by reference herein to Exhibit 1®10.Newtel's Current Report on Forn-K, filed March 3, 2011)

Amendment No. 1, dated December 5, 2012, to LodrSaturity Agreement, dated as of February 28, 20i Aind between
CDS Business Services, Inc. and Sterling NatioralkB(Incorporated by reference herein to Exhibi®I®to Newteks Curren
Report on Form-K, filed December 11, 2012

Credit Agreement by and between Newtek Busines#@, Inc. and Several Lenders dated as of Apti®12 (Incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.10.1 to New's Current Report on Forn-K filed May 1, 2012)

Warrant issued to Summit Partners Credit AdvideiR,, dated April 25, 2012 (Incorporated by refereto Exhibit 10.10.1 to
Newtel's Current Report on Forn-K filed May 1, 2012)

Subsidiaries of the Registrant filed herew
Consent of CohnReznick LLP filed herewi

Certification by Principal Executive Officer reqed by Rule 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) under the Exgshawt, as amended
filed herewith.

Certification by Principal Financial Officer reqait by Rule 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) under the Exgdhéwct, as amended filed
herewith.

Certification by Principal Executive Officer pursudo 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursoadécttion 906 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002 filed herewitt

Certification by Principal Financial Officer pursudo 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursoadéttion 906 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002 filed herewitt

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Docum
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docuntr
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Labels Linkbase Docunr

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doent

* XBRL (eXtensible Business Reporting Languagepinfation is furnished and not filed or a part eégistration statement or prospectus
for purposes of sections 11 or 12 of the Securiietsof 1933, is deemed not filed for purposesetafton 18 of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended, and otherwise is not stibijdiability under these sectior
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatyp authorized.

NEWTEK BUSINESS SERVICES, INC.

Date: April 1, 2013 By: /s/ BARRY S LOANE
Barry Sloane
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Date: April 1, 2013 By: /s! JENNIFERE DDELSON
Jennifer Eddelson
Chief Accounting Officer
(Principal Financial Officer
and Principal Accounting Officer)

In accordance with the Exchange Act, this reposttheen signed below by the following persons oraliet the registrant and in the capacit
and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
/s/ BARRY S LOANE Chairman of the Board, President, Ct April 1, 2013
Barry Sloane Executive Officer and Secretary
(Principal Executive Officer
/s/ JENNIFERE DDELSON Chief Accounting Officer (Principe April 1, 2013
Jennifer Eddelson Financial Officer and Principal Accounting
Officer)
/s/ DAaviD C. BEcK Director April 1, 2013
David C. Beck
/s| SALVATORE M ULIA Director April 1, 2013

Salvatore Mulia

/sl SAMUEL K IRSCHNER Director April 1, 2013
Samuel Kirschner
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Newtek Business Services, Ii

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeets of Newtek Business Services, Inc. andidiakies’ as of December 31, 2012
and 2011 (Restated), and the related consolidédéehsents of income, changes in equity and cas¥sffor the years ended December 31,
2012, 2011 (Restated) and 2010. Newtek Businesscger Inc. and Subsidiariesianagement is responsible for these financialrsités. Ou
responsibility is to express an opinion on thesesotidated financial statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighafBioUnited States). Those standard:s
require that we plan and perform the audit to abtaasonable assurance about whether the consalifiancial statements are free of mat
misstatement. The Company is not required to hamewere we engaged to perform, an audit of itsrirdl control over financial reporting.
Our audit included consideration of internal cohtreer financial reporting as a basis for desigraniglit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of exprgssmopinion on the effectiveness of the Compamg&rnal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An autiibancludes examining, on a test basis, evidenpparting the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements, assessegdbounting principles used and significant edsanade by management, as well as
evaluating the overall consolidated financial steat presentation. We believe that our audits pievai reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetegeferred to above present fairly, in all matenégpects, the financial position of Newtek
Business Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries as ofrbleer31, 2012 and 2011 (Restated), and their sesfitiperations and cash flows for the
years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 (Restateddrfd in conformity with accounting principles geally accepted in the United States
America.

As described in Note 26 to the consolidated finalngtatements, the Company has restated its Dece8tib2011 consolidated financial
statements.

/s/ CohnReznick LLP

Jericho, New York
April 1, 2013
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NEWTEK BUSINESS SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

(In Thousands, except for Per Share Data)

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012, 2011 (RESTAED) AND 2010

Operating revenue
Electronic payment processi
Web hosting and desic
Premium incomt
Interest incom
Servicing fee incom— NSBF portfolio
Servicing fee incom— external portfolios
Income from tax credit
Insurance commissiot
Other income

Total operating revenut
Net change in fair value ¢
SBA loans
Warrants
Credits in lieu of cash and notes payable in csdditieu of casl
Total net change in fair valt
Operating expense
Electronic payment processing ca
Salaries and benefi
Interest
Depreciation and amortizatic
Provision for loan losse
Lease restructuring charg
Other general and administrative cc
Total operating expens
Income before income tax
Provision (benefit) for income tax
Net income
Net loss attributable to n-controlling interest:
Net income attributable to Newtek Business Seryibes

Weighted average common shares outstani
Basic

Diluted
Basic income per sha
Diluted income per shal

2011

2012 (Restated) 2010
$ 85,48: $ 82,47 $ 80,92(
18,20¢ 19,18: 19,16
12,36" 12,46¢ 2,42¢
3,42 2,62¢ 1,90:
2,29¢ 1,63¢ 1,78¢
4,564 1,46¢ 784
52z 1,39( 2,38(
1,20¢ 1,071 88¢€
3,061 3,02¢ 2,47(
131,13( 125,33¢ 112,71¢
(1,019 (5,497 3,49¢
(111) — —
3 (131) 38
(1,121 (5,624) 3,53:
72,18: 69,38¢ 68,18’
22,31« 21,04 19,39
4,49t 3,41¢ 4,47¢
3,03¢ 3,95¢ 4,70¢
81C 76% 1,90¢

— 99C —
17,73 18,13: 16,69¢
120,57( 117,68 115,37
9,43¢ 2,02¢ 871
3,88: (1,195 (41€)
5,55 3,22¢ 1,29t
86 112 144
$ 5,64 $ 3,33 $ 143¢
35,52! 35,70¢ 35,65¢
36,74, 36,07 35,80
$ 0.1¢ $ 0.0¢ $ 0.04
$ 0.1f $ 0.0¢ $ 0.0/

See accompanying notes to these consolidated falastatements.
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NEWTEK BUSINESS SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011 (RESTATED)
(In Thousands, except for Per Share Data)

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents (includes $1,865 —, respectively, related to VIE

Restricted cas

Broker receivabls

SBA loans held for investment, net (includes $10,8td $15,217, respectively related to securitizatiiust VIE;
net of reserve for loan losses of $2,589 and $2,&&pectively

SBA loans held for investment, at fair value (irdgs $22,931 and $19,617, respectively, relateddorgization
trust VIE)

Accounts receivable (net of allowance of $561 aB@iB$ respectively

SBA loans held for sale, at fair val

Prepaid expenses and other assets, net (inclugEa3dnd $1,211, respectively, related to secatitin trust VIE)

Servicing assets (net of accumulated amortizatimhadlowances of $6,750 and $5,964, respecti

Fixed assets (net of accumulated depreciation armtezation of $10,922 and $16,463, respectiv

Intangible assets (net of accumulated amortizaifdbil 3,855 and $13,226, respective

Credits in lieu of cas

Goodwill
Deferred tax asset, n
Total asset
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities:

Accounts payable, accrued expenses and otheiitie®
Notes payabli
Note payable Securitization trust VIE
Capital lease obligatio
Deferred revenu
Notes payable in credits in lieu of ce
Total liabilities

Commitments and contingenci

Equity:
Newtek Business Services, Inc stockhol’ equity:
Preferred stock (par value $0.02 per share; autharl,000 shares, no shares issued and outstal

Common stock (par value $0.02 per share; authoB2¢@DO0 shares, 36,913 and 36,701 issued; 35,178

and 35,702 outstanding, respectively, not includBghares held in escro

Additional paic-in capital

Retained earnings (accumulated deficit), (incluftegd66 and $—, respectively, related to consolihati
of VIE on January 1, 201.

Treasury stock, at cost (1,735 and 999 sharesecasply)

Total Newtek Business Services, Inc. stockho’ equity
Non-controlling interest:

Total equity
Total liabilities and equit

See accompanying notes to these consolidated falastatements.
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2011

2012 (Retstated)

$ 14,22¢ $ 11,20:
8,45¢ 14,22¢
16,69¢ 4,911
14,647 18,55¢
43,05¢ 21,85
10,871 8,18(
89¢ 2,19¢
11,01« 11,76:
4,68 3,42(
3,528 2,85:
1,55¢ 1,42(
8,70: 16,94¢
12,09: 12,09:
2,31¢ 17C
$152,74. $129,79!
$ 11,20¢ $ 12,12
39,821 13,56t
22,03¢ 26,36¢

632 —
1,43 1,634
8,70z 16,94¢
83,84( 70,64
73€ 734
60,60¢ 57,96(
7,00¢ (101)
(1,50¢) (620)
66,84 57,97:
2,05¢ 1,18(
68,907 59,15
$152,74.  $129,79:
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NEWTEK BUSINESS SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012, 2011 (RESTAED)AND 2010

(In Thousands)

Number
of Shares
Number of
Additional of Non-
Shares of Common Treasury Treasury controlling
Common Paid-in Retained
Stock Stock Capital Earnings Stock Stock Interest Total
Balance at December 31, 2009 36,67« $ 73 $57,30: $(4,979) 1,02¢ $ (64S) $ 1,61t $54,02
Stoclk-based compensatic — — 77 — — — — 77
Grant of restricted stock awa — — 4 — — — — 4
Option exercist 27 1 25 — 9 (14) — 12
Expiration of subsidiary non-controlling interes
warrants — — 242 — — — (262) (20)
Cumulative-effect adjustment, deconsolidation of
OnLAN, LLC — — — 99 — — — 9¢
Non-controlling interest contributio — — — — — — 10C 10C
Net income — — — 1,43¢ — — (144 1,29t
Balance at December 31, 20 36,70 734 57,65( (3,436 1,03t (663 1,30¢ 55,59
Issuance of treasury shal — — 27 — (49 59 — 8€
Purchase of treasury sha — — — — 13 (16) — (1€)
Grant of restricted stock awa — — 47¢ — — — — 47¢
Buyout of noi-controlling interes — — (19¢) — — — ()] (213
Net income (as restate — — — 3,33t — — (112) 3,22:
Balance at December 31, 2011 (as reste 36,70: 734 57,96( (207) 99¢ (620) 1,18( 59,15:
Cumulative-effect adjustment, consolidation of
Expo — — — 1,46¢ — — 2,29( 3,75¢
Deconsolidation of non-controlling interest for
EXxpcC's interest in subsidial — — (231) — — — (76¥%) (999)
Expiration of subsidiary non-controlling interest
warrants — — 337 — — — (337) —
Exercise of option 212 4 — — — — — 4
Issuance of treasury shal — — 25 — (67) 79 — 104
Purchase of treasury sha — — — — 803 (967) — (967)
Grant of restricted stock awa — — 49¢ — — — — 49¢
Issuance of warrant to Sumr — — 2,07( — — — — 2,07(¢
Purchase of n¢-controlling interes — — (52) — — — (224) (27%)
Net income — — — 5,64: — — (86) 5,551
Balance at December 31, 20 36,91 $ 73 $60,60¢ $ 7,00¢ 1,73t $(1,50) $ 2,055 $68,90:

See accompanying notes to these consolidated falastatements.
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NEWTEK BUSINESS SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012, 2011 (RESTAED) AND 2010
(In Thousands)

2011
2012 (Restated) 2010
Cash flows from operating activitie
Net income $ 5,551 $ 3,22¢ $ 1,29t
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net casbduis) provided by operating activitie
Income from tax credit (522) (1,390 (2,380
Accretion of interest expen: 52t 1,25¢ 2,41¢
Fair value adjustments on SBA lo¢ 1,01: 5,49: (3,499
Fair value adjustment of credits in lieu of casH antes payable in credits in lieu of c: ©)] 131 (38)
Fair value adjustment on warral 111 — —
Deferred income taxe (2,245 (2,877%) (639)
Depreciation and amortizatic 3,03¢ 3,95¢ 4,70¢
Accretion of discoun 247 — —
Provision for loan losse 81C 76% 1,90¢
Lease restructuring charg (297) 99C —
Other, ne 94¢€ 394 1,03
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Originations of SBA loans held for s¢ (83,349 (74,546 (782)
Originations of SBA loans transferred, subjectitenpium recours — (274 (30,757)
Originations of SBA loans, achieving sale st¢ — — (25,989
Proceeds from originations of SBA loans, achiewsat statu — — 25,98:
Proceeds from sale of SBA loans held for : 84,74: 73,87: —
Proceeds from sale of SBA loans, achieving sates — 27,85¢ —
Liability on SBA loans transferred, subject to prem recourst — (30,787 34,09
Broker receivabli (12,789 7,14¢ (5,59))
Accounts receivabl (2,766 (519 (4,982
Prepaid expenses, accrued interest receivablethed asset 3,24 (3,099 (45)
Accounts payable, accrued expenses, other liagsildnd deferred reven (597) 2,782 1,84¢
Other, ne (3,026 (2,98%) (817)
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activi (4,359 11,40¢ (2,209
Cash flows from investing activitie
Investments in qualified businest (1,657 — —
Returns of investments in qualified busines 238 242 23¢
Purchase of fixed assets and customer acci (3,055 (1,49¢) (2,079
SBA loans originated for investment, i (24,190 (22,269 (8,249
Payments received on SBA loc 4,99¢ 4,672 3,21
Change in restricted ca 1,441 1,23¢ 533
Purchase of nc-controlling interes (275) (19€) —
Net cash used in investing activiti (22,499 (17,810 (6,33€)

See accompanying notes to these consolidated falastatements.
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NEWTEK BUSINESS SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS—(Continued)

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012, 2011 (RESTAED) AND 2010

(In Thousands)

Cash flows from financing activitie
Net borrowings (repayments) on bank lines of cr
Increase in cash due to consolidation of
Proceeds from term loz
Payments on bank term note paye
Payments on senior not
Issuance of senior notes, net of issuance
Change in restricted cash due to debt refinan
Change in restricted cash related to securitiz:
Additions to deferred financing cos
Purchase of treasury sha
Other, ne
Net cash provided by financing activiti
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis
Cash and cash equivale—beginning of yea
Cash and cash equivale—end of yeal

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow activities
Cash paid for intere:

Cash paid for taxe

Non-cash investing and financing activities
Reduction of credits in lieu of cash and notes pleya credits in lieu of cash balances due toveeli of
tax credits to Certified Investo

Refinance of line of credit to term loi
Additional paid in capital, upon acquisition of sidiaries no-controlling interest:

Addition to assets and liabilities on January 11, 28s a result of consolidation of interests indhgntial
of New York, LLC
Assets
Liabilities
Equity
Addition to additional paid-in capital for warrargspired previously attributable to non-controlling
interests

Initial allocation of value issued to warrants isgun financing transactic

See accompanying notes to these consolidated falatatements.
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2011
2012 (Restated 2010
$18,387 $ 1,03 $ (3,107
2,76% — —
10,00( — 12,50(
(4179) (4179) (22,749
(4,567  (2,82) (299)
— 13,51 14,51(
— (750) —
5,05 (2,959 (4,16)
(1,246) — —
(967) (16) —
86¢ (364) (355)
29,88( 7,22¢ 6,34¢
3,02¢ 81¢ (2,199
11,20: 10,38: 12,58
$14,22¢  $11,20. $10,38:
$284¢ $ 1346 $ 1,28¢
$540. $128 $ 38
$ 9,36 $19,48: $21,18:
$ — $ — $ 2,08
$ — $ — $ 23¢
$276: & — $ —
7 — —
$275¢ $ — $ —
$ 33 $ — $ —
$19¢ $ — $ —
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NEWTEK BUSINESS SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1—DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS AND BASIS OF PRESENRATION:

Newtek Business Services, I. (“Newtek”) is a holding company for several wholBad majority-owned subsidiaries, including twelve
certified capital companies which are referreds¢@apcos, and several portfolio companies in witiehCapcos own non-controlling or
minority interests. The Company provides a “ongestbop” for business services to the small- andinmegized business market and uses
state of the art web-based proprietary technolodyeta low cost acquirer and provider of produnts services. The Company partners with
companies, credit unions, and associations to dfeservices.

The Company’s principal business segments are:

Electronic Payment ProcessingMarketing third party credit card processing andathapproval services to the small- and mediumdsize
business market under the name of Newtek MerchalatiSns.

Managed Technology SolutionsCrystalTech Web Hosting, Inc., d/b/a Newtek TecbgglServices (“NTS")pffers shared and dedicated v
hosting, data storage and backup services, clomgbating plans and related services to the smatl-raedium-sized business market.

Small Business FinanceThe segment is comprised of Newtek Small Businasaree, Inc. (‘“NSBF”), a nationally licensed, USSnall
Business Administration (“SBA”) lender that origies, sells and services loans to qualifying smaditesses, which are partially guaranteed
by the SBA and CDS Business Services, Inc. d/biatéleBusiness Credit (“NBC”) which provides recdil@afinancing and management
services.

All Other: Businesses formed from investments made througle&Caqgrams and others which cannot be aggregatbdther operating
segments, including insurance and payroll procgssin

Corporate Activities: Corporate implements business strategy, directgetiag, provides technology oversight and guidanocerdinates and
integrates activities of the segments, contractls alliance partners, acquires customer opporesjitind owns our proprietary NewTracRer
referral system. This segment includes revenue=apdnses not allocated to other segments, includiegest income, Capco management fee
income and corporate operations expenses.

Capco: Twelve certified capital companies which invessimall- and medium-sized businesses. They genesateash income from tax
credits and non-cash interest expense and insuexpemses in addition to cash management fees.

The Company determined that it was the primary fieiaey of an affiliated Capco company, ExponentéNew York, LLC (“Expo”),

resulting from an ownership change pursuant toatjmr of the LLC agreement and its ability to dirde activities of Expo that most
significantly impact the entity’s economic performea. The Company now includes Expo as a consotidaggable interest entity effective
January 2012, and holds a 39% interest in Exporahmining 61% is held by non-affiliates and isastted for as non-controlling interest. As
a result of the consolidation, a cumulative effedjustment to equity was required to recognizeptiegiously recognized interest in the newly
consolidated subsidiary. In addition, the Compamgening cash and accounts payable increased B§%H200 and $7,000, respectively,
reflecting the opening balance of Expo’s assetsliabdities. The opening equity was adjusted des:
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Number (Accumulated  Number
of Common Additional of Non-
Common Deficit) Treasury Treasury controlling
Shares Paid-in Retained
(In thousands Shares (at par) Capital Earnings Shares Shares Interest Total
Balance at December 31, 2011, as restated 36,70 $ 734 $57,96( $ (107 99¢ $ (620) $ 1,18C $59,15:
Cumulative effect adjustment to opening equity assailt
of Expo consolidatiol — — — 1,46¢ — — 2,29( 3,75¢

Adjusted balance at January 1, 2012, as restat 36,70 $ 734 $57,96( $ 1,36t 99¢ $ (620) $ 3,47C $62,90¢

The consolidated financial statements of Newtekifidss Services, Inc., its Subsidiaries and constdiientities (the “Company” or
“Newtek”) have been prepared by the Company in accordanbeasdbunting principles generally accepted in thédd States of America a
include all wholly- and majority-owned subsidiariesid several portfolio companies in which the @spmwn non-controlling interest, or those
variable interest entities of which Newtek is calesed to be the primary beneficiary. All inter-caamy balances and transactions have been
eliminated in consolidation. Non-controlling intste (previously shown as minority interests) aporeed below net income (loss) under the
heading “Net loss attributable to non-controllimgerests” in the consolidated statements of incanteshown as a component of equity in the
consolidated balance sheets. See New Accountimgi&tds for further discussion.

Non-controlling interests

Non-controlling interests in results of operationsohsolidated variable interest entities and majarivned subsidiaries represents the non-
controlling members’ share of the earnings or tifshie consolidated variable interest entities arajority-owned subsidiaries. The non-
controlling interest in the consolidated balanceesheflects the original investment by these nomtiolling members, along with their
proportional share of earnings or losses.

All financial information included in the tables the following footnotes is stated in thousandsegt per share data.

NOTE 2—SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:
Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statesméntonformity with accounting principles geneyaltcepted in the United States of Ame
requires management to make estimates and assasfiiat affect the reported amounts of assetsiabiities and disclosures of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the constditifinancial statements, and the reported amafresvenue and expense during the reporting
period. The level of uncertainty in estimates asgLianptions increases with the length of time uh#lunderlying transactions are complete.
The most significant estimates are with respewhtaation of investments in qualified businesseseaimpairment valuation, allowance for
loan losses, valuation of servicing assets, chhagpi-reserves, tax valuation allowances and the/éhile measurements used to value certain
financial assets and financial liabilities. Actuesults could differ from those estimates.

During 2012, the Company revised its estimatetieramortization period of the servicing asset. $8esee Note 5 to the Consolidated Final
Statements for a full discussion.

Revenue Recognitio
The Company operates in a number of different seggn&evenues are recognized as services are eghdled are summarized as follows:

Electronic payment processing revenueElectronic payment processing and fee income ivel@éfrom the electronic processing of credit anc
debit card transactions that are authorized antloaghthrough third-party networks. Typically, meaats are charged for these processing
services on a percentage of the dollar amountdf ansaction plus a flat fee per transactionta@®merchant customers are charged
miscellaneous fees, including fees for handlinggé#acks or returns, monthly minimum fees, statdrfees and fees for other miscellaneous
services. Revenues derived from the electronicgasiog of MasterCar®l and Vi8a sourced credit abd dard transactions are reported
gross of amounts paid to sponsor banks.
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Web hosting revenueManaged technology solutions revenue is primamdsivedd from monthly recurring service fees for tise of its web
hosting, web design and software support servicastomer setp fees are billed upon service initiation andraeognized as revenue over
estimated customer relationship period of 2.5 ydaagment for web hosting and related serviceduditgy cloud plans, is generally received
one month to one year in advance. Deferred revempeesent customer payments for web hosting dateceservices in advance of the
reporting period date. Revenue for cloud relatedises is based on actual consumption used byuwadaastomer.

Income from tax credits: Following an application process, a state will fyodi company that it has been certified as a Caple.state or
jurisdiction then allocates an aggregate dollar @amof tax credits to the Capco. However, such amh@muneither recognized as income
otherwise recorded in the financial statementsesihbas yet to be earned by the Capco. The Capentitled to earn tax credits upon satisfy
defined investment percentage thresholds withigifipd time requirements. Newtek has Capcos opegati five states and the District of
Columbia. Each statute requires that the Capcasirav¢hreshold percentage of “certified capitéfie(funds provided by the insurance comp
investors) in businesses defined as qualified withe time frames specified. As the Capco meetethequirements, it avoids grounds under
the statute for its disqualification for continugakticipation in the Capco program. Such a disdjaation, or “decertification” as a Capco
results in a permanent recapture of all or a poribthe allocated tax credits. The proportionhef possible recapture is reduced over time as
the Capco remains in general compliance with tgram rules and meets the progressively increasirggtment benchmarks. As the Capco
progresses in its investments in Qualified Busiesessd, accordingly, places an increasing propodfdhe tax credits beyond recapture, it
earns an amount equal to the non-recapturabler¢ahts and records such amount as income, withre@gonding asset called “credits in lieu
of cash” in the balance sheet.

The amount earned and recorded as income is dedrbly multiplying the total amount of tax creditlcated to the Capco by the percent

of tax credits immune from recapture (the earnedrme percentage) at that point. To the extenttheginvestment requirements are met ahea
of schedule, and the percentage of non-recaptutableredits is accelerated, the present valubeofax credit earned is recognized currently
and the asset, credits in lieu of cash, is accnepeitd the amount of tax credits deliverable todesified investors. The obligation to deliver tax
credits to the certified investors is recorded @®s payable in credits in lieu of cash. On the da¢ tax credits are utilizable by the certified
investors, the Capco decreases credits in lieast @ith a corresponding decrease to notes payabtedits in lieu of cash.

Sales and Servicing of SBA LoandNSBF originates loans to customers under the SBnam that generally provides for SBA guarantees c
50% to 90% of each loan, subject to a maximum guaeaamount. This guaranteed portion is generaltyt® a third party via an SBA
regulated secondary market transaction utilizind$®rm 1086 for a price equal to the guaranteed Braount plus a premium that includes
both an upfront cash payment and the fair valu@itofe net servicing income. Prior to October 11@0NSBF recognized the revenue item
“Premium on loan sales” net of capitalized loanenges and the discount on the retained unguaraptetdn; subsequent to the adoption of
fair value of SBA 7(a) loans on October 1, 2010BRS3ecognizes premium on loan sales as equal toasie premium plus the fair value of-
servicing income. Revenue is recognized on theetdade of the guaranteed portion, except as deschblow.

Upon recognition of each loan sale, the Comparginstservicing responsibilities and receives sargifees of a minimum of 1% of the
guaranteed loan portion sold. The Company is requip estimate its adequate servicing compensatitre calculation of its servicing asset.
The purchasers of the loans sold have no recoaorsetCompany for failure of customers to pay an®eontractually due.

Subsequent measurements of each class of serdissggs and liabilities may use either the amomizahethod or the fair value measurement
method. NSBF has chosen to apply the amortizatiethad to its servicing asset, amortizing the assptoportion to, and over the period of,
the estimated future net servicing income on traedging sold guaranteed portion of the loans aswssing the servicing asset for impairn
based on fair value at each reporting date. Iretlet future prepayments are significant or impaita are incurred and future expected cash
flows are inadequate to cover the unamortized senyiassets, additional amortization or impairne#rgrges would be recognized. In
evaluating and measuring impairment of servicirgptss NSBF stratifies its servicing assets basegeanof loan and loan term which are the
key risk characteristics of the underlying loanIso®he Company uses an independent valuationaldd estimate the fair value of the
servicing asset by calculating the present valuestimated future net servicing cash flows, usssuaptions of prepayments, defaults,
servicing costs and discount rates that NSBF bediewarket participants would use for similar as$EtdSBF determines that the impairment
for a stratum is temporary, a valuation allowargceecognized through a charge to current earnmghé amount the amortized balance
exceeds the current fair value. If the fair valfithe stratum were to later increase, the valuatitowance may be reduced as a recovery.
However, if NSBF determines that impairment fotratsim is other than temporary, the value of theismg asset and any related valuation
allowance is written-down
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SBA Loan Interest and Feesinterest income on loans is recognized as earnéoliis placed on non-accrual status if it excéildays past
due with respect to principal or interest and h@ opinion of management, interest or principalt@nloan is not collectible, or at such earlier
time as management determines that the collediabflisuch principal or interest is unlikely. Suclans are designated as impaired acnrual
loans. All other loans are defined as performirank When a loan is designated as impairedawandal, the accrual of interest is discontint
and any accrued but uncollected interest incomevisrsed and charged against current operationde Wloan is classified as impaired non-
accrual and the future collectability of the re@mdoan balance is doubtful, collections of inteeasd principal are generally applied as a
reduction to principal outstanding.

The Company passes certain expenditures it inoutgetborrower, such as force placed insurancaffin@nt funds fees, or fees it assesses,
such as late fees, with respect to managing the lbaese expenditures are recorded when incurred t®the uncertainty with respect to
collection of these passed through expendituressessed fees, any funds received to reimburgectimpany are recorded on a cash basis as
other income.

Insurance commissionsRevenues are comprised of commissions earned amyres paid for insurance policies and are recoghatehe
time the commission is earned. At that date, theiegs process has been completed and the Compangstimate the impact of policy
cancellations for refunds and establish reservies.réserve for policy cancellations is based othczal cancellation experience adjusted by
known circumstances.

Other income: Other income represents revenues derived from tipgnanits that cannot be aggregated with otheimags segments. In
addition, other income represents one time recesan gains on investments. Revenue is recorded thieee is strong evidence of an
agreement, the related fees are fixed, the seovipeoduct has been delivered, and the collectfaherelated receivable is assured.

» Receivable feeReceivable fees are derived from the funding (pasel of receivables from finance clients. NBC reings the revenue
on the date the receivables are purchased at amiage of face value as agreed to by the clierd.ddmpany also has arrangements witl
certain of its clients whereby it purchases thertls receivables and charges a fee at a speciftecbased on the amount of funds
advanced against such receivables. The funds mad\dck collateralized and the income is recogrezegarnec

» Late feesl ate fees are derived from receivables NBC hashasred that have gone over a certain period (usoady 30 days) without
payment. The client or the client’s customer isrgkd a late fee according to the agreement witltlieat and NBC records the fees as
income in the month in which such receivable becpsest due

» Billing fees:Billing fees are derived from billing-only (non-fince) clients. These fees are recorded when eamhéch occurs when the
service is rendere:

» Other feesThese fees include annual fees, due diligence fesmnination fees, under minimum fees, and othes facluding finance
charges, supplies sold to clients, NSF fees, véies find administration fees. These fees are chapedfunding, takeovers or liquidati
of finance clients. The Company also receives ca@gion revenue from various sourc

Electronic Payment Processing Cos

Electronic payment processing costs consist prallgipf costs directly related to the processingnafrchant sales volume, including
interchange fees, VISA and MasterCérd dues angsssnts, bank processing fees and costs paiddepaity processing networks. Such
costs are recognized at the time the merchantacéioss are processed or when the services arerperfl. Two of the most significant
components of electronic processing expenses iadhtdrchange and assessment costs, which arg #et bredit card associations.
Interchange costs are passed on to the entitynigshe credit card used in the transaction andsassent costs are retained by the credit card
associations. Interchange and assessment feesledepbimarily as a percent of dollar volume presed and, to a lesser extent, as a per
transaction fee. In addition to costs directly tedbto the processing of merchant sales volumetreleic payment processing costs also includ
residual expenses. Residual expenses represendieet® third-party sales referral sources. RedidMpenses are paid under various formula
as contracted. These are generally linked to reegderived from merchants successfully referradédCompany and that begin using the
Company for merchant processing services. Sucuakéexpenses are recognized in the Company’s tidated statements of income.
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Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investmesith maturities of three months or less when paseldl to be cash equivalents. Invested
cash is held almost exclusively at financial ingi@ns with ratings from S&P of A- or better. Ther@pany invests cash not held in interest fre
checking accounts or bank money market accountslyniai U.S. Treasury only money market instrumesrtéunds and other investmegitade
securities. As of December 31, 2012, cash depiosiiscess of FDIC deposit insurance and SIPC impgréotaled approximately $3,781,000
held in U.S. Treasury only money market funds anegjents in excess of SIPC insurance totaled agymately $1,849,000.

Restricted Casl

Restricted cash includes cash collateral relating letter of credit; monies due on SBA loan-ralatmittances and insurance premiums
received by the Company and due to third partiash dield by the Capcos restricted for use in magaad operating the Capco, making
qualified investments and for the payment of incaaxes; cash reserves associated with the seatiotiz cash held in blocked accounts used
to pay down bank note payables, cash held for ayrgll clients waiting to be remitted to their empes or taxing authority and a cash
account maintained as a reserve against electpayiment processing chargeback losses. Followiagismmary of restricted cash by segm

(In thousands): 2012 2011

Electronic payment processing $ 387 $ 284
Small business financ 4,30¢ 9,26¢
All other 67 164
Corporate activitie: 98¢ 1,06:
Capcos 2,71( 3,44¢
Totals $8,45¢ $14,22¢

Broker Receivable
Broker receivable represents amounts due from grartles for loans which have been traded at pesiwbibut have not yet settled.

Purchased Receivable

For clients that are assessed fees based on aidiszowell as for clients that are on a prime pdasschedule, purchased receivables are
recorded at the point in time when cash is rele&séde client. A majority of the receivables puashd with respect to prime plus arrangemen
are recourse and are sold back to the client il ayer 90 days, depending on contractual agreemuntshased receivables are included in
accounts receivable on the consolidated balanatshe

Allowance for Doubtful Account— Purchased Receivables

The allowance for doubtful accounts, related tachased receivables, is established by managenrength provisions for bad debts charged
against income. Amounts deemed to be uncollectitdecharged against the allowance for doubtful aetsoand subsequent recoveries, if any,
are credited to income.

The amount of the allowance for doubtful accoustsherently subjective, as it requires making maltestimates which may vary from actual
results. Managemeist'ongoing estimates of the allowance for doubtfgbants are particularly affected by the perforneaoicthe client in the
ability to provide the Company with future receilebcoupled with the collections of their currezteivables.

The allowance consists of specific and general amapts. The specific component relates to clieaggregate net balance that is classified a:
doubtful. The general component covers non-classifialances and is based on historical loss experie

A clients’ aggregate net balance is considered iragavhen, based on current information and evénitsprobable that the Company will be
unable to collect the receivable payments or the@my has greatly reduced the amount of receivablbe purchased.

The Company’s charge-off policy is based on a tl®nclient review for which the estimated uncotlble portion is charged off against the
corresponding client’s net balance and the allowdaoc doubtful accounts.
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Investments in Qualified Businesst

The various interests that the Company’s Capcosigec its qualified investments are accountedufioder three methods: consolidation,
equity method and cost method. The applicable atgoymethod is generally determined based on tirafany’s voting interest or the
economics of the transaction if the investee ismeined to be a variable interest entity.

Consolidation Methodnvestments in which the Company directly or indie owns more than 50% of the outstanding votiagusities, those
the Company has effective control over, or thossm to be a variable interest entity in whichGenpany is the primary beneficiary are
generally accounted for under the consolidatiorha@bf accounting. Under this method, an investidimtancial position and results of
operations are reflected within the Company’s ctidated financial statements. All significant iiempany accounts and transactions are
eliminated, including returns of principal, dividis) interest received and investment redemptioms.ré&sults of operations and cash flows of
consolidated operating entity are included throtighlatest interim period in which the Company odvaegreater than 50% direct or indirect
voting interest, exercised control over the erftitythe entire interim period or was otherwise deated as the primary beneficiary. Upon
dilution of control below 50%, or upon occurrendedriggering event requiring reconsiderationathe primary beneficiary of a variable
interest entity, the accounting method is adjustettie equity or cost method of accounting, as @mite, for subsequent periods.

Equity MethodInvestees that are not consolidated, but over wihielCompany exercises significant influence, amanted for under the
equity method of accounting. Whether or not the @any exercises significant influence with respedn investee depends on an evaluation
of several factors including, among others, repreg®n on the investee’s Board of Directors anaheship level, which is generally a 20% to
50% interest in the voting securities of the ineesincluding voting rights associated with the @amy’s holdings in common, preferred and
other convertible instruments in the investee. Witlde equity method of accounting, an investeet®ants are not reflected within the
Company'’s consolidated financial statements; howelie Company’s share of the earnings or loss#iseoihvestee is reflected in the
Company’s consolidated financial statements.

Cost MethodInvestees not accounted for under the consolidatidhe equity method of accounting are accourdedifider the cost method of
accounting. Under this method, the Company’s shhtke net earnings or losses of such companiestigicluded in the Company’s
consolidated financial statements. However, cogshattimpairment charges are recognized, as negedsdahe Company’s consolidated
financial statements. If circumstances suggestttigatalue of the investee has subsequently reedysuch recovery is not recorded until
ultimately liquidated or realized.

The Company’s debt and equity investments havetantislly been made with funds available to Newttalough the Capco programs. These
programs generally require that each Capco meeénianom investment benchmark within five years dfiad funding. In addition, any funds
received by a Capco as a result of a debt repayaresguity return may, under the terms of the Capograms, be reinvested and counted
towards the Capcos’ minimum investment benchmarks.

SBA Loans Held for Investmer

For loans that completed funding before Octob@010, SBA loans held for investment are reportatieit outstanding unpaid principal
balances adjusted for charge-offs, net deferrenl domination costs and the allowance for loandss$or loans that completed funding on or
after October 1, 2010, management elected to &irevSBA loans held for investment within the fatue hierarchy that prioritizes observable
and unobservable inputs utilizing Level 3 unobskleanputs which reflect the Company’s own expeactet about the assumptions that marke
participants would use in pricing the asset (intlgdassumptions about risk). The Company consitiergricing reflected in its securitization
activities to be the best indicator of the fairueatiscount used to measure loans held for invegtme

The fair value measurement, currently recordedas$% upfront discount of the unguaranteed prifdijpéance of SBA loans held for
investment, is based upon internal quantitativa datour portfolio with respect to historical ddfaates and future expected losses as well as
the investor price paid for the senior intereghim Companys unguaranteed loans with respect to the 2013 iti@edrtransactions, and adjus
for the estimated servicing and interest incomieetoetained by the trust over an estimated repaytaen of three years. This was further
adjusted to reflect the estimated default ratehensenior notes based on the default rate on thg&ay's loan portfolio, assuming a worst ¢
scenario of no recoveries. Should the performaffitieeounderlying loans to the senior notes chatigs could impact the assumptions used in
the estimated repayment term as well as the esdrdgfault rate and thus result in a higher or tasigcount rate taken in the future;
management reviews these assumptions reguladylodin measured at fair value is subsequently iregathen the fair value of the loan is
measured based on the present value of expecte@ ftash flows discounted at the loan’s effectnterest rate, or the fair value of the
collateral if the loan is collateral dependent. Bignificant unobservable inputs used in the falue measurement of the impaired loans
involve management’s judgment in the use of madkéd and third party estimates regarding collateahles. Such estimates are further
discounted by 20%—80% to reflect the cost of ligiidg the various assets under collateral. Any sgient increases or decreases in any of
the inputs would result in a corresponding decreasecrease in the reserve for loan loss or falug of SBA loans, depending on whether the
loan was originated prior or subsequent to Octdh@010. Because the loans bear interest at ablarate, NSBF does not have to factor in
interest rate risk.
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Allowance for SBA Loan Losse

For loans funded before October 1, 2010, the altmedor loan losses for performing loans is esstiell by management through provisions
for loan losses charged against income. The anaduhe allowance for loan losses is inherently satiye, as it requires making material
estimates which may vary from actual results. Manaent's ongoing estimates of the allowance for loases are particularly affected by the
changing composition of the loan portfolio over thst few years as well as other portfolio chanasties, such as industry concentrations and
loan collateral. The adequacy of the allowancddan losses is reviewed by management on a moh#tis at a minimum, and as adjustment:
become necessary, are reflected in operationsgith@periods in which they become known. Consté@ra in this evaluation include past :
anticipated loss experience, risks inherent inctiveent portfolio and evaluation of real estatdatetal as well as current economic conditions.
In the opinion of management, the allowance, whadpen as a whole, is adequate to absorb estimaaeddsses inherent in the Company’s
entire loan portfolio. The allowance consists &dfic and general components. The specific compbredates to loans that are classified as
either loss, doubtful, substandard or special mantror such loans that are also classified asineghaan allowance is established when the
discounted cash flows (or collateral value or obskele market price) of the impaired loan is lowsrt the carrying value of that loan. The
general component covers non-classified loans @bdsed on historical loss experience adjustedualitative factors.

Loans funded on or after October 1, 2010 are reszbad fair value. Changes in the value of suchdpamether performing or impaired, are
reported as a net change in the fair value of Si&#$ held for investment in the consolidated statéraf operations.

A loan is considered impaired when, based on ctiméormation and events, it is probable that tlerPany will be unable to collect the
scheduled payments of principal or interest whematicording to the contractual terms of the loaeement. Other factors considered by
management in determining impairment include payratzius and collateral value. Loans that expeedénsignificant payment delays and
payment shortfalls generally are not classifietgsaired. Management determines the significanqegfnent delays and payment shortfalls
on a case-by-case basis, taking into consideratlaf the circumstances surrounding the loan &edobrrower, including the length of the
delay, the reasons for the delay, the borroweits prayment record, and the amount of the shoritfiadélation to the principal and interest
owed.

Impairment of a loan is measured based on the preatue of expected future cash flows discountdti@loan’s effective interest rate, or the
fair value of the collateral if the loan is colleiedependent. Impaired loans for which the cagyamount is based on fair value of the
underlying collateral are included in assets aponted at estimated fair value on a rmecurring basis, both at initial recognition of iaiment
and on an on-going basis until recovery or chafjefdhe loan amount. The determination of impamhinvolves management’s judgment in
the use of market data and third party estimatgarding collateral values. For loans funded bef@ctober 1, 2010, the impairment of a loan
resulted in management establishing an allowancle#m losses through provisions for loan lossesgdd against income; for subsequent
loans at fair value, impairment results in a netraje in the fair value of SBA loans held for inwesnt. Amounts deemed to be uncollectible
are charged against the allowance for loan losse=sdoces the fair value and subsequent recovédriasy, are credited to the allowance or
increases the fair value.

The Company’s charge-off policy is based on a lbgitean review for which the estimated uncollecipbrtion of nonperforming loans is
charged off against the corresponding loan recégvaihd the allowance for possible loan losses aimagthe reduction in fair value.

SBA Loans Held For Sale

For guaranteed portions funded, but not yet tradexhch measurement date, management elected valize SBA loans held for sale within
the fair value hierarchy that prioritizes obsereaéhd unobservable inputs used to measure faie wallizing Level 2 assets. These inputs
include debt securities with quoted prices thatterded less frequently than exchange-traded im&tnts or have values determined using a
pricing model with inputs that are observable ia tharket. The secondary market for the guarantedips is extremely robust with broker
dealers acting as primary dealers. NSBF sells aglyuhto the market and can quickly price its Isdor sale. The Company values the
guaranteed portion based on market prices equhétguaranteed loan amount plus a premium thaidesl both an upfront cash payment
(utilizing quoted prices) and the value of a stradmpayments representing servicing income receivexkcess of NSBF’s servicing cost
(valued using a pricing model with inputs that abservable in the market).
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Loans receivable held for sale are sold with theisiag rights retained by the Company. For loamsdied prior to October 1, 2010, gains on
sales of loans are recognized based on the differbetween the selling price and the carrying vafuée related loans sold. Unamortized net
deferred loan origination costs are recognized @mgonent of gain on sale of loans. For loanséddnoh or after October 1, 2010, premiun
loan sales is equal to the cash premium plus thedhue of the servicing income while extinguishitihe fair value gain previously recorded.

Fixed Assets

Fixed assets, which are comprised of furniture fatidres and computer office equipment, land, baiggand improvements, are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and amortizationré&dégtion of fixed assets is provided on a stralgi# basis using estimated useful lives of
the related assets. Amortization of leasehold im@meents is provided on a straight-line basis uttiegesser of the useful life of the asset or
lease term. Useful lives of assets are: compufévare, website development, and servers and stqithgee years), computer and office
equipment and furniture and fixtures (generallyéhto five years).

Software and Website Development Cc

The Company capitalizes its website developmertsgosline application system, referral system atingr proprietary systems and computer
software. Costs incurred during the preliminaryj@cbstage are expensed as incurred, while apjaitatage projects are capitalized. The le
costs are typically employee and/or consulting isesrdirectly associated with the development efitibernal use computer software. Software
and website costs are included in fixed assetsaratcompanying consolidated balance sheets. Azaticin commences once the software is
ready for its intended use and is amortized udiegstraight-line method over the estimated uségyltypically three years.

Deferred Financing Cost:

Deferred financing costs are being amortized utitestraight-line method over the terms of theteglandebtedness, which approximates the
effective interest method and is included in indéexpense in the accompanying consolidated statsméincome.

Impairment of Lon¢-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets, including fixed assets and igitale assets, are reviewed for impairment whenevents or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may not be recabler. In reviewing for impairment, the carryingwalof such assets is compared to the
estimated undiscounted future cash flows expected the use of the assets and their eventual digpodf such cash flows are not sufficient
to support the asset’s recorded value, an impairgtearge is recognized to reduce the carrying vafube long-lived asset to its estimated fair
value. The determination of future cash flows a$§ agthe estimated fair value of long-lived asset®lves significant estimates on the part of
management. In order to estimate the fair value lohg-lived asset, the Company may engage apliry to assist with the valuation. If there
is a material change in economic conditions or otireumstances influencing the estimate of futash flows or fair value, the Company
could be required to recognize impairment chargdhke future.

Securitization Activities

NSBF engaged in a securitization of the unguaranpeetions of its SBA 7(a) loans in 2010 and 2(dcause the transfer of these asset:
not meet the criteria of a sale for accounting pags, it was treated as a secured borrowing. NSBfnties to recognize the assets of the
secured borrowing in Loans held for investment #nedassociated financing in Notes payable on theamated balance sheets.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill and other intangible assets deemed to haviedefinite life are not amortized and are scibje impairment tests, at least annually.
Other intangible assets with finite lives are anized over their useful lives ranging from 18 toriénths, and evaluated as discussed in Note
10.

The Company considers the following to be some gesnof indicators that may trigger an impairmeiew outside its annual impairment
review: (i) significant under-performance or logkey contracts acquired in an acquisition relativexpected historical or projected future
operating results; (ii) significant changes in thanner or use of the acquired assets or in the @oypoverall strategy with respect to the
manner or use of the acquired assets or changks @ompany’s overall business strategy; (iii) gigant negative industry or economic
trends; (iv) increased competitive pressures; @igaificant decline in the Company’s stock prioe & sustained period of time; and

(vi) regulatory changes. In assessing the recoiléyatif the Company’s goodwill and intangiblesgt@ompany must make assumptions
regarding estimated future cash flows and other
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factors to determine the fair value of the respectissets. These include estimation of future fiagls, which is dependent on internal
forecasts, estimation of the long-term rate of dhofer the Company, the useful life over which célstws will occur, and determination of the
Company’s cost of capital. Changes in these estisnatd assumptions could materially affect therdetation of fair value and conclusions
on goodwill impairment.

Reserve for Losses on Merchant Accoul

Disputes between a cardholder and a merchant peaitydarise as a result of, among other thingsdizalder dissatisfaction with merchandise
quality or merchant services. Such disputes mayeaatsolved in the merchant’s favor. In thesesabe transaction is “charged back” to the
merchant, which means the purchase price is retutathe customer through the merchaugitquiring bank and charged to the merchante
merchant has inadequate funds, the Company ory limded circumstances, the Company and the aogulvank, must bear the credit risk for
the full amount of the transaction. The Companywatas its risk for such transactions and estimigédgmotential loss for charge-backs based
primarily on historical experience and other rel@vactors.

The Company records reserves for charge-backsantthgent liabilities when such amounts are deetods probable and estimable. The
required reserves may change in the future duewodevelopments, including, but not limited to, mf@s in litigation or increased chargaek
exposure as the result of merchant insolvencyidafion, or other reasons. The required reserveseaiewed periodically to determine if
adjustments are required.

Share—Based Compensation

All share-based payments to employees are recafjimizhe financial statements based on their faines using an option-pricing model at the
date of grant. The Company recognizes compensatianstraight-line basis over the requisite serpeeod for the entire award. The
Company has elected to adopt the alternative tianshethod for calculating the tax effects of gshhased compensation. The alternative
transition method includes a simplified methoddtablish the beginning balance of the additional{racapital pool related to the tax effects
of employee share-based compensation, which isadaito absorb tax deficiencies.

Fair Value

The Company adopted the methods of fair value lwevids financial assets and liabilities. The Comypaarries its credits in lieu of cash,
prepaid insurance and notes payable in crediisindf cash at fair value. The Company also caimgmired loans and other real estate owne
at fair value. Fair value is based on the pricé Wauld be received to sell an asset or paid tasfiexr a liability in an orderly transaction betw
market participants at the measurement date. lerdodincrease consistency and comparability iniailue measurements, the Company
utilized a fair value hierarchy that prioritizessalovable and unobservable inputs used to measurafae into three broad levels, which are
described below:

Level 1 Quoted prices in active markets for identical assetiabilities. Level 1 assets and liabilitieslude debt and equity securities anc
derivative contracts that are traded in an actkahange market, as well as certain U.S. TreastingradJ).S. Government and
agency mortga¢-backed debt securities that are highly liquid aredastively traded in ov-the-counter markets

Level 2 Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, ssajuated prices for similar assets or liabilitiggoted prices in markets that are
not active; or other inputs that are observableaorbe corroborated by observable market dataufustantially the full term of the
assets or liabilities. Level 2 assets and liab#itinclude debt securities with quoted prices dinatraded less frequently than
exchange-traded instruments and derivative comstraabse value is determined using a pricing modktl iwputs that are
observable in the market or can be derived pritlgifieom or corroborated by observable market datsds category generally
includes certain U.S. Government and agency moetdpagked debt securities, corporate debt secyriterssative contracts and
residential mortgage loans h-for-sale.

Level 3 Unobservable inputs that are supported by littla@market activity and that are significant to thie value of the assets or
liabilities. Level 3 assets and liabilities inclufileancial instruments whose value is determinadgipricing models, discounted
cash flow methodologies, or similar techniquesyal as instruments for which the determinatioriaof value requires significal
management judgment or estimation. This categomgigdly includes certain private equity investmerg$ained residual interes
in securitizations, residential mortgage servigigts, and highly structured or lc-term derivative contract
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Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are computegdapon the differences between the financiabistant and income tax basis of assets and
liabilities using the enacted tax rates in effectthe year in which those temporary differencesespected to be realized or settled. If avail
evidence suggests that it is more likely than hat some portion or all of the deferred tax assétsot be realized, a valuation allowance is
required to reduce the deferred tax assets tonttwaiat that is more likely than not to be realized.

The Company’s U.S. Federal and state income taxneprior to fiscal year 2008 are closed, and mgament continually evaluates expiring
statutes of limitations, audits, proposed settldsiarhanges in tax law and new authoritative rgling

Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxe

The ultimate deductibility of positions taken ompexted to be taken on tax returns is often ungertaiorder to recognize the benefits
associated with a tax position taken (i.e., geheeatleduction on a corporation’s tax return), ¢ty must conclude that the ultimate
allowability of the deduction is more likely thaotnlf the ultimate allowability of the tax positiexceeds 50% (i.e., it is more likely than not),
the benefit associated with the position is recoephiat the largest dollar amount that has more @06 likelihood of being realized upon
ultimate settlement. Differences between tax pms#titaken in a tax return and recognized will galheresult in (1) an increase in income
taxes currently payable or a reduction in an incéemaefund receivable or (2) an increase in ardedetax liability or a decrease in a deferred
tax asset, or both (1) and (2).

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

As required by the Financial Instruments Topictaf Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”cAanting Standards Codification
(“ASC"), the estimated fair values of financial insnments must be disclosed. Excluding fixed asggtangible assets, goodwill, and prepaid
expenses and other assets (excluding as noted halabstantially all of the Company’s assets aabilities are considered financial
instruments as defined under this standard. Faievestimates are subjective in nature and arendigmé on a number of significant
assumptions associated with each instrument ompgobsimilar instruments, including estimates afadiunt rates, risks associated with specifi
financial instruments, estimates of future castwfi@and relevant available market information.

The carrying values of the following balance shiehs approximate their fair values primarily dogheir liquidity and short-term or
adjustable-yield nature:

e Cash and cash equivale

* Restricted cas

» Broker receivabli

» Accounts receivabl

* Notes payabli

» Accrued interest receivable (included in prepaidesses and other asse

* Accrued interest payable (included in accounts pleyand accrued expens

» Accounts payable and accrued expel
The carrying value of investments in Qualified Biesises (included in prepaid expenses and othasgsSeedits in lieu of cash and Notes
payable in credits in lieu of cash as well as SBank held for investment, SBA loans held for saA loans transferred, subject to premium

recourse and Liability on SBA loans transferredhjsct to premium recourse (for loans funded afegt&mber 30, 2010) approximate fair vi
based on management’s estimates.

New Accounting Standard

In July 2012, the FASB issued Accounting Standalddate (“ASU”) No. 2012-02, “Intangibles—Goodwilhd Other (ASC Topic 350):
Testing Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets for Inimaent,” which permits an entity to first assessalifative factors to determine whether it is
more likely than not that an indefinite-lived intable asset is impaired as a basis for determiningther it is necessary to perform the
guantitative impairment test in accordance withtSpiz 350-30 (ASU 2011-08). This new standard wigesctve for fiscal years beginning
after September 15, 2012; the Company is evalugi@egmpact of adopting of this standard, but itd$ anticipated to have a material impact
on the Company’s consolidated financial conditiomesults of operations.
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Reclassifications

Certain prior period amounts, including cash, refgtd cash, purchased receivables and client had# tith respect to the operations of NBC,
have been reclassified to conform to current yeasgntation. Purchased receivables, reduced b %20, are included in accounts
receivable and client hold back, reduced by $2(HI(,is included in accounts payable and accrupdreses on the consolidated balance she
Restricted cash was increased by $162,000 while was decreased by the same amount.

NOTE 3 — FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS:
Fair Value Option Elections

Effective January 1, 2008, the Company adopted/idire accounting concurrent with the electionhef fair value option. The accounting
standard relating to the fair value measuremeatsfiels the definition of fair value and descrilmesthods available to appropriately measure
fair value in accordance with GAAP. The accounstandard applies whenever other accounting stasdacliire or permit fair value
measurements. The accounting standard relatirtgetéatr value option for financial assets and ficiahliabilities allows entities to irrevocably
elect fair value as the initial and subsequent nreasent attribute for certain financial assets famahcial liabilities that are not otherwise
required to be measured at fair value, with chamyésr value recognized in earnings as they ocltwiso establishes presentation and
disclosure requirements designed to improve conildyabetween entities that elect different measuent attributes for similar assets and
liabilities.

On January 1, 2008, the Company elected the faievaption for valuing its Capcos’ credits in lieficash, notes payable in credits in lieu of
cash and prepaid insurance.

On October 1, 2010, the Company elected the fdirevaption for valuing its SBA 7(a) loans fundedamafter that date which are included in
SBA loans held for investment and SBA loans hefdstde.

The Company elected the fair value option in otdeeflect in its financial statements the assuongtithat market participants use in evaluz
these financial instruments.

Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on &ecurring Basis (In thousands):

Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2012 Usin

Total Gains
(In thousands): Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 and (Losses
Assets
Credits in lieu of cas $ 8,70 $— $8,70: $ — $ —
SBA loans held for investme 43,05¢ — — 43,05¢ (851)
SBA loans held for sal 89¢ — 89¢€ — (162)
Total asset $52,65¢ $— $9,59¢ $43,05¢ $ (1,019
Liabilities
Notes payable in credits lieu of cast $ 8,70 $— $8,70: $ — $ 3
Warrants — — — — (117)
Total Liabilities $ 8,70 $— $8,70 $ — $  (109)

Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on &ecurring Basis as (in thousands):

Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2011 Usin

Total Gains
(In thousands): Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 and (Losses
Assets
Credits in lieu of cas $16,94¢ $— 16,94¢ $ — $ —
SBA loans held for investme 21,85} — — 21,85% (2,397)
SBA loans held for sal 2,19¢ — 2,19¢ — 26&
SBA loans transferred, subject to premium reco — — — — (3,36€)
Total asset $41,000 $— $19,14¢ $21,857 $ (5,499
Liabilities
Notes payable in credits in lieu of ce $16,94¢ $— $16,94¢ $ — $  (13))
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Credits in Lieu of Cash, Prepaid Insurance and Notg Payable in Credits in Lieu of Cash

The Company elected to account for both creditieinof cash and notes payable in credits in liegash at fair value in order to reflect in its
consolidated financial statements the assumptiweitsmarket participant’s use in evaluating thesarfcial instruments.

Under the cost basis of accounting, the discourtrased to calculate the present value of thatsredieu of cash and notes payable in cre
in lieu of cash did not reflect the credit enhaneata that the Company’s Capcos obtained from Ghanit. (“Chartis”) (the renamed property
and casualty holdings of American International @ranc., “AlG”), namely its AA+ rating at such tamfor their debt issued to certified
investors. Instead the cost paid for the credibeckments was recorded as prepaid insurance antizzsdmn a straight-line basis over the
term of the credit enhancements.

With the adoption of the fair value measuremerftr@ncial assets and financial liabilities and éhection of the fair value option, credits in |

of cash and notes payable in credits in lieu oh@ae valued based on the yields at which finarcgtuments would change hands between &
willing buyer and a willing seller when the fornmiemot under any compulsion to buy and the latterat under any compulsion to sell, both
parties having reasonable knowledge of relevansfabe accounting standards require the fair valub®@fissets or liabilities to be determil
based on the assumptions that market participaatsnupricing the financial instrument. In develapthose assumptions, the Company
identified characteristics that distinguish mansatticipants generally, and considered factorsiipeaco (a) the asset type, (b) the principal (or
most advantageous) market for the asset group(camdarket participants with whom the reportingitgnvould transact in that market.

Based on the aforementioned characteristics amigtim of the Chartis credit enhancements, the Comppatieves that market participants
purchasing or selling its Capcos’ debt and, theeefiss credits in lieu of cash and notes payablerédits in lieu of cash, view nonperformance
risk to be equal to the risk of Chartis nonperfonaerisk and as such both the fair value of craditeu of cash and notes payable in credits i
lieu of cash should be priced to yield a rate etabmparable U.S. Dollar denominated debt insemtmissued by Chartis’ parent, AlG.
Because the value of notes payable in crediteindif cash directly reflects the credit enhancerobtdined from Chartis, the unamortized cos
relating to the credit enhancement will cease tedgarately carried as an asset on the Companysolidated balance sheets and is
incorporated in notes payable in credits in liewadh.
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Fair value measurements:

The Company’s Capcos’ debt, enhanced by Chartisanse, effectively bears the nonperformance risBhartis. The closest trading
comparators are the debt of Chartis’ parent, Alteréfore the Company calculates the fair valueotii the credits in lieu of cash and notes
payable in credits in lieu of cash using the yielflsarious AlG notes with similar maturities tocheof the Company’s respective Capcos’ deb
(the “Chartis Note Basket”). The Company electediszontinue utilizing AIG’s 7.70% Series A-5 Junfubordinated Debentures because
those long maturity notes began to trade with dtarstics of a preferred stock after AIG receifi@dncing from the United States
Government. The Company considers the Chartis Ragiket a Level 2 input under fair value accountsigge it is a quoted yield for a similar
liability that is traded in an active exchange nearkhe Company selected the Chartis Note Baskitteamost representative of the
nonperformance risk associated with the Capco rmeause they are Chartis issued notes, are actiaeled and because maturities match
credits in lieu of cash and notes payable in csdditieu of cash.

After calculating the fair value of both the credit lieu of cash and notes payable in creditgein bf cash, the Company compares their va
This calculation is done on a quarterly basis. @atton differences primarily due to tax creditegat versus delivery timing may cause the
value of the credits in lieu of cash to differ frahat of the notes payable in credits in lieu affcaBecause the credits in lieu of cash asset has
the single purpose of paying the notes payableddits in lieu of cash and has no other value @0Gbmpany, Newtek determined that the
credits in lieu of cash should equal the notes playia credits in lieu of cash.

On December 31, 2011, the yield on the Chartis Batgket was 5.53%. As of December 31, 2012, the tli@t Company revalued the asset
liability, the yields on the Chartis notes averadgei?% reflecting changes in interest rates imtlaeketplace. This decrease in yield increased
both the fair value of the credits in lieu of castd the fair value of the notes payable in craditeeu of cash. The Company decreased the
value of the credits in lieu of cash to equal thkie of the notes payable in credits in lieu ohdascause the credits in lieu of cash can only b
used to satisfy the liability and must equal thiugaf the notes payable in credits in lieu of cashll times. The net change in fair value
reported in the Company’s consolidated statemeritscome for the year ended December 31, 2012 wgasreof $3,000.

On December 31, 2010, the yield on the Chartis Batsket was 4.38%. As of December 31, 2011, the ttiet Company revalued the asset
liability, the yields on the Chartis notes avera§eiBB% reflecting changes in interest rates imtlaeketplace. This increase in yield decreased
both the fair value of the credits in lieu of castd the fair value of the notes payable in craditeeu of cash. The Company decreased the
value of the credits in lieu of cash to equal thkie of the notes payable in credits in lieu ohdascause the credits in lieu of cash can only b
used to satisfy the liability and must equal thiigaf the notes payable in credits in lieu of cashll times. The net change in fair value
reported in the Company’s consolidated statemefitecome for the year ended December 31, 2011 wassaof $131,000.

Changes in the future yield of the Chartis issuelt delected for valuation purposes will resulthianges to the fair values of the credits in liel
of cash and notes payable in credits in lieu ohaglsen calculated for future periods; these chamgébe reported through the Company’s
consolidated statements of income.

SBA 7(a) Loans

On October 1, 2010, the Company elected to utilieefair value option for SBA 7(a) loans fundedasrafter that date. Management believed
that doing so would promote its effort to both slifiypand make more transparent its financial staets by better portraying the true economi
value of this asset on its balance sheet and stateofiincome. NSBF originates, funds, and servigmsernment guaranteed loans under
section 7(a) of the Small Business Act. The SBAsdoat fully guarantee the SBA 7(a) Loans: An SBA)1(oan is bifurcated into a guarant
portion and an unguaranteed portion, each accintegest on the principal balance of such portiba per annum rate in effect from time to
time. NSBF originates variable interest loans, ligiset at a fixed index to the Prime rate thaetegjuarterly. Primarily, NSBF has made SBA
7(a) loans carrying guarantees of 75% and 85%; 2669 through early 2011 under a special prograost wf the loans NSBF originated
carried a guarantee of 90%. NSBF, both historicafigi as a matter of its business plan, sells theagteed portions via SBA Form 1086 into
the secondary market when the guaranteed porticonibes available for sale upon the closing and fulhding of the SBA 7(a) loan and
retains the unguaranteed portions. Management nezexjthat the economic value in the guaranteetigpodid not inure to NSBF at the time
of their sale but rather when the guaranty attachexdigination; amortization accounting by itsuratdoes not recognize this increase in value
at the true time when it occurred. Under fair vathe value of the guarantee is recorded wherom@mically occurs at the point of the crea
and funding of the loan, and is not delayed uhgl $ale occurs. Contemporaneously, the value afrtgaaranteed portion will also be
determined to reflect the full, fair value of ttoah.
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Although the fair value election is for the ent8BA 7(a) loan, the Company primarily sells the gméeed portions at the completion of
funding. The need to record the fair value fordiaranteed portion of the loan will primarily ocaunen a guaranteed portion is not traded at
period end (“SBA loans held for sale”). The ungudead portion retained is recorded under “SBA |dzeld for investment.”

SBA Loans Held for Investmer

For loans that completed funding before Octob@010, SBA loans held for investment are reportatieit outstanding unpaid principal
balances adjusted for charge-offs, net deferrenl domination costs and the allowance for loandss$or loans that completed funding on or
after October 1, 2010, management elected to &irevSBA loans held for investment within the fatue hierarchy that prioritizes observable
and unobservable inputs utilizing Level 3 unobskleanputs which reflect the Company’s own expeactet about the assumptions that marke
participants would use in pricing the asset (intlgdassumptions about risk). The Company consitiergricing reflected in its securitization
activities to be the best indicator of the fairusbtiscount used to measure loans held for invedtrs discussed in the Company’s 2011
Annual Report on Form 1K; the Company was able to securitize its unguasthportions of its SBA 7(a) loans and issued notes investc
with a S&P rating of “AA.”

The fair value measurement, currently recorded @8% upfront discount of the unguaranteed priridijpéance of SBA loans held for
investment, is based upon internal quantitativa datour portfolio with respect to historical ddfaates and future expected losses as well as
the investor price paid for the senior intereshim unguaranteed loans with respect to the 20L& isized transactions, and adjusted for the
estimated servicing and interest income to benethby the trust over an estimated repayment téthree years. This was further adjusted to
reflect the estimated default rate on the senitesibased on the default rate on our loan portfaBsuming a worst case scenario of no
recoveries. Should the performance of the undegligans to the senior notes change, this could ¢tip@ assumptions used in the estimated
repayment term as well as the estimated defawtanadl thus result in a higher or lower discourd taken in the future; management reviews
these assumptions regularly. If a loan measuréairatalue is subsequently impaired, then thevalue of the loan is measured based on the
present value of expected future cash flows distmliat the loan’s effective interest rate, or thie falue of the collateral if the loan is
collateral dependent. The significant unobservatpeats used in the fair value measurement of thgained loans involve management’s
judgment in the use of market data and third pastimates regarding collateral values. Such estisraate further discounted by 2—80% to
reflect the cost of liquidating the various assetder collateral. Any subsequent increases or deeeein any of the inputs would result in a
corresponding decrease or increase in the resertedn loss or fair value of SBA loans, dependingvhether the loan was originated prior or
subsequent to October 1, 2010. Because the loansriterest at a variable rate, NSBF does not baf&ctor in interest rate risk.

Below is a summary of the activity in SBA loansdhdr investment, at fair value (in thousands):

December 31, 201 December 31, 201
Balance, beginning of year $ 21,85" $ 2,31(
SBA loans held for investment, originat 24,07¢ 22,38¢
Payments receive (2,027) (44¢)
Fair value los! (851) (2,399
Balance, end of ye: $ 43,05¢ $ 21,85:

SBA Loans Held For Sal¢

For guaranteed portions funded, but not yet tradexhch measurement date, management elected valize SBA loans held for sale within
the fair value hierarchy that prioritizes obserea#hd unobservable inputs used to measure faie wallizing Level 2 assets. These inputs
include debt securities with quoted prices thatteded less frequently than exchange-traded im&nts or have values determined using a
pricing model with inputs that are observable ia tharket. The secondary market for the guarantedips is extremely robust with broker
dealers acting as primary dealers. NSBF sells aglyuhto the market and can quickly price its Isdor sale. The Company values the
guaranteed portion based on market prices equhétguaranteed loan amount plus a premium thaidiesl both an upfront cash payment
(utilizing quoted prices) and the value of a stredrmpayments representing servicing income receinekcess of NSBF's servicing cost
(valued using a pricing model with inputs that abservable in the market).
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Other Fair Value Measurements
Assets Measured at Fair Value on a Non-recurring Bsis are as follows (In thousands):

Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2012 Usin

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Losse!

Assets
Impaired loan: $ 6,96¢ $— $ — $ 6,96¢ $ (829
Other ree-estate owne 534 — 534 — (16¢)
Total asset $  7,49¢ $— $ 534 $ 6,96¢ $ (990

Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2011 Usin

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Losse!

Assets
Impaired loan: $ 6,97¢ $— $ — $ 6,97¢ $ (75))
Other ree-estate owne 46¢ — 46¢ — (43
Total asset $ 7,445 $— $ 46¢ $ 6,97¢ $ (799

Impaired loans

Impairment of a loan is measured based on the preatie of expected future cash flows discountdti@loan’s effective interest rate, or the
fair value of the collateral if the loan is colleibdependent. Impaired loans for which the cagyamount is based on fair value of the
underlying collateral are included in assets apdred at estimated fair value on a rresurring basis, both at initial recognition of iaignent
and on an on-going basis until recovery or charfj@f the loan amount. The significant unobsereahputs used in the fair value measurer

of the impaired loans involve management’s judgnietite use of market data and third party estimeggarding collateral values. Such
estimates are further discounted by 20%—80% tecethe cost of liquidating the various assets undiateral. Valuations in the level of
impaired loans and corresponding impairment atteetievel of the reserve for loan losses. Any sgbsat increases or decreases in any of th
inputs would result in a corresponding decreadaavease in the reserve for loan loss or fair vailu8BA loans, depending on whether the |
was originated prior or subsequent to October 1020

Other real-estate owned (included in Prepaid expers and other assets)

The estimated fair value of other real-estate owsedlculated using observable market informatiociuding bids from prospective
purchasers and pricing from similar market trarisastwhere available. The value is generally disted between 20-25% based on market
valuations as well as expenses associated withisgdhe Company'’s interests. Where bid informai®not available for a specific property,
the valuation is principally based upon recentgeation prices for similar properties that havenbsad. These comparable properties share
comparable demographic characteristics. Otherastate owned is generally classified within Levef 2he valuation hierarchy.

NOTE 4—CREDITS IN LIEU OF CASH:

As discussed in Note 3, the Company adopted féirevaption for financial assets and financial ligigis concurrent with its adoption of fair
value accounting for certain of its assets andlii@s. Following is a summary of the credits iad of cash balance as of December 31, 2012
and 2011 (in thousands):

2012 2011
Balance, beginning of year $16,94¢ $ 35,49¢
Add: Income from tax credit accretion (at fair &) 1,36( 1,39(
Less: Deliveries mac (9,362) (19,487
Fair value adjustmel (247) (454)
Balance, end of ye: $ 8,70¢ $ 16,94¢
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NOTE 5—SBA LOANS:

SBA loans are well diversified throughout numermdustries, but have a small concentration in #staurant industry, as well as geographic
concentrations in New York and Florida. On Octobg2010, the Company elected to utilize the falugaption for SBA loans funded on or
after that date creating a new loan pool, SBA |dald for investment, at fair value. The compon@ftSBA loans held for investment, at fair
value, and SBA loans held for investment, net,fd3exember 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows (inghods):

2012 2012 2011 2011
Fair Value Cost Basi Fair Value Cost Basi
Gross loans receivable $46,58: $18,31: $24,53¢ $22,83¢
Less: Allowance for loan loss — (2,589 — (2,900
Less: Deferred origination fees, t — (2,079 — (1,38))
Less: Fair value adjustme (3,530 — (2,679 —
Total $43,05¢ $14,64" $21,85; $18,55¢

The contractual maturities of SBA loans held fardstment are as follows (in thousands):

2012 2012 2011 2011

Fair Value Cost Basit Fair Value Cost Basit
Due in one year or less $ — $ 40 $ — $ 1,03t
Due between one and five yei — 4,53¢ — 3,39(
Due after five year 46,58¢ 13,74: 24,53t 18,41
Total loans receivable, gro $46,58¢ $18,31¢ $24,53¢ $22,83¢

All loans are priced at the Prime interest rates gpproximately 2.75% to 3.75%. The only loans iffxed interest rate are defaulted loans o
which the guaranteed portion sold is repurchasat the secondary market by the SBA, while the urantaed portion of the loans still
remains with the Company. As of December 31, 20122011, net SBA loans receivable held for investiméth adjustable interest rates
totaled $58,382,000 and $40,475,000, respectively.

For the years ended December 31, 2012 and 201Cdmpany funded $107,425,000 and $97,129,000 mslaad sold approximately
$84,743,000 and $73,871,000 of the guaranteedopasfithe loans, respectively. Receivables fronm$omaded but not settled of $16,698,000
and $4,911,000 as of December 31, 2012 and 204dectvely, are presented as broker receivabledratcompanying consolidated balance
sheets.

As of December 31, 2012, $15,030,000 of the guaeghportion of SBA loans and $28,523,000 of theuangnteed portion of SBA loans
collateralized the current outstanding balancehenGompany’s line of credit with Capital One an® 350,000 of the unguaranteed portions o
SBA loans transferred via our securitization tratisa collateralized the notes issued by the Trust.

The outstanding balances of loans past due ovda®€ and still accruing interest as of DecembefB812 and 2011 totaled $1,128,000 and
$516,000, respectively.

Loans by industry and geographic concentrationababunted for more than 5% of the outstandingggimsns receivable held for investment
balance as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 werdlaw$qin thousands):

2012 2011
Industry

Restaurant $4,56¢ $2,25¢
State

New York $8,17¢ $5,61¢
Florida 7,161 7,13¢
New Jerse 5,62¢ 3,362
Texas 5,05¢ 3,302
California 4,58¢ 4,17(
Georgia 4,57¢ 3,007
Pennsylvani: 3,45: 1,54¢€*
Connecticu 3,43¢ 1,78(*
Louisiana 2,547 2,50¢

(*) Amounts shown for comparative purposes and reptéssmnthan 5%
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Below is a summary of the activity in the allowarfieeloan losses for the years ended December@®Il2 2nd 2011 (in thousands):

2012 2011
Balance, beginning of year $ 2,90( $ 3,55¢
Provision for loan losse 82¢ 763
Loans charge-off (1,169 (1,449
Recoveries 29 22
Balance, end of ye: $ 2,58¢ $ 2,90(

At December 31, 2012 and 2011, total impaired nmraal loans amounted to $6,965,000 and $6,978r@8pectively, of which $1,212,000
were on a fair value basis at December 31, 20E2ettvere no corresponding impaired loans on avédire basis at December 31, 2011. Fol
years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, averagecbadf impaired nc-accrual loans was $6,935,000 and $8,404,000, casply.
Approximately $2,204,000 and $2,428,000 of thevedince for loan losses and $126,000 and $— of SBA/édue discount were allocated
against such impaired non-accrual loans, respégtive

Had interest on these impaired non-accrual loars becrued, such interest would have totaled $807a6d $490,000 for 2012 and 2011,
respectively. Interest income, which is recogniaadh cash basis, related to the impaired non-alcoaas for the years ended December 31,
2012 and 2011, was not material.

NOTE 6—ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE:
Accounts receivable consists of the following at®maber 31, 2012 and 2011:

2012 2011

Purchased receivables $ 7,59¢ $4,92:
Electronic payment processing settlement recei: 2,182 2,37¢
Customer receivable 1,58: 1,15¢
Other receivable 68 34
11,43: 8,48¢

Allowance for doubtful accoun (567) (30¢)
Total $10,87: $8,18(

NOTE 7—INVESTMENTS IN QUALIFIED BUSINESSES:

Included in prepaid expenses and other assetsearotisolidated balance sheets are certain inverimequalified businesses, which are
presented separately below between their debt quityecomponents, and a summary of the activitytfieryears ended December 31, 2012
2011 (in thousands):

Held to maturity debt investments comprised thogmgyiterm loans totaling $1,532,000 at DecembefB12 with original principal balances
totaling $1,851,000, and interest rates ranginmf4025% to 6.00%. At December 31, 2011, the Comjbeaaly

F-23



Table of Contents

one loan with an outstanding balance of $13,0008 w4t original principal of $200,000 and intereseraf 4.25%. Following is a summary of
activity for the years ended December 31, 201224d.:

2012 2011
Principal outstanding, beginning of year $ 13 $ 26C
Investments made during 20 1,651 —
Return of principal, net of recoveri (132 (247)
Principal outstanding, end of ye $1,532 $ 13

The Company has a 49% ownership interest in oniyeapethod investment with a balance of $175,00Detember 31, 2012. The original
amount invested was $800,000. A summary of actfaitythe years ended December 31, 2012 and 2044 fisllows:

2012 2011
Total equity investments, beginning of year $131 $10E
Equity in earning: 44 _ 26
Total equity investments, end of ye $17E $131

The Company has not guaranteed any obligationesftinvestees, and the Company is not otherwisenitted to provide further financial
support for the investees. However, from time-toetj the Company may decide to provide such additifimancial support which, as of
December 31, 2012 was zero. Should the Companyndiete that impairment exists upon its periodic egyiand it is deemed to be other than
temporary, the Company will write down the recorgatlie of the asset to its estimated fair valueraedrd a corresponding charge in the
consolidated statements of income. During 2012Chpany made additional investments in two heleh&burity debt instruments totaling
$1,651,000. One of the loans, a $551,000 Bidcosiment in an SBA loan, is currently partially fuddepon full funding, which is anticipated
to occur in 2013, the guaranteed portion will bielsburing the years ended December 31, 2012 afhd,2e Company received $132,000
$247,000 in principal repayments on its debt inwestts, respectively.

NOTE 8—SERVICING ASSETS:

The Company reviews capitalized servicing rightsiigpairment. This review is performed based ok sigata, which are determined on a
disaggregated basis given the predominant riskachenistics of the underlying loans. The predomimesk characteristics are loan terms and
year of loan originatior

The following summarizes the activity pertainings&rvicing assets for the years ended Decemb&@03®, and 2011 (in thousands):

2012 2011
Balance, beginning of year $3,42( $2,22¢
Servicing assets capitaliz 2,05( 1,971
Servicing assets amortiz: (78¢) (77€)
Balance, end of ye: $4,68: $3,42(

For the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 arj 26dvicing fees received on the Company’s SBA @(ginated portfolio totaled
$2,297,000, $1,629,000 and $1,785,000, respectiTély Company also performs servicing functionsoams originated by other SBA lende
The Company does not retain any risk on such gm$fend earns servicing fees based upon a mutoediptiated fee per loan. The total
servicing fee income recognized for loans servicedthers in 2012, 2011 and 2010 was $4,564,000,6%,000 and $784,000, respectively.
The carrying value of the capitalized servicingeasgas $4,679,000 and $3,416,000 at December 32, &0d 2011, respectively, while the
estimated fair value of capitalized servicing rgghtas $6,067,000 and $3,958,000 at December 32,&@d 2011, respectively. The estimated
fair value of servicing assets at December 31, 2042 determined using a discount rate of 11%, vetghverage prepayment speeds ranging
from 1% to 14%, depending upon certain charactesisf the loan portfolio, weighted average life5o80 years, and an average default rate ¢
5%. The estimated fair value of servicing asseBemtiember 31, 2011 was determined using a discatabf 14%, weighted average
prepayment speeds ranging from 1% to 12%, depenging certain characteristics of the loan portfoleighted average life of 3.94 years,
and an average default rate of 6%.
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The unpaid principal balances of loans servicedfbers are not included in the accompanying cadestgld balance sheets. The unpaid
principal balances of loans serviced for othersiwithe NSBF originated portfolio were $271,548,@0@ $235,909,000 as of December 31,
2012 and 2011, respectively. The unpaid principddtces of loans serviced for others which wereoriginated by NSBF and are outside of
the Newtek portfolio were $176,988,000 and $136,800 as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively

NOTE 9—FIXED ASSETS:
The Company'’s fixed assets are composed of thevioly at December 31, 2012 and 2011 (in thousands):

2012 2011
Computer and office equipment $ 3,08: $3,767
Furniture and fixture 63¢€ 67¢
Leasehold improvemen 384 40¢
Computer software and webs 4,17¢ 3,70¢
Computer servers and store 5,531 10,75¢
Leased propert 632 —

14,44¢ 19,31¢
Accumulated depreciation and amortizat (10,929 (16,469
Net fixed asset $ 3,628 $ 2,858

Depreciation and amortization expense for fixeg&skr the years ended December 31, 2012, 2012@HIwas $1,619,000, $1,816,000 and
$2,451,000, respectively.

During 2012, the Company leased certain phone eggrip with a term of three years. The useful lifehaf equipment was estimated to be
between 7 — 10 years and includes a bargain purctiament at lease expiration. As a result, theseietion has been recorded as a capital
lease. The capitalized cost of the lease trangaetas $632,000; during 2012 the Company recordpdbapnately $3,800 in associated
amortization.

Included in computer software and website are redasts associated with internally developed safev The following table summarizes the
activity for capitalized software development cdststhe years ended December 31, 2012 and 20%khdirsands):

2012 2011
Balance, beginning of year $ 3,23¢ $ 2,912
Additions 421 328
Balance, end of ye: 3,65¢ 3,23t
Less: accumulated amortizati (2,957) (2,629
Software development costs, | $ 704 $ 60€

NOTE 10—GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLES:
The net carrying value of goodwill as of Decembgrd012 and 2011 by segment is as follows (in taods):

2012 2011
Electronic payment processing $ 3,004 $ 3,00«
Web hosting 7,20z 7,20z
Corporate activitie: 17¢ 17¢
Small business financ 1,70¢ 1,70¢
Total goodwill $12,09: $12,09:

Other intangible assets as of December 31, 2012@hd are comprised of the following (in thousands)

2012 2011
Customer merchant accounts $14,12¢ $ 14,09¢
Customer insurance accou 74C —
Trade name (indefinite livec 55C 55C

15,41 14,64¢
Accumulated amortizatio (13,859 (13,226
Net intangible asse $ 1,55¢ $ 1,42
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During 2012, the Company acquired a portfolio gfragimately 340 health-related insurance policas$#740,000; NIA is servicing this book
of business. The Company has accounted for thisdidion as a business combination and the adguisibst has been recorded as an
intangible asset to be amortized over its estimasadul life, or 60 months. The Company estimakedfair value of the asset using a
discounted cash flow analysis which resulted imlaation that approximated the purchase pricegthars no goodwill associated with this
transaction.

Customer merchant accounts are being amortizedao®Brto 66 month period. Other intangibles (exicigdhe trade name which has an
indefinite life and is subject to annual impairmestiew) are being amortized over a period ran@iom 18 to 36 months. Total amortization
expense included in the accompanying consolidatgdraents of income for the years ended Decemhe&2@P, 2011 and 2010 was $629,(
$1,363,000 and $1,582,000, respectively.

Total expected amortization expense for the neetfiscal years is as follows (in thousands):

Merchant Insurance
December 31 Accounts Accounts
2013 $ 20t $ 14¢
2014 41 14¢
2015 12 14¢
2016 4 14¢
2017 — 14¢€

$ 262 $  74C

Based upon the Compasyperformance of the impairment tests using thevidue approach of the discounted cash flow metttmCompan
determined that goodwill was not impaired for tlears ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010. &getirs ended December 31, 2012 an
2011, there was no impairment related to its custamerchant accounts; for the year ended Decenthe203.0, impairments on customer
merchant accounts totaled $25,000 and was inclind@epreciation and amortization in the accompaggionsolidated statements of income.
The Company’s intangible trade name, CrystalTecl Westing, has an indefinite life and is assesseahally for impairment.

NOTE 11—ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES:

The following table details the components of actsyayable, accrued expenses and other liabiéiti@&=cember 31, 2012 and 2011
(Restated) (in thousands):

2011

2012 (Restated
Due to participants and SBA (a) $ 1,961 $ 1,99«
Due to clients (b 357 48(
Accrued payroll and related expen: 27€ 2,01t
Deferred ren 1,29: 1,61¢
Chargeback reserwvi 911 72€
Deposits and other resery 1,557 602
Residuals and commissions payz 1,04t 1,11¢
Current tax payabl 50z 95t
Other 3,30¢ 2,621
Total accounts payable, accrued expenses andl@hidities $11,20¢ $12,127

(&) Primarily represents loan related remittances veceby NSBF, and due to third parties; amounts elisssified as restricted ca:
(b) Composed primarily of discount client holdbaek<CDS which represents the difference betweenetwivables the Company purchases
less the actual amount the Company releases wiéme, net of the discount fee and other misceltars fees charged to the clie

F-26



Table of Contents

NOTE 12—NOTES PAYABLE:
At December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company hadtiemmy debt outstanding comprised of the followiingthiousands):

2012 2011
Notes payable
Capital One lines of credit (NSB|
Guaranteed lin $12,00( $ 5,35¢
Unguaranteed lin 11,85« 3,00¢
Summit Partners Credit Advisors, L.P. (NE 8,28¢ —
Sterling National bank line of credit (NB( 6,67 3,77
Capital One term loan (NT 1,00i 1,42¢
Total notes payabl 39,82 13,56¢
Note payable Securitization trust VIE 22,03¢ 26,36¢
Total notes payabl $61,86: $39,93:

On April 26, 2012, the Company closed a $15,00086€ond Lien Credit Facility (the “Facility”) isstiy Summit Partners Credit Advisors,
L.P. (“Summit”),comprised of a $10,000,000 term loan, which was/drat closing, and a $5,000,000 delayed draw tean to be made upc
the satisfaction of certain conditions. The $5,000,second tranche of this loan will not be drawrte Company. The funds were used
primarily for general corporate purposes including origination of SBA 7(a) loans. The loan beatsriest at 12.5% per annum on the amoun
outstanding plus payment-in-kind interest at 2.8#tich can either be paid quarterly in arrears afeaicto the outstanding loan amount. The
Facility will mature in 5.5 years and can be prdpaithout penalty at any time following the sec@whiversary of the closing date.

In addition to a second lien on all of the Compargssets behind the first lien held by Capital ®h4,, the principal lender to the Company’s
SBA lender, NSBF, Summit was given second-lien stguarantees by each of the Company’s princigadidiaries: NTS and Universal
Processing Services of Wisconsin, LLC, as wellextain other smaller subsidiaries. The Companyalss committed to attempt to obtain the
approval of the SBA for NSBF to provide a guaraitsummit of the Company’s obligations.

Total closing fees were approximately $1,033,00@&ctvincluded a 3% fee paid to Summit on the aggeegmount of the Facility, as well as
legal, accounting and other closing related costislwwere recorded as deferred financing costsaamartized over the life of the facility. The
majority of these fees were paid at closing antededgainst the initial draw down. Net cash prosaedeived at closing were $9,353,000.

In addition, the Company issued to Summit a wamreptesenting the right to purchase 1,696,810 comshares, or 4.4% of the Company’s
current outstanding common equity. The warrankes@sable at $0.02 per share, included registratghts and antdilution protection, whicl
has been subsequently removed. Summit is prohibibed selling any common shares it receives onasgerof the warrant for a period of 24
months following the closing; provided, howeveattif the Company’s common shares trade at or aBa\&5 per share for a period of fifteen
consecutive days, Summit will have the ability ¢tl the common shares. Any sales by Summit wilsblgject to a right of first refusal in favor
of the Company. The Facility calls for financialbemants such as minimum EBITDA, maximum capitalestures, minimum unrestricted
cash and cash equivalents, minimum tangible nethwaord maximum leverage.

In accordance with ASC 470 and ASC 815, the acdogrior these warrants reflects the notion thatatesideration received upon issuance
must be allocated between the debt and the warzemponents based on the relative fair values ofléi instrument without the warrants and
of the warrants themselves at time of issuance Jvildreant was originally recorded as a liabilityedo an anti-dilution provision and was
marked to market on the first reporting date, areJ80, 2012. The remainder of the proceeds wasald to the debt instrument portion of the
transaction. As such, the note was initially valae#8,041,000, and the difference of $1,959,00 allmcated to the value of the warrants anc
recorded as debt discount, which is being amortizest the life of the note using the interest mdthoebt discount amortization for the year
ended December 31, 2012 was $241,000, and is itludinterest expense in the Company’s consolist@tement of income. The warrant
was replaced and the anti-dilutive provision wamaeed to reflect management and Summit’s origimalaustanding and intent related to the
warrants. As a result, subsequent to July 1, 2B2warrants were reclassified to a component oitgqnd will no longer be marked to
market.
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Through December 31, 2012, the Company has cagith$$1,033,000 of deferred financing costs attablet to the Summit facility of which
$129,000 has been amortized and included in irtesgeense. The net balance of $904,000 is inclinedepaid expenses and other assets in
the Company'’s consolidated balance sheet.

Total interest expense related to the Summit fimanfor the year ended December 31, 2012 was $0822which includes interest, payment-
in-kind interest, discount on the valuation of tharant and amortization of deferred financing sost

NBC had a $10,000,000 line of credit with Wellsdgwa(‘Wells”) due in February 2012. This facility wasaasto purchase receivables and for
other working capital purposes. In February 201BCNentered into a three year line of credit withriidg National Bank (“Sterling”) in an
amount up to $10,000,000. This facility paid of Wells line of credit and is and will be used toghase receivables and for other working
capital purposes. In December 2012, an amendmensigaed providing that upon the occurrence ob@egvents, the maximum amount of
the line of credit under the Agreement can be msed from $10,000,000 to $15,000,000 at a later gadn NBC's request. The Amendment
also extended the maturity date from February 88420 February 28, 2016.

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, NBC had $6,6D4a0@ $3,777,000 outstanding under the lines aficr€he Sterling interest rate is se
5.00% or Prime plus 2.00%, whichever is higherhwiterest on the line to be paid monthly in arsedihe line is and will be collateralized by
the receivables purchased, as well as all othetsas$ NBC. The line is guaranteed by the Companggdition, the Company deposited
$750,000 with Sterling to collateralize the guaenfThe agreement includes such financial coversntsinimum tangible net worth and
maximum leverage ratio. The Company is subjectéeting a maximum leverage ratio test and a futetdass test. As of December 31, 2012,
the Company was in compliance with the financialer@nts set in this line.

Total interest expense for the years ended Dece81he012, 2011 and 2010 was approximately $333$283,000 and $258,000,
respectively. The weighted average effective irsterate for the year ended December 31, 2012 wid86.Through December 31, 2012, NBC
has capitalized $144,000 of deferred financingsatiributable to the Sterling line of which $64)0tas been amortized. The net balance of
$80,000 is included in other assets in the accogipgreonsolidated balance sheet. Amortization fieryears ended December 31, 2012, 201
and 2010 was $35,000, $57,000 and $24,000, respbgtand is included in interest expense in ttmpagpanying consolidated statements of
income.

In October 2007, NTS entered into a Loan and SgcAdgreement with Capital One which provided fareaolving credit facility of up to
$10,000,000 available to both NTS and the Compfamyg term of two years. The interest rate was LUB@us 2.5% and the agreement
included a quarterly facility fee equal to 25 bgsints on the unused portion of the Revolving @realculated as of the end of each calendar
guarter. The agreement included such financial mants as a minimum fixed charge coverage raticaaméximum funded debt to EBITDA.
NTS capitalized $65,000 of deferred financing castsbutable to the Capital One line. In connattigth the loan, on October 19, 20

Newtek Business Services, Inc. entered into a Gyt Payment and Performance with Capital OnekBard entered into a Pled
Agreement with Capital One pledging all NTS stoskcallateral. In October 2009, the $2,500,000 heew under the Capital One line of cre
converted to a three year term loan with a leviglgipal repayment under the terms of the line efiar

In April 2010, the Company closed two five-yeantdpans aggregating $14,583,000 with Capital Onglo€h $12,500,000 refinanced
Newtek Small Business Finar's debt to General Electric Commercial Capital (“6G&nd $2,083,000 refinanced the pre-existing tkram
between Capital One and NTS. The interest ratd@2010 NTS term loan is variable based on the niywhiBOR rate plus 4.25% or Prime
plus 2.25%, but no lower than 5.75%. The agreeimehtdes such financial covenants as a minimundfisiearge coverage ratio and minimum
EBITDA; the Company guarantees the term loan. Tdlarize of the NTS term loan is included in notesapée on the consolidated balance
sheet. As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, $1,00800061,424,000 of the note was outstanding, réispgc The weighted average effective
interest rate at December 31, 2012 was 5.75%.dsités paid in arrears along with each monthlygpal payment due. Total interest expense
for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 an@ a3 approximately $70,000, $94,000 and $101 @3pectively. Amortization
associated with the deferred financing costs aitaible to the Capital One line and term loansterytears ended December 31, 2012, 2011 a
2010 was $10,000, $9,000 and $6,000, respectigalys included in interest expense in the accogipgrconsolidated statements of income.

The refinancing to NSBF supported the lending djeana of NSBF by providing working capital. Theen¢st rate on the note was set at Prime
plus 2.25% or LIBOR plus 4.25%, not less than 5.7%®&al interest expense for the year ended DeceBhe2010 was $435,000. In
connection with the refinancing, the Company inedr$329,000 of deferred financing costs which wasréized into interest expense over a
five year period. In December 2010, in connectidgtinwhe securitization of the NSBF unguaranteedfplio, the remaining principal balance
under this term note of $9,903,000 was paid indatl the balance of the deferred financing cos&280,000 was fully amortized.
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Also in December 2010, NSBF entered into a revgharedit facility with Capital One N.A. for $6,0@MO0 collateralized by the guaranteed
portion of SBA 7(a) loans originated. Upon meetiegtain requirements, NSBF has the right to ine@eéhs maximum amount under the
facility by $6,000,000 which was exercised in Magfi. 1. The credit facility is used to fund thosetipms of SBA 7(a) loans made by NSBF
that are guaranteed by the SBA, with funds recearethe sale of those guaranteed portions of th&® BB) loans by NSBF reducing the
facility. In June 2011, NSBF obtained from Capi@ade an increase in its total revolving credit fiagiirom $12,000,000 to $27,000,000. In
October 2011, the term of the revolver was exterigedine months through September 2013, at whink the outstanding balance will be
converted into a three year term loan. This inaéashe line will enable the Company to financ¢hlihe government-guaranteed and non-
guaranteed portions of SBA 7(a) loans. As of Decam®, 2012, NSBF had $23,854,000 outstanding uth@édines of credit. The interest rate
on the $12,000,000 portion of the facility, collaézed by the government guaranteed portion of SB# loans, is set at Prime plus 1.00%,
and there is a quarterly facility fee equal to 25ib points on the unused portion of the revolreglit calculated as of the end of each calend:
quarter. The interest rate on the $15,000,000qurodf the facility, collateralized by the non-gusteed portion of SBA 7(a) loans, is set at
Prime plus 1.875%, and there is a quarterly fgciée equal to 25 basis points on the unused podidhe revolving credit calculated as of the
end of each calendar quarter. The agreement irgliigncial covenants at the parent company lewdl itg consolidated subsidiaries
including a minimum fixed charge coverage rationimum EBITDA requirements and minimum cash requaata held at Capital One. As of
December 31, 2012, the Company was in compliantetive financial covenants set in this line.

Total interest expense for the years ended DeceB81he&012 and 2011 was $392,000 and $376,000,athaplg. Through December 31, 2012,
NSBF has capitalized $446,000 of deferred financiogts attributable to the credit line of which 8280 has been amortized. The balanc
$166,000 is included in other assets in the accogipg consolidated balance sheet.

In December 2010, NSBF engaged in a securitizatidhe unguaranteed portions of its SBA 7(a) lodmshe securitization, it used a special
purpose entity (Newtek Small Business Loan Trugi020 or the “Trust”) which is a VIE. Applying th@usolidation requirements for VIEs
under the accounting rules in ASC Topic 860, Trarssénd Servicing, and ASC Topic 810, Consolidatidrnich became effective January 1,
2010, the Company determined that as the primamgfi@ary of the securitization vehicle, based trpiower to direct activities through its r
as servicer for the Trust and its obligation tocbsosses and right to receive benefits, it neadambnsolidate the securitization into its
financial statements. NSBF therefore consolidatedentity using the carrying amounts of the Truassets and liabilities: NSBF continues to
recognize the assets in loans held for investmmehtr@cognize the associated financing in Bank nodgsble.

During the year ended December 31, 2010, NSBFfeeesl SBA loans held for investment of $19,615,60@ agreed to transfer $3,000,000
of future SBA loans held for investment when oraid, to the Trust which in turn issued notestiergar amount of $16,000,000 against the
assets. The notes were sold at a dollar priceéisalted in gross proceeds before reserve accandtfransaction expenses of $15,392,000. S
Note 5— SBA loans, above, for a description of the loand loan balances.

In December 2011, NSBF entered into a Supplemémehture by which the original $16,000,000 of sé@ation notes were amended to
reflect a new initial principal amount of $12,88000as a result of principal payments made, andiaddl notes were issued in an initial
principal amount of $14,899,000, so that the ihdiggregate principal amount of all notes as ofddalger 31, 2011 totaled $27,779,000. The
notes were backed by approximately $40,500,008efihguaranteed portions of loans originated are toriginated by NSBF under the SBA
loan program. The notes retained their AA ratindenmS&P, and the final maturity date of the amenu&es is March 22, 2037. The initial
proceeds of the transaction were used to repay debitthe balance of the $5,000,000 prefundingwattomas used to originate new loans.
Deferred financing costs associated with both @eatiens total $1,516,000 at December 31, 2012 a¢w$393,000 has been amortized. The
balance of $1,123,000 is included in prepaid expgeasd other assets on the accompanying consalilatence sheet. At December 31, 2012
the assets (before reserve for loan losses anduticand liabilities of the consolidated Trusatetl $35,964,000 and $22,039,000,
respectively.

The Trust is only permitted to purchase the unguasd portion of SBA 7(a) loans, issue asset-baskedrities, and make payments on the
securities. The Trust only issued a single seriegcurities to pay for the unguaranteed portibasquired from NSBF and will be dissolved
when those securities have been paid in full. Timaary source for repayment of the debt is the dlsis generated from the unguaranteed
portion of SBA 7(a) loans owned by the Trust; pifiat on the debt will be paid by cash flow in exxe$ that needed to pay various fees rel

to the operation of the Trust and interest on #iat.dThe debt has an expected maturity of aboutesixs based on the expected performance
the underlying collateral and structure of the
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debt and a legal maturity of 30 years from the d&issuance. The assets of the Trust are legedlpied and are not available to pay NSBF's
creditors. However, NSBF continues to retain rightsash reserves and residual interests in thet @nd will receive servicing income. For
bankruptcy analysis purposes, NSBF sold the ungteed portions to the Trust in a true sale andltist is a separate legal entity. The
investors and the Trusts have no recourse to aNS&F's other assets for failure of debtors to wégn due; however, NSBF's parent,
Newtek, has provided a limited guaranty to the &oEs in the Trust in an amount not to exceed 10%eooriginal issuance amount |
$2,778,000), to be used after all of the assetseoTrust have been exhausted. The notes werealiggtiean AA rating from S&P based on the
underlying collateral.

Total expected principal repayments for the nes fiscal years and thereafter are as followsH@usands):

December 31 Notes Payabl Capital Lease Total
2013 $ 13,40 $ 19¢ $13,60:
2014 4,547 211 4,75:
2015 3,951 222 4,17:
2016 9,63¢ — 9,63¢
2017 8,28¢ — 8,28¢
Thereaftel 22,03¢ — 22,03¢
$ 61,86: $ 632 $62,49:

NOTE 13—NOTES PAYABLE IN CREDITS IN LIEU OF CASH:
Each Capco has separate contractual arrangemehttheiCertified Investors obligating the Capcartake payments on the Notes.

At the time the Capcos obtained the proceeds ftanissuance of the Notes, Capco warrants or Comgamynon shares to the Certified
Investors, the proceeds were deposited into esaomaunts which required that the insurance corgtitaetconcurrently and simultaneously
purchased from the insurer before the remainingg®ds could be released to and utilized by the €&fiee Capco Note agreements requir
a condition precedent to the funding of the Noked insurance be purchased to cover the risks iassdavith the operation of the Capco. This
insurance is purchased from Chartis Specialty Brsee Company and National Union Fire Insurance Gompf Pittsburgh, both subsidiaries
of Chartis, Inc. (Chartis), an international insufhartis and these subsidiaries are “A+” cregliéd by S&P. In order to comply with this
condition precedent to the funding, the Notes dlgss structured as follows: (1) the Certified Ist@s wire the proceeds from the Notes
issuance directly into an escrow account; (2) swa@v agent, pursuant to the requirements undeXdhe and escrow agreement, automatic
and simultaneously funds the purchase of the ime@raontract from the proceeds received. The Naffesing cannot close without the
purchase of the insurance, and the Capcos arentité@ to the use and benefit of the net proceedsived until the escrow agent has
completed the payment for the insurance. Undetelmas of this insurance, the insurer incurs thepary obligation to repay the Certified
Investors a substantial portion of the debt as ag&lio make compensatory payments in the evenlogsaof the availability of the related tax
credits. The Coverage A portion of these contrawkes the insurer primarily obligated for a portafrihe liability.

The Capcos, however, are secondarily, or contimgdiable for such payments. The Capco, as a ssyrobligor, must assess whether it t
contingency to record on the date of issuance anday reporting date thereafter until the insunakes all their required payments. As of
December 31, 2012, the insurer has made all ad¢heduled cash payments under Coverage A, therthi@@ontingent liability of the
Company has been extinguished.

The Coverage B portion of these contracts providethe payment of cash in lieu of tax creditstia event the Capco becomes decertified.
Capcos remain primarily liable for the requirementieliver tax credits (or make cash paymentsen &f tax credits not delivered).

Although Coverage B protects the Certified Invests described above, the Company remains primiatille for the portion of this

obligation. This liability has been recorded asesgtayable in credits in lieu of cash, represerttiegpresent value of the Capcos’ total liability
it must pay to the Certified Investors. Such amauititbe increased by an accretion of interest eggeduring the term of the Notes and will
decrease as the Capcos pay interest by delivdrentak credits, or paying cash.

As discussed in Note 3, the Company adopted fadirevaption for financial assets and liabilities corrent with its adoption fair value
accounting effective January 1, 2008 for valuingé$gayable in lieu of cash with the exception dfsWire Advisers, LLC. Following is a
summary of activity of Notes payable in creditdiéu of cash balance for the years ended Decemhe2(@®.2 and 2011 (in thousands):
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2012 2011

Balance, beginning of year $16,94¢ $ 35,49¢
Add: Accretion of interest expen 522 1,39(
Less: Deliveries of tax credi (9,367) (19,487
Fair value adjustmel 59¢ (459
Balance, end of ye: $ 8,70: $ 16,94¢

Under the Note agreements, no interest is paith&yapcos in cash provided that the Certified ltoregeceive the uninterrupted use of the
credits. The Certified Investors acknowledge, i lote agreements, that the insurer is primargpoasible for making the scheduled cash
payments as provided in the Notes.

NOTE 14—NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS:

The non-controlling interests held by the invesiegbe form of warrants entitle the holders toghase, for a $0.01 exercise price, an interest
in a Capco or Capco fund. The values ascribeddaavdrrants issued to the Certified Investors aedriBurer have been recorded as non-
controlling interests. In addition, certain non-tolling interests have already been acquired hyomity stockholders. A portion of the initial
proceeds received from the Certified Investordlexated to the warrants using a discounted cash fhethod. The following is the aggregate
percentage interest of the non-controlling stoctterd in each respective Capco or Capco fund agoémber 31, 2012 and 2011 (in
thousands):

Capco or Capco Fund % Interest 2012 2011
WP, Florida 0.8(% $ — $ 33C
WLA, Louisiana 3.7¢% — 9
WAP, Alabame 0.6(% 7 9
Total Capcc 7 34¢
WNYIV, New York — — 76¢
Expo New York — 2,32¢ —
Other — (27¢) 63
Total $2,05¢ $1,18(

During 2012, unexercised warrants that had entiitdders to interests in five Capcos expired. Assallt, the non-controlling interest balance
as of the expiration date, approximately $339,008 reclassified to additional paid-in capital.

The non-controlling interest under WNYI1V relatedNBC, a subsidiary of WNYIV, which had converted 10,000 of debt payable to
Exponential of New York, LLC (“Expo”)a related party, to preferred stock in 2007. Du@f§2, Expo, which is 61% minority owned, becs
a consolidated subsidiary due to a trigger eveiiprl 2011, and there is no longer a direct nontoalling interest related to WNYIV.

In addition, in December 2012 a non-controllingenesst in UPS sold their 0.9683% interest back @ocGbmpany for $275,000.
NOTE 15—COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES:

Operating and Employment Commitments

The Company leases office space and other offin@atent in several states under operating leasseagnts which expire at various dates
through 2019. Those office space leases whichaairmbre than one year generally contain sched@etincreases or escalation clauses.

The following summarizes the Company’s obligatiansl commitments, as of December 31, 2012, for éuttinimum cash payments required
under operating lease and employment agreementtsofisands):
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Operating Employment

Year Leases * Agreements Total

2013 $ 3,39: $ 31€ $3,70¢
2014 2,57: — 2,57:
2015 1,38¢ — 1,38¢
2016 594 — 594
2017 514 — 514
Thereaftel 391 — 391
Total $ 8,857 $ 31€ $9,16¢

* Minimum payments have not been reduced by minimuinlesise rentals of $1,933,000 due in the futureundr-cancelable sublease
Rent expense for 2012, 2011 and 2010 was approaiy®®,459,000, $3,748,000 and $2,971,000, respgti

Under the terms of a service agreement betweenitdPErchant processor and a sponsoring bank, §RSfjuired to pay minimum fees
during each 12-month period, as defined in theiseragreement, to the merchant processor and spogd@nk. The minimum fees for the 12-
month period ending November 30, 2012, are to blgq at least $1,500,000 and in future years lequat least 95% of the fees paid during
the preceding 12-month period or $1,500,000, whigtr amount is greater. The Company’s fee paynfentee 12-month period ended
November 30, 2012, exceeded the minimum requiresbiatbrunder the agreeme

Legal Matters

In the ordinary course of business, the Company fnay time to time be party to lawsuits and claifise Company evaluates such matters o
a case by case basis and its policy is to conigstausly any claims it believes are without confipglmerit. The Company is currently
involved in various litigation matters. Managembas reviewed all legal claims against the Compaitly @ounsel and has taken into
consideration the views of such counsel, as tmtheome of the claims, and on that basis the Cognpas determined that it is “reasonably
possible” that claims will result in a loss in thear term which it estimates to be between $100ad@0$500,000.

NOTE 16—TREASURY STOCK:

Shares of common stock repurchased by us are extatcdcost as treasury stock and result in a remfuof equity in our consolidated balance
sheet. From time-to-time, treasury shares may issued as part of our stock-based compensationgrsy When shares are reissued, we ust
the weighted average cost method for determinirsg ddhe difference between the cost of the sharddhee issuance price is added or dedt
from additional paid-in capital.

In November 2011, the Newtek Board of Directorspdd a stock buy-back program authorizing managéitnesnter the market to re-
purchase up to 1,000,000 of the Company’s commareshThis 1,000,000 share authorization repldezsitexercised portions of two
previous authorizations and will terminate in oy As of December 31, 2012, the Company purchasethl of 802,920 treasury shares
under this authorization. The Company reissued&iband 49,813 shares in 2012 and 2011, respectimetpnnection with the Company’s
401k match program. In addition, 472,814 sharetswviieae held by an affiliate were issued to the Canypin 2008 as settlement of an
outstanding liability and are being held as tregsinares.

NOTE 17—INCOME PER SHARE:

Basic income per share is computed based on thghteei average number of common shares outstandiiggdthe period. The dilutive effect
of common share equivalents is included in theutaton of diluted income per share only when tfieat of their inclusion would be dilutive
(in thousands, except for per share data).
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YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2011

The calculations of Net Income Per Share wer¢ 2012 (Restated 2010
Numerator:
Numerator for basic and diluted E—income available to common

stockholder $ 5,648 $ 3,33t $ 1,43¢
Denominator
Denominator for basic EF—weighted average shar 35,52: 35,70¢ 35,65¢
Denominator for diluted EF—weighted average shar 36,74 36,07: 35,80:
Net income per share: Bas $ 0.1€ $ 0.0¢ $ 0.0¢
Net income per share: Dilutt $ 0.1f $ 0.0¢ $ 0.0¢

The amount of anti-dilutive shares/units excludearf above is as follows (in thousands):
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,
2012 2011 2010

Stock options — 85€ 88¢
Warrants 50 50 50
Contingently issuable shar 83 83 83

NOTE 18—INCOME FROM TAX CREDITS:

Each Capco has a contractual arrangement withteydar state or jurisdiction that legally entitltse Capco to earn and deliver tax credits
(ranging from 4% to 11% per year) from the statgidsdiction upon satisfying certain criteria.fiacal 2012, 2011 and 2010, the Company
recognized income from tax credits resulting fréma accretion of the discount attributable to taedis earned in prior years. As the tax credit
are delivered to the Certified Investors, the aba&tnce is offset against notes payable in cr@ditsu of cash. As discussed in Note 3, the
Company adopted fair value accounting concurrentily the adoption of fair value option for finank#&ssets and financial liabilities on
January 1, 2008 to value its credits in lieu othchalance. As a result, the income from tax craclitetion for the years ended December 31,
2012, 2011 and 2010 has been recorded at fair vaheetotal income from tax credits recognizedeimenues in the consolidated statements o
income was $522,000, $1,390,000 and $2,380,00théoyears ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2848k atively.

NOTE 19—INCOME TAXES:
Provision (benefit) for income taxes for the yeamsled December 31, 2012, 2011(Restated) and 2@BXdadlows (in thousands):

2011
2012 (Restatec 2010
Current:
Federa $ 4,511 $ 41F $—
State and loce 1,51¢ 1,26: 13C
6,03( 1,67¢ 13C
Deferred:
Federa (1,73)) (2,447 (46€)
State and loce (4179) (432) (82
(2,14%) (2,877) (54¢)
Total provision (benefit) for income tax $ 3,882 $(1,195) $(41¢)

A reconciliation of income taxes computed at th8.Uederal statutory income tax rate (35% in 2@t 34% in 2011 and 2010) to the
provision (benefit) for income taxes for the yeansied December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 is as ®imrhousands):
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2011
2012 Benefit 2010
Provision (Restated Benefit
Provision (benefit) for income taxes at U.S. fetlstatutory rate of 35%

(2012) and 34% (2011 and 201 $ 3,304 $ 68¢ $ 29¢
State and local taxes, net of federal ber 72C 734 19t
Permanent difference 46 (80) (84)
Deferred tax asset valuation allowance decr (18%) (3,056 (670
Other 3 51¢ (157)

Total provision (benefit) for income tax $ 3,88 $(1,199) $(41€)
Deferred tax assets and liabilities consisted efftilowing at December 31, 2012 and 2011 (in thods):
2012 2011

(Restated
Deferred tax asset
Net operating losses and capital los $ 7,161 $ 7,63t
Prepaid insuranc 472 813
Loan loss reserves and discou 1,30¢ 1,051
Flow through of deferred items from investmentsjuralified businesse 52z 61¢
Deferred compensatic 59¢ 347
Loss on investmen 257 257
Interest payable in credits in lieu of c¢ 1,30¢ 1,611
Depreciation and amortizatic 1,38: 1,99:
Other 1,32: 1,58¢
Total deferred tax assets before valuation allow:i 14,32 15,917
Less: Valuation allowanc (6,870 (7,05%)
Total deferred tax asse 7,45% 8,851
Deferred tax liabilities
Credits in lieu of cas (4,57)) (8,127)
Deferred incom (569 (56%)
Total deferred tax liabilitie (5,139 (8,687
Net deferred tax ass $ 2,31¢ $ 17C

As of December 31, 2012, the Company had grossreled®Ls of approximately $5,956,000 and state landl NOLS of approximately
$50,263,000 which will begin to expire in 2020, &#J549,000 of capital losses which will begin exg in 2013. The Federal NOLs are
attributable to NOLs at NSBF, SBL and NBC, of whible NOLs at NBC have a full valuation allowandewhnce and the NOLs at NSBF,
subject to IRC Section 382 limitations, have aiphvaluation allowance. The SBL NOL has a fullwation allowance as the entity currently
does not have sufficient taxable income to useéNt®é. Included in the $50,263,000 state and locaLN&a $47,900,000 NYC NOL that the
Company believes it will not use before expiratéond, therefore, has a full valuation allowance.

Realization of the deferred tax assets is depermtegenerating sufficient taxable income in futpears. The Company has a valuation
allowance of approximately $6,870,000 and $7,095&90f December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectivélg.decrease in the valuation
allowance of $185,000 represents a release in tiatuallowance at NBC for use of the portion of M@L attributable to current year taxable
income, a release in valuation allowance relatddS8F Section 382 NOL that the Company believésntore likely than not that it will use,
offset by an increase in the valuation allowaneeCfapco related flow through items that the Compaglieves it is more likely than not it will
not use in the future.

The Company analyzed its tax positions taken oin Fetleral and state tax returns for the open &tg/2009, 2010 and 2011, and used three
levels of analysis in determining whether any utaisties existed with respect to these positiom first level consisted of an analysis of the
technical merits of the position, past adminisiafiractices and precedents, industry norms anaritial audit outcome. The second level of
analysis was used to determine if the threshold-€rtttan 50%) was met for the tax filing positiomeTthird level of analysis consisted of
determining the probable outcome once it was détemuthat the threshold was met for the tax filpugition. Based on our analysis, the
Company determined that there were no uncertaipaaitions and that the Company should prevail upamination by the taxing authoriti
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The Company’s operations have been extended to jottiedictions. This extension involves dealinglwiincertainties and judgments in the
application of tax regulations in these jurisdino The final resolution of any tax liabilities atependent upon factors including negotiations
with taxing authorities in these jurisdictions aedolution of disputes arising from federal, statd local tax audits. The Company recognizes
potential liabilities associated with anticipated tiudit issues that may arise during an examimakliterest and penalties that are anticipated t
be due upon examination are recognized as acontex@st and other liabilities with an offset toeireist and other expense. The Company
determined that there were no uncertainties wispeet to the application of tax regulations in éhgsisdictions.

NOTE 20—LEASE RESTRUCTURING CHARGES:

During 2011, the Company relocated its corporatklanding facility to two smaller spaces in orderéduce its expense and improve its cash
flows. Simultaneous with this relocation, on Novemnh, 2011, the Company entered into a subleaseagnt with respect to its offices
located at 1440 Broadway, New York, NY. The Compeostinues to remain obligated under the terméeforiginal lease. Based on the
remaining obligation of the original lease and élsémated sublet income, during 2011 the Compacyrded a pretax charge to earnings of
approximately $990,000 upon the cease-use datesepting the present value of the amount by witiehrént and other direct costs paid by
the Company to the landlord exceeds any rent paiklet Company by its tenant under the new subleasethe remainder of the lease term,
which expires in October 2015. The Company recoederkdit to rent expense of approximately $291f00the year ended December 31,
2012 from the reduction in the accrued lease losthe year. This amount is included in other gahand administrative expense on the
consolidated statements of income.

NOTE 21—BENEFIT PLANS:
Defined Contribution Plan

The Company’s employees participate in a definedrdmution 401(k) plan (the “Plan”) adopted in 2004ich covers substantially all
employees based on eligibility. The Plan is degigioeencourage savings on the part of eligible eyg#s and qualifies under Section 401(k)
of the Internal Revenue Code. Under the Plan,ldégmployees may elect to have a portion of thay, including overtime and bonuses,
reduced each pay period, as pre-tax contributipr® the maximum allowed by law. The Company magteio make a matching contribution
equal to a specified percentage of the particigasthtribution, on their behalf as a peex-contribution. For the years ended DecembeRB12
and 2011, the Company matched 50% of the first 2&rployee contributions.

NOTE 22—RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

During the years ended December 31, 2012, 20112@0d, the Company provided merchant processing tmmpany controlled by the
father-in-law of a major stockholder and formerdfdent of the Company, in the approximate amoui$2a%,000, $48,000 and $42,000,
respectively. In connection with these transactitims Company recorded a receivable of $2,000 &@D$ at December 31, 2012 and 2011,
respectively.

A major stockholder of the Company earns grossluagipayments on merchant processing revenue ihanrelated company generates for
the Company. During the years ended December 32,2011 and 2010, the Company paid him grossuakicf approximately $3,155,000,
$1,649,000 and $1,180,000, respectively.

During the years ended December 31, 2012, 2012@hd, the Company employed the brother, sisteaamdnd nephew of a major
stockholder of the Company, and incurred combinades and benefits expense totaling approximate2y $90, $210,000 and $154,000,
respectively.

During the years ended December 31, 2012, 2012@hd, the Company contracted with PMTWorks, LLCgayroll related services. Certain
owners of PMTWorks, LLC also own namontrolling interest in Newtek Payroll Services,@La consolidated VIE. PMTWorks, LLC provid
services including operational, administrative tooger support, technical, risk management, saldsraarketing and other services in order to
assist Newtek Payroll Services, LLC in conductiagmpll processing, tax filing, human resource infation services, benefits administration,
time and labor management and related ancillarinbas services. The Company paid $28,000 and $87gb@hese services for the years
ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectivelyeere no corresponding charges for services peea by related parties for the year
ended December 31, 2012.

The Company may also, from time to time, providsibess services to family members or executiveseCompany. These transactions are
conducted at arm’s length and do not representtarrabportion of the Company’s revenues.
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NOTE 23—STOCK OPTIONS AND RESTRICTED STOCK GRANTED TO EMPLOYEES:

As of December 31, 2012, the Company had threeedtmsed compensation plans, which are describeb&he compensation cost that has
been charged against operations for those plan$%42000, $480,000 and $81,000 for the years ebéedmber 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010,
respectively, and is included in salaries and biemigf the accompanying consolidated statemenitscoime.

The Newtek Business Services, Inc. 2000 Stock tineeand Deferred Compensation Plan, as amendesl;Z000 Plan”) currently provides
for the issuance of awards of restricted shareggdo a maximum of 4,250,000 common shares to @ympk and noemployees. The issuar
of options under this Plan expired on Decembe2B09. All restricted shares or previously grantptiams are issued at the fair value on the
date of grant. Options issued generally have a maxi term that ranges from 2 to 10 years and vegtiagisions that range from 0 to 3
years. As of December 31, 2012, there are 2,23%haR:s available for future grant under this

The Newtek Business Services, Inc. 2003 Stock tigeRlan, as amended, (the “2003 Plan”) currepttyvides for the issuance of awards of
restricted shares or options for up to a maximurh,000,000 common shares to employees and non-gegdoAll restricted shares or options
are issued at the fair value on the date of gaptions issued generally have a maximum term #rages from 2 to 10 years and vesting
provisions that range from 0 to 3 years. As of Deloer 31, 2012, there are 632,160 shares availabfeture grant under this plan.

The Newtek Business Services, Inc. 2010 Stock tigeRlan, (the “2010 Plan”) currently provides fbe issuance of awards of restricted
shares or options for up to a maximum of 1,650@8mon shares to employees and non-employeesedtiated shares or options are issue
at the fair value on the date of grant. Optionsasisgenerally have a maximum term that ranges #am10 years and vesting provisions that
range from O to 4 years. As of December 31, 20i&etare 534,500 shares available for future gradeér this plan.

A summary of stock option activity under the 20R003 and 2010 Plans as of December 31, 2012 amdjebaluring the year then ended are
presented below:

Weighted Average Aggregate
Weighted Average Intrinsic Value
Shares Remaining Term
Stock Options (In thousands’ Exercise Price (In years) (In thousands)
Outstandin—December 31, 201 89C $ 1.4f 5.3¢€ 21
Exercisec — — $ —
Cancellec (95 1.54
Outstandin—December 31, 201 79t $ 1.4¢ 4.6¢ $ 33:
Exercisabl—December 31, 201 79t $ 1.44 4.6¢ $ 332

There were no options granted during the yearsceBadeember 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010.

As of December 31, 2012, there was $948,000 of tmtgecognized compensation costs related to nstedeshare-based compensation
arrangements granted under the 2000, 2003 andPah8. That cost is expected to be recognizedlyatatough July 2014.

During the year ended December 31, 2010, Newtehtgdafour employees an aggregate of 41,900 sharestoicted stock valued at $41,000.
The grants vest on July 1, 2014. The fair valuegbege grants were determined using the fair vafitlee common shares at the grant date. Th
restricted shares are forfeitable upon early valnor involuntary termination of the employee. Wp@sting, the grantee will receive one
common share for each restricted share vestedCohgany charged-$-, $16,000 and $4,000 to operations in 2012, 20812810,
respectively, in connection with the vesting perd@dociated with grants that remain outstanding.

In March 2011, Newtek granted certain employeescetives and board of directors an aggregate @21000 shares of restricted stock valuec
at $1,941,000 or $1.70 per share. The fair valubese grants was determined using the fair valtieeocommon shares at the grant date. The
restricted shares are forfeitable upon early valgnor involuntary termination of the employee. Wpasting, the grantee will receive one
common share for each restricted share vested.ruineléerms of the plan, these share awards dimalode voting rights until the shares vest.
The grants are valued using the straight-line ntethw vest on July 1, 2014. As a result, the Compharged $465,000 and $464,000 to
operations in 2012 and 2011, respectively, in cotioe with the vesting period associated with gsahat remain outstanding.
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In the second quarter of 2012, Newtek granted icegimployees and executives an aggregate of 123¢3®cted shares valued at $184,000.
The grants vest on July 1, 2014. The fair valuthe$e grants was determined using the fair valibeofommon shares at the grant date. The
restricted shares are forfeitable upon early valnor involuntary termination of the employee. Wp@sting, the grantee will receive one
common share for each restricted share vested.ruineléerms of the plan, these share awards dimalode voting rights until the shares vest.
The Company charged $38,000 and $25,000 to shaedlmmmpensation expense during the years endesiribec 31, 2012 and 2011,
respectively, in connection with the vesting perd@dociated with grants that remain outstanding.

A summary of the status of Newtek’s non-vestedist shares as of December 31, 2012 and changiegydhe year then ended is presentec
below:

Weighted

Average
Number of Grant Date

Shares

Non-vested Restricted Share (in thousands Fair Value
Non-vested—December 31, 2011 1,13¢ $ 1.6¢
Grantec 12z $ 1.4¢
Vested and issue — $ —
Forfeited (109 $ 1.5
Non-veste—December 31, 201 1,14¢ $ 1.6¢

NOTE 24—SEGMENT REPORTING:

Operating segments are organized internally prignbyi the type of services provided. The Company dggregated similar operating segm
into six reportable segments: Electronic paymeat@ssing, Managed technology solutions, Small legsifinance, All other, Corporate and
Capcos.

The Electronic payment processing segment is aggene of credit card transactions, as well as &ebar of credit card and check approval
services to the small- and mediwgized business market. Expenses include direcs ¢ostiuded in a separate line captioned electrpaijgnen
processing costs), professional fees, salariebandfits, and other general and administrativescaditof which are included in the respective
caption on the consolidated statements of income.

The Managed technology solutions segment congi$td 8, acquired in July 2004. NTS'’s revenues amived primarily from web hosting
services and consist of web hosting and set up ES generates expenses such as professionapfegs|l and benefits, and depreciation
amortization, which are included in the respectigption on the accompanying consolidated statenvéimgome, as well as licenses and fees
rent, and general office expenses, all of whichireckided in other general and administrative cysthe respective caption on the consolid:
statements of income.

The Small business finance segment consists ofl8usiness Lending, Inc., a lender that primariligimates, sells and services government
guaranteed SBA 7(a) loans to qualifying small besges through NSBF, its licensed SBA lender; the3 &Vhitestone Group which manages
the Company’s Texas Capco; and NBC which providesuants receivable financing, billing and accoustsivable maintenance services to
businesses. NSBF generates revenues from saleand, Iservicing income for those loans retainezbatracted to service by NSBF and
interest income earned on the loans themselvesleflder generates expenses for interest, profeddiees, salaries and benefits, depreciation
and amortization, and provision for loan lossdspfalvhich are included in the respective captiorntioe consolidated statements of income.
NSBF also has expenses such as loan recovery egéoan processing costs, and other expensearthatl included in the other general ¢
administrative costs caption on the consolidatatestents of income.

The All other segment includes revenues and exgguramarily from qualified businesses that receiragstments made through the
Company’s Capcos which cannot be aggregated wliir @perating segments. The two largest entitidésarsegment are Newtek Insurance
Agency, LLC, an insurance sales operation, andrigssi Connect, LLC, a provider of sales and proegssrvices.

Corporate activities represent revenue and expearaiesdlocated to our segments. Revenue includesast income and management fees
earned from Capcos (and included in expenses iG#peo segment). Expenses primarily include cotpayperations related to broad-based
sales and marketing, legal, finance, informatiaht®logy, corporate development and additionalscassociated with administering the
Capcos.

F-37



Table of Contents

The Capco segment, which consists of the twelve@amenerates non-cash income from tax crediesgst income and gains from
investments in qualified businesses which are gediin other income. Expenses primarily include-nash interest and insurance expense,

management fees paid to Newtek (and included ifCtrporate activities revenues), legal, and auglitees and losses from investments in
qualified businesses.

Management has considered the following charatiesigshen making its determination of its operatimgl reportable segments:
» the nature of the product and servic
» the type or class of customer for their products services
» the methods used to distribute their products ovige their services; ar
« the nature of the regulatory environment (for exmipanking, insurance, or public utilitie

The accounting policies of the segments are the senthose described in the summary of signifiaacbunting policies.
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The following table presents the Company’s segritdatmation for the years ended December 31, 20021 (Restated) and 2010 and total
assets as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 (in thdsjsan

For the year

For the year ended For the year
ended December 31 ended
December 31 December 31
2011
2012 (Restated) 2010
Third Party Revenue
Electronic payment processil $ 85,48¢ $ 82,48¢ $ 80,93¢
Managed technology solutiol 18,21 19,18¢ 19,16¢
Small business financ 25,40¢ 21,02t 9,371
All Other 1,86( 1,83t 1,527
Corporate activitie: 78t 1,092 2,25i
Capcos 68< 1,49 2,44:
Total reportable segments 132,43t 127,11¢ 115,70:
Eliminations (1,306) (1,780 (2,987)
Consolidated Total $ 131,13( $ 125,33 $ 112,71
Inter Segment Revenue
Electronic payment processi $ 1,81 $ 1,15¢ $ 814
Managed technology solutiol 612 647 524
Small business financ 212 81 65
All Other 1,10z 1,13¢ 3,94:
Corporate activitie: 2,90¢ 1,72¢ 1,83t
Capco (317) 80¢€ 1,332
Total reportable segments 6,33( 5,55¢ 8,51:
Eliminations (6,330 (5,559 (8,517)
Consolidated Total $ — $ — $ —
Income (loss) before income taxe
Electronic payment processil $ 7,041 $ 6,15] $ 5,68
Managed technology solutiol 4,25¢ 4,83 4,70z
Small business financ 8,09« 4,13¢ 2,04t
All Other (2,03¢) (739 (1,422
Corporate activitie: (7,51 (10,169 (6,935
Capco (1,400 (2,197 (3,19¢)
Total reportable segments 9,43¢ 2,02¢ 877
Eliminations — — —
Totals $  9,43¢ $  2,02¢ $ 877
Depreciation and Amortization
Electronic payment processil $ 74% $ 1,41¢ $ 1,63
Managed technology solutiol 1,21¢ 1,38 1,82¢
Small business financ 91¢ 89:< 79C
All Other 36 80 13t
Corporate activitie: 11¢ 162 312
Capco 6 13 12
Totals $  3,03¢ $ 3,95¢ $  4,70¢
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Interest (income) expense, ne
Electronic payment processil
Managed technology solutiol
Small business financ
All Other
Corporate activitie:

Capco
Consolidated total

Identifiable assets
Electronic payment processi
Managed technology solutiol
Small business financ
All Other
Corporate activitie:
Capco
Consolidated total

NOTE 25—QUARTERLY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED):

For the year
ended
December 31

2012
$ (6)
80
46€
2
8
527
$  1,07¢

For the year
ended
December 31

2011

$ (11)
102

(51F)

(10)

(20)

1,24(

$ 787

For the year
ended
December 31

2012

$ 12,46¢
12,02:
104,15}
1,762
5,72¢
16,61:

$ 152,74

For the year
ended
December 31

2010

$ (12)
102
16¢
(62)
(24)

2,401
$  257¢

For the year
ended
December 31

2011
(Restated)

$ 10,72
10,83¢
78,48¢

2,87¢
3,37¢
23,49¢

The following table sets forth certain unauditedsidated quarterly statement of income data frleereight quarters ended December 31,
2012 as restated. This information is unauditedjrbthe opinion of management, it has been prepsmbstantially on the same basis as the
audited consolidated financial statements appea&isgwhere in this report, and all necessary adjests, consisting only of normal recurring
adjustments, have been included in the amounesssbetiow. The consolidated quarterly data shouldebd in conjunction with the current
audited consolidated statements and notes thdra¢ototal of the quarterly EPS data may not equéie full year results.

2012 (Restated

Total Revenue

Income before income tax

Net income available to common stockholc
Income per sha—Basic

Income per sha—Diluted

2011 (Restated

Total Revenue

Income before income tax

Net income (loss) available to common stockholi
Income (loss) per she—Basic and dilute:
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Three Months Ended
(In Thousands, except Per Share Dat¢

3/31 6/30 9/30
(Restated (Restated (Restated 12/31
$30,72¢ $32,33¢ $33,45¢ $34,60:
$ 1,63¢ $ 1,94¢ $ 2,65¢ $ 3,201
$ 1,01¢ $ 1,24: $ 1,307 $ 2,07«
$ 0.0¢ $ 0.0 $ 0.04 $ 0.0¢
$ 0.0¢ $ 0.0¢ $ 0.0¢ $ 0.0¢
Three Months Ended
(In Thousands, except Per Share Data)
12/31
3/31 6/30 9/30 (Restated

$30,52:  $32,32
$ 834 $ 13€
$ 50¢ $ (287)

$ 0

01 $ (0.00)

$30,65' $31,83:
$ 33t $ 72¢
$ 88C $ 2,23:
$ 0.0z $ 0.07
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NOTE 26 —- RESTATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS AND UNAUDITED QUARTERLY CONDENSED
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Impact on Consolidated Financial Statemer

Prior to the issuance of the Company’s consolidétethcial statements for the year ended Decembe?®12, the Company determined there
were errors included in its previously issued ctidated financial statements for the quarter arat yanded December 31, 2011, as well as

of the 2012 quarterly interim periods. During then@pany’s annual review of its chargeback reseredd &t UPS, management identified
losses that had been concealed through the un@dtarse of merchant funds held in a merchant casgrve account at the Company’s
sponsor bank. The losses and the unauthorizedffiseds were the result of a number of violatioh€€ompany policies and procedures by a
member of senior management in the Electronic Payecessing segment which resulted in the messiant of chargeback loss reserves

a group of merchants under a single independees sglent. Those losses were intentionally concénldéke senior manager and not reported
or communicated to the accounting department, tieed@of Managers of UPS, the Audit Committee orGoenpany’s executives. Upon
discovery, the Company disclosed the losses, regltdwe misapplied funds and terminated the managponsible. The Company and its A
Committee retained a consulting firm with extensexpertise in the credit card payments industryoieduct a detailed and in-depth
investigation, in the areas in which the former agar was involved, as well as a review of whatstapy be appropriate to ensure future
compliance with the Company’s accounting and d&ale policies and practices relating to merchaatggback reserves. The Audit
Committee and independent investigations were cetaglprior to issuance of these financial stategsydmth the Audit Committee and the
Companys independent consultants and counsel concluddddlient to be an isolated event specifically tedato the independent sales ag
and group of merchants.

The following sets forth the changes resulting fritv restatements of all related financial statemgw the quarter and year ended Decembel
31, 2011, the three months ended March 31, 20&2htiee and six months ended June 30, 2012 antréeand nine months ended Septet
30, 2012.

For the quarter and year ended December 31, 2011:

The Company understated its provision for merckbhatge-back loss reserves in the amount of $244@G8e quarter and year ended
December 31, 2011, resulting in an overstatemenebincome of approximately $146,000, an undezstaht of total assets of $98,000 and ar
understatement of total liabilities of $244,00c& the Company does not report quarterly resoitthe fourth quarter, the impact is restated
for the full year 2011 results. The following is@mmary of the effect of the restatements on thgnailly issued consolidated statement of
income for the year ended December 31, 2011, ciolaget! balance sheet as of December 31, 2011,arsbkidated statements of cash flows
for the year ended December 31, 2011 (in thousands)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME
(In Thousands, except for Per Share Data)

Operating revenue
Electronic payment processi
Web hosting and desic
Premium incom:e
Interest incom:
Servicing fee incom— NSBF portfolio
Servicing fee incom— external portfolios
Income from tax credit
Insurance commissiot
Other income

Total operating revenut

Net change in fair value ¢
SBA loans
Warrants

Credits in lieu of cash and notes payable in csdditieu of casl

Total net change in fair valt

Operating expense

Electronic payment processing ca

Salaries and benefi

Interest

Depreciation and amortizatic

Provision for loan losse

Lease restructuring charg

Other general and administrative cc

Total operating expens:

Income before income tax
Benefit for income taxe
Net income
Net loss attributable to n-controlling interest:
Net income attributable to Newtek Business Seryitres

Weighted average common shares outstan
Basic

Diluted
Basic and diluted income per shi
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For the Year Ended December 31, 201

Restatemen

Previously As
Reported Adjustments Restated
$ 82,47: $ — $ 82,47
19,181 — 19,18:
12,46¢ — 12,46¢
2,62¢ — 2,62¢
1,63¢ — 1,63¢
1,46¢ — 1,46¢
1,39( — 1,39(
1,071 — 1,071
3,02¢ — 3,02¢
$125,33¢ $ — $125,33¢
(5,499 - (5,497
(131) — (131)
(5,629 — (5,629
69,14¢ 244 69,38¢
21,04 — 21,04:
3,41¢ — 3,41¢
3,95¢ — 3,95t
762 — 765
99C — 99C
18,13: — 18,13:
117 44: 244 117,68
2,272 (244) 2,02¢
(1,097 (99) (1,198
3,36¢ (14€) 3,22:
112 — 112
$ 3481 $ (146 $ 3,33
35,70¢ — 35,70¢
36,07 — 36,07
$ 01 $ (001 $ 0.0¢
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
(In Thousands, except for Per Share Data)

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalel
Restricted cas
Broker receivabli
SBA loans held for investment, net (includes $13,8dated to securitization trust VIE; net of
reserve for loan losses of $2,9(
SBA loans held for investment, at fair value (irdgs $19,617 related to securitization trust \
Accounts receivable (net of allowance of $3
SBA loans held for sale, at fair val
Prepaid expenses and other assets, net (incluggsl$élated to securitization trust VI
Servicing assets (net of accumulated amortizatimhadlowances of $5,96.
Fixed assets (net of accumulated depreciation arateation of $16,463
Intangible assets (net of accumulated amortizaifc$il3,226)
Credits in lieu of cas

Goodwill
Deferred tax asset, n
Total asset
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities:

Accounts payable, accrued expenses and otheiitied
Notes payabli
Note payable Securitization trust VIE
Deferred revenu
Notes payable in credits in lieu of ce
Total liabilities

Commitments and contingenci
Equity:
Newtek Business Services, Inc stockhol’ equity:

Preferred stock (par value $0.02 per share; autharl,000 shares, no shares issued

and outstanding

Common stock (par value $0.02 per share; authob2¢@D0 shares, 36,701 issued;

35,702 outstanding, not including 83 shares heksirow)
Additional paic-in capital
Retained earnings (accumulated defi
Treasury stock, at cost (999 shai

Total Newtek Business Services, Inc. stockho’ equity
Non-controlling interest:

Total equity
Total liabilities and equit
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As of December 31, 201

Restatemen

Previously As
Reported Adjustments Restated
$ 11,20! $ — $ 11,20:
14,22¢ — 14,22¢
4,911 — 4,911
18,55¢ — 18,55¢
21,85\ — 21,857
8,18( — 8,18(
2,19¢ — 2,19¢
11,76 — 11,76:
3,42( — 3,42(
2,85 — 2,85:
1,42( — 1,42(
16,94¢ — 16,94¢
12,09: — 12,09:
72 98 17C
$129,69° $ 98 $129,79!
$11,88° $ 244  $ 12,12
13,56¢ — 13,56¢
26,36¢ — 26,36¢
1,63« — 1,63¢
16,94¢ — 16,94¢
70,39¢ 244 70,64
734 — 734
57,96( — 57,96(
45 (14€) (101)
(620) — (620)
58,11¢ (14¢) 57,97
1,18( 1,18(
59,29¢ (14¢€) 59,15!
$129,69° $ 98 $129,79!
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(In Thousands)

Cash flows from operating activitie

Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashdus) provided by operating

activities:

Income from tax credit
Accretion of interest expen:
Fair value adjustments on SBA lo¢

Fair value adjustment of credits in lieu of cast antes payable in credits in lie

of cash
Deferred income taxe
Depreciation and amortizatic
Provision for loan losse
Lease restructuring charg
Other, ne
Changes in operating assets and liabilit

Originations of SBA loans held for s¢

Originations of SBA loans transferred, subjectitenpium recours

Proceeds from sale of SBA loans held for :

Proceeds from sale of SBA loans, achieving sates

Liability on SBA loans transferred, subject to piem recours¢

Broker receivabls

Accounts receivabl

Prepaid expenses, accrued interest receivablethed asset

Accounts payable, accrued expenses, other liasiland deferred
revenue

Other, ne

Net cash provided by operating activit

Cash flows from investing activitie

Returns of investments in qualified busines

Purchase of fixed assets and customer acci

SBA loans originated for investment, 1

Payments received on SBA log

Change in restricted ca

Purchase of nc-controlling interes

Net cash used in investing activiti
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For the Year Ended December 31, 201

Restatemen
As Reportec Adjustments As Restate(
$ 3,36¢ $ (146 $ 3,22¢
(1,390) — (1,390
1,25¢ — 1,25¢
5,497 — 5,49:
131 — 131
(2,775 (98) (2,879
3,95t — 3,95¢
763 — 763
99( — 99(
394 — 394
(74,54¢) — (74,54¢)
(274 - (274
73,87: — 73,87:
27,85t — 27,85t
(30,789 — (30,789
7,14¢ — 7,14¢
(51%) — (51%)
(3,099 — (3,099
2,53¢ 244 2,78
(2,989 — (2,989
11,40¢ — 11,40¢
24z — 24z
(1,499 — (1,499
(22,269 — (22,269
4,672 — 4,672
1,23¢ — 1,23¢
(19¢) — (19¢)
(17,819 — (17,819
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS—(Continued)

(In Thousands)

Cash flows from financing activitie
Net borrowings on bank lines of cre
Payments on bank term note paye
Issuance of senior notes, net of issuance «
Change in restricted cash due to debt refinan
Change in restricted cash related to securitiz:
Payments on senior not
Purchase of treasury sha
Other, ne

Net cash provided by financing activiti

Net increase in cash and cash equival
Cash and cash equivale—beginning of yea

Cash and cash equivale—end of yeal

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow activities
Cash paid for intere:

Cash paid for taxe

Non-cash investing and financing activities
Reduction of credits in lieu of cash and notes pleya credits in lieu of cash balances due
to delivery of tax credits to Certified Investc
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For the Year Ended December 31, 201

As Reportec

$ 1,03¢
(417)
13,51
(750)
(2,952
(2,821)
(16)

(369)
7,22¢

81c
10,38:

$ 1120

$  1,34¢
$ 1,28C

$ 19,48:

Restatemen

Adjustments

$

»

As Restatel

$ 1,03¢
(417)
13,51
(750
(2,959
(2,82))
(16
(369
7,22¢
81¢
10,38:

L5

1,34¢
1,28(

&

$ 19,48.
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For the three months ended March 31, 2012:

The Company understated it provision for merchaarge-back loss reserves in the amount of $47Z@0be three months ended March 31,
2012, resulting in an overstatement of net incofregpproximately $284,000, an understatement of tasets of $98,000, and an
understatement of total liabilities of $528,00m&March 31, 2012. The following is a summary cé gffect of the restatements on the
originally issued unaudited condensed consolidstagtment of income for the three months ended Vai¢ 2012, unaudited condensed
consolidated balance sheet as of March 31, 20I2{lenunaudited condensed consolidated statemeaisbfflows for the three months ended
March 31, 2012 (in thousands):

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME
(Unaudited)
(In Thousands, except for Per Share Data)

For the Three Months Ended
March 31, 2012

Previously Restatemen
As
Reported Adjustments Restated
Operating revenue
Electronic payment processi $20,61" $ — $20,61"
Web hosting and desic 4,69: — 4,69:
Premium incom 2,39( — 2,39(
Interest incom 722 — 722
Servicing fee incom— NSBF portfolio 481 — 481
Servicing fee incom- external portfolios 601 — 601
Income from tax credit 191 — 191
Insurance commissiot 31C — 31C
Other income 724 — 724
Total operating revenut 30,72¢ — 30,72¢
Net change in fair value ¢
SBA loans (94) — (94)
Credits in lieu of cash and notes payable in csdaditieu of casl 36 — 36
Total net change in fair valt (58) — (58)
Operating expense
Electronic payment processing ca 16,88: 472 17,35
Salaries and benefi 5,67¢ — 5,67¢
Interest 837 — 837
Depreciation and amortizatic 801 — 801
Provision for loan losse 11C — 11C
Other general and administrative cc 4,261 — 4,261
Total operating expens: 28,56¢ 472 29,03¢
Income before income tax 2,10¢ (472) 1,63
Provision for income taxe 79€ (18¢) 60¢
Net income 1,30¢ (289 1,02t
Net loss attributable to n-controlling interest: (6) — (6)
Net income attributable to Newtek Business Seryites $ 1,30¢ $ (289 $ 1,01¢
Weighted average common shares outstan
Basic 35,77¢ — 35,77¢
Diluted 36,19! — 36,19!
Basic and diluted income per sh $ 0.04 $ (0.0) $ 0.0¢
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

(Unaudited)
(In Thousands, except for Per Share Data)

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents (includes $2,850 refat¢tE)
Restricted cas
Broker receivabls
SBA loans held for investment, net (includes $14,6ated to securitization trust VIE; net of
reserve for loan losses of $2,8:
SBA loans held for investment, at fair value (irdgs $24,005 related to securitization trust \
Accounts receivable (net of allowance of $4
SBA loans held for sale, at fair val
Prepaid expenses and other assets, net (incluggsdklated to securitization trust VI
Servicing assets (net of accumulated amortizatimhadlowances of $6,15:
Fixed assets (net of accumulated depreciation aradtezation of $12,645
Intangible assets (net of accumulated amortizaifc$il3,443)
Credits in lieu of cas

Goodwill
Deferred tax asset, n
Total asset
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities:

Accounts payable, accrued expenses and otheiitie®
Notes payabli
Note payable Securitization trust VIE
Deferred revenu
Notes payable in credits in lieu of ce
Total liabilities

Commitments and contingenci
Equity:
Newtek Business Services, Inc stockhol’ equity:

Preferred stock (par value $0.02 per share; autharl,000 shares, no shares issued

and outstanding

Common stock (par value $0.02 per share; authoB2¢@D0 shares, 36,701 issued;

35,914 outstanding, respectively, not includingsBares held in escro
Additional paic-in capital
Retained earnings (includes $1,466 and $0, respdgtirelated to consolidation of
VIE on January 1, 201:
Treasury stock, at cost (1,735 and 999 sharesectsply)
Total Newtek Business Services, Inc. stockho’ equity
Non-controlling interest:
Total equity
Total liabilities and equit
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As of March 31, 2012

Restatemen

Previously As
Reported Adjustments Restated
$ 15,34] $ — $ 15,34
7,301 — 7,301
13,92 — 13,92:
17,871 — 17,87:
27,22¢ — 27,22¢
12,50:¢ — 12,50:
2,642 — 2,64:
8,29¢ — 8,29¢
3,60¢ — 3,60¢
2,861 — 2,861
1,23( — 1,23(
14,48t — 14,48t
12,09: — 12,09:
93¢ 98 1,034
$140,33( $ 98 $140,42¢
$ 13,85¢ $ 52¢ $ 14,38
21,58¢ — 21,58¢
25,40( — 25,40(
1,49C — 1,49(
14,48¢ — 14,48¢
76,82( 52¢ 77,34¢
73¢€ — 73¢€
58,19¢ — 58,19¢
2,81¢ (430) 2,38¢
(620) — (620)
61,131 (430) 60,70:
2,37¢ — 2,37¢
63,51( (430) 63,08(
$140,33( $ 98 $140,42!
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Unaudited)
(In Thousands)

Cash flows from operating activitie
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashduis) provided by operating
activities:
Income from tax credit
Accretion of interest expen:
Fair value adjustments on SBA lo¢
Fair value adjustment of credits in lieu of casH antes payable in credits in
lieu of cast
Deferred income taxe
Depreciation and amortizatic
Provision for loan losse
Other, ne
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Originations of SBA loans held for s¢
Proceeds from sale of SBA loans held for
Broker receivabls
Accounts receivabl
Prepaid expenses, accrued interest receivablethed asset
Accounts payable, accrued expenses, other lisgsiland deferred
revenue
Other, ne
Net cash used in operating activit
Cash flows from investing activitie
Returns of investments in qualified busines
Purchase of fixed assets and customer acci
SBA loans originated for investment, 1
Payments received on SBA loc
Change in restricted ca
Net cash used in investing activiti
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For the Three Months Ended March 31, 201:
Restatemen

As Reported

Adjustments

As Restated

$  1,30¢ $ (289 $ 1,02t
(197) — (197)
227 — 227
94 — 94
(36) — (36)
(864) — (864)
801 — 801
11C — 11C
228 — 22F
(18,689 — (18,682
18,28" — 18,28°
(9,019 — (9,019
(2,012) — (2,012
3,48¢ — 3,48¢
(487) 284 (209)
18€ — 18¢€
(6,559 — (6,559
10C — 10C
(439) — (439)
(5,83¢) — (5,83¢)
94€ — 94¢
1,687 — 1,681
(3,544) — (3,54
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS—(Continued)

(Unaudited)
(In Thousands)

Cash flows from financing activitie
Net borrowings on bank lines of cre
Increase in cash due to consolidation of
Payments on bank term note paye
Payments on senior not
Change in restricted cash related to securitiz¢
Other, ne
Net cash provided by financing activiti
Net increase in cash and cash equival
Cash and cash equivale—beginning of periot

Cash and cash equivale—end of perioc
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow activities

Reduction of credits in lieu of cash and notes plyan credits in lieu of cash balanci
due to delivery of tax credits to Certified Invest

Addition to assets and liabilities on January 11.28s a result of consolidation of
interests in Exponential of New York, LL
Assets
Liabilities
Equity
Addition to additional paid-in capital for warrarggpired previously attributable to
nor-controlling interest:
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For the Three Months Ended March 31, 201!

Restatemen

As Reported Adjustments As Restated
$ 8,12¢ $ $ 8,12¢
2,762 2,76
(104) (104)
(1,027) (1,027)
4,67: 4,67
(199) (199)
14,24 14,24
4,14( 4,14(
11,201 11,20:

$ 15,341 $ $ 1534
$ 3,06¢ $ 3,06¢
$ 2,765 $ 2,76¢
N | N |
$__ 2.75¢ $__ 2.75¢
$ 33C $ 33C
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For the three and six months ended June 30, 2012:

The Company (over) understated it provision forechant charge-back loss reserves in the amountl&f@)0) and $456,000 for the three and
six months ended June 30, 2012, respectively,tieguh an (under) overstatement of net incomeppiraximately $(10,000) and $274,000,
respectively, an understatement of total asse$9®f000 and an understatement of total liabilitiE$518,000 as of June 30, 2012. The
following is a summary of the effect of the restagmts on the originally issued unaudited condesedolidated statement of income for the
three and six months ended June 30, 2012, unausbtetbnsed consolidated balance sheet as of Ju2@B8®, and the unaudited condensed
consolidated statement of cash flows for the sixtin® ended June 30, 2012 (in thousands):

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME

(Unaudited)
(In Thousands, except for Per Share Data)

For the Three Months Ended June 30, 201

Restatemen
Previously As
Reported Adjustments Restated
Operating revenue
Electronic payment processi $ 21,37 $ — $ 21,37
Web hosting and desic 4,56¢ — 4,56¢
Premium incomt 2,41¢ — 2,41¢
Interest incom 817 — 817
Servicing fee incom— NSBF portfolio 49¢€ — 49¢€
Servicing fee incom- external portfolios 1,47¢ — 1,47¢
Income from tax credit 12¢ — 12¢
Insurance commissiot 31¢ — 31¢
Other income 74¢ — 74¢
Total operating revenut 32,33 — 32,33t
Net change in fair value ¢
SBA loans (569) — (569)
Warrants (117 — (117)
Credits in lieu of cash and notes payable in csdditieu of casl 5 — 5
Total net change in fair valt (675 — (675)
Operating expense
Electronic payment processing ca 17,84¢ (a6 17,83
Salaries and benefi 5,43 — 5,43
Interest 1,13¢ — 1,13¢
Depreciation and amortizatic 711 — 711
Provision for loan losse 154 — 154
Other general and administrative cc 4,44¢ — 4,44¢
Total operating expens 29,73 (16) 29,71
Income before income tax 1,93( 16 1,94¢
Provision for income taxe 72€ (6) 732
Net income 1,20¢ 10 1,21«
Net income attributable to n-controlling interest: 29 — 28
Net income attributable to Newtek Business Seryvitres $ 1,23 $ 10 $ 1,247
Weighted average common shares outstan
Basic 35,92: — 35,92:
Diluted 36,88 — 36,88
Basic and diluted income per sh $ 0.0z $ — $ 0.0z
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME

(Unaudited)
(In Thousands, except for Per Share Data)

For the Six Months Ended June 30, 201

Restatemen
Previously As
Reported Adjustments Restated
Operating revenue
Electronic payment processil $ 41,98t¢ $ — $ 41,98t¢
Web hosting and desic 9,26: — 9,26:
Premium incomt 4,80¢ — 4,80¢
Interest incom 1,53¢ — 1,53¢
Servicing fee incom— NSBF portfolio 97¢ — 97¢
Servicing fee incom— external portfolios 2,07t — 2,07t
Income from tax credit 31¢ — 31¢
Insurance commissiot 63C — 63C
Other income 1,47: — 1,47:
Total operating revenut 63,06’ — 63,06"
Net change in fair value ¢
SBA loans (66%) — (662%)
Warrants (117 — (117
Credits in lieu of cash and notes payable in csdditieu of casl 41 — 41
Total net change in fair valt (739 — (739
Operating expense
Electronic payment processing ca 34,73( 45¢ 35,18t
Salaries and benefi 11,11¢ — 11,11
Interest 1,97: — 1,97:
Depreciation and amortizatic 1,51z — 1,51z
Provision for loan losse 264 — 264
Other general and administrative cc 8,70 — 8,701
Total operating expens 58,29¢ 45€ 58,75¢
Income before income tax 4,03t (45¢) 3,57¢
Provision for income taxe 1,52 (182) 1,34(
Net income 2,51z (274 2,23¢
Net income attributable to n-controlling interest: 23 — 23
Net income attributable to Newtek Business Seryitres $ 2,53¢ $ (279 $ 2,26:
Weighted average common shares outstan
Basic 35,85 — 35,85
Diluted 36,53¢ — 36,53¢
Basic and diluted income per sh $ 0.07 $ (0.0 $ 0.0¢
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

(Unaudited)
(In Thousands, except for Per Share Data)

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents (includes $2,850 refat¢tE)
Restricted cas
Broker receivabls
SBA loans held for investment, net (includes $18@,fdated to securitization trust VIE; net of
reserve for loan losses of $2,3t
SBA loans held for investment, at fair value (irdgs $24,004 related to securitization trust \
Accounts receivable (net of allowance of $6
SBA loans held for sale, at fair val
Prepaid expenses and other assets, net (inclugg35hElated to securitization trust VI
Servicing assets (net of accumulated amortizatimhadlowances of $6,32:
Fixed assets (net of accumulated depreciation eradtezation of $12,942
Intangible assets (net of accumulated amortizaifd$il 3,585)
Credits in lieu of cas

Goodwill
Deferred tax asset, n
Total asset
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities:

Accounts payable, accrued expenses and otheiitie®
Notes payabli
Note payable Securitization trust VIE
Deferred revenu
Notes payable in credits in lieu of ce
Warrant liability
Total liabilities

Commitments and contingenci
Equity:
Newtek Business Services, Inc stockhol’ equity:
Preferred stock (par value $0.02 per share; autharl, 000 shares, no shares issue
and outstanding
Common stock (par value $0.02 per share; autho62¢@D0 shares, 36,913 issued;
35,200 outstanding, not including 83 shares hekksirow)
Additional paic-in capital
Retained earnings (includes $1,466 related to diofedimn of VIE on January 1, 201
Treasury stock, at cost (1,713 shal
Total Newtek Business Services, Inc. stockho’ equity
Non-controlling interest:
Total equity

Total liabilities and equit
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As of June 30, 201:

Restatemen

Previously As
Reported Adjustments Restated
$ 23,06! $ — $ 23,06
8,93¢ — 8,93¢
5,64: — 5,64:
17,07t — 17,07t
31,41( — 31,41(
12,77 — 12,77¢
1,78¢ — 1,78%
9,28¢ — 9,28¢
3,831 — 3,831
2,84¢ — 2,84¢
1,08¢ — 1,08¢
11,552 — 11,55:
12,09: — 12,09:
1,617 98 1,71¢
$142,99: $ 98 $143,009.
$ 12,99¢ $ 51¢& $ 13,51«
26,63! — 26,63:
24,25 — 24,25
1,48¢ — 1,48¢
11,552 — 11,55:
2,07( — 2,07(
78,98¢ 51€ 79,50¢
73¢€ — 73¢€
58,34 — 58,34
4,04¢ (420) 3,62¢
(1,467 — (1,467
61,65¢ (420 61,23¢
2,34¢ — 2,34¢
64,00¢ (420 63,58¢
$142,99: $ 98 $143,09.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Unaudited)
(In Thousands)

For the Six Months Ended June 30, 201

Restatemen
As Reportec Adjustments As Restate(
Cash flows from operating activitie
Net income $ 2,518 $ (279 $ 2,23¢
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashduis) provided by operating
activities:
Income from tax credit (319 — (319
Accretion of interest expen: 36( — 36C
Fair value adjustments on SBA lo¢ 663 — 663
Fair value adjustment of credits in lieu of casH antes payable in
credits in lieu of cas (42) — (42)
Fair value adjustment on warral 111 — 111
Deferred income taxe (1,54 — (1,54%)
Depreciation and amortizatic 1,51z — 1,51
Provision for loan losse 264 — 264
Other, ne 451 — 451
Changes in operating assets and liabilit —
Originations of SBA loans held for s¢ (34,68¢) — (34,68¢)
Proceeds from sale of SBA loans held for : 35,01¢ — 35,01¢
Broker receivabli (739) — (739)
Accounts receivabl (2,349 — (2,347)
Prepaid expenses, accrued interest receivablethrd asset 3,39( — 3,39(
Accounts payable, accrued expenses, other lisgsiland deferred
revenue (1,219 274 (949
Other, ne (1,049 — (1,049
Net cash provided by operating activit 2,34¢ — 2,34¢
Cash flows from investing activitie
Returns of investments in qualified busines 101 — 101
Purchase of fixed assets and customer acci (813) — (813
SBA loans originated for investment, i (10,929 — (10,927
Payments received on SBA loc 2,08¢ — 2,08¢
Change in restricted ca 53( — 53C
Net cash used in investing activiti (9,019 — (9,019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS—(Continued)

(Unaudited)
(In Thousands)

Cash flows from financing activitie
Net borrowings on bank lines of cre
Increase in cash due to consolidation of
Proceeds from term loe
Payments on bank term note paye
Payments on senior not
Change in restricted cash related to securitiz:
Additions to deferred financing cos
Purchase of treasury sha
Other, ne’
Net cash provided by financing activiti
Net increase in cash and cash equival
Cash and cash equivale—beginning of periot

Cash and cash equivale—end of perioc
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow activities

Reduction of credits in lieu of cash and notes pleym credits in lieu of cash balances
due to delivery of tax credits to Certified Invest

Addition to assets and liabilities on January 11 28s a result of consolidation of
interests in Exponential of New York, LL
Assets
Liabilities
Equity
Addition to additional paid-in capital for warrardspired previously attributable to nor
controlling interest:

Initial allocation of value issued to warrants isgun financing transactic
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For the Six Months Ended June 30, 201

As Reported

Restatemen

Adjustments

$

5,167
2,76%
10,00(
(20¢)
(2,229)
5,041
(1,257)
(926)
187

$ —

18,53¢

11,86(
11,20:

23,06!

$ —

&

6,167

2,768
7

2,75¢

33C

1,95¢

As Restatec

$

5,167
2,76°
10,00(
(20€)
(2,225)
5,041
(1,257
(926)
187

18,53«

&*| &

@

11,86(
11,20:

23,06:

6,167

2,76:
7

2,75¢

33C

1,95¢



Table of Contents

For the three and nine months ended September 302

The Company understated it provision for merchaarge-back loss reserves in the amount of $2750605731,000 for the three and nine
months ended September 30, 2012, respectivelyfirgsin an overstatement of net income of appratiely $165,000 and $438,000,
respectively, an understatement of total asse$98f000 and an understatement of total liabilitiE$683,000 as of September 30, 2012. The
following is a summary of the effect of the restagmts on the originally issued unaudited condesedolidated statement of income for the
three and nine months ended September 30, 201adited condensed consolidated balance sheet asptér8ber 30, 2012, and the unauditec
condensed consolidated statement of cash flowthéonine months ended September 30, 2012 (in thds}a

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME

(Unaudited)
(In Thousands, except for Per Share Data)

For the Three Months Ended September 30, 201

Restatemen
Previously As
Reported Adjustments Restated
Operating revenue
Electronic payment processi $ 21,68¢ $ — $ 21,68t
Web hosting and desic 4,52¢ — 4,52¢
Premium incomt 3,15¢ — 3,15¢
Interest incom 894 — 894
Servicing fee incom— NSBF portfolio 56C — 56(
Servicing fee incom- external portfolios 1,517 — 1,51
Income from tax credit 122 — 122
Insurance commissiot 28¢€ — 28¢€
Other income 714 — 714
Total operating revenut 33,45¢ — 33,45¢
Net change in fair value ¢
SBA loans (559) — (559)
Warrants — — —
Credits in lieu of cash and notes payable in csdditieu of casl (20 — (20)
Total net change in fair valt (579 — (574
Operating expense
Electronic payment processing ca 18,08: 27¢ 18,35¢
Salaries and benefi 5,591 — 5,597
Interest 1,23: — 1,23
Depreciation and amortizatic 763 — 763
Provision for loan losse a0 — 9C
Other general and administrative cc 4,18¢ — 4,18¢
Total operating expens 29,95( 27¢ 30,22t
Income before income tax 2,93¢ (275) 2,65¢
Provision for income taxe 1,46¢ (110 1,35¢
Net income 1,46t (16%) 1,30(¢
Net income attributable to n-controlling interest: 7 7
Net income attributable to Newtek Business Seryitres $ 1470 $ (165 $ 1,30i
Weighted average common shares outstan
Basic 35,20( — 35,20(
Diluted 37,52( — 37,52(
Basic income per sha $ 0.04 $ — $ 0.04
Diluted income per shal $ 0.04 $ (0.00 $ 0.0z
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME

(In Thousands, except for Per Share Data)

Operating revenue
Electronic payment processi
Web hosting and desic
Premium incomt
Interest incom
Servicing fee incom— NSBF portfolio
Servicing fee incom— external portfolios
Income from tax credit
Insurance commissiot
Other income

Total operating revenut

Net change in fair value ¢
SBA loans
Warrants

(Unaudited)

Credits in lieu of cash and notes payable in csdditieu of casl

Total net change in fair valt
Operating expense
Electronic payment processing ca
Salaries and benefi
Interest
Depreciation and amortizatic
Provision for loan losse
Other general and administrative cc
Total operating expens
Income before income tax
Provision for income taxe
Net income
Net income attributable to n-controlling interest:
Net income attributable to Newtek Business Seryibes
Weighted average common shares outstan
Basic

Diluted
Basic and diluted income per shi
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For the Nine Months Ended September 30, 201

Restatemen

Previously As
Reported Adjustments Restated
$ 63,67 $ — $ 63,67
13,78: — 13,78’
7,95¢ — 7,95¢
2,432 — 2,43:
1,537 — 1,53}
3,59: — 3,59¢
441 — 441
91t — 91t
2,18¢ — 2,18¢
96,52¢ — 96,52
(1,217 - (1,217
(111) — (111)
21 — 21
(1,307 — (1,307)
52,81 731 53,54
16,71( — 16,71(
3,20¢ — 3,20¢
2,27¢ — 2,27¢
354 — 354
12,89! — 12,89
88,24¢ 731 88,98(
6,96¢ (731) 6,23¢
2,991 (297) 2,69¢
3,97¢ (43¢ 3,54(
30 — 3C
$  4,00¢ $ (439 $  3,57(
35,63 — 35,63:
36,64¢ — 36,64¢
$ 0.1 $ (0.0 $  0.1C
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

(Unaudited)
(In Thousands, except for Per Share Data)

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents (includes $1,751 refatétE)
Restricted cas
Broker receivabls
SBA loans held for investment, net (includes $18,ated to securitization trust VIE; net of
reserve for loan losses of $2,3
SBA loans held for investment, at fair value (irdgs $23,428 related to securitization trust \
Accounts receivable (net of allowance of $7
SBA loans held for sale, at fair val
Prepaid expenses and other assets, net (inclugEsdklated to securitization trust VI
Servicing assets (net of accumulated amortizatimhadlowances of $6,52!
Fixed assets (net of accumulated depreciation eradtezation of $12,229
Intangible assets (net of accumulated amortizaifd$il3,725)
Credits in lieu of cas

Goodwill
Deferred tax asset, n
Total asset
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities:

Accounts payable, accrued expenses and otheiitie®
Notes payabli
Note payable Securitization trust VIE
Deferred revenu
Notes payable in credits in lieu of ce
Total liabilities

Commitments and contingenci
Equity:
Newtek Business Services, Inc stockhol’ equity:

Preferred stock (par value $0.02 per share; autharl,000 shares, no shares issued

and outstanding

Common stock (par value $0.02 per share; authoB2¢@D0 shares, 36,913 issued;

35,200 outstanding, not including 83 shares heksirow)
Additional paic-in capital

Retained earnings (includes $1,466 related to diofedimn of VIE on January 1, 201

Treasury stock, at cost (1,713 shal

Total Newtek Business Services, Inc. stockho’ equity
Non-controlling interest:

Total equity
Total liabilities and equit
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As of September 30, 201

Restatemen

Previously As
Reported Adjustments Restated
$ 18,30 $ — $ 18,30
9,76¢ — 9,76¢
10,53t — 10,53:
16,49! — 16,49:
36,411 — 36,41
11,74¢ — 11,74¢
1,04¢ — 1,04¢
10,65( — 10,65(
4,15: — 4,15%
2,92¢ — 2,92¢
94¢ — 94¢
10,06: — 10,06:
12,09: — 12,09:
2,53¢ 98 2,632
$147,66: $ 98  $147,76(
$ 11,04! $ 683 $ 11,72«
34,27¢ — 34,27¢
23,151 — 23,15
1,437 — 1,43
10,06 — 10,06
79,971 683 80,65¢
73¢€ — 73¢€
60,56( — 60,56(
5,51¢ (58E) 4,93:
(1,467) (1,467)
65,34¢ (58E) 64,76
2,342 — 2,342
67,69’ (58E) 67,10¢
$147,66.  $ 98  $147,76(
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Unaudited)
(In Thousands)

For the Nine Months EndedSeptember 30, 201,

Restatemen
As Reported Adjustments As Restated

Cash flows from operating activitie
Net income $ 3,97¢ $ (439 $  3,54(
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashdus) provided by
operating activities

Income from tax credit (447 — (447)
Accretion of interest expen: 462 — 462
Fair value adjustments on SBA loe 1,215 — 1,215
Fair value adjustment on warral 111 — 111
Fair value adjustment of credits in lieu of casH antes payable
credits in lieu of cas (22) — (22)
Deferred income taxe (2,467) — (2,467)
Depreciation and amortizatic 2,27¢ — 2,27¢
Provision for loan losse 354 — 354
Other, ne 884 — 884
Changes in operating assets and liabilit —
Originations of SBA loans held for s¢ (55,14°) — (55,14Y)
Proceeds from sale of SBA loans held for : 56,391 — 56,391
Broker receivabli (5,622 — (5,627)
Accounts receivabl (3,63)) — (3,63))
Prepaid expenses, accrued interest receivablethrd asse 3,45¢ — 3,45¢
Accounts payable, accrued expenses, other liasiland
deferred revenu (907) 43¢ (469
Other, ne’ (3,129 — (3,129
Net cash used in operating activit (2,22¢) — (2,226)
Cash flows from investing activitie
Investments in qualified businest (1,657) — (1,657)
Returns of investments in qualified busines 101 — 101
Purchase of fixed assets and customer acci (1,319 — (1,319
SBA loans originated for investment, 1 (17,109 — (17,109
Payments received on SBA loc 3,261 — 3,261
Change in restricted ca 99¢ — 99¢
Net cash used in investing activiti (15,709 — (15,709

F-58



Table of Contents

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS—(Continued)

(Unaudited)
(In Thousands)

Cash flows from financing activitie
Net borrowings on bank lines of cre
Increase in cash due to consolidation of
Proceeds from term loe
Payments on bank term note paye
Payments on senior not
Change in restricted cash related to securitiz:
Additions to deferred financing cos
Purchase of treasury sha
Other, ne’
Net cash provided by financing activiti
Net increase in cash and cash equival
Cash and cash equivale—beginning of periot
Cash and cash equivale—end of perioc
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow activities

Reduction of credits in lieu of cash and notes pleya credits in lieu of cash balan
due to delivery of tax credits to Certified Invest

Addition to assets and liabilities on January 11, 28s a result of consolidation of
interests in Exponential of New York, LL
Assets
Liabilities
Equity
Addition to additional paid-in capital for warrarggpired previously attributable to
nor-controlling interest:

Initial allocation of value issued to warrants isdlin financing transactic
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For the Nine Months Ended September 30, 201

As Reported

Restatemen

Adjustments

As Restated

$  12,82¢ J— $  12,82¢
2,76% — 2,76°
10,00( — 10,00(
(319 — (319
(3,389 — (3,389
5,05: — 5,05¢
(1,319 — (1,319
(926) — (926)
33z — 332
25,03 — 25,03
7,10¢ — 7,10:
11,20: — 11,20:
$ 18,30 $  — $ 18,30
$  7.90¢ — $  7.90¢
$  2,76: — $  2,76:
7 — 7
$  2,75¢ — $  2,75¢
$ 33C — $ 33C
$  105¢ — $  1,95¢
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NOTE 27 — SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In March 2013, the Company completed a third séeation resulting in $20,900,000 of notes beirgyed in a private placement transaction.
The SBA lender transferred the unguaranteed patdiSBA loans in the amount of $23,569,000 anddditional $5,900,000 for additional
loans to be funded subsequent to the transactianspecial purpose entity Newtek Small BusinesmlTrust 2013-1 (the “Trust”). The notes
received an “A'rating by S&P, and the final maturity date of tmeemded notes is June 25, 2038. The proceeds thiiEaction have been a
will be used to repay debt and originate new loans.
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NEWTEK BUSINESS SERVICES, INC
SUBSIDIARIES

Name of Company
Advanced Cyber Security Systems, L

Automated Merchant Services, It
Business Connect, LL

CCC Real Estate Holdings Co., LL
CDS Business Services, Ir
CrystalTech Web Hosting, In
Exponential Business Development Co., |
First Bankcard Alliance of Alabama, LL
Fortress Data Management, LI
Newtek Asset Backed Securities, LI
Newtek Insurance Agency, LL
Newtek Small Business Finance, ||
PMTWorks Payroll, LLC

Secure CyberGateway Services, L
Small Business Lending, In

Solar Processing Solutions, LL
Summit Systems and Design, LI
The Texas Whitestone Group, LI
Universal Processing Services of Wisconsin, L
Where Eagles Fly, LL(

The Whitestone Group, LL
Wilshire Alabama Partners, LL
Wilshire Colorado Partners, LL
Wilshire DC Partners, LL(

Wilshire Holdings I, Inc

Wilshire Holdings I, Inc

Wilshire Louisiana Bidco, LL(
Wilshire Louisiana Partners Il, LL
Wilshire Louisiana Partners Ill, LLt
Wilshire Louisiana Partners |V, LL
Wilshire New York Advisers I, LLC
Wilshire New York Partners I, LL(
Wilshire New York Partners IV, LL(
Wilshire New York Partners V, LL(
Wilshire Partners, LL(

Wilshire Texas Partners |, LL

State of Incorporation/
Organization

New York
Florida
Texas
Delaware
Delaware
New York
New York
Alabama
Texas
Delaware
District of Columbia
New York
New York
Texas
Delaware
Wisconsin
Texas
Texas
Wisconsin
District of Columbia
New York
Alabama
Colorado
District of Columbia
New York
New York
Louisiana
Louisiana
Louisiana
Louisiana
New York
New York
New York
New York
Florida
Texas

Exhibit 21



Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference imF8r8 (No. 333-107504, 333-119191 and 333-51928)ofeport dated April 1, 2013, on
our audits of the consolidated financial statemehtdewtek Business Services, Inc. and Subsidiasesf December 31, 2012 and 2011
(restated) and for the years ended December 32, 2011 (restated) and 2010, included in its Aniieggort on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2012 which is incorporated hereingigrence. Our report included an explanatory pagdgwith respect to the restatement of
the December 31, 2011 consolidated financial stetdsn

/sl CohnReznick LLP

Jericho, New York
April 1, 2013



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Barry Sloane, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fKlewtek Business Services, Inc. (the “registrant”

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report doésantain any untrue statement of a materialdacmit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading with respect to the
period covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in thisnaial report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaara for, the periods presented in this annua
report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(f) and 15d-15(f) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedoresiused such disclosure controls and procedaotes designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhubsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly duriig toeriod in which this report is being prepared;

b) designed such internal control over financiglomting, or caused such internal control over fgiahreporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting principles;

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registsagiisclosure controls and procedures and presentais report our conclusions ab
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls adgatures, as of the end of the period coveredibydport based on such evaluation; ant

d) disclosed in this report any change in the tegi$'s internal control over financial reportirftat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repog) tlas materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s intexl control over financial reporting.

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer antdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimiiernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weadges in the design or operation of internal corttvelr financial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that invelweanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

/ s/ B ARRY S LOANE
Barry Sloane
Principal Executive Officer

Date: April 1, 2013



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Jennifer Eddelson, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fKlewtek Business Services, Inc. (the “registrant”

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report doésantain any untrue statement of a materialdacmit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading with respect to the
period covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in thisnaial report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaara for, the periods presented in this annua
report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(f) and 15d-15(f) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedoresiused such disclosure controls and procedaotes designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhubsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly duriig toeriod in which this report is being prepared;

b) designed such internal control over financiglomting, or caused such internal control over fgiahreporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting principles;

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registsagiisclosure controls and procedures and presentais report our conclusions ab
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls adgatures, as of the end of the period coveredibydport based on such evaluation; ant

d) disclosed in this report any change in the tegi$'s internal control over financial reportirftat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repog) tlas materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s intexl control over financial reporting.

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer antdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimiiernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weadges in the design or operation of internal corttvelr financial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that invelweanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

/ s/ JENNIFER EDDELSONM
Jennifer Eddelson
Principal Financial Officer

Date: April 1, 2013



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10{fiNewtek Business Services, Inc. (the “Companigdi,the year ended December
2012, as filed with the Securities and Exchange @@sion on the date hereof (the “Report”), |, BaBtgane, Chief Executive Officer of the

Company, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, aschdg Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 206#ify that, to the best of our
knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeotsSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExafeAct of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faplgsents, in all material respects, the finan@aldition and results of the operations of the
Company.

/ s/ B ARRY S LOANE
Barry Sloane,
Principal Executive Officer

April 1, 2013



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10{fiNewtek Business Services, Inc. (the “Companigdi,the year ended December
2012, as filed with the Securities and Exchange @@sion on the date hereof (the “Report;’)}Jennifer Eddelson, Chief Accounting Officel
the Company, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 135added by Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley ARDOR, certify that, to the best of our
knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeatsSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExafeAct of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faplgsents, in all material respects, the finan@aldition and results of the operations of the
Company.

/ s/ JENNIFER EDDELSONM
Jennifer Eddelson,
Principal Financial Officer

April 1, 2013



